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PETITIONER’S FIRST NOTICE OF RELIANCE

In accordance with Rule 2.122 of the Trademark Rules of Practice, Petitioner

Nartron Corporation submits its notice of reliance on the following documents, true copies of

which are annexed hereto as Exhibits 1-17:

Printed Publications (Registrations Owned by Party):

ey A copy of Petitioner’s U.S. Registration No. 1,681,891 for the SMART TOUCH
trademark for “electronic proximity sensors,” a TARR (“Trademark Applications
and Registrations Retrieval”) printout showing current status and title of the same,
and portions of the application file history (namely, a specimen of use).’

Other Printed Publications:

(2) “Auto shows tum heads for Reed City Company,” Cadillac News, April 10, 2009, available at
http://www.cadillacnews.com/news_story/?story_id=783505&year=2009&issue=20090410,

accessed September 23, 2010 (also produced as Washeleski Dep., Ex. 3).

! Trademark Rule 2.122(d), 37 C.F.R. § 2.122(d), allows for the filing of TESS copies of registrations to
establish the status and title of registrations owned by a party.




3)

“)

)

(6)

Q)

“Car Tech Trends for 2010 — and Beyond,” Autos.MSN.com, December 12, 2009,
available at http://editorial.autos.msn.com/article.aspx ?cp-documentid=1094624,
accessed September 23, 2010 (excerpt from same article produced as Washeleski
Dep., Ex. 4).2

“Virtual revolution — Liquid crystal displays are replacing analog gauges to give
drivers more information in a reconfigurable format,” Automotive Engineering
(aei-online.org), Vol.117 No.5, May 2009 (also produced as Washeleski Dep., Ex.
6).

“Cypress’s PSoC® CapSense Enables Touch Sensing Inside HP Compaq
Notebook PCs,” AECCafe.com, May 9, 2007, available at
http://www10.aeccafe.com/nbc/articles/1/388459/Cypress-PSoCR-CapSense-
Enables-Touch-Sensing-Inside-HP-Compaq-Notebook-PCs, accessed September
23, 2010 (identical article printed October 12, 2009 from AECCafe.com produced
as Petitioner’s Bates Nos. NOO0O00005~- 6 and Washeleski Dep., Ex. 15).

“Smart Touch® Sensing Places the Power of the Microprocessor at Your
Fingertip,” SAE Int. J. Passeng. Cars — Electron. Electr. Syst. October
2009 2:159-162 (also produced as Washeleski Dep., Ex. 9).

“GM gives $2B contract to Hewlett Packard,” Freep.com, July 21, 2010 (also

produced as Washeleski Dep., Ex. 23).

[11f a document obtained from the Internet identifies its date of publication or date that it was accessed

and printed, and its source (e.g., the URL), it may be admitted into evidence pursuant to a notice of
reliance in the same manner as a printed publication in general circulation in accordance with Trademark
Rule 2.122(e).” Safer, Inc. v. OMS Investments, Inc., Opposition No. 91176445 (February 23, 2010)
[precedential] (emphasis in original).
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(8)

)

(10)

(1)

(12)

“General Motors Renews $2 Billion HP Enterprise Services Agreement
Supporting Vehicle Design and Production,” HP.com, July 21, 2010, accessed
September 1, 2010 (Washeleski Dep., Ex. 24).

“HP in the Motor City,” available at http://h30507.www3.hp.com/t5/The-Next-
Big-Thing/HP-in-the-Motor-City/ba-p/81813, accessed September 23, 2010 (also
accessed September 1, 2010 and produced as Washeleski Ex. 25).

“HP solutions for the automotive industry,” available at
http://h20338.www?2.hp.com/enterprise/downloads/COL_FINAL_8_Pg_New_Aut
o_Bro_LOW_RES.pdf, accessed September 23, 2010 (also accessed September 1,
2010 and produced as Washeleski Ex. 28).

“Improving automotive industry outcomes,” available at
http://h20195.www2.hp.com/V2/GetPDF.aspx/4AA1-4190ENN.pdf, accessed
September 23, 2010 (Petitioner’s Bates Nos. N49— N60; Washeleski Ex. 20).
Hewlett-Packard Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended October 31, 2008, available at
http://sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/47217/000104746908013240/a2189375z10-
k.htm, accessed September 23, 2010 (also accessed October 19, 2009, excerpt
produced as Washeleski Dep. Ex. 21).

Exhibits 2-11 are articles, news briefs and brochures retrieved from the internet

and Westlaw, relevant to show the parties’ presence in the automotive industry, evidencing

similar trade channels, market interface, and the potential for confusion.




Exhibit 12 is a copy of Hewlett-Packard Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2008, which is also relevant to show similar trade channels,

market interface, and the potential for confusion.

Discovery Responses:

(13)
(14)

15)

(16)

a7

Respondent’s September 9, 2009 Initial Disclosures.

Respondent’s April 8, 2010 Responses to Petitioner’s First Set of Interrogatories.’
Respondent’s April 8, 2010 Responses to Petitioner’s First Set of Rule 34
Requests.

Respondent’s July 8, 2010 letter to Petitioner’s counsel regarding discovery
responses and document production, including Respondent’s July 8, 2010
Privilege Log.

Respondent’s July 8, 2010 Responses to Petitioner’s First Set of Requests for

Admission.

BROOKS KUSHMAN P.C.

by M Shswe )

ROBERT C.J. TUTTLE
HOPE V.SHOVEIN

1000 Town Center,
Twenty-Second Floor
Southfield, Michigan 48075
(248) 358-4400

Attorneys for Petitioner

Dated: September 23, 2010

> Documents provided as all or part of an answer to an interrogatory may be made of record, as an
interrogatory answer, by notice of reliance filed in accordance with 37 CFR §§ 2.120()(3)(1) and

2.120G)(5).
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that a true and complete copy of PETITIONER’S FIRST
NOTICE OF RELIANCE has been served on September 23, 2010 by:

__ delivering
 mailing (via First-Class mail)
a copy to:

MARTIN R. GLICK

DIANA D. DiGENNARO

HOWARD, RICE, NEMEROVSKI,
CANADY, FALK & RABKIN

Three Embarcadero Center

Seventh Floor

San Francisco, CA 94111

Attorneys for Respondent

Hope V. Shovein

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that PETITIONER’S FIRST NOTICE OF RELIANCE is
being deposited with the United States Postal Service with sufficient postage as First-class mail
in an envelope addressed to:

UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE
Trademark Trial and Appeal Board

P.O. Box 1451

Alexandria, VA 22313-1451

On this 23" day of September, 2010.

e Shsne)

Hope V. Shovein




IN THE UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE
BEFORE THE TRADEMARK TRIAL AND APPEAL BOARD
NARTRON CORPORATION
Petitioner,
V. Cancellation No. 92050789

HEWLETT-PACKARD
DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, L.P.,

Respondent.
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Int. CL: 9

Prior U.S. Cl.: 21
Reg. No. 1,681,891
United States Patent and Trademark Ofﬁce Registered Apr. 7, 1992

TRADEMARK
PRINCIPAL REGISTER
SMART TOUCH
NARTRON CORPORATION (MICHIGAN COR- FIRST USE 12-17-1986; IN COMMERCE.
PORATION) 1-7-1988. - ]

S000 N, U.S. 131

REED CITY, MI 49677 . L ‘
4 . SER. NO. 74-168,921, FILED 5-22-1991.

" FOR: ELECTRONIC PROXIMITY SENSORS
AND SWITCHING DEVICES, IN CLASS 9 (US. CORA ANN MOORHBAD EXAMINING AT-
CL. 21). . TORNEY




9/23/2010 Latest Status Info

Thank you for your request. Here are the latest results from the TARR webserver.

This page was generated by the TARR systemon 2010-09-23 11:22:19 ET

Serial Number: 74168921 Assienment Information Trademark Document Retrieval

Registration Number: 1681891

Mark (words only): SMAR!T TOUCH

Standard Character claim: No

Current Status: This registration has been renewed.
Date of Status: 2002-02-07

Filing Date: 1991-05-22

Transformed into a National Application: No
Registration Date: 1992-04-07

Register: Principal

Law Office Assigned: LAW OII'ICE 4

If you are the applicant or applicant's attorney and have questions about this file, please contact the
Trademark Assistance Center at IrademarkAssistance Center/aluspto.goy

Current Location: 408 - Scanning On Demand

Date In Location: 2007-12-28

LAST APPLICANT(S)/OWNER(S) OF RECORD

1. NARTRON CORPORATION

Address:

NARTRON CORPORATION
5000 N. U.S. 131

Reed City. MI 49677

United States

Legal Entity Type: Corporation

tarr.uspto.gov/tarr?regser=registration... 1/3




9/23/2010 Latest Status Info
State or Country of Incorporation: Michigan

GOODS AND/OR SERVICES

Intemnational Class: 009

Class Status: Active

electronic proxinitty sensors and switching devices
Basis: 1(a)

First Use Date: 1986-12-17

First Use in Commerce Date: 1988-01-07

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

MADRID PROTOCOL INFORMATION

(NOT AVAILABLE)

|
\
\
\
(NOT AVAILABLE)
|
|
i
\
:
|

PROSECUTION HISTORY

NOTE: To view any document referenced below, click on the link to ""Trademark Document

Retrieval' shown near the top of this page.
2007-12-28 - Case File In TICRS
2002-02-07 - Frst renewal 10 vear
2002-02-07 - Section 8 (10-vear) accepted/ Section 9 granted
2001-12-06 - Conbmed Section 8 (10-vear)/Section 9 filed
1998-04-11 - Section 8 (6-year) accepted & Section 15 acknowledged
1997-11-24 - Section 8 (6-year) and Section 15 Filed
1992-04-07 - Regstered - Principal Register
1992-01-14 - Published for opposition

1991-12-13 - Notice of publication

tarr.uspto.gov/tarr’regser=registration...

2/3



9/23/2010 Latest Status Info
1991-09-09 - Approved for Pub - Prmcipal Register (Inttial exan)

1991-08-26 - Assigned To Examincr

1991-07-22 - Communication received [rom applicant

ATTORNEY/CORRESPONDENT INFORMATION

Correspondent

FLIZABETH F. JANDA
BROOKS & KUSHMAN PC
1000 TOWN CTR 22TH L
SOUTHFIELD MI 48075

tarr.uspto.gov/tarr?regser=registration... 3/3
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IN THE UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE
BEFORE THE TRADEMARK TRIAL AND APPEAL BOARD
NARTRON CORPORATION

Petitioner,

V. Cancellation No. 92050789

HEWLETT-PACKARD
DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, L.P,,

Respondent.

EXHIBIT 2




CADILLAC

Trusted. Local. Connected.

Front Page

APRIL 10, 2009 | www.cadillacnews.com

Cadiltac, Michigan

Auto shows turn heads for Reed City company

By Matt Whetstone

REED CITY -
Imagine a world
without buttons.
Or levers. Or
knobs.

Nartron  has.
And now the
Reed City-based
manufacturer is
beginning to see
how big that vi-
sion could be-

Following the
Detroit Auto
Show, Nartron’s
Smart Touch technology created
a lot of buzz for the manufac-
turer among domestic auto-
makers.

At the New York Auto Show

this week, Nartron founder Norm
Rautiola said international auto-
makers are turning their attention
Nartron’s way, t0o.

Nartron has worked with
Chrysler to install the Smart
Touch technology in some of its
auto show vehicles. The result is
a large, button-free interface that
is interactive for drivers and
passengers.

Basically, it’s an iPhone for

your car, as Nartron owns the
patents behind the technology
that makes the iPhone work.
"This is really big stuff that’s
going to change the industry,”
Rautiola said. "Now, we have

luxury at a cost savings. Nobody

does that. With the solid-state,

This image shows the display a driver would

see behind the steering wheel. The technol-
ogy is the same used in the iPhone and is
come. patented by Nartron of Reed City. The instru-
ments are located behind a thick piece of
glass or plastic and a driver and passenger
can use it as a touchscreen.

touch-screen technology, every-
thing can be made in any struc-
ture."

What a driver normally would
see behind a steering wheel is a
mish-mash of panels, buttons
and gauges. The Smart Touch
puts all that behind a thick, solid
piece of plastic or glass without
sacrificing user-friendliness.
When the driver touches a dis-
play for the car’s windows, the
windows go up or down.

"People ask how to interact
with something behind the
glass," Rautiola said. "It senses
you when you wipe your finger
or use multiple fingers. All but-
tons, knobs and levers are elimi-
nated. That’s where the cost
savings is. There’s nothing to
rattle or stick out and break up
the feeling of the sculptured
design.”

With the solid-state, touch-
screen technology, Rautiola said
designers can create clean, sculp-
tured lines without losing any
function and at a cheaper price
than before.

Interest in Nartron’s technol-
ogy has exploded in the last year.
Rautiola said it was tough to
drum-up interest in the product
outside of Chrysler. Once the
technology was revealed, how-
ever, more and more interested
parties came calling.

"What that means is some
interesting and exciting things in
this dreary north," Rautiola said.
"I’m not sure where this is going
to go, but it’s going to keep roll-
ing."

Nartron Technology

The iQ Power™ solid state touch
screen systems use powerful
MPA (multi-point activation),
proprietary Smart Touch® tech-
nology to empower the user to
simply reach and come close to
its surface (which illuminates
the IP), and with a flick or ges-
ture of a finger, quickly scroll
through a wide variety menu
options such as climate, music,
GPS, etc.

Wide design freedom in instru-
ment panel styling/function is
instantly achieved. Elegantly
sculptured contours with cool,
sleek displays bring “touch
Trackbali control of IP functions
screen envy” to the car cockpit
for the first time.

iQ Power™ systems dramatically
improve functionality while
costing much less than tradi-
tional knobs and buttons. East
to use screens reduce driver
distraction and significantly
improve safety. A break-
through in reliability. As the
inventor of Smart Touch®, our
more than 20 years capacitive
touch screen design experi-
ence makes us the only choice
when you need the HMI power
enhancement of muiti-point
activation.

Source: Nartron
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This image shows the display a driver would see behind the steering wheel. The technology s the
same used in the iPhane and is patented by Nartron of Reed City. The instruments are located behind
a thick piece of glass or plastic and a driver and passenger can use it as a touchscreen.

Purchase this photo

Auto shows turn heads for Reed City company
By Matt Whetstone
REED CITY - Imagine a world without buttons. Or levers. Or knobs.

Nartron has. And now the Reed City-based manufacturer is beginning to see how big that vision could
become.

Follawing the Detroit Auto Show. Nartren's Smart Touch technology created a lot of buzz for the
manufacturer among domestic automakers.

Atthe New York Auta Show this week, Nartron founder Norm Rautiola said international automakers
are turning their attenton Nartron’s way, too.

Nartron has worked with Chrysler to install the Smart Touch technology in some of its auto show
vehicles. The resultis a large, button-free interface that is interactive for drivers and passengers.

Basically, it's an iPhone for your car, as Nartron owns the patents behind the technology that makes the
iPhone work.

"This is really big stuff that's going to change the industry,” Rautiola said. "Now, we have luxury at a cost
savings. Nobody does that. With the solid-state, touch-screen technology, eventhing can be made in
any structure.”
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AccuWeather.com™

What a driver normally would see behind a steering wheel is a mish-mash of panels, buttons and s
gauges. The Smarn Touch puts all that behind a thick, solid piece of plastic or glass without sacrificing -
user-friendliness. When the driver touches a display for the car's windows, the windows go up or down.

"People ask how to interact with something behind the glass.” Rautiola said. "It senses you when you
wipe your finger or use multiple fingers. All buttons, knobs and levers are eliminated. That's where the
cost savings is. There's nothing to rattle or stick out and break up the feeling of the scuiptured design.”

With the solid-state, touch-screen technology, Rautiola said designers can create clean, sculptured
lines without losing any function and at a cheaper price than before.

Interest in Nartron's technology has exploded in the last year. Rautiola said it was tough to drum-up
interest in the product cutside of Chrysler. Once the technology was revealed, however, more and more
interested parties came calling.

"What that means is some interesting and exciting things in this dreary north," Rautiola said. "I'm not
sure where this is going to go, butit's going to keep rolling.”

mwhetstone@cadillacnews.com
Nartron technology

The iQ Power solid state touch screen systems use powerful MPA (multi-point activation), proprietary
Smart Touch technology to empower the user to simply reach and come close to its surface (which
illuminates the IP), and with a flick or gesture of a finger, quickly scroll through a wide array of menu AL LT he AL

optians such as climate. music, GPS, etc. Resurrection Life » 9127 East 44 ¥z Road ¢ Cadillac

Wide design freedom in instrument panel stylingfunction is instantly achieved. Elegantly sculptured
contours with cool, sleek displays bring "touch Trackball control of IP functions screen enw' to the car
cockpit for the firsttime.

iQ Power systems dramatically improwve functionality while costing much less than traditional knobs
and buttons. Easyto use screens reduce driver distraction and significantly improve safety. A
breakthraugh in reliability. As the inventar of Smart Touch, our more than 20 years capacitive touch
screen design experience makes us the only choice when you need the HMI power enhancement of
multi-point activation.

Source: Nartron

Auto show accolades L.f
. - ) . . l e 231.876.1885
'ls'::vsmysler 200C EVreceived Best Concept recognition by several national writers at the Detroit Auta www.getreslife.org

Automotive journalist Rex Roy wrote the car "caught everybody by surprise.”

“While the exteriar of the littie 200 is handsome and the electric powertrain is politically carrect (and
politically expedient), the 200C EV gets my vote because of its instrument cluster.”

That cluster was developed by Chrysler and Nartron. Roy also predicts where the technologyis gaing.
“Expect to see this technology on carts within the next decade...” he wrote.

Automotive journalist Marly Padgett added this: ".. this sleek, techno-sawy concept could be Chryslers
bridge to sustainability.”

Article Tools: Prim@ Email 3 Comment -

www.cadillacnews.com/news_story/?sto... 2/5
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Autos

Car Tech Trends for 2010 — and Beyond

What does the future hold for drivers and thelr vehicles? We take a look.
By Erik Sofge of MSN Autos Like Be the first of your friends to like this.

First things first: There will be no flying cars in your driveway ~— not tomorrow,
not next year, maybe never. But that doesn't mean the future of automotive
technology is boring. A growing fleet of hybrid and electric vehicles is
threatening to drag the nation's aging power grid into the digital era, while
new self-healing smart polymers could send auto body shops scrambling for
business.

Here are the technology trends — broken down into three overarching
categories — that could make the biggest impact on the auto industry and
your driving experience, in the months, years and decades to come.

1. THE EVOLUTION OF USER INTERFACES
This Year: Touch-Screen Dashboards
Whether it's an epidemic of iPhone envy or a natural evolution of user

lick to enlar ictur. ' interface, carmakers are beginning to replace analog dials and controls with
The technology used to support and pilot hybrid and electric vehicles, like this touch-screen displays. They were used in nearly every electric or hvbrid
| Tesla Madel S, is changing the automotive landscape faster than you think. vehicle unveiled at this year's Frankfurt Motor Show, such as Volkwagen's E-
| Up! concept and Citroen's REVOLTe, whose touch-sensitive screens locate the
Related Links nearest charging stations. Previous electric vehicles, such as Chrysler's 200C EV Concept and

the Tesla Model S, show off huge swaths of touch-sensitive real estate (the 200C has no
analog console controls), while other vehicles feature smaller touch-screen innovations, The
decidedly nonelectric 2010 Range Rover comes with a 12-inch "dual view" display, which lets
the driver check GPS directions while the passenger watches a DVD, both peering at the
same display. The Range Rover also integrates more controls into its touch-screen interface than previous models, further proof that knobs, buttons
and other "hard" controls are an endangered interface.

Bing: Car Tech Trends
The Coolest New Car Tech 2009

Video: Today Show: High-Tech Highway Help

This Decade: Augmented Reality

The technology is still in its infancy, but augmented reality — the combination of a real image with a virtual one — is about to grow up fast. Wikitude
Drive, a relatively modest in-car navigation application for the Android mobile phone platform, offers a glimpse of AR's potential. Instead of looking at
a digital overhead view of your next turn, Wikitude Drive floats the relevant data over a live view from the phone's camera. Similarly, researchers
are already at work developing AR systems that use heads-up displays to tag potential hazards with warning symbols, while BMW has unveiled a
somewhat wackier concept: goggles that let mechanics watch instructional videos as they work on a vehicle. In-vehicle AR offers engineers a chance
to make windshield-projected heads-up displays as useful, and as ubiquitous, as they should be.

Bing: Augmented Reality

This Century: Intelligent Vehicles
Forget about the possibility of an Intelligent Highway: the long-suffering initiative to develop a network of smart roads, smarter cars and safer
drivers. After decades of research and hundreds of millions in funding, the prospect of installing communication devices throughout the nation's
highways is as daunting as ever. However, vehicles that speak to one another, using a combination of GPS data and short-range wireless signals,
‘ would dodge the infrastructure pitfall entirely. At the recent Frankfurt Motor Show, Audi showed an electric version of the Quattro, called the e-Tron,
i featuring an onboard communications system that analyzes traffic flow and traffic-light timing to present a driving route that's optimized for energy
‘ efficiency. The result of a mare universal intelligent vehicle netwark could range from the simple, such as instant traffic advisories and collision alerts
| based on signals ahead, to the sublime — vehicles digitally chained together, each one dutifully following the lead vehicle's commands. Daimier
| tested one such "platoon” of trucks in 2003 and, earlier this year, researchers from the Southwest Research Institute in San Antonio conducted a
| similar, three-vehicle demonstration in Washington, D.C. With its combination of autonomous driving and old-fashioned drafting, platooning could
| reduce traffic congestion and improve fuel economy. That's just one possible application of intelligent vehicles — a milestone on the road to the fully
self-driven automobile.

Read: Five Ways Your Car Can Drive Itself, Today

2, MATERIALS

This Year: Bioplastics

It's easy to oversell the novelty of so-called bioplastics — which contain varying amounts of organic materials such as corn, kelp or soy — and it
doesn't mean you can gnaw on the seat cushions of the 2010 Lexus HS 250h if you're feeling a little puckish. Bioplastics are still plastic, though they

editorial.autos.msn.com/article.aspx?cp... 1/3



9/23/2010 Car Tech Trends for 2010 — and Beyon...
contain less petroleum and result in a lower carbon footprint for automakers. The current environmental vulnerability of bioplastics, which can
degrade when exposed to moisture and suniight, makes them a better fit for interior components. But as researchers experiment with new organic
compounds and more durable manufacturing techniques, analysts expect bioplastics to gradually replace traditional plastics, possibly even replacing
today's door panels and other exterior components with a more sustainable alternative.

Discuss: Which of these tech trends hold the most promise for the future, and why?

This Decade: Nanomaterials

Similar to the low-key replacement of traditional plastics with organically derived ones, tomorrow's cars will be increasingly tweaked at the
submicroscopic scale, with little to no fanfare. The most obvious target is lithium-ion batteries. Researchers have experimented for years with carbon
nanotube arrays (essentially creating a nubbly finish, with more surface area than a flat component) to boost the efficiency of cathodes and anodes,
meaning less energy lost during charging and discharging. Nanotechnology could also help researchers boost battery safety, allowing them to fine-
tune the complex and potentially explosive architecture of hybrid and electric-vehicle battery packs. "Nanotech allows us to custom-make the
electrodes, to look even more closely at the way the molecules fit together," says Don Hillebrand, director of the Center for Transportation Research
at Argonne National Laboratory in Illinois. "We can push those reactive plates closer together, and get more efficiency out of the battery, but
without letting those reactive materials touch." Because, as Hillebrand points out, reactive materials that do touch can set off what battery
researchers call 2 "thermal event” — what the rest of us call an explosion.

Video: Batteries: The New Qil?

This Century: Smart Materials

The most dramatic trend in automotive materials could also be the spookiest. Smart alloys, like the ones
pioneered by researchers at General Motors, could allow for morphing spoilers and air dams that flow into
place on demand, and door panels and bumpers that reshape themselves after a collision. These materials
are heat-activated, becoming flexible at higher temperatures, and snapping back into shape as they cool. The
first applications of smart materials will be subtle. As early as next year, GM expects to introduce grab handles
that automatically pivot into place when you open a door. However, large-component implementation means
answering tough questions. How do you seam-weld panels that are designed to shrivel under heat? Do you
incorporate onboard heating elements to activate specific smart alloy components, or funnel waste heat from
Chris Churchill (left) and John Shaw the engine or battery pack? An industry focused on the economics and logistics of rapid, bulk assembly will
conduct experiments an shape have to pioneer new manufacturing techniques to accommodate shape-shifting alloys. With GM already
memory alloys in the Smart Materials

and Structures Lab at the University leading the way in smart materials, and hungry for a new image, nothing says high-tech reinvention like a car

of Michigan Engineering School in Ann ¢hat transforms at the push of a button.
Arbor, Michigan.

Read: A Car Made Out of What?

3. POWER

This Year: Clean Diesels

For many American drivers, diesels can be a tough choice. Contrary to the discount associated with diesel overseas, in some parts of the U.S. the
fuel costs anywhere from 25 to 50 percent more than gasoline. That hasn't stopped automakers fram pushing harder than ever for new diesel
vehicles. As of this year, Audi, BMW, Mercedes and Volkswagen are all selling clean diesels stateside. After all, few experts believe gas prices will
remain low over the long term. And according to Hiliebrand, it isn't the cost of diesel we should be focusing on, or even the 20 to 30 percent boost in
fuel economy. "It's easier to run biofuels on a diesel,” he says. "We might have bankrupted the ethanol companies, but non-corn-based cellulosic
ethanol is going to come back strong. When you look at using algae to produce biofuels, the yields are phenomenal, and you're not even displacing
production farmland.” Diesel sales might continue to disappoint, but as more models become available, the better the United States will be prepared
for biofuel's second act.

Video: Weather Channel: Decoding the Biofuel Buzz

This Decade: Ultracapacitors

Lithium-ion batteries are powering the next generation of hybrids, plug-ins, range extenders and every other kind of electric vehicle, and for a very
good reason: energy density. But they're also incredibly heavy; they require valuable metals such as platinum; and, on rare occasions, they suffer
"thermal events,” turning cell phones and laptops into incendiary devices. "That's why we make lithium-ion batteries about 40 percent bigger than
they need to be," Hillebrand says. By avoiding deep discharges, where nearly all of the battery pack's capacity is drained, the chances of a
catastrophic chain reaction are reduced. The solution could be ultracapacitors, which are essentially low-capacity, high-stability batteries, able to
charge and discharge quickly with no chance of blowing up. "We're working on a series of batteries that are composed of lithium-ion cells and
ultracaps,” Hillebrand says. "The ultracaps act as shock absorbers for the power slamming in and out, and then the lithium-ion cells have the
capacity. And you use less lithium-ion, which brings down the weight.” None of the major carmakers has announced plans to incorporate
ultracapacitors in their vehicles, but once lithium-ion's energy density begins to top out and rare metal reserves dry up, ultracaps might be the only
option left.

Discuss: Which of these tech trends hold the most promise for the future, and why?

This Century: Vehicle-to-Grid Charging

One potential benefit of an influx of electric vehicles is the creation of a vast network of backup batteries, with plugged-in cars feeding power back
into the grid at critical moments to help avoid cutages. If altruism isn't enough of a reward, EV owners who join the battery reserves could be
credited or paid for their occasional output. This type of capacity could mean overhauling the nation's core electricity infrastructure, creating a truly
smart grid with two-way digital bandwidth on most power lines. Or it could simply mean more advanced car chargers and/or smart meters, which
would communicate wirelessly with the local grid manager. Whatever the approach, widespread vehicle-to-grid charging could mean years more
research and millions in funding, but the payoff — for the utilities, as well as consumers — seems too interesting to pass up.
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The technology used to support and pilot hybrid and
electric vehicles, like this Tesla Model S, is changing
the automotive landscape faster than you think.
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(

Dashboards with analog dials and controls are fastly
becoming a thing of the past. Touch-screens like this
one in Chrysler's 200C EV Concept are the wave of
the future.
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Wikitude Drive, a modestly priced in-car navigation
application for the Android mobile phone platform,
shows what can be achieved by superimposing a
real image over a virtual one.
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Bioplastics, like those found in the seat cushions of
this 2010 Lexus HS 250h, contain varying amounts of
organic materials such as corn, kelp or soy.
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The newest generation of lithium-ion battery
(foreground) has an energy density three times that
of the batteries in today's electric cars (background).

Credit: © Argonne National Laboratory
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Chris Churchill (left) and John Shaw conduct
experiments on shape memory alloys in the Smart
Materials and Structures Lab at the University of
Michigan Engineering School in Ann Arbor, Michigan.
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Diesel-powered vehicles, like this 2010 Audi A3, get
a fuel-economy boost of up to 30 percent when
compared to their gasoline counterparts.
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These ultracapacitors will dramatically boost the
power of lithium-ion batteries, enabling plug-in hybrid
electric vehicles to travel much farther on a single
charge.

|Selctagalery

Credit © Argonne National Laboratory
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@ FORD'S PHEV VEHICLE-TO-GRID COMMUNICATIONS

Einctre God

Future Renewabie
Energy Sources

Credit: © Ford Motor Company and Wieck Media Senvices, Inc.
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Widespread vehicle-to-grid communications, like this
proposal from Ford, could mean years more
research and millions in funding, but the payoff — for
the utilities, as well as consumers — seems too
interesting to pass up.
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Liquid crystal displays are replacing
analog gauges to give drivers more
information in a reconfigurable format.

The Mercedes S-Class features a Bosch-supplied instrument bane! that uses an LCD
to simulate a virtual analog speedometer that matches the other instruments during
daylight and that displays the infrared image when night vision is activated.

ooking back to the dawn of the

automotive era, the methods of

steering, shifting, braking, and
controlling the throttle have evolved sig-
nificantly. But over that time, the method
of instrumenting cars has seen very little
change. There has been some dabbling in
linear analog and digital instruments,
but the overwhelming standard has been
the circular clock-like analog gauges in-
herited from steam engines.

Finally, with the arrival of virtual
instrument panels based on reconfigu-
rable LCD (liquid crystal display) pan-
els, there is the potential for that famil-
iar interface to be replaced. But those
circular analog gauges, with their mov-
ing pointers, lasted as long as they did
because they are a good way to convey
important information at a glance, so
one of the main things these new video
panels may be used to display is a simu-
lation of physical gauges.

The benefit lies in them being able to
alternatively show other information as
needed. That means the ability to dis-
play video images from backup cam-
eras, for example. But it also means the
ability to display information about new
alternative drivetrain systems, which
may not be best depicted in the familiar
analog format.

Technical challenges

“In the automotive space, there is a lot of interest in LCD for
lots of different reasons,” said Scott Birnbaum, Vice President
of the LCD business for Samsung. “It is more flexible than an
analog device that has a single purpose because it can be
changed in real time to change its purpose,” he said.

While Samsung is the world’s largest LCD manufacturer,
Birnbaum said, automotive LCDs present unique challenges
for the company. That is because they must be made more
rugged, so that drivers can depend on them to work for the
life of the car, under a variety of conditions. Chief among
those conditions is the wide range of temperatures seen inside
automotive cabins.

A closed car baking in the sun can get extremely hot, po-
tentially pushing an LCD beyond its “clearing temperature,”
when it turns black and may stay that way, Birnbaum said.
The solution is to specify a liquid crystal in the display with a
higher clearing temperature, he said. Heat can be mitigated
through careful design including airflow paths and heat dif-
fusers. At low temperatures, LCDs can respond sluggishly, so
again, it is necessary to specify a liquid that is less sensitive to
lower temperatures, Birnbaum explained.

The bright sunlight inside cars can also make it hard to see
an LCD screen because of glare, so the image needs to be
bright enough to stand out. LCD makers address this with a
combination of bright backlighting and anti-reflective films on
the glass to reduce glare.

On the road

The first example of a car with virtual instruments on the U.S.
market was on the 2007 Mercedes-Benz S-Class, which em-
ployed an 8-in LCD panel in the center of an instrument clus-
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ter, directly ahead of the driver, flanked
on both sides by conventional physical
gauges.

Under most circumstances, the LCD
screen renders a convincing imitation of
a circular analog speedometer matching
the other gauges. But when the car’s
night-vision system is activated, the
screen shows an infrared image of the
road ahead, with speed indicated by a
linear analog indicator across its lower
edge.

Another methodology employed for
the instrument panel in the Ford Fusion
hybrid, which inverts the Mercedes ap-
proach, uses only a physical speedom-
eter at the center of the instrument clus-
ter and flanks it with a pair of 4.3-in
LCDs that show all of the additional
information.

These high-resolution color displays
permit the Fusion to provide a huge
amount of information and to exhibit it
in innovative new ways, explained
Sonya Nematollahi, Driver Information
Engineering Supervisor at Ford.

Using a pair of smaller displays rath-
er than one large one helps contain
costs, because it uses LCDs from the
extremely high-volume consumer elec-
tronics, handheld game, and cell phone
sectors, explained Birnbaum. This ap-
proach results in a reconfigurable dis-
play covering a large area of the dash,

which costs only about twice as much as

a conventional instrument panel, ac-
cording to Nematollahi.

In contrast, using a single display
large enough to replace all the physical
gauges can be expected to quadruple
the cost of the instrument panel, at least
in the near term, reported James Farell,
Senior Manager of Driver Information
Platforms and Advanced Projects at
Visteon Corp.

Visteon has just such a product that
will debut in a European model immi-
nently, Farell said. It has a 1280 x 480-
pixel, 12.3-in single LCD panel replac-
ing all the traditional instruments. This
market may grow only gradually, but
Farell predicts that by 2013, 5% of new
cars will use a single large LCD panel
for driver information, and another 20%
will use at least one small LCD in the 4-
to 5-in range to supplant some instru-
mentation.

One problem with traditional analog
gauges is that tradition had become ty-
rannical, forcing unneeded gauges into
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vehicles where they are inappropriate,
asserted Rodger Eich, Studio Design
Manager for Electronics Design Studio,
North America for Johnson Controls,
Inc. (JCI). Because of customer expecta-
tions, manufacturers have been install-
ing tachometers in vehicles such as min-
ivans equipped with automatic trans-
missions, he pointed out. “That tachom-
eter is no longer relevant” in that appli-
cation, Eich said.

The medium is the message
Manufacturers should instead use the
space on the dashboard to provide in-
formation that is relevant to drivers, he
said. It takes careful research to learn
what information drivers can use in-
stead. The price for failing to under-
stand drivers’ requirements is to have a
new display consigned to the dustbin of
history with the widely disliked digital

Electronics | Interiors
Feature

instruments of the 1980s, or failing to
live up to the promised benefits, as was
the case with the Apple Newton per-
sonal digital assistant, Eich said.

Manufacturers and suppliers are
working to divine customers’ needs, in
some cases consulting with companies
like IDEO, an industrial strategy and
design company. Drivers’ needs are
changing along with the vehicles they
are piloting.

Just as an automatic-transmission
minivan has little need for a tachometer,
so do vehicles with emerging power-
trains have need for many of the old
instruments. What good is an oil pres-
sure gauge on a battery-electric car?
And is a tachometer particularly useful
on a hybrid-electric, which may not be
using its internal-combustion engine?

“[Ford engineers] were faced with
the question of, “We can get any data

The Buick Reatta pioneered the use of a video screen in 1988 with this instrument panel,
which featured both digital instruments and a reconfigurable CRT display.

The Johnson Controls-supplied instrument panel in the Ford Fusion hybrid employs a pair
of cost-effective 4.3-in LCDs flanking a conventional speedometer to provide ample space

for innovative new driver information tools.

Buick by Nartron
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Virtual revolution

Visteon predicts that hybrid instrument panels like this
one, which combines a 4.3-in central LCD screen with a pair
of conventional analog gauges, will become very popular
because of its combination of flexibility and low cost.

The Chrysler 200C concept car’s instrument panel envisions
a seamless display that combines information with control
of entertainment and climate control devices using touch
screens.

- v - 22

Visteon’s RE3 concept instrument panel places a smaller
LCD directly ahead of the driver and supplements it with
a larger paneli to the right, letting the driver move data
front-and-center as needed.

about the car, but what is meaningful to the person who is
driving that is going to get them to drive it better?’” recalled
Steve Bishop, SmartGauge Project Leader for IDEO.

The company surveyed drivers of models considered most
similar to the Fusion hybrid to consider their experiences with
the instruments they had to learn what they could most use.
The most significant outcome of this research was the conclu-
sion to have the gauges employ the philosophy of a coach pro-
viding guidance, explained Bishop.

A couple of the most important manifestations of this ap-
proach are the green-leaf scoring system that rewards efficient
driving with a graphical depiction of green plants growing
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more leaves. Another is the sliding scale overlaying the tachom-
eter that indicates the throttle range in which the car can run in
battery-electric mode without starting the gasoline engine.

IDEO discovered that Toyota Prius drivers were oozing
slowly around town in the hope of not triggering the gasoline
engine to start without ever knowing where that threshold lay.
For the Fusion hybrid’s SmartGauge, the team designed an
overlay band that appears on the virtual representation of a
linear tachometer whenever the conditions are right for the car
to run in electric-only mode. This lets drivers accelerate at the
threshold of gas engine start, if it is their goal to avoid that
happening, and is an example of a new representation of data
not relevant in traditional cars.

Degree of difficulty

Interestingly, while deciding how to best display information
is the most substantial strategic challenge for designers of re-
configurable LCD instrument clusters, one of the bigger tech-
nical challenges is accurately “faking plain old analog gaug-
es,” reported Farell.

“The analog gauges are very important regardless of
whether you have a traditional analog cluster or a reconfigu-
rable cluster,” he said. The anti-aliasing of thin, straight point-
er needles is critical because otherwise they suffer the kind of
“jaggies” seen in poorly rendered typefaces. It is also tricky to
simulate a smooth sweeping movement of that needle. “The
eye can quickly tell if you have skipped a step in the pointer
movement,” Farell said.

Because sports cars, along with luxury models, are expect-
ed to be some of the primary applications for reconfigurable
LCD instrument panels, obvious options for such cars would
be to have a large tachometer in the center, with other parts of
the dash showing performance parameters or lap times, Farell
suggested. “The important thing is being able to display what
the driver needs depending on what is going on,” he said.

In addition to designing the display of information on the
dashboard, developers must also decide how drivers will be
able to manipulate that information. JCI forecasts the use of
capacitive iPhone-like touch screens that recognize gestures.
Using a two-screen design, with a smaller 4.3-in display di-
rectly ahead of the driver and a larger 7-in display to the driv-
er’s right, JCI's touch-screen system works a bit like a dual-
monitor computer setup, with the driver able to move infor-
mation from one screen to the other as needed, explained Eich.

“Itis a compelling way to manage content and information
within an extended cluster,” he said. The concept was devel-
oped after significant research into drivers’ experiences with
other devices to ensure its use was understandable. “We want
to make sure our technology aligns with what consumers ex-
pectations are.”

The impressive virtual dashboard in Chrysler’s 200C con-
cept car may be the most complete depiction of the eventual
end result of the trend, with a large, irregularly shaped dis-
play wrapped to fit the contours of the dashboard and re-
sponding to touch inputs.

“We're very excited about this,” enthused Brad Gieske, a
visualization designer for Chrysler. “We feel very strongly this
is where the future is headed,” he said. But as the display be-
comes larger and more capable, so does the need to refine its
interaction with drivers. “A lot of usability studies need to be
done,” concluded Gieske. aef
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Too much hybrid hype

In “Future of plug-in hybrids forecast by
panel” (February 2009, page 34), may |
point out that all hybrid-electric vehicles
(including PHEVs) captured only 3% mar-
ket share at the height of gas prices last
summer. It dropped back to about 2%
since, and may stay. | (we) support plug-
in hybrid-electric vehicles, but they need
to do better than 40-mi range to be a
major player. HEVs are going to be only
niche players.

Yes, there is too much hype about
hybrids that we lose sight of the vener-
able internal-combustion engine (ICE).

Hybrids use a small engine to operate
near the "sweet spot” and an external
storage to boost to higher loads, besides
recovering energy waste from brakes,
etc. The round trip to storage loses
about half of the energy. The main ef-
ficiency comes from engine downsizing;
waste recovery has small percentage ex-
cept from idling. Cylinder deactivation is
just as efficient as the hybrid, but with-
out the cost premium.

We believe a revolutionary ICE is the
immediate future, such as the D-cycle.
Four-cycle engines deliver one-fifth or less
of the fuel energy input to the engine to
drive cars. There is still ample beef in this
century-old ICE technology to chew on.

We cannot dream on the long-term
ideal solutions like fuel cells, batteries,
hybrids, etc., while we continue to burn
hundreds of millions of gallons of fuel
every day, times 365. Detroit and the
country need immediate solutions.

M/ Yan, PhD
CEO
GENWY Power Technology Ltd.

Wiring worries

In the "Lighten up!” feature (March
2009, page 16), we learn that the next
Toyota Yaris will have an aluminum wiring
harness. Not for me, thanks.

In the late ‘60s and early ‘70s, nearly
half a million homes in Canada (and no
doubt quite a few in the U.S.) were fitted
with aluminum wiring because of a spike
in the price of copper, and oxidation at
connections caused flickering lights,
power outages, and fires. Aluminum oxide
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is nonconductive, unlike copper oxide,
and overheats.

Once word got around, houses could
not be resold until the wiring was ripped
out and replaced, accompanied by major
re-plastering. Less drastic alternative
workarounds may have satisfied insur-
ance companies but did not return the
houses to their normal market values.

Domestic house wiring is well pro-
tected. In an automobile, it is exposed to
vibration, humidity, and road salt. My
present car has trouble-free electrics, and
I would not want to replace it with one
having a built-in risk factor.

Garry Marnoch
Former General Motors engineer
Pontypool, Ontarfo, Canada

In touch
The “Touching the future” feature (March
2009, page 28) is timely. The exciting
Chrysler 200C interior reveals exacting
clarity of design (which we humans call
“beauty”) without sacrificing function, as
empowered by the Nartron Smart Touch
capacitive pioneering technology.
Norman Rautiola
CEO
Nartron Corp.

AEI accepts letters and comments via

e-mail (preferred): aei@sae.org

mail: 400 Commonwealth Drive,
Warrendale, PA 15096-0001,
US.A.

fax: 724-776-9765

Please include your name, title, organiza-
tion, e-mail address or telephone number,
and postal address. Submitted letters are
considered publishable unless otherwise
stated by the author. We reserve the right
to edit letters.
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Cypress's PSoC(R) CapSense Enables Touch Sensing
Inside HP Compaq Notebook PCs

SAN JOSE, Calif.—(BUSINESS WIRE)—May 9, 2007— Cypress Semiconductor Corp. (NYSE: CY) today
announced that its PSoC(R) CapSense enables the touch sensing interface inside multiple HP Compaq
Notebook PC models. The Cypress CapSense solution not only provides the interface for a smooth,
glitch-free user experience, but it also controls LED indicator lights on the notebooks, saving board
space and reducing costs.

"We are pleased to provide the CapSense solution to HP, a world leader in notebook computers,” said
Carl Brasek, business unit director for Cypress's CapSense products. "This usage model highlights one of
the CapSense customer benefits -- the ability to perform additional functions on top of capacitive
sensing."

"Given HP's focus on delivering easy-to-use and reliable notebook PCs to our business customers, HP is
pleased to integrate the CapSense solution, which provides an excellent user experience and is less
prone to every day wear and tear than exposed buttons," said Carol Hess-Nickels, director of worldwide
business notebook marketing in the Personal Systems Group at HP. "In addition, the CapSense solution
enhances the sleek design and superb functionality we're providing to customers."

About CapSense

A single CapSense device can replace dozens of mechanical switches and controls with a simple, touch-
sensitive interface. CapSense-based "button" and "slider" controls are more reliable than their
mechanical counterparts because they are not prone to the environmental wear-and-tear that affects
exposed buttons and switches. Cypress has garnered well over 100 CapSense design wins worldwide in
applications that include mobile handsets, portable media players, white goods, computers, printers and
automotive, among others.

Capacitive sensing is fast becoming the solution of choice for front-panel display and media control
applications. Increased durability, decreased bill of materials (BOM) and a clean, minimalist appearance
make this elegant interface attractive to a wide range of designs. With Cypress's CapSense interface, a
finger on the interface forms an electrical connection with embedded sensors, which work with the
PSoC device to translate data about the finger's presence into various system control functions. The
sensor itself is only a copper pad on the PCB, not an actual component. All of the circuitry for
controlling the sensor is inside the PSoC device.

Cypress's CapSense solution offers system designers numerous advantages over capacitive sensing
products built around modules and sub-assemblies, including increased flexibility, reduced board space
and lower cost. Because of the unique PSoC architecture, designers can easily integrate multiple
functions (e.g., LED drivers and LCD displays), in addition to capacitive sensing. The PSoC CapSense
solution also delivers benefits such as easy communications using either I2C, SPI or USB interfaces, the
ability to implement both trackpad (x-y matrix) and linear slider applications with the same device, and
the ability to make quick design changes using the flash-based PSoC architecture. In addition, users
can complete CapSense designs quickly and easily using pre-configured and verified "user modules”
within Cypress's PSoC Designer(TM) 4.4 Integrated Design Environment (IDE). Learn more about
CapSense online at www.cypress.com/capsense.

About the PSoC Family

PSoC devices are configurable mixed signal arrays that integrate a fast 8-bit microcontroller with many
peripheral functions typically found in an embedded design. PSoC devices provide the advantages of an
ASIC without the ASIC NRE or turn-around time. A single PSoC device can integrate as many as 100
peripheral functions with a microcontroller, saving customers design time, board space and power
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consumption. Customers can save from 5 cents to as much as $10 in system costs. Easy to use
development tools enable designers to select configurable library elements to provide analog functions
such as amplifiers, ADCs, DACs, filters and comparators and digital functions such as timers, counters,
PWMs, SPI and UARTs. The PSoC family's analog features include rail-to-rail inputs, programmable gain
amplifiers and up to 14-bit ADCs with exceptionally low noise, input leakage and voltage offset. PSoC
devices include up to 32KB of Flash memory, 2KB of SRAM, an 8x8 multiplier with 32-bit accumulator,
power and sleep monitoring circuits, and hardware 12C communications.

All PSoC devices are dynamically reconfigurable, enabling designers to create new system functions on-
the-fly. Designers can achieve far greater than 100 percent utilization of the die, in many cases, by
reconfiguring the same silicon for different functions at different times. Learn more about PSoC products
at www.cypress.comypsoc and receive free online training at www.cypress.conypsoctraining.

About Cypress

Cypress delivers high-performance, mixed-signal, programmable solutions that provide customers with
rapid time-to-market and exceptional system value. Cypress offerings include the PSoC(R)
Programmable System-on-Chip{(TM), USB controllers, general-purpose programmable clocks and
memories. Cypress also offers wired and wireless connectivity solutions ranging from its
WirelessUSB(TM) radio system-on-chip, to West Bridge(TM) and EZ-USB(R) FX2LP controllers that
enhance connectivity and performance in multimedia handsets. Cypress serves numerous markets
including consumer, computation, data communications, automotive, industrial, and solar power.
Cypress trades on the NYSE under the ticker symbol CY. Visit Cypress online at www.cypress.com.

Cypress, the Cypress logo and PSoC are registered trademarks and PSoC Designer is a trademark of
Cypress Semiconductor Corp. All other trademarks are property of their owners.

Contact:

Cypress PR
Don Parkman, 408-943-4885
Email Contact

Rating: Yy
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Smart Touch® sensing places the power of the
microprocessor at your fingertips

Copyright © 2009 SAE International
ABSTRACT

Smart Touch® sensing is a breakthrough in human
interface technology allowing direct access to computer
power, such as with the highly successful iPhone™ and
other handheld devices. By combining the reliability and
flexibility of completely solid state sensing along with
anthrotronic considerations, capacitive sensing interface
technology creates new automotive design opportunities.

Consumers are increasingly turning to touch screen
devices for their ease of use. Touch screens enable
designers to dramatically improve the automotive interior
for (1) user satisfaction (2) OEM cost benefits (3)
important safety/ergonomic benefits and (4) styling
design freedom to harmonize with interior themes.
Panels will not only act on touch, but will have functions
that respond to hand gestures and movements. For
example, a center stack console can be enabled to
illuminate when the user makes a movement near it, with
the added benefit of conserving power. Interfacing to a
vehicle by capacitive sensing creates entirely new
opportunities in the evolution of automotive interior
design. The styling design possibilities are nearly
endless providing freedoms that are unachievable with
conventional switches.

This paper describes the design and operation of various
systems that employ capacitive sensing technology.
Also discussed are vehicle integration, ergonomic
enhancements, and safety benefits associated with this
technology.

APPROACH

Capacitive sensors have several noteworthy features not
found in conventional switches such as those in the
automotive center stack console shown in Figure 1. The
most apparent difference in capacitive sensors is that
they do not require force for activation. By utilizing
materials like indium oxides, conductive polymers, or
other evolving nanomaterials, capacitive sensors can be
fabricated as optically transparent films. This results in

Erin Kirby

Nartron Corporation

Rachel Guerrero
Sanyo Automotive U.S.A,, Inc.

capacitive sensors that are clear and thin enough to be
placed in front of visual displays without noticeably
degrading the optical clarity of the viewing area.

Fig. 1

Another key feature of capacitive sensors is that they
can sense through relatively thick materials. Designers
now have the option of integrating human interfaces into
once unconventional locations such as the inside of trim
panels, faceplates, moldings, and other such protective
or ergonomic surfaces without disturbing the aesthetics
of the finished product. Furthermore, capacitive sensors
can form to complex contours and shapes providing
virtually unlimited functional sensing geometries.

Applying capacitive sensors to a substrate in multiple or
matrix configurations such as that shown in Figure 2
creates a versatile touch surface for human interface.
Sensors activated by touch translate into coordinates
that represent the points of human contact on the
substrate surface. These contact points are processed
by the control system into recognizable user input
commands.



CAPACITIVE SENSOR MATRIX

INSTRUMENT PANEL SUBSTRATE

Fig. 2

Making the substrate and capacitive sensors largely
translucent permits direct backlighting of the sensing
areas. Backlighting can assist to locate the touch
sensors and provide visual feedback of sensor
activation.

In a more innovative approach, rear-projection
technology can project light directly through the sensors
to render images onto the surface of a substrate. When
a sensor is activated, the image projected toward its
position then corresponds to the users input request. If
desired, sensor activation feedback can then be
communicated through alteration of the projected image.
Rear-projection offers the flexibility of displaying sharp
images despite the complexity of a desired surface
shape and contour. There are limitations in a rear-
projection approach that must be taken into
consideration by automotive interior designers:

1. Can enough light intensity be generated?

2. Heat build-up from the light source must be
dissipated - This concern may be overcome by
means such as air ventilation or the use of
thermal electric devices.

As we move full speed into the information age
automakers are constantly challenged by the consumer
to provide vehicle features that will enhance their
personal commuting experience and keep them
connected to the world outside. As new features make
their way into vehicles, the requirement is to provide a
more logical and intuitive approach to managing the
complexity of each human interface component.

APPLICATION

Visualize a vehicle interface system where display gages
and indicators can be moved anywhere about the
Instrument Panel (IP) or Center Stack Console (CSC).
Likewise, input sensors can also be positioned most

anywhere about the IP or CSC. The IP and CSC can
then effectively be customized and set for the personal
preferences of more than one driver. Expand the vision
further by integrating the IP and CSC into a single
contoured translucent substrate that flows around the
steering column and down the center console area.
Projectors illuminate the substrate from behind to create
visual gages and indicators across the substrate surface.
Likewise, the substrate is fabricated with multipie
independent capacitive sensors as well as large areas of
capacitive matrix sensors. Figure 3 shows a vehicle
interior for application of capacitive touch sensors.
DEAD FRONT FINISH
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Fig. 3

Figure 4 shows the application of capacitive sensors in a
center stack console integrated with conventional
switches. The backlit blue text locations are capacitive
touch sensors.

Fig. 4

As the vehicle occupant reaches towards the CSC,
capacitive proximity multipoint activation sensors
(PMAS) behind the substrate detect an approaching
object and the display illuminates the CSC with primary
command icons. These icons create a menu structure
that provide access to vehicle features like audio




entertainment, climate control, navigation, video
entertainment, telecom services, vehicle status, etc.

By touching one of the primary icons a new display
appears having secondary icons related to the primary
selection. The secondary icons depict items like graphics
displays, status indicators, and command sensors.
Touching any one of these icons would invoke a
response from the system allowing the occupant to
perform functions related to the icon. These functions
could be as simple as turning the radio on or displaying
vehicle status information. Or they could initiate more
complex instructions like “retrieve and play voice
messages”.

Regardless of the function, a vehicle display system of
this type would require a standard set of display images
and control icons capable of accessing and managing
the vehicle functions. The user would be free to locate
the graphical images within the projected regions of the
substrate to create customized instrumentation layouts.

Images might further be tailored using commands that
could resize, rotate, or adjust image properties for
preferred viewing. For example images representing oil
pressure could be changed between analog readout,
digital readout, or simple warning light. Frequently
accessed indicators like speedometer, odometer, and
fuel status could be fixed in position and remain
illuminated while less important display features like
audio tone controls could remain hidden and accessible
from within entertainment submenus. Navigation and
Infotainment screens could be minimized and positioned
out of main view then maximized and relocated to a
main viewing position when invoked.

In this vehicle system, dedicated function switches no
longer exist. Instead capacitive sensors are actively
reassigned functions based on the images that project
through them at time of switch activation. In addition to
switch reassignment, the control systems capacity to
process capacitive sensor coordinates make possible
the recognition commands through human gesture. By
monitoring switch activation sequences, gesturing is
used as a form of input command to further enhance the
human touch interface.

PMAS enables directional finger gestures like swiping
upward or downward across an icon or image to be
decoded as requests to increase or decrease setting
values in functions such as audio volume control. Finger
gestures like pinch open and pinch close could be
decoded as requests to enlarge and shrink images.
While on a navigation screen, they could represent zoom
in and zoom out commands to adjust the degree of
screen detail. A “squiggle” gesture might be interpreted
as a request to cancel an operation, for example “turn off
radio” or “turn off climate control” when performed over
the primary command icon.

CONCLUSION

Configurable displays and capacitive sensors such as
that presented here can reduce the visual clutter
destined to plague many future vehicle cockpits. This
degree of function integration takes human-computer
interface to a new level and creates a more ergonomic
and intuitive interface for the vehicle driver and
passengers.

The absence of switch plates and display bezels
produce seamless interior contours permitting greater
artistic expression in vehicle interior design, as shown in
Figure 5.

Automotive interior is an excellent application for
capacitive sensors. Most interior surfaces of an
automobile are made from non-conductive plastic which
is ideal for capacitive sensors. With an ever increasing
amount of creature comforts and entertainment features
in demand and being integrated into vehicles, so
increases the complexity of the interfaces needed to
access and operate these features. Vehicle interior
designers must be creative and open to new approaches
on how occupants will access and interface to this
growing list of vehicle features. Capacitive sensing offers
a multitude of solutions to meet these needs.

Fig. 5
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BRIEF: GM gives $2B contract to Hewlett Packard
Greg Gardner
Detroit Free Press

July 21--General Motors has awarded a contract worth more than $2 billion to Hewlett Packard to cover
an array of information technology for GM facilities worldwide.

The new agreement covers product development software, maintenance of networks for desktop computers and
mobile devices, supplier management and financial transactions. It also renews the contract one year early and
extends the two companies' 25-year relationship.

"GM's innovative business and in-vehicle technology strategy requires collaborative, cost-effective approaches
s0 we can provide even better service to our customers as we design, build and sell the world's best cars and
trucks,” said Terry Kline, GM's chief information officer.

Historically, much of this work was provided to GM through its former subsidiary Electronic Data Services. HP
acquired EDS in 2008 for about $13.9 billion.

---- INDEX REFERENCES ---

COMPANY: GENERAL MOTORS DE ARGENTINA SRL; HEWLETT PACKARD NORGE AS; HEW-
LETT PACKARD APS; GENERAL MOTORS FINLAND OY; HEWLETT PACKARD NEW ZEALAND;
GENERAL MOTORS HOLDENS SALES PTY LTD; GENERAL MOTORS ITALIA SRL; GENERAL
MOTORS NEDERLAND BV; GENERAL MOTORS POWERTRAIN KAISERSLAUTERN GERMANY
GMBH; HEWLETT PACKARD EUROPE BV; HEWLETT PACKARD AUSTRALIA PTY LTD; GENER-
AL MOTORS INVESTMENTS PTY LTD; HEWLETT PACKARD DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LP;
NOVADIGM INC; HEWLETT PACKARD FRANCE SAS; HEWLETT PACKARD EUROPA HOLDING
BV, GENERAL MOTORS OVERSEAS DISTRIBUTION CORP; HEWLETT PACKARD FINANCIAL
SERVICES CO; HEWLETT PACKARD INDIGO BV; HEWLETT PACKARD INDUSTRIAL PRINTING
SOLUTIONS EUROPE BVBA; HEWLETT PACKARD PORTUGAL LDA; HEWLETT PACKARD SIA:
HEWLETT PACKARD S R O; GENERAL MOTORS OF CANADA LTD; HEWLETT PACKARD MAN-
UFACTURING LTD; GENERAL MOTORS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS INC; HEWLETT PACKARD
CO; HEWLETT PACKARD INDIA SALES PVT LTD; HEWLETT PACKARD LTD; HEWLETT PACK-

© 2010 Thomson Reuters. No Claim to Orig. US Gov. Works.
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General Motors Renews $2 Billion HP Enterprise Services Agreement Supporting Vehicle Design and
Production

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

PALO ALTOQ, Calif,, Jul 21,2010 (BUSINESS WIRE) -- HP Enterprise Services today announced it has been awarded a
multivear applications and infrastructure senvices contract valued at more than $2 billion to help General Motors Company
maintain focus on its business goals in a highly competitive market.

Under the terms of the agreement, HP (NYSE:HPQ) will manage GM's technology infrastructure with a focus on providing
an enhanced and continuously improving world-class end-user experience - from manufacturing plants to the boardroom.
HP will provide network, workplace, mainframe management, applications and systems integration senices for GM's
global operations, including OnStar.

The new agreement covers a significant portion of HP's existing work with GM. It also renews the contract one year early
and extends the two companies' 25-year relationship.

"GM's innovative business and in-vehicle technology strategy requires collaborative, cost-effective approaches so we can
provide even better senvice to our customers as we design, build and sell the world's best cars and trucks," said Terry
Kline, vice president, IT, and chiefinformation officer, GM. "HP has been one of our most long-term, reliable partners with
a team that has the expertise and creativity to help us quickly and successfully complete new phases of our business
strategy.”

HP will provide applications and infrastructure management senices in support of tens of thousands of desktop PCs and
mobile devices as well as GM's manufacturing and supply chain operations. Services include:

+ Providing applications development and management senvices for product development, manufacturing,
business senvices, supply chain, OnStar and more.

o Integrating a converged infrastructure and overall technology roadmap that supports GM's multisupplier
technology environment.

¢ Providing managed mainframe senvices for GM's major business systems, including financial transactions and
supply chain.

o Delivering HP global service desk and site support senvices in more than 50 countries and languages.

« Providing totai remote network management for data, network security and videoconferencing services.

"The automotive industryis in the midst of a transformation and GM's technology infrastructure needs to be hitting on all
cylinders to take full advantage of the potential market opportunities,” said Tom lannotti, senior vice president and general
manager, HP Enterprise Services. "HP has a track record of outstanding service to GM that we will continue to deliver to
help GM realize their business objectives."

HP Agility Alliance partners, including Microsoft and PricewaterhouseCoopers, will provide additional tools, technologies
and resources to HP in support of GM.

About HP

HP creates new possibilities for technology to have a meaningful impact on people, businesses, governments and
society. The world's largest technology company, HP brings together a portfolio that spans printing, personal computing,
software, senices and IT infrastructure to solve customer problems. More information about HP is available at
http:/imvww.hp.com.

This news release contains forward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. If such risks or
uncertainties materialize or such assumptions prove incorrect, the results of HP and its consolidated subsidiaries could

h30261.www3.hp.com/phoenix.zhtml?c... 1/2
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differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements and assumptions. All statements
other than statements of historical fact are statements that could be deemed forward-looking statements, including but
not limited to statements ofthe plans, strategies and objectives of management for future operations; any statements
concerning expected development, performance or market share relating to products and services; any statements
regarding anticipated operational and financial results; any statements of expectation or belief, and any statements of
assumptions underlying any of the foregoing. Risks, uncertainties and assumptions include macroeconomic and
geopolitical trends and events; the execution and performance of contracts by HP and its customers, suppliers and
partners; the achievement of expected operational and financial results; and other risks that are described in HP's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 30, 2010 and HP's other filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, including but not limited to HP's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October
31,2009. HP assumes no obligation and does notintend to update these forward-looking statements.

© 2010 Hewlett-Packard Development Company, L.P. The information contained herein is subject to change without
notice.

The only warranties for HP products and senvices are set forth in the express warranty statements accompanying such
products and services. Nothing herein should be construed as constituting an additiocnal warranty. HP shall not be liable
for technical or editorial errors or omissions contained herein.

SOURCE: HP

HP

Eric Krueger, +1 281-518-6083
eric.krueger@hp.com

or

HP Media Hotline, +1 866-266-7272
http:/imvww.hp.com/go/newsroom

h30261.www3.hp.com/phoenix.zhtml?c... 2/2



IN THE UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE
BEFORE THE TRADEMARK TRIAL AND APPEAL BOARD
NARTRON CORPORATION

Petitioner,

V. Cancellation No. 92050789

HEWLETT-PACKARD
DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, L.P,,

Respondent.

EXHIBIT 9




9/23/2010

‘1
@_pl_ﬂhomﬂ

Products & Services

Explore & Create
Connect with Others

SUPPORT & DRIVERS Search

Register - Sign In -+ Help

The Next Big Thing

HP Blogs - HP in the Motor City - The H...

[Search l f Blog | v] |

with our Enterprise Business bloggers.

Enterprise Software
Inside the Data Center
Netwarking

Seners

Senvices

Storage

Technology for Business

Channel HP : Enterpfise Business Blogs : Services : The Next Big Thing : HP in the Motor City

Article Options

HP in the Motor City

by James Miller (jim.miller) on 2010-08-03 06:26 PM - last edited on 2010-08-03 06:26 PM

Detroit, or the Motor City, is often called ground-zero for the current economic recession. Recently there
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HP solutions for the

automotive industry
Greater agility for the road ahead




Globally, the automotive industry is experiencing
catalytic change.

Automakers and their suppliers face many significant
challenges, including intense competition, excess
capacity, and pressure to reduce costs in the supply
chain. There is a growing need for virtual product design
and faster time to market. Electronics and software in the
vehicle require innovative solutions, as do new vehicle
buildo-order capabilities. In addition, global markets are
expanding, outsourcing is on the rise, and there is an
increasing need for [T—but with decreasing IT dollars.

One of the ways companies can address these challenges
is by building greater efficiencies into the business and IT
environment. HP solutions for the automotive industry help
companies create what we call an Adaptive Enterprise,
where business and IT are synchronized to capitalize on
change. In an Adaptive Enterprise, IT and business
processes become truly integrated—in a way that fosters
a flexible response to competitive pressures, market
demands, and constant change. When applied to
sirategic areas of the automotive value chain—such as
product design; procurement, supply, and manufacturing;
and marketing, sales, and service—this approach allows
a company to adapt quickly as customer, supplier, and
business needs change.

HP solutions for the automotive industry can help
automakers accomplish key goals such as reducing cost
per vehicle, introducing new products and services faster,
aligning production and delivery capacities with actual
customer demand, and supporting expansion plans in
new growth markets,

HP solutions for radio-frequency identification {RFID}

HP, an early adopter of radiofrequency identification (RFID) technology,
deploys RFID technology in specific areas across its supply chain.

HP can help companies develop RFID solutions for innovative uses in
the automotive industry as well. With proven experience in RFID,

HP provides the technology, solutions, and partnerships that can help
automotive companies investigate areas where RFID can help them
create greater efficiencies, lower costs, comply with mandates—and,

in specific supply chain areas, increase competitive advantage.




Meeting today’s challenges with
experience and innovation

As a leading provider of IT business solutions to the
automotive industry, HP works with companies in this
industry, from OEMs to suppliers, and understands the
most pressing challenges of the industry. We focus on
meeting these challenges through the integration and
collaboration of IT and business processes in pivotal
points across the automotive supply chain.

End-to-end solutions across
the portfolio

HP solutions for the automotive industry span the full
lifecycle of automotive products—from initial design,
testing, procurement, and sourcing to manufacturing,
warranty, and aftersale service. In each of these arecs,
HP provides consulting and system integration services
as a comprehensive, fullservice, end-o-end offering.

* Strategy and business consulting

* Process innovation and optimization

* IT organization and alignment; CIO function
best practices

* System integration and global rollouts
* Information technology, including outsourcing

* Project and program management

Product development and product
lifecycle management

HP automotive solutions for product lifecycle management
{PLM) are designed to help companies enable timely
information flow within their organization and with
suppliers by simplifying, securely exposing, and
infegrating the use of product and process data across
all functions. These solutions address business process
needs, employing PACE (Product and Cycle-time
Excellence)-PIC Resource Management and CMII
Configuration Management. In addition, they address
application integration and deployment through PLM
appliance and IT infrastructure solutions, including
specific tuning, security, and manageability for PLM.

HP partnerships in product development and product
lifecycle management for the automotive industry include
SAP, PTC, EDS, MatrixOne, Dassault, and Oracle®

Key benefit: HP PLM services and solutions help
automotive companies integrate processes and decrease
time fo market—while increasing collaboration and
quality.



Manufacturing and extended
supply chain

HP automotive solutions for manufacturing and extended
supply chain are tailored to automakers’ needs through
strategic partnerships with companies such as SAP, Oracle,
and Microsoft® For example, the HP and SAP joint
solution creates a streamlined, optimized supply chain
that integrates end-to-end processes—from ERP, sourcing,
and procurement fo supplier collaboration and build-to-
order manufacturing. These solutions include supply chain
management solutions for the automotive industry,
Colloborative Business Infrastructure (CBI.Net) services,
and supply chain integration services.

Key benefit: HP solutions for manufacturing and extended
supply chain help companies increase efficiencies, reduce
costs across the supply chain, increase profitability,
optimize processes, and reduce cycle time.

Marketing, sales, and service

HP solutions for marketing, sales, and service help
companies manage customer and channel relationships
and extend customer loyalty by integrating customer
interactions across multiple or many channels. These
solutions include partnerships with SAP, Siebel Systems,
and Oracle and address dealer management, dealer
systems infrastructure, and telematics back-office systems
and infrastructure.

Key benefit: HP solutions for automotive marketing, sales,
and service help companies execute a flexible, scalable
environment that enables long-term business and
customer growth.

Automotive enterprise integration

HP services for automotive enterprise integration help
companies leverage and enhance their current
infrastructure investments. These services have a positive
impact on profit by improving business performance,
operational excellence, and ROl while reducing costs.
They include the HP Agility Assessment, infrastructure
technology and services such as Collaborative Business
Infrastructure (CBI.Net) for Automotive, and partner
solutions by HP ond SAP, Microsoft, BEA, and PRTM.
HP automotive enterprise integration services help
companies support innovation and enable innovative
processes while minimizing risk that is associated with
change. These services are excellent enablers for mergers,
acquisitions, collaborations, and divestitures.

Key benefit: HP cutomotive enterprise integration services
improve business and operational processes while
reducing costs and improving ROL.

Business process outsourcing

HP helps automotive OEMs and suppliers improve their
focus on core competencies by outsourcing processes that
are non-strategic and lower-value-added. These services
can provide significant cost reduction from labor arbitrage;
improved process efficiency, quality, and scale; enrichment
of technology; and improved service levels, controls, and
transparency.

Key benefit: HP business process outsourcing services
reduce costs and improve overall process efficiency.
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The HP advantage in
auvtomotive

HP understands the extended supply chain environment
and is uniquely qualified to apply this knowledge to the
automotive industry. We ourselves are a very large global
manufacturing company—in fact, we manage and run the
ninth largest industrial supply chain in the world. HP takes
its experience ond best practices and shares them with
customers. Adding proven, tested processes lowers risk
and speeds time to value or increases return on business
and [T investment.

HP has strategic alliances and partnerships with

leading software and consulting companies, including
SAP, PTC, UGS, MatrixOne, Oracle, Siebel, PRTM,
Accenture, BearingPoint, Capgemini Group, and Deloitte
Consulting. In addition, HP technology, products, and
services range from the provision of shop floor PCs,
handhelds, and workstations to integrated global
enterprise platforms.

HP serves most of the major automotive OEMs and
suppliers and has been working with many of them for
more than 30 years. We understand the challenges of the
automotive industry and have the alliances, partnerships,
global resources, and experience that can help you gain
operational excellence and innovation in your industry.

Car manuals printed on demand

HP works with partners and its own Indigo Press fo create innovative
marketing solutions for the automotive industry. For example, HP and
Indigo Press have worked with automotive OEMs to develop a process

to create car manuals that are designed specifically for the vehicle that
the customer is buying. This enables the OEM 1o print manuals more
costeffectively, and impressively delivers a car manual that is personalized
to the customer’s specific choice of options. HP has also worked with
automakers to create custom marketing pieces targeted to specific
customer desires in the form of brochures and other marketing-related
collateral. These solutions, based on industry-leading HP printing
technology, meet the high quality standards required by car manufacturers.



HP helps automakers see results

HP Services has demonstrated proven success with many
of the world’s leading automotive companies. Read what
a few of their executives have to say:

“We selected the HP, Intel* and MSC.Software team
because we feel they have the configuration expertise
and technical solutions to help us architect and install
quality computing clusters.”

Johr Picklo, High Peformance Computing Manager,
Chrysler Group

“From the beginning, HP Services was a critical
partner, providing the technology and solutions that
were instrumental o our vision. The result?2 Today we
bring new vehicles to consumers in less than 24 months,
versus 42 in the past.”

Ralph Szygendo, Group VP and CIO, General Motors

“In order for Goodyear's assets to be managed more
effectively, we needed a holistic view of the entire
infrastructure from a single point. HP's comprehensive
OpenView management technology is providing us

with a solution to manage our infrastructure from a single
console, rather than the eight we were juggling before.”
Steve Buckus, Worldwide Director of Researck, Goodyear

“HP Consulting had the right managerial skills, the right
technology for Toyota’s business, and a respect for
Toyota's culture. lis professionalism exceeded our
expectations. Not only did HP consolidate and stabilize
our existing infrastructure, but it also accelerated the
process of building a more complete IS organization,
with all the right procedures in place to support a
growing, fastchanging business.”

Arlen Biesiada, General Manager of Information Systems,
Toyota Motor Europe Marketing and Engineering

“HP’s broad set of technology resources, worldwide
services, and partnerships helps ensure that we can
deploy Delphi’s extensive vehicle systems know-how
where our customers need it, when they need it.”
Peter Janak, Vice President and CIO, Delphi

“We have made full use of HP's knowledge of mobile
technologies, from wireless infrastructure management
and implementation fo wireless applications and mobile
access devices.”

Neil Davis, IT Development Manager, WilliamsF 1




Key parinership with SAP

As HP's key partner in the automotive industry, SAP is the world’s largest
provider of enterprise software and the third-largest independent software
supplier. More than 12 million users rely on collaborative business
solutions from SAP. Together, HP and SAP have probably already
faced—and solved—many of the challenges automotive companies
encounter today.

The strengths of the HP and SAP partnership include these:

* More than 33,000 SAP installations run on HP systems.

* 50% of all SAP customers run on an HP platform.

* HP has more than 1,000 SAP consultants with more than 5,000
person-years of experience.

= HP is widely acknowledged as a leader in SAP management services.

* HP maintains one of the world's largest engineering staffs dedicated to
SAP, working closely with SAP developers and SAP Research.

“Clients give high marks to HP’s strength in SAP technical and platform
expertise, as well as its rigor in project management.”
Cariner Magic Quadrant Research Note, March 19, 2004

Find out more

For every business, innovating as a means of achieving
or maintaining competitive advantage is not an option—
it is a means of survival. In today’s globally competitive
economic climate, all organizations must review their
internal and external processes in an effort to rid
themselves of inefficiencies and increase their flexibility
and responsiveness o change.

HP understands the challenges facing the automotive
industry, knows where the opportunities are fo create
greater efficiencies and adaptability, and can extend
that knowledge to your company. Every day we help
forward-looking automotive companies seize innovative
practices and technology to achieve business benefits
and competitive results.

To find out more about how HP can help you in your
business, visit us ot: www.hp.com/go/manufacturing




To learn more, visit www.hp.com

© 2004 Hewlett-Packard Development Company, L.P. The information contained herein is subject to change
without notice. The only warranties for HP products and services are set forth in the express warranty
statemenls accompanying such products and services. Nothing herein should be construed as constituting
an additional warranty. HP shall not be liable for technical or editorial errors or omissions contained herein.

Intel is a trademark or registered trademark of Intel Corporation or its subsidiaries in the United States and
other countries. Microsoft is a U.S. registered trademark of Microsoft Corporation. Oracle is a registered U.S.
trademark of Oracle Corporation, Redwood City, California.
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IN THE UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE
BEFORE THE TRADEMARK TRIAL AND APPEAL BOARD
NARTRON CORPORATION
Petitioner,
V. Cancellation No. 92050789
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DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, L.P.,

Respondent.
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Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” in Item 7, contains forward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. If
the risks or uncertainties ever materialize or the assumptions prove incorrect, the results of Hewlett-Packard Company and
its consolidated subsidiaries ("HP") may differ materially firom those expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements and assumptions. All statements other than statements of historical fact are statements that could be deemed
Jorward-looking statements, including but not limited to any projections of revenue, margins, expenses, tax provisions,
earnings, cash flows, benefit obligations, share repurchases, acquisition synergies, currency exchange rates or other
Sfinancial items; any statements of the plans, strategies and objectives of management for future operations, including the
execution of cost reduction programs and restructuring and integration plans; any statements concerning expected
development, performance or market share relating to products or services; any statements regarding future economic
conditions or performance; any statements regarding pending investigations, claims or disputes; any statements of
expectation or belief; and any statements of assumptions underlying any of the foregoing. Risks, uncertainties and
assumptions include macroeconomic and geopolitical trends and events; the execution and performance of contracts by HP
and its customers, suppliers and partners; the challenge of managing asset levels, including inventory; the difficulty of
aligning expense levels with revenue changes; assumptions related to pension and other post-retirement costs; expectations
and assumptions relating to the execution and timing of cost reduction programs and restructuring and integration plans;
the possibility that the expected benefits of business combination transactions may not materialize as expected; the
resolution of pending investigations, claims and disputes; and other risks that are described herein, including but not
limited to the items discussed in "Risk Factors” in ltem 14 of this report, and that are otherwise described or updated from
time to time in HP's Securities and Exchange Commission reports. HP assumes no obligation and does not intend to update
these forward-looking statements.

PARTI

ITEM 1. Business.

HP is a leading global provider of products, technologies, software, solutions and services to individual consumers, small-
and medijum-sized businesses ("SMBs") and large enterprises, including the public and education sectors. Our offerings span:

personal computing and other access devices,
imaging and printing-related products and services,

enterprise information technology infrastructure, including enterprise storage and server technology and
software that optimizes business technology investments, and

multi-vendor customer services, including technology support and maintenance, consulting and integration and
outsourcing services, as well as application services and business process outsourcing.

HP was incorporated in 1947 under the laws of the State of California as the successor to a partnership founded in 1939 by
William R. Hewlett and David Packard. Effective in May 1998, we changed our state of incorporation from California to
Delaware.

HP Products and Services; Segment Information

During fiscal 2008, our operations were organized into seven business segments: Enterprise Storage and Servers ("ESS"),
HP Services ("HPS"), HP Software, the Personal Systems Group ("PSG"), the Imaging and Printing Group ("IPG"), HP Financial
Services ("HPFS") and Corporate Investments. In the fourth quarter of 2008, we added the business operations that we
acquired through our acquisition of Electronic Data Systems Corporation ("EDS") as a business unit within HPS for financial
reporting
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purposes. ESS, HPS and HP Software are reported collectively as a broader Technology Solutions Group ("TSG"). While TSG is
not a business segment, this aggregation provides a supplementary view of our business. In each ofthe past three fiscal years,
notebooks, desktops and printing supplies each accounted for more than 10% of our consolidated net revenue.

A summary of our net revenue, earnings from operations and assets for our segments and business units is found in
Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, which is incorporated herein by reference. A discussion of factors
potentially affecting our operations is set forth in "Risk Factors” in Ttem 1A, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Technology Solutions Group

TSGprovides servers, storage, software and imformation technology ("IT") services that enable enterprise and midmarket
business customers to better manage their current IT environments and transform IT into a business enabler. TSG products
help accelerate growth, minimize risk and reduce costs to optimize the business outcomes of customers' IT investments.
Companies around the globe leverage HP's infrastructure solutions to deploy next generation data centers and address
business challenges ranging from compliance to business continuity. TSG's modular IT systems and services are primarily
standards-based and feature differentiated technologies in areas including power and cooling, unified management, security,
virtualization and automation. Each of the three financial reporting segments within TSG s described in detail below.

Enterprise Storage and Servers

The server market continues to shift towards standards-based architectures as proprietary hardware and operating
systems are replaced by industry standard server platforms that typically offer compelling price and performance advantages
by leveraging standards-based operating systems and microprocessor designs. At the same time, critical business functions
continue to demand scalability and reliability. By providing a broad portfolio of storage and server solutions, ESS aims to
optimize the combined product solutions required by different customers and provide solutions for a wide range of operating
environments, spanning both the enterprise and the SMB markets. ESS provides storage and server products in a number of
categories.

Industry Standard Servers. Industry standard servers include primarily entry-level and mid-range ProLiant servers,

which run primarily Windows®,(1) Linuxand Novell operating systems and leverage Intel Corporation ("'Intel") and Advanced
Micro Devices ("AMD") processors. The business spans a range of product lines that include pedestal-tower servers, density-
optimized rack servers and HP's BladeSystem family of server blades. In fiscal 2008, HP's industry standard server business
continued to lead the industry in terms of units shipped and factory revenue. HP also has a leadership position in server
blades, the fastest-growing segment of the market.

Business Critical Systems. Business critical systems include Itanium®?)-based Integrity servers running on the HP-UX,
Windows®, Linux, OpenVMS and NonStop operating systems, including the high-end Superdome servers and fault-tolerant
Integrity NonStop servers. Business critical systems also include the Reduced Instruction Set Computing ("RISC")-based

servers with the HP 9000 line running on the HP-UX operating system, HP AlphaServers running on both Tru64 UNIX®) and
OpenVMS, and MIPs-based NonStop servers. During 2008, we continued to transition all Business critical systems platforms to
Itanium-based servers.

(1) Windows® is a registered trademark of Microsoft Corporation.
() Itanium® is a registered trademark of Intel Corporation.
() UNIX® is aregistered trademark of The Open Group.
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Storage. HP's StorageWorks offerings include entry-level, mid-range and high-end arrays, storage area networks,
network attached storage, storage management software and virtualization technologies, as well as tape drives, tape libraries
and optical archival storage.

HP Services

HPS provides a portfolio of multi-vendor IT services, including technology services, consulting and integration and
outsourcing services. HPS also offers a variety of services tailored to particular industries such as communications, media and
entertainment, manufacturing and distribution, financial services, health and life sciences and the public sector, including
government services. HPS collaborates with the Enterprise Storage and Servers and HP Software groups, as well as with third-
party system integrators and software and networking companies to bring solutions to HP customers. HPS also works with IPG
and PSGto provide managed print services, end user workplace services, and mobile workforce productivity solutions to
enterprise customers. The business operations that we acquired through our acquisition of EDS were added to those of HPS for
financial reporting purposes in the fourth quarter of2008.

Technology Services. HPS provides a range of technology services from standalone product support to high-availability
services for complex, global, networked, multi-vendor environments. This business also manages the delivery of product
warranty support through its own service organization, as well as through authorized partners.

Consulting and Integration. HPS provides consulting and integration services to architect, design and implement
technology and industry-specific solutions for customers. Consulting and integration also provides cross-industry solutions in
the areas of architecture and govemance, infrastructure, applications and packaged applications, security, IT service
management, information management and enterprise Microsoft solutions.

Outsourcing Services. HPS offers a variety of IT management and outsourcing services that support customers'
infrastructure, applications, business processes, end user workplaces, print environments and business continuity and
recovery requirements.

EDS. The business operations that we acquired through our acquisition of EDS were added as a new business unit
within HPS for financial reporting purposes in the fourth quarter of 2008. EDS provides information technology, applications,
and business process outsourcing services to commercial customers mainly in the manufacturing, financial services, healthcare,
communications, energy, transportation, and consumer and retail industries and to governments around the world.

HP Software
HP Software is a leading provider of enterprise and service provider software and services. Our portfolio consists of:

Enterprise IT Management Sofiware. Enterprise IT management software solutions, including support and professional
services, allow customers to manage their IT infrastructure, operations, applications, IT services and business processes.
These solutions also include tools to automate data center operations and IT processes. We market these solutions as the HP
Business Technology Optimization suite of products and services. We deliver these solutions in the form of traditional
software licenses and, in some cases, via the Software as a Service (SaaS) distribution model.

Information Management and Business Intelligence Solutions. Information management and business intelligence
solutions include our enterprise data warehousing, information business continuity, data availability, compliance and e-
discovery products that enable our customers to extract more value from their structured and unstructured data and
information. These solutions include the enterprise
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records management software that we acquired through our acquisition of Tower Software in fiscal 2008.

OpenCall Solutions. OpenCall solutions is a suite of comprehensive, carrier-grade software platforms for service
providers that enable themto develop and deploy next-generation voice, data and converged network services.

Personal Systems Group

PSGis the leading provider of personal computers ("PCs") in the world based on unit volume shipped and annual revenue.
PSGprovides commercial PCs, consumer PCs, workstations, handheld computing devices, calculators and other related
accessories, software and services for the commercial and consumer markets. We group commercial desktops, commercial
notebooks and workstations into commercial clients and consumer desktop and consumer notebooks into consumer clients
when describing our performance in these markets. Like the broader PC market, PSG continues to experience a shift toward
mobile products such as notebooks. Both commercial and consumer PCs are based predominately on the Windows® operating
systemand use Inteland AMD processors.

Commercial PCs. PSG offers a variety of personal computers optimized for commercial uses, including enterprise and
SMB customers, and for connectivity and manageability in networked environments. These commercial PCs include primarily
the HP Compagq business desktops, notebooks, and Tablet PCs, the HP EliteBook line of Mobile Workstations and professional
notebooks, as well as the HP Mini-Note PC, HP Blade PCs, Retail POS systems, and the HP Compaq and Neoware Thin Clients.

Consumer PCs. Consumer PCs include the HP Pavilion and Compaq Presario series of multi-media consumer desktops
and notebooks, as well as the HP Pavilion Elite desktops, HP HPDX Premiumnotebooks and Touchsmart PCs, as well as
Voodoo Gaming PCs, which are targeted at the home user.

Workstations. W orkstations are individual computing products designed for users demanding enhanced performance,
such as computer animation, engineering design and other programs requiring high-resolution graphics. PSG provides
workstations that run on both Windows® and Linux-based operating systems.

Handheld Computing. PSGprovides a series of HP iPAQ Pocket PC handheld computing devices that run on
Windows® Mobile software. These products range from basic PDAs to advanced devices with voice and data capability.

Digital Entertainment. PSQGs digital entertainment products are targeted at the intersection of the personal computing
and consumer electronics markets and span a range of products and product categories that allow customers to enjoy a broad
range of digital entertainment experiences. PSGs digital entertainment products include the Media Smart home servers, HD
DVD and RW drives and DVD writers.

Imaging and Printing Group

IPG is the leading imaging and printing systems provider in the world for consumer and commercial printer hardware,
printing supplies, printing media and scanning devices. [IPGis also focused on imaging solutions in the commercial markets,
from managed print services solutions to addressing new growth opportunities in commercial printing and capturing high-value
pages in areas such as industrial applications, outdoor signage, and the graphic arts business. When describing our
performance in this segment, we group inkjet printer units and retail products and services into

6
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consumer hardware, LaserJet and enterprise solutions and graphics solutions into commercial hardware and break out printer
supplies separately.

Inkjet and Web Solutions. This unit delivers our consumer and SMB inkjet solutions (hardware, ink, media) as well as
developing our retail and web businesses. It includes single function and all-in-one inkjet printers targeted toward consumers
and SMBs as well as retail publishing solutions, Snapfish, and Logoworks.

LaserJet and Enterprise Solutions. This unit is focused on delivering products and services to the enterprise segment.
It includes LaserJet printers and supplies, Edgeline, scanners, enterprise software solutions such as Exstream Software and
Web Jetadmin, managed print services products and solutions, and Halo telepresence.

Graphics Solutions. Graphics solutions include large format printing (Designjet, Scitex, ColorSpan and NUR), large
format supplies, WebPress supplies, Indigo printing, specialty printing systems, inkjet high-speed production solutions and
light production solutions.

Printer Supplies. Printer supplies include LaserJet toner, inkjet cartridges, graphic solutions ink products, including inks
for our large format, super-wide and digital press products, and other printing-related media. These supplies include HP-
branded Vivera and ColorSphere ink and HP Premium and Premium Plus photo papers, which are designed to work together as a
systemto produce faster prints with improved resistance to fading, increased print quality and better affordability.

HP Financial Services

HPFS supports and enhances HP's global product and service solutions, providing a broad range of value-added financial
life-cycle management services. HPFS enables our worldwide customers to acquire complete IT solutions, including hardware,
software and services. The group offers leasing, financing, utility programs and asset recovery services, as well as financial
asset management services for large global and enterprise customers. HPFS also provides an array of specialized financial
services to SMBs and educational and govemmental entities. HPFS offers innovative, customized and flexible alternatives to
balance unique customer cash flow, technology obsolescence and capacity needs.

Corporate Investments

Corporate Investments includes Hewlett-Packard Laboratories, also known as HP Labs, and certain business incubation
projects. Revenue in this segment is attributable to the sale of certain network infrastructure products, including Ethemet
switch products that enhance computing and enterprise solitions under the brand ProCurve Networking. During fiscal year
2008, we completed the acquisition of Colubris Networks, Inc., a privately-held global provider of intelligent wireless networks
for enterprises and service providers. We integrated Colubris' extensive product line into our ProCurve Networking product
portfolio. Corporate Investments also derives revenue from licensing specific HP technology to third parties.

Sales, Marketing and Distribution

We manage our business and report our financial results based on the principal business segments described above. Our
customers are organized by consumer and commercial customer groups, and distribution is organized by direct and channel.
Within the channel, we have various types of partners that we utilize for various customer groups. The partners include:

* retailers that sell our products to the public through their own physical or Internet stores;

. resellers that sell our products and services, frequently with their own value-added products or services, to
targeted customer groups;
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distribution partners that supply our solutions to smaller resellers with which we do not have direct
relationships;

independent distributors that sell our products into geographies or customer segments in which we have little or
no presence;

original equipment manufacturers ("OEMSs") that integrate our products with their own hardware or software and
sell the integrated products;

independent software vendors ("ISVs") that provide their clients with specialized software products, frequently
driving sales of additional non-HP products and services, and often assist us in selling our products and
services to clients purchasing their products; and

systems integrators that provide various levels and kinds of expertise in designing and implementing custom IT
solutions and often partner with HPS to extend their expertise or influence the sale of our products and services.

The mix of HP's business by channel or direct sales differs substantially by business and region. We believe that customer
buying patterns and different regional market conditions necessitate sales, marketing and distribution to be tailored
accordingly. HP is focused on driving efficiencies and productivity gains in both the direct and indirect business.

TSGmanages most of our enterprise and public sector customer relationships and also has primary responsibility for
simplifying sales processes across our segments to improve speed and effectiveness of customer delivery. In this capacity,
TSGmanages our direct sales for both volume and value products including industry standard servers products, UNIX®,
enterprise storage and software and pre-sales technical consultants, as well as our direct distribution activities for commercial
products and go-to-market activitics with systems integrators and ISVs. TSGalso drives HP's vertical sales and marketing

approach in the communication, media and entertainment, financial services, manufacturing and distribution and public sector
mdustries.

PSGmanages SMB customer relationships and commercial reseller channels, due largely to the significant volume of
commercial PCs that HP sells through these channels. In addition to commercial channel relationships, the volume direct
organization, which is charged with the management of direct sales for volume products, is hosted within PSG. In addition, PSG
manages direct consumer sales online through HP Home & Home Office.

IPGmanages HP's overall consumer-related sales and marketing activities, including our annual consumer product launch
for the back-to-school and holiday seasons. [PGalso manages consumer channel relationships with third-party retail locations

for imaging and printing products, as well as other consumer products, including consumer PCs, which provides for a bundled
sale opportunity between PCs and IPG products.

Manufacturing and Materials

We utilize a number of contract manufacturers ("CMs") and original design manufacturers ("ODMs") around the world to
manufacture HP-designed products. The use of CMs and ODMs is intended to generate cost efficiencies and reduce time to
market for certain HP-designed products. Third-party OEMs manufacture some products that we purchase and resell under the
HP brand. In addition to ouruse of CMs and ODMs, we currently manufacture finished products from components and sub-
assemblies that we acquire from a wide range of vendors.
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We utilize two primary methods of fulfilling demand for products: building products to order and configuring products to
order. We employ building products to order capabilities to maximize manufacturing efficiencies by producing high volumes of
basic product configurations. Configuring products to order permits configuration of units to the particular hardware and
software customization requirements of certain customers. Our inventory management and distribution practices in both
building products to order and configuring products to order seek to minimize inventory holding periods by taking delivery of
the inventory and manufacturing immediately prior to the sale or distribution of products to our customers.

We purchase materials, supplies and product subassemblies from a substantial number of vendors. For many of our
products, we have existing alternate sources of supply, or such sources are readily available. However, we do rely on sole
sources for laser printer engines, LaserJet supplies and parts for products with short life cycles (although some of these
sources have operations in multiple locations). We are dependent upon Intel as a supplier of processors and Microsoft for
various software products. However, we believe that disruptions with these suppliers would result in industry-wide
dislocations and therefore would not disproportionately disadvantage us relative to our competitors. We also have a valued
relationship with AMD, and we have continued to see solid acceptance of AMD processors in the market during fiscal 2008.

Like other participants in the high technology industry, we ordinarily acquire materials and components through a
combination of blanket and scheduled purchase orders to support our requirements for periods averaging 90 to 120 days. From
time to time, we experience significant price volatility and supply constraints of certain components that are not available from
multiple sources. Frequently, we are able to obtain scarce components for somewhat higher prices on the open market, which
may have an impact on gross margin but does not disrupt production. On occasion, we acquire component inventory in
anticipation of supply constraints or enter into longer-term pricing commitments with vendors to improve the priority, price and
availability of supply. See "Risk Factors—We depend on third-party suppliers, and our revenue and gross margin could suffer
if we fail to manage supplier issues properly,” in Item 1A, which is incorporated herein by reference.

International

Our products and services are available worldwide. We believe this geographic diversity allows us to meet demand on a
worldwide basis for both consumer and enterprise customers, draws on business and technical expertise from a worldwide
workforce, provides stability to our operations, allows us to drive economies of scale, provides revenue streams to offset
geographic economic trends and offers us an opportunity to access new markets for maturing products. In addition, we believe
that future growth is dependent in part on our ability to develop products and sales models that target developing countries. In
this regard, we believe that our broad geographic presence gives us a solid base upon which to build such future growth.

A summary of our domestic and international net revenue and net property, plant and equipment is set forth in Note 18 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, which is incorporated herein by reference. Approximately 69% of our overall
net revenue in fiscal 2008 came from outside the United States. The substantial majority of our net revenue originating outside
the United States was from customers other than foreign governments.

For a discussion of risks attendant to HP's foreign operations, see "Risk Factors—Due to the international nature of our
business, political or economic changes or other factors could harm our future revenue, costs and expenses and financial
condition,” in Item 1A, "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk" in Item 7A and Note 9 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements in Item 8, which are incorporated herein by reference.

9
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Research and Development

We remain committed to innovation as a key element of HP's culture. Our development efforts are focused on designing
and developing products, services and solutions that anticipate customers' changing needs and desires and emerging
technological trends. Our efforts also are focused on identifying the areas where we believe we can make a unique contribution

and the areas where partnering with other leading technology companies will leverage our cost structure and maximize our
customers' experiences.

HP Labs, together with the various research and development groups within the five principal business segments, are
responsible for our research and development efforts. HP Labs is part of our Corporate Investments segment.

Expenditures for research and development were $3.5 billion in fiscal 2008 and $3.6 billion in fiscal 2007 and 2006. We
anticipate that we will continue to have significant research and development expenditures in the future to provide a continuing
flow of innovative, high-quality products and services to maintain and enhance our competitive position.

Fora discussion of risks attendant to our research and development activities, see "Risk Factors—If we cannot continue
to develop, manufacture and market products and services that meet customer requirements for innovation and quality, our
revenue and gross margin may suffer," in Item 1A, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Patents

Our general policy has been to seek patent protection for those inventions and improvements likely to be incorporated into
our products and services or where proprietary rights will improve our competitive position. At October 31, 2008, our worldwide
patent portfolio included over 32,000 patents, which was slightly above the number of patents in our patent portfolio at the end
of both fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006.

Patents generally have a term of twenty years from the time they are filed. As our patent portfolio has been built over time,
the remaining terms on the individual patents vary. While we believe that our patents and applications are important for
maintaining the competitive differentiation of our products and maximizing our return on research and development
mvestments, no single patent is in itself essential to us as a whole or any of our principal business segments.

In addition to developing our patents, we license intellectual property fromthird parties as we deem appropriate. We have
also granted and continue to grant to others licenses under patents owned by us when we consider these arrangements to be
in our interest. These license arrangements include a number of cross-licenses with third parties.

Fora discussion ofrisks attendant to intellectual property rights, see "Risk Factors—OQur revenue, cost of sales, and
expenses may suffer if we cannot continue to license or enforce the intellectual property rights on which our businesses
depend or if third parties assert that we violate their intellectual property rights,” in Item 1A, which is incorporated herein by
reference.

Backlog

We believe that backlog is not a meaningful indicator of future business prospects due to the diversity of our products
and services portfolio, including the large volume of products delivered from shelf or channel partner inventories and the
shortening of product life cycles. Therefore, we believe that backlog information is not material to an understanding of our
overall business.
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Seasonality

General economic conditions have an impact on our business and financial results. From time to time, the markets in which
we sell our products experience weak economic conditions that may negatively affect sales. We experience some seasonal
trends in the sale of our products and services. For example, European sales often are weaker in the summer months and
consumer sales often are stronger in the fourth calendar quarter. Demand during the spring and early summer months also may
be adversely impacted by market anticipation of seasonal trends. See "Risk Factors—Qur sales cycle makes planning and
inventory management difficult and future financial results less predictable,” in Item 1A, which is incorporated herein by
reference.

Competition

We encounter aggressive competition in all areas of our business activity. We compete primarily on the basis of
technology, performance, price, quality, reliability, brand, reputation, distribution, range of products and services, ease of use
of our products, account relationships, customer training, service and support, security and availability of application software
and our Internet infrastructure offerings.

The markets for each of our business segments are characterized by vigorous competition among major corporations with
long-established positions and a large number of new and rapidly growing firms. Product life cycles are short, and to remain
competitive we must develop new products and services, periodically enhance our existing products and services and compete
effectively on the basis of the factors listed above. In addition, we compete with many of our current and potential partners,
including OEMs that design, manufacture and often market their products under their own brand names. Our successful
management of these competitive partner relationships will continue to be critical to our future success. Moreover, we
anticipate that we will have to continue to adjust prices on many of our products and services to stay competitive.

On arevenue basis we are the largest U.S.-based company offering our range of general purpose computers and personal
information, imaging and printing products for industrial, scientific, business and consumer applications, and IT services. We
are the leader or among the leaders in each of our principal business segments.

The competitive environments in which each segment operates are described below:

Enterprise Storage and Servers. 'The areas in which ESS operates are intensely competitive and are characterized by
rapid and ongoing technological innovation and price reductions. Our competitors range from broad solution providers such as
International Business Machines Corporation ("IBM") to more focused competitors such as EMC Corporation and Network
Appliance, Inc. in storage, Dell, Inc. ("Dell") in industry standard servers, and Sun Microsystems, Inc. in both industry
standard and UNIX®-based servers. We believe that our important competitive advantages in this segment include the six
technology components of our adaptive infrastructure initiatives: IT systems, power and cooling, security, management,
virtualization and automation. We believe that our competitive advantages also include our global reach and our significant
intellectual property portfolio and research and development capabilities, which will contribute to further enhancements of our
product and service offerings and our ability to cross-sell our portfolio and leverage scale advantages in everything from brand
to procurement leverage.

HP Services. Our service businesses, including EDS, compete in IT support services, consulting and integration,
infrastructure technology outsourcing, business process outsourcing and application services. The IT support services and
consulting and integration markets have been under significant pressure as our customers have reduced their IT budgets.
However, this trend has benefited the outsourcing services business as customers drive toward lower IT management costs to
enable more strategic investments. Our competitors include IBM Global Services, Computer Sciences Corporation,
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systems integration firms such as Accenture Ltd. and offshore companies such as Fujitsu and India-based competitors Wipro
1td, Infosys Technologies Ltd. and Tata Consultancy Services Ltd. We also compete with other traditional hardware providers,
such as Dell, which are increasingly offering services to support their products. Many of our competitors are able to offer a
wide range of global services, and some of our competitors enjoy significant brand recognition. Our service businesses team
with many companies to offer services, and those arrangements allow us to extend our reach and augment our capabilities. Our
competitive advantages are evident in our deep technology expertise, which includes multi-vendor environments, virtualization
and automation, our strong track record of collaboration with clients and partners, and the combination of our expertise in
infrastructure management with skilled global resources in SAP, Oracle and Microsoft platforms.

HP Software. The areas in which HP Software operates are intensely competitive. Our software competitors include
companies focused on providing software solutions for IT management, such as BMC Software, Inc, CA Inc., and IBM Tivoli
Software.

Personal Systems Group. The areas in which PSG operates are intensely competitive and are characterized by rapid price
reductions and inventory depreciation. OQur primary competitors for the branded personal computers are Dell, Acer Inc.,
ASUSTeK Computer Inc., Apple Inc., Lenovo Group Limited and Toshiba Corporation. In particular regions, we also experience
competition fromlocal companies and from generically-branded or "white box"' manufacturers. Our competitive advantages
include our broad product portfolio, our innovation and research and development capabilities, our brand and procurement
leverage, our ability to cross sell our portfolio of offerings, our extensive service and support offerings and the availability of
our broad-based distribution of products fromretail and commercial channels to direct sales.

Imaging and Printing Group. The markets for printer hardware and associated supplies are highly competitive,
especially with respect to pricing and the introduction of new products and features. IPGs key competitors include Canon
USA, Inc., Lexmark International, Inc., Xerox Corporation (" Xerox"), Seiko Epson Corporation, Samsung Electronics Co. Ltd.
and Dell. In addition, independent suppliers offer refill and remanufactured alternatives for our supplies which, although
generally offering lower print quality and reliability, may be offered at lower prices and put pressure on our supplies sales and
margins. Other companies also have developed and marketed new compatible cartridges for HP's laser and inkjet products,
particularly in jurisdictions outside of the United States where adequate intellectual property protection may not exist. In recent
years, we and our competitors have regularly lowered prices on printer hardware both to reach new customers and in response
to the competitive environment. Important areas for future growth include digital photography in the home and outside the
home, printer-based multi-function devices in the office space, digital presses in our imaging and graphics space and driving
color printing expansion in the office. While we encounter competitors in some product categories whose current market share
is greater than ours, such as Xeroxin copiers and Heidelberger Druckmaschinen Aktiengesellschaft in publishing, we believe
we will provide important new contributions in the home, the office and publishing environments by providing comprehensive
solutions.

HP Financial Services. In our financing business, our competitors are captive financing companies, mainly IBM Global
Financing, as well as banks and financial institutions. We believe our competitive advantage in this business over banks and
financial institutions is our ability to finance products, services and total solutions.

Fora discussion of risks attendant to these competitive factors, see "Risk Factors—The competitive pressures we face
could harm our revenue, gross margin and prospects,” in Item 1A, which is incorporated herein by reference.
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Environment

Our operations are subject to regulation under various federal, state, local and foreign laws conceming the environment,
including laws addressing the discharge of pollutants into the air and water, the management and disposal of hazardous
substances and wastes, and the cleanup of contaminated sites. We could incur substantial costs, including cleanup costs,
fines and civil or criminal sanctions, and third-party damage or personal injury claims, if we were to violate or become liable
under environmental laws.

Many of our products are subject to various federal, state, local and foreign laws govermning chemical substances in
products and their safe use, including laws regulating the manufacture and distribution of chemical substances and laws
restricting the presence of certain substances in electronics products. Some of our products also are, or may in the future be,
subject to requirements applicable to their energy consumption. We face increasing complexity in our product design and
procurement operations as we adjust to new and future requirements relating to the chemical and materials composition of our
products, their safe use, and their energy efficiency, including those that may result from climate change legislation. In the
event our products become non-compliant with these laws, they could be enjoined from entering certain jurisdictions and we
could face other sanctions, including fines.

We also are subject to legislation in an increasing number of jurisdictions that makes producers of electrical goods,
including computers and printers, financially responsible for specified collection, recycling, treatment and disposal of past and
future covered products (sometimes referred to as "product take-back legislation"). There is no assurance that such existing or
future laws will not have a material adverse effect on HP's operations or financial condition, although HP does not anticipate
that effects of product take-back legislation will be different or more severe for HP than the impacts on others in the electronics
industry.

We are committed to maintaining compliance with all environmental laws applicable to our operations, products and
services and to reducing our environmental impact across all aspects of our business. We meet this commitment with a
comprehensive environmental, health and safety policy, strict environmental management of our operations and worldwide
environmental programs and services.

The liability for environmental remediation and other environmental costs is accrued when HP considers it probable and
can reasonably estimate the costs. Environmental costs and accruals are presently not material to our operations or financial
position. Although there is no assurance that existing or future environmental laws applicable to our operations or products
will not have a material adverse effect on HP's operations or financial condition, we do not currently anticipate material capital
expenditures for environmental control facilities.

Executive Officers:
Mark V. Hurd; age 51; Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President

Mr. Hurd has served as Chairman of HP since September 2006 and as Chief Executive Officer, President and a member of
the Board since April 2005. Prior to that, he served as Chief Executive Officer of NCR Corporation, a technology company, from
March 2003 to March 2005 and as President from July 2001 to March 2005. Mr. Hurd also is a director of News Corporation.
Peter J. Bocian; age 53; Executive Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer

Mr. Bocian has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer since December 2008. Previously,
Mr. Bocian served as Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Chief A dministrative Officer of Starbucks
Corporation, a roaster and retailer of specialty coffee, from October 2007 until November 2008 after having served as Executive

Vice President and Chief Financial
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Officer designate of Starbucks since May 2007. Prior to joining Starbucks, Mr. Bocian served in various positions at NCR
Corporation since 1983, most recently as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer from September 2004 until May 2007.
From October 2003 to September 2004, he served as NCR's Vice President, Finance and Interim Chief Financial Officer.

R. Todd Bradley; age 5S0; Executive Vice President, Personal Systems Group

Mr. Bradley has served as Executive Vice President of HP's Personal Systems Group since June 2005. Previously he served
as the Chief Executive Officer of palmOne Inc., a mobile computing company, from October 2003 to June 2005.

Michael J. Holston; age 46; Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

Mr. Holston has served as Executive Vice President and General Counsel since February 2007 and as Secretary since
March 2007. Prior to that, he was a partner in the litigation practice at Morgan, Lewis & Bockius LLP, where, among other
clients, he supported HP as extemal counsel on a variety of litigation and regulatory matters for more than ten years.

Vyomesh L Joshi; age S4; Executive Vice President, Imaging and Printing Group

Mr. Joshihas served as Executive Vice President of HP's Imaging and Printing Group since 2002. Mr. Joshi also is a director
of Yahoo! Inc.

Catherine A. Lesjak; age 49; Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Lesjak has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since January 2007. Previously, she served
as Senior Vice President from 2003 until December 2006 and as Treasurer from 2003 until March 2007.

Ann M. Livermore; age 50; Executive Vice President, Technology Solutions Group

Ms. Livermore has served as Executive Vice President of HP's Technology Solutions Group since May 2004. From 2002 |
until May 2004, she served as Executive Vice President of HP Services. Ms. Livermore also is a director of United Parcel
Service, Inc.

John N. McMullen; age 50; Senior Vice President and Treasurer

Mr. McMullen has served as Senior Vice President and Treasurer since March 2007. Previously, he served as Vice
President of Finance for HP's Imaging and Printing Group from May 2002 until 2007.

Randall D. Mott; age 52; Executive Vice President and Chief Information Officer

Mr. Mott has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Information Officer since July 2005. From 2000 to June 2005,
Mr. Mott was Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer of Dell, Inc., a technology company.

James T. Murrin; age 48; Senior Vice President, Controller and Principal Accounting Officer
Mr. Murrin has served as Senior Vice President, Controller and Principal Accounting Officer since March 2007. Previously,
he served as Vice President of Finance for the Technology Solutions Group since 2004. Prior to that, Mr. Murrin was Vice

President of Finance for HP Services and held various other finance positions at HP since joming the company in 1989.
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Marcela Perez de Alonso; age 54; Executive Vice President, Human Resources

Ms. Perezde Alonso has served as Executive Vice President, Human Resources since January 2004. From 1999 until she
joined HP in January 2004, Ms. Perezde Alonso was Division Head of Citigroup North Latin America Consumer Bank, in charge
of the retail business operations of Citigroup in Puerto Rico, Venezuela, Colombia, Peru, Panama, the Bahamas and the
Dominican Republic.

Ronald A. Rittenmeyer; age 61; President and Chief Executive Officer, EDS, an HP company

Mr. Rittenmeyer has served as President and Chief Executive Officer of EDS, an HP company, since HP acquired EDS. Prior
to HP's acquisition of EDS, he served as Chairman of the Board of EDS since December 2007, Chief Executive Officer of EDS
since September 2007 and President of EDS since December 2006. Previously, he served as Chief Operating Officer of EDS from
October 2005 to September 2007 (including serving as Co-Chief Operating Officer until May 2006) and as Executive Vice
President, Global Service Delivery from July 2005 to December 2006. Prior to joining EDS, Mr. Rittenmeyer was Managing
Director of The Cypress Group, a private equity firm, from July 2004 to June 2005, and Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
President of Safety-Kleen, Inc., a hazardous waste management company, from August 2001 to July 2004. Mr. Rittenmeyer is
expected to retire from HP on December 31, 2008.

Shane V. Robison; age 55; Executive Vice President and Chief Strategy and Technology Officer

Mr. Robison has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Strategy and Technology Officer since May 2002.
Employees

We had approximately 321,000 employees worldwide as of October 31, 2008.

Available Information and Exchange Certifications

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to
reports filed or furnished pursuant to Sections 13(a) and 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, are available
on our website at http://www.hp.com/investor/home, as soon as reasonably practicable after HP electronically files such
reports with, or furnishes those reports to, the Securities and Exchange Commission. HP's Corporate Governance Guidelines,
Board of Directors committee charters (including the charters of the Audit Committee, HR and Compensation Committee, and
Nominating and Govemance Committee) and code of ethics entitled "Standards of Business Conduct" also are available at that
same location on our website. Stockholders may request free copies of these documents from:

Hewlett-Packard Company
Attention: Investor Relations
3000 Hanover Street
Palo Alto, CA 94304
(866) GET-HPQ1 or (866) 438-4771
http://www.hp.com/investor/informationrequest

We submitted the certification of the CEO of HP required by Section 303A.12(a) of the New York Stock Exchange "NYSE"
Listed Company Manual, relating to HP's compliance with the NYSE's corporate governance listing standards, to the NYSE on
April 16, 2008 with no qualifications.
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We included the certifications of the CEO and the CFO of HP required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f2002
and related rules, relating to the quality of HP's public disclosure, in this Annual Report on Form 10-K as Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2.

ITEM 1A. Risk Factors.

Because of'the following factors, as well as other variables affecting our operating results, past financial performance may
not be a reliable indicator of future performance, and historical trends should not be used to anticipate results or trends in
future periods.

The competitive pressures we face could harm our revenue, gross margin and prospects.

We encounter aggressive competition from numerous and varied competitors in all areas of our business, and our
competitors may target our key market segments. We compete primarily on the basis of technology, performance, price, quality,
reliability, brand, reputation, distribution, range of products and services, ease of use of our products, account relationships,
customer training, service and support, security, availability of application software, and Intemet infrastructure offerings. If our
products, services, support and cost structure do not enable us to compete successfully based on any of those criteria, our
operations, results and prospects could be harmed.

Unlike many of our competitors, we have a portfolio of businesses and must allocate resources across these businesses
while competing with companies that specialize in one or more of these product lines. As a result, we may invest less in certain
areas of our businesses than our competitors do, and these competitors may have greater financial, technical and marketing
resources available to them than our businesses that compete against them. Industry consolidation also may affect competition
by creating larger, more homogeneous and potentially stronger competitors in the markets in which we compete, and our
competitors also may affect our business by entering into exclusive arrangements with existing or potential customers or
suppliers.

We may have to continue to lower the prices of many of our products and services to stay competitive, while at the same
time trying to maintain or improve revenue and gross margin. The markets in which we do business, particularly the personal
computer and printing markets, are highly competitive, and we encounter aggressive price competition for all of our products
and services fromnumerous companies globally. Over the past several years, price competition in the market for personal
computers, printers and related products has been particularly intense as competitors have aggressively cut prices and lowered
their product margins for these products. In addition, competitors in some of the markets in which we compete with a greater
presence in lower-cost jurisdictions may be able to offer lower prices than we are able to offer. Ourresults of operations and
financial condition may be adversely affected by these and other industry-wide pricing pressures.

Because our business model is based on providing innovative and high quality products, we may spend a proportionately
greater amount on research and development than some of our competitors. If we cannot proportionately decrease our cost
structure on a timely basis in response to competitive price pressures, our gross margin and therefore our profitability could be
adversely affected. In addition, if our pricing and other factors are not sufficiently competitive, or if there is an adverse reaction
to our product decisions, we may lose market share in certain areas, which could adversely affect our revenue and prospects.

Even if we are able to maintain or increase market share for a particular product, revenue could decline because the product
is in a maturing industry. Revenue and margins also could decline due to increased competition from other types of products.
For example, refill and remanufactured alternatives for some of HP's LaserJet toner and inkjet cartridges compete with HP's
supplies business. In addition, other companies have developed and marketed new compatible cartridges for HP's LaserJet and
inkjet products, particularly in jurisdictions outside of the United States where adequate intellectual property
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protection may not exist. HP expects competitive refill and remanufacturing and cloned cartridge activity to continue to
pressure margins in IPG, which in turn has a significant impact on HP margins and profitability overall.

Ifwe cannot continue to develop, manufacture and market products and services that meet customer requirements for
innovation and quality, our revenue and gross margin may suffer.

The process of developing new high technology products and services and enhancing existing products and services is
complex, costly and uncertain, and any failure by us to anticipate customers' changing needs and emerging technological
trends accurately could significantly harm our market share and results of operations. We must make long-term investments,
develop or obtain appropriate intellectual property and commit significant resources before knowing whether our predictions
will accurately reflect customer demand for our products and services. After we develop a product, we must be able to
manufacture appropriate volumes quickly and at low costs. To accomplish this, we must accurately forecast volumes, mixes of
products and configurations that meet customer requirements, and we may not succeed at all or within a given product's life
cycle. Any delay in the development, production or marketing of a new product could result in our not being among the first to
market, which could further harm our competitive position.

In the course of conducting our business, we must adequately address quality issues associated with our products and
services, including defects in our engineering, design and manufacturing processes, as well as defects in third-party
components included in our products. In order to address quality issues, we work extensively with our customers and suppliers
and engage in product testing to determine the cause of the problem and to determine appropriate solutions. However, we may
have limited ability to control quality issues, particularly with respect to faulty components manufactured by third parties. If we
are unable to determine the cause, find an appropriate solution or offer a temporary fix (or "patch™), we may delay shipment to
customers, which would delay revenue recognition and could adversely affect our revenue and reported results. Finding
solutions to quality issues can be expensive and may result in additional warranty, replacement and other costs, adversely
affecting our profits. If new or existing customers have difficulty operating our products, our operating margins could be
adversely affected, and we could face possible claims if we fail to meet our customers' expectations. In addition, quality issues
can impair our relationships with new or existing customers and adversely affect our reputation, which could have a material
adverse effect on our operating results.

Ifwe do not effectively manage our product and services transitions, our revenue may suffer.

Many of the industries in which we compete are characterized by rapid technological advances in hardware performance
and software features and functionality; frequent introduction of new products; short product life cycles; and continual
improvement in product price characteristics relative to product performance. Among the risks associated with the introduction
of new products and services are delays in development or manufacturing, variations in costs, delays in customer purchases or
reductions in price of existing products in anticipation of new introductions, difficulty in predicting customer demand for the
new offerings and effectively managing inventory levels so that they are in line with anticipated demand, risks associated with
customer qualification and evaluation of new products and the risk that new products may have quality or other defects or may
not be supported adequately by application sofiware. If we do not make an effective transition from existing products and
services to future offerings, our revenue may decline.

Our revenue and gross margin also may suffer due to the timing of product or service introductions by our suppliers and
competitors. This is especially challenging when a product has a short life cycle or a competitor introduces a new product just
before our own product introduction. Furthermore, sales of our new products and services may replace sales, or result in
discounting of some of our current offerings, offsetting the benefit of even a successful introduction. There also may be
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overlaps in the current products and services of HP and portfolios acquired through mergers and acquisitions that we must
manage. In addition, it may be difficult to ensure performance of new customer contracts in accordance with ourrevenue,
margin and cost estimates and to achieve operational efficiencies embedded in our estimates. Given the competitive nature of
our industry, if any of these risks materializes, future demand for our products and services and ourresults of operations may
suffer.

Our revenue, cost of sales, and expenses may suffer if we cannot continue to license or enforce the intellectual property rights
on which our businesses depend or ifthird parties assert that we violate their intellectual property rights.

We rely upon patent, copyright, trademark and trade secret laws in the United States, similar laws in other countries, and
agreements with our employees, customers, suppliers and other parties, to establish and maintain intellectual property rights in
the technology and products we sell, provide or otherwise use in our operations. However, any of our direct or indirect
intellectual property rights could be challenged, invalidated or circumvented, or such intellectual property rights may not be
sufficient to permit us to take advantage of current market trends or otherwise to provide competitive advantages, either of
which could result in costly product redesign efforts, discontinuance of certain product offerings or other competitive harm.
Further, the laws of certain countries do not protect proprietary rights to the same extent as the laws of the United States.
Therefore, in certain jurisdictions we may be unable to protect our proprietary technology adequately against unauthorized
third-party copying or use; this too could adversely affect our competitive position.

Because of the rapid pace of technological change in the information technology industry, much of our business and many
of our products rely on key technologies developed or licensed by third parties. We may not be able to obtain or to continue to
obtain licenses and technologies from these third parties at all or on reasonable terms, or such third parties may demand cross-
licenses to our intellectual property. In addition, it is possible that as a consequence of a merger or acquisition third parties may
obtain licenses to some of our intellectual propetty rights or our business may be subject to certain restrictions that were not in
place prior to the transaction. Consequently, we may lose a competitive advantage with respect to these intellectual property
rights or we may be required to enter into costly arrangements in order to terminate or limit these rights.

Third parties also may claim that we or customers indemnified by us are infringing upon their intellectual property rights.
For example, in recent years individuals and groups have begun purchasing intellectual property assets for the sole purpose of
asserting claims of infringement and attempting to extract settlements from large companies such as HP. If we cannot or do not
license the infringed technology at all or on reasonable terms, or substitute similar technology from another source, our
operations could be adversely affected. Even if we believe that the claims are without merit, they can be time-consuming and
costly to defend and divert management's attention and resources away from our business. Claims of intellectual property
infringement also might require us to redesign affected products, enter into costly settlement or license agreements, pay costly
damage awards, or face a temporary or permanent injunction prohibiting us from importing, marketing or selling certain of our
products. Even if we have an agreement to indemnify us against such costs, the indemnifying party may be unable to uphold
its contractual obligations to us.

Finally, our results of operations and cash flows could be affected in certain periods and on an ongoing basis by the
imposition, accrual and payment of copyright levies or similar fees. In certain countries (primarily in Europe), proceedings are
ongoing against HP in which groups representing copyright owners seek to impose upon and collect from HP levies upon
equipment (such as PCs, multifunction devices and printers) that they allege are copying devices under applicable laws. Other
countries that have not imposed levies on these types of devices are expected to extend existing levy schemes, and countries
that do not currently have levy schemes may decide to impose copyright levies
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on these types of devices. If imposed, the total amount of the copyright levies would depend on the types of products
determined to be subject to the levy, the number of units of those products sold during the period covered by the levy, and the
per unit fee for each type of product, all of which may be affected by several factors, including the outcome of ongoing
litigation involving HP and other industry participants and possible action by the legislative bodies in the applicable countries,
but which could be substantial. Consequently, the ultimate impact of these potential copyright levies or similar fees, and the
ability of HP to recover such amounts through increased prices, remain uncertain.

Economic conditions and uncertainty could adversely affect our revenue, gross margin and expenses.

Our revenue and gross margin depend significantly on general economic conditions and the demand for computing and
imaging products and services in the markets in which we compete. Economic weakness and constrained IT spending has
resulted, and may result in the future, in decreased revenue, gross margin, earings or growth rates and problems with our
ability to manage inventory levels and collect customer receivables. We have experienced, and may experience in the future,
reduced spending in our consumer and financial services businesses due to the current financial turmoil affecting the banking
system and financial markets, conditions in the residential real estate and mortgage markets, access to credit and other
macroeconomic factors affecting spending behavior. In addition, customer financial difficulties have resulted, and could result
in the future, in increases in bad debt write-offs and additions to reserves in our receivables portfolio, inability by our lessees to
make required lease payments and reduction in the value of leased equipment upon its retumn to us compared to the value
estimated at lease inception. In particular, our exposure to certain industries currently experiencing financial difficulties,
including the U.S. automobile industry, and certain financially troubled customers, could have an adverse affect on our results
of operations. We also have experienced, and may experience in the future, gross margin declines in certain businesses,
reflecting the effect of items such as competitive pricing pressures, mventory write-downs, charges associated with the
cancellation of planned production line expansion, increases in pension and post-retirement benefit expenses, and increases in
component and manufacturing costs resulting from higher labor and material costs borne by our manufacturers and suppliers
that, as a result of competitive pricing pressures or other factors, we are unable to pass on to our customers. Economic
downtums also may lead to restructuring actions and associated expenses. Uncertainty about future economic conditions
makes it difficult for us to forecast operating results and to make decisions about future investments. Delays or reductions in
information technology spending could have a material adverse effect on demand for our products and services, and
consequently our results of operations, prospects and stock price.

Due to the international nature of our business, political or economic changes or other factors could harm our future
revenue, costs and expenses and financial condition.

Sales outside the United States make up approximately 69% of our net revenue. In addition, an increasing portion of our
business activity is being conducted in emerging markets, including Brazil, Russia, India and China. Our future revenue, gross
margin, expenses and financial condition could suffer due to a variety of international factors, including:

. ongoing instability or changes in a country's or region's economic or political conditions, including inflation,
recession, interest rate fluctuations and actual or anticipated military or political conflicts;

* longer accounts receivable cycles and financial instability among customers;
. trade regulations and procedures and actions affecting production, pricing and marketing of products;
. local labor conditions and regulations;
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managing a geographically dispersed workforce;
changes in the regulatory or legal environment;
differing technology standards or customer requirements;

import, export or other business licensing requirements or requirements relating to making foreign direct
investments, which could affect our ability to obtain favorable terms for components or lead to penalties or
restrictions;

difficulties associated with repatriating cash generated or held abroad in a tax-efficient manner and changes in
taxlaws; and

fluctuations in freight costs and disruptions in the transportation and shipping infrastructure at important
geographic points of exit and entry for our products and shipments.

The factors described above also could disrupt our product and component manufacturing and key suppliers located
outside ofthe United States. For example, we rely on manufacturers in Taiwan for the production of notebook computers and
other suppliers in Asia for product assembly and manufacture.

As approximately 69% of our sales are from countries outside of the United States, other currencies, particularly the euro,
the British pound, Chinese Yuan Renminbi and the Japanese yen, can have an impact on HP's results (expressed in U.S.
dollars). Currency variations also contribute to variations in sales of products and services in impacted jurisdictions.
Accordingly, fluctuations in foreign currency rates, most notably the strengthening ofthe dollar against the euro, could have a
material impact on our revenue growth in future periods. In addition, currency variations can adversely affect margins on sales
of our products in countries outside ofthe United States and margins on sales of products that include components obtained
from suppliers located outside of the United States. We use a combination of forward contracts and options designated as cash
flow hedges to protect against foreign currency exchange rate risks. Such hedging activities may be ineffective or may not
offset more than a portion of the adverse financial impact resulting from currency variations. Gains or losses associated with
hedging activities also may impact our revenue and to a lesser extent our cost of sales and financial condition.

In many foreign countries, particularly in those with developing economies, it is common to engage in business practices
that are prohibited by laws and regulations applicable to us, such as the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. Although we implement
policies and procedures designed to facilitate compliance with these laws, our employees, contractors and agents, as well as
those companies to which we outsource certain of our business operations, may take actions in violation of our policies. Any
such violation, even if prohibited by our policies, could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Terrorist acts, conflicts and wars may seriously harm our business and revenue, costs and expenses and financial condition
and stock price.

Terrorist acts, conflicts or wars (wherever located around the world) may cause damage or disruption to HP, our
employees, facilities, partners, suppliers, distributors, resellers or customers. The potential for future attacks, the national and
international responses to attacks or perceived threats to national security, and other actual or potential conflicts or wars,
including the ongoing military operations in Iraq, have created many economic and political uncertainties. In addition, as a
major multi-national company with headquarters and significant operations located in the United States, actions against or by
the United States may impact our business or employees. Although it is impossible to predict the occurrences or consequences
of any such events, they could result in a decrease in demand for our products, make it difficult or impossible to deliver
products to our customers or to receive components from our suppliers, create delays and inefficiencies in our supply
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chain and result in the need to impose enmployee travel restrictions. We are predominantly uninsured for losses and
interruptions caused by terrorist acts, conflicts and wars.

Business disruptions could seriously harm our future revenue and financial condition and increase our costs and expenses.

Our worldwide operations could be subject to earthquakes, power shortages, telecommunications failures, water shortages,
tsunamis, floods, hurricanes, typhoons, fires, extreme weather conditions, medical epidemics and other natural or manmade
disasters or business interruptions, for which we are predominantly self-insured. The occurrence of any of these business
disruptions could seriously harm our revenue and financial condition and increase our costs and expenses. Our corporate
headquarters, and a portion of our research and development activities, are located in California, and other critical business
operations and some of our suppliers are located in California and Asia, near major earthquake faults. In addition, all sixof our
worldwide IT data centers are located in the southern United States, making our operations more vulnerable to natural disasters
or other business disruptions occurring in that geographical area. The ultimate impact on us, our significant suppliers and our
general infrastructure of being located near major earthquake faults and being consolidated in certain geographical areas is
unknown, but our revenue, profitability and financial condition could suffer in the event of a major earthquake or other natural
disaster.

Ifwe fail to manage the distribution of our products and services properly, our revenue, gross margin and profitability could

suffer.

We use a variety of different distribution methods to sell our products and services, including third-party resellers and
distributors and both direct and indirect sales to both enterprise accounts and consumers. Successfully managing the
interaction of our direct and indirect channel efforts to reach various potential customer segments for our products and
services is a complex process. Moreover, since each distribution method has distinct risks and gross margins, our failure to
implement the most advantageous balance in the delivery model for our products and services could adversely affect our
revenue and gross margins and therefore our profitability. Other distribution risks are described below.

. Our financial results could be materially adversely affected due to channel conflicts or if the financial conditions
of our channel partners were to weaken.

Our future operating results may be adversely affected by any conflicts that might arise between our various
sales channels, the loss or deterioration of any alliance or distribution arrangement or the loss of retail shelf
space. Moreover, some of our wholesale and retail distributors may have insufficient financial resources and
may not be able to withstand changes in business conditions, including economic weakness and industry
consolidation. Many of our significant distributors operate on narrow product margins and have been
negatively affected by business pressures. Considerable trade receivables that are not covered by collateral or
credit insurance are outstanding with our distribution and retail channel partners. Revenue from indirect sales
could suffer, and we could experience disruptions in distribution if our distributors’ financial conditions, abilities
to borrow funds in the credit markets or operations weaken.

° Our inventory management is complex as we continue to sell a significant mix of products through distributors.

We must manage inventory effectively, particularly with respect to sales to distributors, which involves
forecasting demand and pricing issues. Distributors may increase orders during periods of product shortages,
cancel orders if their inventory is too high or delay orders in anticipation of new products. Distributors also may
adjust their orders in response to the supply of our products and the products of our competitors and seasonal
fluctuations in
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end-user demand. Our reliance upon indirect distribution methods may reduce visibility to demand and pricing
issues, and therefore make forecasting more difficult. If we have excess or obsolete inventory, we may have to
reduce our prices and write down inventory. Moreover, our use of indirect distribution channels may limit our
willingness or ability to adjust prices quickly and otherwise to respond to pricing changes by competitors. We
also may have limited ability to estimate future product rebate redemptions in order to price our products
effectively.

We depend on third-party suppliers, and our revenie and gross margin could suffer if we fuil to manage suppliers properly.

Our operations depend on our ability to anticipate our needs for components, products and services and our suppliers'
ability to deliver sufficient quantities of quality components, products and services at reasonable prices in time for us to meet
critical schedules. Given the wide variety of systems, products and services that we offer, the large number of our suppliers and
contract manufacturers that are dispersed across the globe, and the long lead times that are required to manufacture, assemble
and deliver certain components and products, problems could arise in planning production and managing inventory levels that
could seriously harmus. Other supplier problems that we could face include component shortages, excess supply, risks related
to the terms of our contracts with suppliers, risks associated with contingent workers, and risks related to our relationships with
single source suppliers, as described below.

Shortages. Occasionally we may experience a shortage of, or a delay in receiving, certain supplies as a result of
strong demand, capacity constraints, and supplier financial weaknesses, inability of suppliers to borrow funds in
the credit markets, disputes with suppliers (some of which are also customers), disruptions in the operations of
component suppliers, other problems experienced by suppliers or problems faced during the transition to new
suppliers. In particular, our PC business relies heavily upon CMs and ODMs to manufacture its products and is
therefore dependent upon the continuing operations ofthose CMs and ODMs to fulfill demand for our PC
products. HP represents a substantial portion of the business of some of these CMs and ODMSs, and any
changes to the nature or volume of business transacted by HP with a particular CM or ODM could adversely
affect the operations and financial condition ofthe CM or ODM and lead to shortages or delays in receiving
products from that CM or ODM. If shortages or delays persist, the price of these supplics may increase, we may
be exposed to quality issues or the supplies may not be available at all. We may not be able to secure enough
supplies at reasonable prices or of acceptable quality to build products or provide services in a timely manner in
the quantities or according to the specifications needed. Accordingly, our revenue and gross margin could
suffer as we could lose time-sensitive sales, incur additional freight costs or be unable to pass on price increases
to our customers. If we cannot adequately address supply issues, we might have to reengineer some products or
service offerings, resulting in further costs and delays.

Oversupply. In order to secure supplies for the provision of products or services, at times we may make advance
payments to suppliers or enter into non-cancelable commitments with vendors. In addition, we may purchase
supplies strategically in advance of demand to take advantage of favorable pricing or to address concerns about
the availability of future supplies. If we fail to anticipate customer demand properly, a temporary oversupply
could result in excess or obsolete components, which could adversely affect our gross margin.

Contractual terms. As aresult of binding price or purchase commitments with vendors, we may be obligated to
purchase supplies or services at prices that are higher than those available in the current market and be limited in
our ability to respond to changing market conditions. In the event that we become committed to purchase
supplies or services for prices in excess of the
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current market price, we may be at a disadvantage to competitors who have access to components or services at
lower prices, and our gross margin could suffer. In addition, many of our competitors obtain products or
components fromthe same CMs, ODMs and suppliers that we utilize. Our competitors may obtain better pricing
and other terms and more favorable allocations of products and components during periods of limited supply,
and our ability to engage in relationships with certain CMs, ODMs and suppliers could be limited. The practice
employed by our PC business of purchasing product components and transferring those components to its
CMs and ODMs may create large supplier receivables with the CMs and ODMs that, depending on the financial
condition of the CMs and ODMs, may have risk of uncollectability. In addition, certain of our CMs, ODMs and
suppliers may decide in the future to discontinue conducting business with us. Any of these actions by our
competitors, CMs, ODMs or suppliers could adversely affect our future operating results and financial
condition.

Contingent workers. We also rely on third-party suppliers for the provision of contingent workers, and our
failure to manage our use of such workers effectively could adversely affect our results of operations. We have
been exposed to various legal claims relating to the status of contingent workers in the past and could face
similar claims in the future. We may be subject to shortages, oversupply or fixed contractual terms relating to
contingent workers, as described above. Our ability to manage the size of, and costs associated with, the
contingent workforce may be subject to additional constraints imposed by local laws.

Single source suppliers. Our use of single source suppliers for certain components could exacerbate our
supplier issues. We obtain a significant number of components fromsingle sources due to technology,
availability, price, quality or other considerations. For example, we rely on Intel to provide us with a sufficient
supply of processors for many of our PCs, workstations, handheld computing devices and servers, and some of
those processors are customized for our products. New products that we introduce may utilize custom
components obtained from only one source initialty until we have evaluated whether there is a need for
additional suppliers. Replacing a single source supplier could delay production of some products as replacement
suppliers initially may be subject to capacity constraints or other output limitations. For some components, such
as customized components and some of the processors that we obtain from Intel, alternative sources may not
exist or those alternative sources may be unable to produce the quantities ofthose components necessary to
satisfy our production requirements. In addition, we sometimes purchase components fromsingle source
suppliers under short-term agreements that contain favorable pricing and other terms but that may be
unilaterally modified or terminated by the supplier with limited notice and with little or no penalty. The
performance of such single source suppliers under those agreements (and the renewal or extension of those
agreements upon similar terms) may affect the quality, quantity and price of supplies to HP. The loss ofa single
source supplier, the deterioration of our relationship with a single source supplier, or any unilateral modification
to the contractual terms under which we are supplied components by a single source supplier could adversely
affect our revenue and gross margins.

Our revenue and profitability could suffer ifwe do not manage the risks associated with our IT services business properly.

As aresult of our acquisition of EDS in August 2008, we have significantly increased the size of the IT services portion of
our business. The risks that accompany that business differ from those of our other businesses and include the following:

The pricing and other terms of some of our IT services agreements, particularly our long-term IT outsourcing
services agreements, require us to make estimates and assumptions at the time we enter into these contracts that
could differ from actual results. Any increased or unexpected
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costs or unanticipated delays in connection with the performance ofthese engagements, including delays
caused by factors outside our control, could make these agreements less profitable or unprofitable, which would
have an adverse affect on the profit margin of our IT services business.

Some of our IT services agreements require significant investment in the early stages that is expected to be
recovered through billings over the life of the agreement. These agreements often involve the construction of
new computer systems and communications networks and the development and deployment of new
technologies. Substantial performance risk exists in each agreement with these characteristics, and some or all
elements of service delivery under these agreements are dependent upon successful completion of the
development, construction and deployment phases.

Some of our outsourcing services agreements contain pricing provisions that permit a client to request a
benchmark study by a mutually acceptable third-party. The benchmarking process typically compares the
contractual price of our services against the price of similar services offered by other specified providers in a
peer comparison group, subject to agreed upon adjustment and normalization factors. Generally, if the
benchmarking study shows that our pricing has a difference outside a specified range, and the difference is not
due to the unique requirements of the client, then the parties will negotiate in good faith any appropriate
adjustments to the pricing. This may result in the reduction of our rates for the benchmarked services that could
decrease the revenues and profitability of our IT services business.

Ifwe fail to comply with our customer contracts or government contracting regulations, our revenue could suffer.

Our contracts with our customers may include unique and specialized performance requirements. In particular, our
contracts with federal, state, provincial and local governmental customers are subject to various procurement regulations,
contract provisions and other requirements relating to their formation, administration and performance. Any failure by us to
comply with the specific provisions in our customer contracts or any violation of government contracting regulations could
result in the imposition of various civil and criminal penalties, which may include termination of contracts, forfeiture of profits,
suspension of payments and, in the case of our government contracts, fines and suspension from future government
contracting. In addition, we are currently, and in the future may be, subject to qui tam litigation brought by private individuals
on behalf of the government relating to our government contracts, which could include claims for up to treble damages. Further,
any negative publicity related to our customer contracts or any proceedings surrounding them, regardless of its accuracy, may
damage our business by affecting our ability to compete for new contracts. If our customer contracts are terminated, if we are
suspended from government work, or if our ability to compete for new contracts is adversely affected, we could suffer a material
reduction in expected revenue.

The revenue and profitability of our operations have historically varied, which makes our future financial results less
predictable.

Our revenue, gross margin and profit vary among our products and services, customer groups and geographic markets and
therefore will likely be different in future periods than our current results. Overall gross margins and profitability in any given
period are dependent partially on the product, customer and geographic mixreflected in that period’s net revenue. In particular,
IPGand certain of its business units such as printer supplies contribute significantly to our gross margin and profitability.
Competition, lawsuits, investigations and other risks affecting IPG, therefore may have a significant impact on our overall gross
margin and profitability. Certain segments, and ESS in particular, have a higher fixed cost structure and more variation in gross
margins across their business units and product
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portfolios than others and may therefore experience significant operating profit volatility on a quarterly basis. In addition,
newer geographic markets may be relatively less profitable due to investments associated with entering those markets and local
pricing pressures, and we may have difficulty establishing and maintaining the operating infrastructure necessary to support
the high growth rate associated with some of those markets. Market trends, competitive pressures, commoditization of
products, seasonal rebates, increased component or shipping costs, regulatory impacts and other factors may result in
reductions in revenue or pressure on gross margins of certain segments in a given period, which may necessitate adjustments
to our operations.

We make estimates and assumptions in connection with the preparation of HP's Consolidated Financial Statements, and any
changes to those estimates and assumptions could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

In connection with the preparation of HP's Consolidated Financial Statements, we use certain estimates and assumptions
based on historical experience and other factors. Our most critical accounting estimates are described in "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in this report. In addition, as discussed in Note 17
to the Consolidated Financial Statements, we make certain estimates under the provisions of SFAS No. 5 "Accounting for
Contingencies," including decisions related to provisions for legal proceedings and other contingencies. While we believe that
these estimates and assumptions are reasonable under the circumstances, they are subject to significant uncertainties, some of
which are beyond our control. Should any of these estimates and assumptions change or prove to have been incorrect, it could
have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

Unanticipated changes in HP's tax provisions or exposure to additional income tax liabilities could affect our profitability.

We are subject to income taxes in the United States and numerous foreign jurisdictions. Our tax liabilities are affected by
the amounts we charge for inventory, services, licenses, funding and other items in intercompany transactions. We are subject
to ongoing tax audits in various jurisdictions. Tax authorities may disagree with our intercompany charges or other matters and
assess additional taxes. We regularly assess the likely outcomes of these audits in order to determine the appropriateness of
our tax provision. However, there can be no assurance that we will accurately predict the outcomes ofthese audits, and the
actual outcomes ofthese audits could have a material impact on our net income or financial condition. In addition, our effective
taxrate in the future could be adversely affected by changes in the mix of earnings in countries with differing statutory tax
rates, changes in the valuation of deferred tax assets and liabilities, changes in tax laws and the discovery of new information in
the course of our taxretumn preparation process. In particular, the carrying value of deferred tax assets, which are predominantly
in the United States, is dependent on our ability to generate future taxable income in the United States. Any of these changes
could affect our profitability.

Our sales cycle makes planning and inventory management difficult and future financial results less predictable.

In some of our segments, our quarterly sales often have reflected a pattern in which a disproportionate percentage of each
quarter's total sales occur towards the end of such quarter. This uneven sales pattern makes prediction of revenue, eamings,
cash flow from operations and working capital for each financial period difficult, increases the risk of unanticipated variations in
quarterly results and financial condition and places pressure on our inventory management and logistics systems. If predicted
demand is substantially greater than orders, there will be excess inventory. Altematively, if orders substantially exceed
predicted demand, we may not be able to fulfill all of the orders received in the last few weeks of each quarter. Other
developments late in a quarter, such as a systems failure,
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component pricing movements, component shortages or global logistics disruptions, could adversely impact inventory levels
and results of operations in a manner that is disproportionate to the number of days in the quarter affected.

We experience some seasonal trends in the sale of our products that also may produce variations in quarterly results and
financial condition. For example, sales to governments (particularly sales to the United States government) are often stronger in
the third calendar quarter, consumer sales are often stronger in the fourth calendar quarter, and many customers whose fiscal
and calendar years are the same spend their remaining capital budget authorizations in the fourth calendar quarter prior to new
budget constraints in the first calendar quarter of the following year. European sales are often weaker during the summer
months. Demand during the spring and early summer also may be adversely impacted by market anticipation of seasonal trends.
Moreover, to the extent that we introduce new products in anticipation of seasonal demand trends, our discounting of existing
products may adversely affect our gross margin prior to or shortly after such product launches. Typically, our third fiscal
quarter is our weakest and our fourth fiscal quarter is our strongest. Many of'the factors that create and affect seasonal trends
are beyond our control

Any failure by us to execute on our strategy for operational efficiency successfully could result in total costs and expenses
that are greater than expected.

We have adopted an operating framework that includes a disciplined focus on operational efficiency. As part of this
framework, we have adopted several initiatives, including:

: A multi-year plan announced in the third fiscal quarter of 2006 to consolidate HP's 85 data centers worldwide
into six larger centers located in three U.S. cities and transform our IT infrastructure to improve operational
efficiency and workforce effectiveness and significantly reduce our IT spending;

A multi-year program announced in the third fiscal quarter of 2006 to reduce real estate costs by consolidating
several hundred HP real estate locations worldwide to fewer core sites; and

A multi-year process of examining every function and every one of our businesses and functions in order to
optimize efficiency and reduce cost.

QOur ability to achieve the anticipated cost savings and other benefits from these initiatives within the expected time frame
is subject to many estimates and assumptions, including estimates and assumptions regarding the cost of consolidating the
data centers and real estate locations, the amount of accelerated depreciation or asset impairment to be incurred when we
vacate facilities or cease using equipment before the end of their respective lease term or asset life, and the costs and timing of
other activities in connection with these initiatives. These estimates and assumptions are subject to significant economic,
competitive and other uncertainties, some of which are beyond our control. If these estimates and assumptions are incorrect, if
we experience delays, or if other unforeseen events occur, our business and results of operations could be adversely affected.

In addition, in September 2008, we announced a workforce restructuring program relating to our acquisition of EDS. We
expect that program to involve the elimination of approximately 24,700 positions worldwide through fiscal 2012. We expect to
replace approximately half of these positions in locations that will optimize our global footprint. Significant risks associated with
these actions and other workforce management issues that may impair our ability to achieve anticipated cost reductions or may
otherwise harm our business include delays in implementation of workforce reductions in highly regulated locations outside of
the United States, particularly in Europe and Asia, delays in hiring and integrating new employees, decreases in employee
morale and the failure to meet operational targets due to the loss of employees.
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In order to be successful, we must attract, retain and motivate key employees, and failure to do so could seriously harm us.

In order to be successful, we must attract, retain and motivate executives and other key employees, including those in
managerial, technical, sales, marketing and IT support positions. Hiring and retaining qualified executives, engineers, skilled
solutions providers in the IT support business and qualified sales representatives are critical to our future, and competition for
experienced employees in the IT industry can be intense. The failure to hire executives and key employees or the loss of
executives and key employees could have a significant impact on our operations.

Changes to our compensation and benefit programs could adversely affect our ability to attract and retain employees.

We have historically used stock options and other forms of share-based payment awards as key components of our total
rewards employee compensation program in order to align employees' interests with the interests of our stockholders,
encourage employee retention and provide competitive compensation and benefit packages. Like other companies, HP has
implemented changes to its compensation programs intended to reduce fixed costs, create a high performance culture at all
levels and provide an opportunity for employees to eam significant rewards if HP delivers strong financial results. HP also has
reduced the total number of share-based payment awards granted to employees and the number of employees who receive
share-based payment awards. In addition, effective in fiscal 2008, HP changed its primary form of share-based payment award
to performance-based restricted stock units that contain conditions relating to HP's long-term financial performance and
continued employment by the recipient that may be viewed unfavorably by some employees who are accustomed to the fixed
vesting and other terms historically associated with other forms of share-based payment awards. Due to these changes in our
compensation strategy, combined with the pension and other benefit plan changes undertaken to reduce costs, we may find it
difficult to attract, retain and motivate employees, and any such difficulty could materially adversely affect our business.
Moreover, difficulties relating to obtaining stockholder approval of equity compensation plans could make it harder or more
expensive for us to grant share-based payment awards to employees in the future.

HP's stock price has historically fluctuated and may continue to fluctuate, which may make future prices of HP's stock
difficult to predict.

HP's stock price, like that of other technology companies, can be volatile. Some of the factors that could affect our stock
price are:

* speculation in the press or mvestment community about, or actual changes in, our business, strategic position,
market share, organizational structure, operations, financial condition, financial reporting and results,
effectiveness of cost cutting efforts, value or liquidity of our investments, exposure to market volatility,
prospects, business combination or investment transactions, or executive team;

g the announcement of new products, services, technological innovations or acquisitions by HP or its
competitors;
* quarterly increases or decreases in revenue, gross margin, eamings or cash flow from operations, changes in

estimates by the investment community or guidance provided by HP, and variations between actual and
estimated financialresults;

y announcements of actual and anticipated financial results by HP's competitors and other companies in the IT
industry; and

* the timing and amount of share repurchases by HP.
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General or industry-specific market conditions or stock market performance or domestic or international macroeconomic
and geopolitical factors unrelated to HP's performance also may affect the price of HP common stock. In particular, the stock
market as a whole recently has experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have affected the market price of many
technology companies in ways that may have been unrelated to those companies’ operating performance. For these reasons,
investors should not rely on recent trends to predict future stock prices, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.
In addition, following periods of volatility in a company's securities, securities class action litigation against a company is
sometimes instituted. If instituted against HP, this type of litigation could result in substantial costs and the diversion of
management time and resources.

System security risks and systems integration issues could disrupt our internal operations or information technology services
provided to customers, and any such disruption could reduce our expected revenue, increase our expenses, damage our
reputation and adversely affect our stock price.

Experienced computer programmers and hackers may be able to penetrate our network security and misappropriate our
confidential information or that of third parties, create system disruptions or cause shutdowns. Computer programmers and
hackers also may be able to develop and deploy viruses, worms, and other malicious software programs that attack our
products or otherwise exploit any security vulnerabilities of our products. In addition, sophisticated hardware and operating
system software and applications that we produce or procure from third parties may contain defects in design or manufacture,
including "bugs" and other problems that could unexpectedly interfere with the operation of the system. The costs to us to
eliminate or alleviate security problems, bugs, viruses, worms, malicious software programs and security vulnerabilities could
be significant, and the efforts to address these problems could result in interruptions, delays, cessation of service and loss of
existing or potential customers that may impede our sales, manufacturing, distribution or other critical functions.

Our outsourcing services business routinely processes, stores and transmits large amounts of data for our clients,
including sensitive and personally identifiable information. Breaches of our security measures could expose us, our customers
or the individuals affected to a risk of loss or misuse of this information, resulting in litigation and potential liability for us and
damage to the company's brand and reputation. Accordingly, we could lose existing or potential customers for outsourcing
services or other information technology solutions or incur significant expenses in connection with our customers' system
failures or any actual or perceived security vulnerabilities in our products. In addition, the cost and operational consequences
of implementing further data protection measures could be significant.

Portions of our IT infrastructure also may experience interruptions, delays or cessations of service or produce errors in
connection with systems integration or migration work that takes place from time to time. We may not be successful in
implementing new systems and transitioning data, including our current project to consolidate all of our worldwide IT data
centers into six centers, which could cause business disruptions and be more expensive, time consuming, disruptive and
resource-intensive. Such disruptions could adversely impact our ability to fulfill orders and interrupt other processes. Delayed
sales, lower margins or lost customers resulting fromthese disruptions have adversely affected in the past, and in the future
could adversely affect, our financial results, stock price and reputation.

Any failure by us to identify, manage, complete and integrate acquisitions, divestitures and other significant transactions
successfully could harm our financial results, business and prospects, and the costs, expenses and other financial and
operational effects associated with managing, completing and integrating acquisitions may result in financial results that
are different than expected.

As part of our business strategy, we frequently acquire complementary companies or businesses, divest non-core
businesses or assets, enter into strategic alliances and joint ventures and make investments to further our business
(collectively, "business combination and investment transactions"). In order to pursue this strategy successfilly, we must
identify suitable candidates for and successfully
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complete business combination and investment transactions, some of which may be large and complex, and manage post-
closing issues such as the integration of acquired companies or employees. We may not fully realize all of the anticipated
benefits of any business combination and investment transaction, and the timeframe for achieving benefits of a business
combination and investment transaction may depend partially upon the actions of employees, suppliers or other third parties.
In addition, the pricing and other terms of our contracts for business combination and investment transactions require us to
make estimates and assumptions at the time we enter into these contracts, and, during the course of our due diligence, we may
not identify all of the factors necessary to estimate our costs accurately. Any increased or unexpected costs, unanticipated
delays or failure to achieve contractual obligations could make these transactions less profitable or unprofitable. Moreover, if
we fail to identify and complete successfully business combination and investment transactions that further our strategic
objectives, we may be required to expend resources to develop products and technology internally, we may be at a competitive
disadvantage or we may be adversely affected by negative market perceptions, any of which may have a material adverse effect
on our revenue, gross margin and profitability.

Integration issues are complex, time-consuming and expensive and, without proper planning and implementation, could
significantly disrupt our business. The challenges involved in integration include:

. combining product offerings and entering into new markets in which we are not experienced;

. convincing customers and distributors that the transaction will not diminish client service standards or business
focus, preventing customers and distributors from deferring purchasing decisions or switching to other
suppliers (which could result in our incurring additional obligations in order to address customer uncertainty),
minimizing sales force attrition and coordinating sales, marketing and distribution efforts;

: consolidating and rationalizing corporate IT infrastructure, which may include multiple legacy systems from
various acquisitions and integrating software code;

* minimizing the diversion of management attention from ongoing business concems;

* persuading employees that business cultures are compatible, maintaining employee morale and retaining key
employees, engaging with employee works councils representing an acquired company's non-U.S. employees,
integrating employees into HP, correctly estimating employee benefit costs and implementing restructuring
programs;

. coordinating and combining administrative, manufacturing, research and development and other operations,
subsidiaries, facilities and relationships with third parties in accordance with local laws and other obligations
while maintaining adequate standards, controls and procedures;

* achieving savings from supply chain integration; and
* managing integration issues shortly after or pending the completion of other independent transactions.

Integration and other risks associated with business combination and investment transactions can be more pronounced for
larger and more complicated transactions. For example, in August 2008, we completed our acquisition of EDS, and we are in the
process of integrating EDS into our company. The size of the acquisition of EDS increases both the scope and consequence of
ongoing integration risks. We may not successfully address the integration challenges in a timely manner, or at all, and we may
not fully realize all of the anticipated benefits or synergies of the EDS acquisition. If we fail to realize such anticipated benefits
or synergies, our operating results could be materially adversely affected.

Managing business combination and investment transactions requires varying levels of management resources, which
may divert our attention from other business operations. These business combination
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and investment transactions also have resulted and in the future may result in significant costs and expenses and charges to
eamings, including those related to severance pay, early retirement costs, employee benefit costs, asset impairment charges,
charges fromthe elimination of duplicative facilities and contracts, in-process research and development charges, inventory
adjustments, assumed litigation and other liabilities, legal, accounting and financial advisory fees, and required payments to
executive officers and key employees under retention plans. Moreover, HP has incurred and will incur additional depreciation
and amortization expense over the useful lives of certain assets acquired in connection with business combination and
investment transactions, and, to the extent that the value of goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite lives acquired in
connection with a business combination and investment transaction becomes impaired, we may be required to incur additional
material charges relating to the impairment ofthose assets. In order to complete an acquisition, we may issue common stock,
potentially creating dilution for existing stockholders. In addition, we may borrow to finance an acquisition, including
borrowing to replace the short-term borrowings used to finance our recently completed acquisition of EDS. Although our
current credit ratings have been affirmed by the three independent rating agencies taking into account the borrowing relating to
the EDS acquisition, the amount and terms of any potential future acquisition-related borrowings, as well as other factors, could
affect our liquidity and financial condition and potentially our credit ratings. Any potential future downgrades in our credit
rating associated with an acquisition could adversely affect our ability to borrow and cost of borrowing and result in more
restrictive borrowing terms. In addition, HP's effective taxrate on an ongoing basis is uncertain, and business combination and
investment transactions could impact our effective taxrate. We also may experience risks relating to the challenges and costs of
closing a business combination and investment transaction and the risk that an announced business combination and
investment transaction may not close. As a result, any completed, pending or future transactions may contribute to financial
results that differ from the investment community's expectations in a given quarter.

Unforeseen environmental costs could impact our future net earnings.

We are subject to various federal, state, local and foreign laws and regulations conceming environmental protection,
including laws addressing the discharge of pollutants into the air and water, the management and disposal of hazardous
substances and wastes, the cleanup of contaminated sites, the content of our products and the recycling, treatment and
disposal of our products including batteries. In particular, we face increasing complexity in our product design and procurement
operations as we adjust to new and future requirements relating to the chemical and materials composition of our products,
their safe use, the energy consumption associated with those products and product take-back legislation. We could incur
substantial costs, our products could be restricted from entering certain jurisdictions, and we could face other sanctions, if we
were to violate or become liable under environmental laws or if our products become non-compliant with environmental laws.
Our potential exposure includes fines and civil or criminal sanctions, third-party property damage or personal injury claims and
clean up costs. Further, liability under some environmental laws relating to contaminated sites can be imposed retroactively, on
a joint and several basis, and without any finding of noncompliance or fault. The amount and timing of costs under
environmental laws are difficult to predict.
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Some anti-takeover provisions contained in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws, as well as provisions of Delaware
law, could impair a takeover attempt.

We have provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws, each of which could have the effect of rendering more
difficult or discouraging an acquisition of HP deemed undesirable by our Board of Directors. These include provisions:

authorizing blank check preferred stock, which HP could issue with voting, liquidation, dividend and other rights
superior to our common stock;

limiting the liability of, and providing indemnification to, HP's directors and officers;

specifying that HP stockholders may take action only at a duly called annual or special meeting of stockholders
and otherwise in accordance with our bylaws and limiting the ability of our stockholders to call special meetings;

requiring advance notice of proposals by HP stockholders for business to be conducted at stockholder
meetings and for nominations of candidates for election to our Board of Directors;

requiring a vote by the holders of two-thirds of HP's outstanding shares to amend certain bylaws relating to HP
stockholder meetings, the Board of Directors and indemnification; and

controlling the procedures for conduct of HP Board and stockholder meetings and election, appointment and
removal of HP directors.

These provisions, alone or together, could deter or delay hostile takeovers, proxy contests and changes in control or
management of HP. As a Delaware corporation, HP also is subject to provisions of Delaware law, including Section 203 of the
Delaware General Corporation Law, which prevents some stockholders from engaging in certain business combinations without
approval of the holders of substantially all of HP's outstanding common stock.

Any provision of our certificate of incorporation or bylaws or Delaware law that has the effect of delaying or deterring a
change in control of HP could limit the opportunity for our stockholders to receive a premium for their shares of HP common
stock and also could affect the price that some investors are willing to pay for HP common stock.

ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

Not applicable.

ITEM 2. Properties.

As of October 31, 2008, we owned or leased a total of approximately 85 million square feet of space worldwide. We owned
41% of this space and leased the remaining 59%. These amounts include 26 million square feet of space worldwide, of which
89% is leased and 11% is owned, that we acquired in connection with the EDS acquisition. We believe that our existing
properties are in good condition and are suitable for the conduct of our business.

As of October 31, 2008, HP core sales and support operations occupied approximately 14 million square feet. We own 44%
of the space used for sales and support activities and lease the remaining 56%.

HP core manufacturing plants, research and development facilities and warehouse and administrative facilities occupied
approximately 45 million square feet. We own 57% of our manufacturing, research and development, warehouse and
administrative space and lease the remaining 43%. Our plants are equipped with machinery, most of which we own and which,
in part, we developed to meet the special requirements of our manufacturing processes. At the end of fiscal 2008, we were
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productively utilizing the majority of the space in our facilities and nearing completion of our plan to consolidate our 85 data
centers in existence prior to the EDS acquisition into six larger centers. We are also continuing to execute on our plan to reduce
our real estate costs and increase our productive utilization by consolidating several hundred HP core real estate locations
worldwide in fewer sites, and we have begun disposing of certain duplicate facilities associated with our acquisition of EDS.

As indicated above, we have seven business segments: ESS, HPS, HP Software, PSG, IPG, HPFS, and Corporate
Investments. Because of the interrelation of these segments, a majority of these segments use substantially all of the properties
at least in part, and we retain the flexibility to use each of'the properties in whole or in part for each of the segments.

Principal Executive Offices

Our principal executive offices, including our global headquarters, are located at 3000 Hanover Street, Palo Alto, California,
United States of America.

Headquarters of Geographic Operations
The locations of our headquarters of geographic operations at October 31, 2008 were as follows:

Americas Europe, Middle East, Africa Asia Pacific, including Japan
Houston, Texas Geneva, Switzerland Singapore

Product Development and Manufacturing

The locations of our major product development and manufacturing facilities and HP Labs at October 31, 2008 were as
follows:

Americas Europe, Middle East, Africa Hewlett-Packard Laboratories

Cupertino, Fremont, Palo Alto,
Roseville, San Diego and Woodland, Dublin, Ireland Palo Alto, California
California
Kiryat Gat, Rehovot and Netanya, Israel ~ Beijing, China
Fort Collins and Colorado Springs, Colorado

Amersfoort, The Netherlands Bangalore, India
Boise, Idaho
Erskine, United Kingdom Haifa, Israel
Indianapolis, Indiana
Tokyo, Japan
Andover and Marlboro, Asia Pacific, including Japan
Massachusetts Bristol, United Kingdom
Shanghai, China

Minnetonka, Minnesota

Udham Singh Nagar, India
Corvallis, Oregon

Akishima, Japan
LaVergne and Memphis, Tennessee

Singapore
Houston, Texas

Sandston, Virginia

Vancouver, Washington
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Services

Our services headquarters are located in Plano, Texas. We operate large scale service management centers, or SMCs, to
service our IT outsourcing operations in locations throughout the United States and in Australia, Brazl, Canada, France,
Germany, the Netherlands and the United Kingdom. In addition, we provide applications services from our Solution Centers
located throughout the world.
ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings.

Information with respect to this item may be found in Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, which is
incorporated herein by reference.
ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

Not applicable.
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PART I
ITEM S. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.

Information regarding the market prices of HP common stock and the markets for that stock may be found in the "Quarterly
Summary" in Item 8 and on the cover page of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, respectively, which are incorporated herein by
reference. We have declared and paid cash dividends each fiscal year since 1965. The trend has been to declare $0.16 per share
every first and third quarters and to pay $0.08 per share per quarter. As of November 30, 2008, there were approximately 135,000
stockholders of record. Additional information concermning dividends may be found in "Selected Financial Data" in Item 6 and in
Item 8, which are incorporated herein by reference.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

On September 23, 2008, HP issued 8,018 shares of common stock to Robert Ted Enloe, ITI, a former member of the Board of
Directors of Compaq Computer Corporation, and 7,961 shares of common stock to Balquita Partners, Ltd, a limited partnership
for which Mr. Enloe serves as managing general partner, in connection with the exercise of stock options issued to Mr. Enloe
by Compagq in 1999. The issuance of the shares was exempt from registration under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, as a sale of securities not involving any public offering.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Total Number
of
Shares Approximate
Purchased Dollar Value of
as Part of Shares
Average Publicly that May Yet Be
Total Number Price Announced Purchased under
of Shares Paid Plans or the
Period Purchased per Share Programs Plans or Programs
Month #1
(August 2008) 10,978,741 § 44.78 10,978,741  $ 2,502,814,483
Month #2
(September 2008) 9,326,467 $ 46.68 9,326,467  $10,067,466,703
Month #3
(October 2008) 24,370,897 $ 39.93 24,370,897 $ 9,094,419,838

Total 44,676,105 § 42.53 44,676,105

HP repurchased shares in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 under an ongoing program to manage the dilution created by
shares issued under employee stock plans as well as to repurchase shares opportunistically. This program, which does not
have a specific expiration date, authorizes repurchases in the open market or in private transactions. All shares repurchased in
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 were purchased in open market transactions.

As of October 31, 2008, HP had remaining authorization of approximately $9.1 billion for future share repurchases, including
$1.1 billion remaining under the $8.0 billion repurchase authorization approved by HP's Board of Directors on November 19,
2007 and $8.0 billion under the additional repurchase authorization approved by the Board on September 19, 2008.
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Stock Performance Graph and Cumulative Total Return

The graph below shows the cumulative total stockholder retum assuming the investment of $100 on the date specified
(and the reinvestment of dividends thereafter) in each of HP common stock, the S&P 500 Index, and the S&P Information

Technology Index (D The comparisons in the graph below are based upon historical data and are not indicative of, or intended
to forecast, future performance of our common stock.
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Hewlett-Packard Company 100.00 8493 12942 180.60 24270  180.97

S&P 500 100.00 10942 11896 13840 15856 101.32

S&P Information Technology 100.00 99.14 10452 11490 14581 85.72

& The stock performance graph does not include HP's peer group because peer group information is represented and

included in the S&P Information Technology Index.
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data.

The information set forth below is not necessarily indicative of results of future operations and should be read in

conjunction with Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," and the
Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto included in Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data," of

this Form 10-K, which are incorporated herein by reference, in order to understand further the factors that may affect the

comparability of the financial data presented below.

HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Selected Financial Data

Net revenue
Eamings from operations(l)
Net eamings
Net eamings per share
Basic
Diluted

Cash dividends declared per share
At year-end:
Total assets

Long-term debt

For the fiscal years ended October 31,

2008

2007 2006

2005 2004

$118,364
$ 10,473

$ 8329

$ 335
$ 325
$ 032

$113,331
$ 7676

M Eamings from operations include the following items:

Amortization of purchased intangible assets

Restructuring charges

In-process research and development charges
Pension curtailments and pension settlements, net

Acquisition-related charges
Total charges before taxes

Total charges, net of taxes

36

In millions, except per share amounts

$104,286 $91,658 $86,696 §79,905
$ 8719 $6560 §$ 3473 § 4227

$ 7264 $6198 $2398 $ 3497

$§ 276 $ 223 $ 08 §$ 116
$ 268 $ 218 $ 082 § 115
$§ 032 $ 032 $ 032 § 032

$ 88,699 $81,981 $77317 $76,138
$ 4997 $2490 §$ 3392 § 4,623

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
In millions
$ 97 $78 $604 $ 622 $603
270 387 158 1,684 114
45 190 52 2 37
— (51D — (199 —
41 — — — 54
$1,323 $ 843 § 814 $2,109 3$808
$ 973 $69 $ 604 $1,509 $574
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ITEM 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and the related
notes that appear elsewhere in this document.

OVERVIEW

We are a leading global provider of products, technologies, sofiware, solutions and services to individual consumers,
small- and medium-sized businesses ("SMBs"), and large enterprises, including customers in the public and education sectors.
Our offerings span:

personal computing and other access devices;
g imaging and printing-related products and services;

enterprise information technology infrastructure, including enterprise storage and server technology, and
software that optimizes business technology investments; and

multi-vendor customer services, including technology support and maintenance, consulting and integration and
outsourcing services.

We have seven business segments for financial reporting purposes: Enterprise Storage and Servers ("ESS"), HP Services
("HPS"), HP Software, the Personal Systems Group ("PSG"), the Imaging and Printing Group ("IPG"), HP Financial Services
("HPFS"), and Corporate Investments. ESS, HPS and HP Software arc reported collectively as a broader Technology Solutions
Group ("TSG"). While TSG s not an operating segment, we sometimes provide financial data aggregating the segments within
TSG in order to provide a supplementary view of our business.

The operating framework within which we manage our businesses and which guides our strategies is based on the
disciplined management of three business levers: targeted growth, operational efficiency and strategic deployment of capital.
Although we have made progress towards our goals in recent periods, there are still many areas in which we believe that we
can improve. To implement this operating framework, we are focused on the following initiatives:

. We are engaged in a process of examining every function and every business in the company in order to
optimize efficiency and reduce cost;

We have substantially completed the consolidation of our 85 data centers worldwide in existence prior to our
acquisition of Electronic Data Systems Corporation ("EDS") into sixstate-of-the-art centers in three U.S. cities;

We are consolidating several hundred real estate locations worldwide to fewer core sites in order to reduce our
IT spending and real estate costs;

We are aligning our resources and reinvesting a portion of the cost savings fromthese initiatives to build our
market share in emerging markets and to expand our sales coverage to drive growth in mature markets;

We are developing training programs for our sales forces designed to enhance our ability to provide solutions
to our customers and build customer loyalty;
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HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations (Continued)

y We are building and expanding our services organization, which has been substantially augmented through our
acquisition of EDS, to support ourtechnology businesses and enable us to provide comprehensive solutions to
our customers;

We are developing a global delivery structure to take advantage of regions where advanced technical expertise
is available at lower costs; and

We are repurchasing shares of our common stock under an ongoing program to manage the dilution created by
shares issued under employee stock plans as well as to repurchase shares opportunistically.

On August 26, 2008, we completed our acquisition of EDS, a leading provider of information technology services for
enterprise customers. Accordingly, we have included the results of the business operations acquired from EDS in our
consolidated results of operations beginning on that date. Those business operations have been included as a business unit
within HPS for financial reporting purposes. See Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, which is
incorporated herein by reference, for additional information about the EDS acquisition.

We believe the general strategic benefits from the EDS acquisition will both enhance our competitive position in a number
of important industries by improving the breadth and depth of our service offerings and further increase our extensive
experience in offering solutions to customers in the areas of government, healthcare, manufacturing, financial services, energy,
transportation, communications, and consumer industries and retail. EDS's service offerings coupled with our existing service
offerings provide broad capabilities in infrastructure technology outsourcing, including data center services, workplace
services, networking services and managed security; business process outsourcing, including health claims, financial
processing, CRM and HR outsourcing; and applications outsourcing, including development, modernization and management.

In September 2008, we announced a restructuring plan to gain efficiencies following the EDS acquisition. The restructuring
plan will be implemented over four years and includes a targeted reduction in headcount of approximately 24,700 employees
over that period, with the majority ofthe reductions occurring by the end of fiscal 2009. Our plan includes replacing roughly
half of these positions in order to optimize our global footprint. As part of this plan, we recorded $1.8 billion in restructuring
costs in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, $1.5 billion of which was booked to goodwill and $0.3 billion of which was recorded as
a restructuring charge.

We continue to grow our business organically and through strategic acquisitions. During fiscal 2008, we acquired nine
companies, the largest of which was EDS, and we expect to continue to make strategic acquisitions periodically in the future.
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HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations (Continued)

In terms of how our execution has translated into financial performance, the following provides an overview of our key
fiscal 2008 financial metrics:

TSG
HP HP
Consolidated ESS Hps) Software Total PSG IPG HPFS

In millions, except per share amounts

Net revenue $118364 § 19400 $ 22397 $3,029 $ 4486 $§ 42295 $§ 29385 $ 2,698

Year-over-year net

revenue % increase 13.5% 4.1% 352% 19.7% 18.8% 16.2% 3.2% 15.5%

Eamings from

operations $ 10473 $§ 2577 $ 2491 $ 461 $ 5529 $ 2375 $§ 4590 § 192

Eamings from

operations as a %

of net revenue 8.8% 13.3% 11.1% 15.2% 12.3% 5.6% 15.6% 7.1%

Net eamings $ 8329

Net earnings per share

Basic $ 335

Diluted $ 325

M Includes the results of the business operations acquired from EDS beginning on August 26, 2008.

Cash and cash equivalents at October 31, 2008 totaled $10.2 billion, a decrease of $1.1 billion from the October 31, 2007
balance of $11.3 billion. The decrease for fiscal 2008 was related primarily to $11.2 billion of net cash paid for business
acquisitions, $9.6 billion paid to repurchase our common stock, and $2.6 billion net investments in property, plant and
equipment, all of which were partially offset by $14.6 billion in cash provided from operations, a $6.3 billion net increase in our
outstanding debt and commercial paper and $1.8 billion in proceeds fromthe issuance of our common stock under employee
stock plans.

We intend the discussion of our financial condition and results of operations that follows to provide information that will
assist in understanding our Consolidated Financial Statements, the changes in certain key items in those financial statements
from year to year, and the primary factors that accounted for those changes, as well as how certain accounting principles,
policies and estimates affect our Consolidated Financial Statements.

The discussion of results of operations at the consolidated level is followed by a more detailed discussion of results of
operations by segment.

For a further discussion of trends, uncertainties and other factors that could impact our operating results, see the section
entitled "Risk Factors" in Item 1A, which is incorporated herein by reference.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
General

The Consolidated Financial Statements of HP are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles, which require management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, net revenue and expenses, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Management bases its
estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which formthe basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
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HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations (Continued)

not readily apparent from other sources. Senior management has discussed the development, selection and disclosure of these
estimates with the Audit Committee of HP's Board of Directors. Management believes that the accounting estimates employed
and the resulting balances are reasonable; however, actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions
or conditions.

An accounting policy is deemed to be critical if it requires an accounting estimate to be made based on assumptions about
matters that are highly uncertain at the time the estimate is made, if different estimates reasonably could have been used, or if
changes in the estimate that are reasonably possible could materially impact the financial statements. Management believes the
following critical accounting policies reflect the significant estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Revenue Recognition

We enter into contracts to sell our products and services, and, while the majority of our sales agreements contain standard
terms and conditions, there are agreements that contain multiple elements or non-standard terms and conditions. As aresult,
significant contract interpretation is sometimes required to determine the appropriate accounting, including whether the
deliverables specified in a multiple element arrangement should be treated as separate units of accounting for revenue
recognition purposes, and, if so, how the price should be allocated among the elements and when to recognize revenue for each
element. We recognize revenue for delivered elements only when the delivered elements have standalone value, fair values of
undelivered elements are known, uncertainties regarding customer acceptance are resolved and there are no customer-
negotiated refund or return rights affecting the revenue recognized for delivered elements. Changes in the allocation of the
sales price between elements may impact the timing of revenue recognition but will not change the total revenue recognized on
the contract.

We recognize revenue as work progresses on certain fixed-price contracts, such as consulting arrangements. Using a
proportional performance method, we estimate the total expected labor costs in order to determine the amount of revenue
earned to date. We follow this basis because reasonably dependable estimates of the labor costs applicable to various stages
of a contract can be made. Total contract profit is subject to revisions throughout the life of the contract. We record changes in
revenue to income, as a result of revisions to cost estimates, in the period in which the facts that give rise to the revision
become known.

We recognize revenue on certain design and build (design, development and/or construction of software and/or systems)
projects using the percentage-of-completion method. We use the cost to cost method of measurement towards completion as
determined by the percentage of cost incurred to date to the total estimated costs of the project. In circumstances when
reasonable and reliable cost estimates for a project cannot be made, we recognize revenue using the completed contract
method.

We record estimated reductions to revenue for customer and distributor programs and incentive offerings, including price
protection, promotions, other volume-based incentives and expected returns. Future market conditions and product transitions
may require us to take actions to increase customer incentive offerings, possibly resulting in an incremental reduction of
revenue at the time the incentive is offered. Additionally, certain incentive programs require us to estimate, based on historical
experience, the number of customers who will actually redeemthe incentive.
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HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations (Continued)

Business Combinations

We allocate the purchase price of acquired companies to the tangible assets acquired, liabilities assumed and intangible
assets acquired, including in-process research and development ("IPR&D"), based on their estimated fair values. The excess of
the purchase price over these fair values is recorded as goodwill. We engage independent third-party appraisal firms to assist
us in determining the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Such valuations require management to make
significant estimates and assumptions, especially with respect to intangible assets. The significant purchased intangible assets
recorded by HP include customer contracts, developed and core technology and the Compaq trade name. The fair values
assigned to the identified intangible assets are discussed in detail in Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8.

Critical estimates in valuing certain intangible assets include but are not limited to: future expected cash flows from
customer contracts, customer lists, distribution agreements, and acquired developed technologies and patents; expected costs
to develop IPR&D into commercially viable products and estimating cash flows from projects when completed; Compaq brand
awareness and market position, as well as assumptions about the period of time the brand will continue to be used in HP's
product portfolio; and discount rates. Management's estimates of fair value are based upon assumptions believed to be
reasonable, but which are inherently uncertain and unpredictable and, as a result, actual results may differ from estimates.

Other estimates associated with the accounting for acquisitions may change as additional information becomes available
regarding the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as more fully discussed in Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in Item 8.

Restructuring

We have engaged, and may continue to engage, in restructuring actions, which require management to utilize significant
estimates related to expenses for severance and other employee separation costs, realizable values of assets made redundant or
obsolete, lease cancellation and other exit costs. If the actual amounts differ from our estimates, the amount of the restructuring
charges could be materially impacted. For a full description of our restructuring actions, refer to our discussions of
restructuring in the Results of Operations section and Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, which are
incorporated herein by reference.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

We recognize stock-based compensation expense for all share-based payment awards granted after November 1, 2005 and
granted prior to but not yet vested as of November 1, 2005, in accordance with SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004) "Share-Based
Payment" ("SFAS 123R"). Under the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123R, we recognize stock-based compensation
expense net of an estimated forfeiture rate, recognizing compensation cost for only those shares expected to vest on a straight-
line basis over the requisite service period of the award. Prior to SFAS 123R adoption, we accounted for share-based payment
awards under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees" ("APB 25") and,
accordingly, generally recognized compensation expense only when we granted options with a discounted exercise price.

Determining the appropriate fair value model and calculating the fair value of share-based payment awards require
subjective assumptions, including the expected life of the share-based payment awards and stock price volatility. We utilize the

Black-Scholes option pricing model to value the stock
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options granted under our principal option plans. To implement this model, we examined our historical pattem of option
exercises in an effort to determine if there were any discemable activity patterns based on certain employee populations. From
this analysis, we identified three employee populations on which to apply the Black-Scholes model. We determined that implied
volatility calculated based on actively traded options on HP common stock is a better indicator of expected volatility and future
stock price trends than historical volatility. Therefore, expected volatility used in the Black-Scholes option pricing model in
fiscal years 2008, 2007 and 2006 was based on market-based implied volatility.

We issue performance-based restricted units ("PRUs") representing hypothetical shares of HP common stock. Each PRU
award reflects a target number of shares that may be issued to the award recipient. We determine the actual number of shares
the recipient receives at the end of a three-year performance period based on results achieved versus goals based on our
annual cash flow from operations as a percentage of revenue and average total shareholder returm ("TSR") relative to the
S&P 500 over the performance period. We estimate the fair value of PRUs using the Monte Carlo simulation model, as the TSR
modifier contains a market condition. We update the estimated expense, net of forfeitures, for the cashflow performance against
the goal for that year at the end of each reporting period.

The assumptions used in calculating the fair value of share-based payment awards represent management's best estimates,
but these estimates involve inherent uncertainties and the application of management judgment. As a result, if factors change
and we use different assumptions, our stock-based compensation expense could be materially different in the future. In
addition, we are required to estimate the expected forfeiture rate and recognize expense only for those shares expected to vest.
If our actual forfeiture rate is materially different from our estimate, the stock-based compensation expense could be
significantly different from what we have recorded in the current period. See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in
Item 8 for a further discussion on stock-based compensation.

Taxes on Earnings

We calculate our current and deferred tax provisions based on estimates and assumptions that could differ from the actual
results reflected in our income taxreturns filed during the subsequent year. We record adjustments based on filed returns when
we have identified and finalized them, which is generally in the third and fourth quarters of the subsequent year for U.S. federal
and state provisions, respectively.

We recognize deferred taxassets and liabilities for the expected taxconsequences of temporary differences between the tax
bases ofassets and liabilities and their reported amounts using enacted taxrates in effect for the year in which we expect the
differences to reverse. We record a valuation allowance to reduce the deferred taxassets to the amount that we are more likely
than not to realize. We have considered future market growth, forecasted eamings, future taxable income, the mix of eamings in
the jurisdictions in which we operate and prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in determining the need for a valuation
allowance. In the event we were to determine that we would not be able to realize all or part of our net deferred tax assets in the
future, we would increase the valuation allowance and make a corresponding charge to eamnings in the period in which we make
such determination. Likewise, if we later determine that we are more likely than not to realize the net deferred tax assets, we
would reverse the applicable portion of the previously provided valuation allowance. In order for us to realize our deferred tax
assets we must be able to generate sufficient taxable income in the taxjurisdictions in which the deferred taxassets are located.
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Our effective taxrate includes the impact of certain undistributed foreign earnings for which we have not provided U.S.
taxes because we plan to reinvest such eamings indefinitely outside the United States. We plan foreign earnings remittance
amounts based on projected cash flow needs as well as the working capital and long-term investment requirements of our
foreign subsidiaries and our domestic operations. Based on these assumptions, we estimate the amount we will distribute to the
United States and provide the U.S. federal taxes due on these amounts. Further, as a result of certain employment actions and
capital mvestments HP has undertaken, income from manufacturing activities in certain countries is subject to reduced taxrates,
and in some cases is wholly exempt from taxes, for fiscal years through 2022. Material changes in our estimates of cash, working
capital and long-term investment requirements in the various jurisdictions in which we do business could impact our effective
taxrate.

We are subject to income taxes in the United States and over sixty foreign countries, and we are subject to routine
corporate income taxaudits in many ofthese jurisdictions. We believe that our taxreturn positions are fully supported, but tax
authorities are likely to challenge certain positions, which may not be fully sustained. However, our income taxexpense
includes amounts intended to satisfy income taxassessments that result fromthese challenges in accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in [ncome Taxes, an interpretation
of FASB Statement No. 109" ("FIN 48"). Determining the income tax expense for these potential assessments and recording the
related assets and liabilities requires management judgments and estimates. We evaluate our uncertain tax positions in
accordance with FIN 48. We believe that our reserve for uncertain tax positions, including related interest, is adequate. The
amounts ultimately paid upon resolution of audits could be materially different from the amounts previously included in our
income tax expense and therefore could have a material impact on our tax provision, net income and cash flows. Ourreserve for
uncertain tax positions is attributable primarily to uncertainties conceming the tax treatment of our intemational operations,
inclhiding the allocation of income among different jurisdictions, and related interest. We review our reserves quarterly, and we
may adjust such reserves because of proposed assessments by taxauthorities, changes in facts and circumstances, issuance of
new regulations or new case law, previously unavailable information obtained during the course of an examination,
negotiations between tax authorities of different countries conceming our transfer prices, execution of Advanced Pricing
Agreements, resolution with respect to individual audit issues, the resolution of entire audits, or the expiration of statutes of
limitations. In addition, our tax contingency reserve includes certain amounts for potential tax assessments for pre-acquisition
taxyears of acquired companies which, if released prior to the effective date of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 141 (revised 2007), "Business Combinations" ("SFAS 141(R)"), will impact the carrying value of goodwill attributable to the
acquired company.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We determine our allowance for doubtful accounts using a combination of factors to ensure that we have not overstated
our trade and financing receivables balances due to uncollectibility. We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for all
customers based on a variety of factors, including the use of third-party credit risk models that generate quantitative measures
of default probabilities based on market factors, the financial condition of customers, the length of time receivables are past
due, trends in overall weighted-average risk rating of the total portfolio, macroeconomic conditions, significant one-time events
and historical experience. Also, we record specific provisions for individual accounts when we become aware of a customer's
inability to meet its financial obligations to us, such as in the case of bankruptcy filings or deterioration in the customer's
operating results or financial position. If circumstances related to customers change, we would further adjust our estimates of
the
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recoverability of receivables either upward or downward. The annual general provision for doubtful accounts has averaged
approximately 0.03% of net revenue over the last three fiscal years. Using our third-party credit risk model at October 31, 2008, a
50-basis-point deterioration in the weighted-average default probabilities of our significant customers would have resulted in
an approximately $105 million increase to our trade allowance at the end of fiscal year 2008.

Inventory

We state our inventory at the lower of cost or market. We make adjustments to reduce the cost of inventory to its net
realizable value, if required, at the product group level for estimated excess, obsolescence or impaired balances. Factors
influencing these adjustments include changes in demand, rapid technological changes, product life cycle and development
plans, component cost trends, product pricing, physical deterioration and quality issues. Revisions to these adjustments would
be required if these factors differ from our estimates.

Valuation of Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Purchased Intangible Assets

We review goodwill and purchased intangible assets with indefinite lives for impairment annually and whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable in accordance with SFAS No. 142,
"Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." The provisions of SFAS No. 142 require that we perform a two-step impairment test on
goodwill. In the first step, we compare the fair value of each reporting unit to its carrying value. Our reporting units are
consistent with the reportable segments identified in Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8. We determine
the fair value of our reporting units based on a weighting of income and market approaches. Under the income approach, we
calculate the fair value of a reporting unit based on the present value of estimated future cash flows. Under the market
approach, we estimate the fair value based on market multiples of revenue or earnings for comparable companies. If the fair
value of the reporting unit exceeds the carrying value of the net assets assigned to that unit, goodwill is not impaired and we
are not required to perform further testing. If the carrying value of the net assets assigned to the reporting unit exceeds the fair
value of the reporting unit, then we must perform the second step of the impairment test in order to determine the implied fair
value of the reporting unit's goodwill. If the carrying value of a reporting unit's goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, then we
record an impairment loss equal to the difference. SFAS No. 142 also requires that the fair value of the purchased intangible
assets with indefinite lives be estimated and compared to the carrying value. We estimate the fair value of these intangible
assets using an income approach. We recognize an impairment loss when the estimated fair value of the intangible asset is less
than the camrying value.

Determining the fair value of a reporting unit or an indefinite-lived purchased intangible asset is judgmental in nature and
involves the use of significant estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions include revenue growth rates and
operating margins used to calculate projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rates, assumed royalty rates, future
economic and market conditions and determination of appropriate market comparables. We base our fair value estimates on
assumptions we believe to be reasonable but that are unpredictable and inherently uncertain. Actual future results may differ
fromthose estimates. In addition, we make certain judgments and assumptions in allocating shared assets and liabilities to
determine the carrying values for each of our reporting units.

Our annual goodwill impairment analysis, which we performed during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, did not result in an
impairment charge. The excess of fair value over carrying value for each of
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HP's reporting units as of August 1, 2008, the annual testing date, ranged from approximately $700 million to approximately
$37.9 billion. In order to evaluate the sensitivity of the fair value calculations on the goodwill impairment test, we applied a
hypothetical 10% decrease to the fair values of each reporting unit. This hypothetical 10% decrease would result in excess fair
value over carrying value ranging from approximately $500 million to approximately $33.5 billion for each of HP's reporting units.

Warranty Provision ‘

We provide for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time we recognize revenue. We evaluate our warranty
obligations on a product group basis. Our standard product warranty terms generally include post-sales support and repairs or
replacement of a product at no additional charge for a specified period of time. While we engage in extensive product quality
programs and processes, including actively monitoring and evaluating the quality of our component suppliers, we base our
estimated warranty obligation upon warranty terms, ongoing product failure rates, repair costs, product call rates, average cost
per call, and current period product shipments. If actual product failure rates, repair rates or any other post sales support costs
differ from our estimates, we would be required to make revisions to the estimated warranty liability. Warranty terms generally
range from 90 days to three years parts and labor, depending upon the product. Over the last three fiscal years, the annual
warranty provision has averaged approximately 3.3% of annual net product revenue, while actual annual warranty costs have
averaged approximately 3.1% of annual net product revenue.

Retirement Benefits

Our pension and other post-retirement benefit costs and obligations are dependent on various assumptions. Our major
assumptions relate primarily to discount rates, salary growth, long-termreturn on plan assets and medical cost trend rates. We
base the discount rate assumption on current investment yields of high quality fixed income investments during the retirement
benefits maturity period. The salary growth assumptions reflect our long-term actual experience and future and near-term
outlook. Long-termreturn on plan assets is determined based on historical portfolio results and management's expectation of
the future economic environment, as well as target asset allocations.

In the beginning of fiscal 2008, we implemented a liability-driven investment strategy for the HP U.S. defined benefit
pension plan, which was frozen effective December 31, 2007. As part of the strategy, we have transitioned our investment
allocation for that plan to predominantly fixed income assets. The expected return on the plan assets, used in calculating the net
benefit cost, is 6.10% for fiscal 2009, which reflects this change in our asset allocation policy.

Our medical cost trend assumptions are developed based on historical cost data, the near-term outlook and an assessment
of likely long-term trends. Actual results that differ from our assumptions are accumnlated and are amortized generally over the
estimated future working life of the plan participants.

Our major assumptions vary by plan and the weighted-average rates used are set forth in Note 15 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 8, which is incorporated herein by reference. Each assumption has different sensitivity

characteristics, and, in general, changes, ifany, have moved in the |
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same direction over the last several years. For fiscal 2008, changes in the weighted-average rates for the HP benefit plans would
have had the following impact on our net periodic benefit cost:

. A decrease of 25 basis points in the long-term rate of return would have increased our net benefit cost by
approximately $36 million;

* A decrease of 25 basis points in the discount rate would have increased our net benefit cost by approximatety
$46 million; and

g An increase of 25 basis points in the future compensation rate would have increased our net benefit cost by

approximately $12 million.
RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

As previously reported in our 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K, we recognized the funded status of our benefit plans at
October 31, 2007 in accordance with the recognition provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS")
No. 158, "Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans—An Amendment of FASB
Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R)" ("SFAS 158"). In addition to the recognition provisions, SFAS 158 also requires
companies to measure the funded status of the plan as ofthe date of their fiscal year end, effective for fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2008. We will adopt the measurement provisions of SFAS 158 effective October 31, 2009 for the HP pension and
post retirements plans. We do not expect the adoption of the measurement provisions of SFAS 158 to have a material impact on
our consolidated results of operations and financial condition.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements"” ("SFAS 157"). SFAS 157 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective
for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and is required to be adopted by us in the
first quarter of fiscal 2009. In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position ("FSP") No. FAS 157-1, "Application of
FASB Statement No. 157 to FASB Statement No. 13 and Other Accounting Pronouncements That Address Fair Value
Measurements for Purposes of Lease Classification or Measurement under Statement 13" and also issued FSP No. 157-2,
"Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157," which collectively remove certain leasing transactions from the scope of
SFAS 157 and partially delay the effective date of SFAS 157 for one year for certain nonfinancial assets and liabilities. In
October 2008, the FASB also issued FSP SFAS 157-3, "Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset When the Market for
That Asset Is Not Active," which clarifies the application of SFAS No. 157 in an inactive market and illustrates how an entity
would determine fair value when the market for a financial asset is not active. Although we will continue to evaluate the
application of SFAS 157, we do not currently believe adoption of SFAS 157 will have a material impact on our consolidated
results of operations and financial condition.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities—
Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115" ("SFAS 159"). SFAS 159 allows companies to elect to measure eligible
financial instruments and certain other items at fair value that are not required to be measured at fair value. SFAS 159 requires
that unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected be reported in eamings at each
reporting date. SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and is required to be adopted by us in
the first quarter of fiscal 2009. We do not currently believe adoption will have a
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material impact on our consolidated results of operations and financial condition since we do not expect to apply the fair value
option to any existing eligible assets or lLiabilities.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 141(R). SFAS 141(R) establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer
recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, any noncontrolling
interest in the acquiree and the goodwill acquired in connection with business combinations. SFAS 141(R) also establishes
disclosure requirements to enable the evaluation of the nature and financial effects of the business combination. SFAS 141(R)
is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008 and will be adopted by us in the first quarter of fiscal 2010.
We continue to evaluate the impact that the adoption of SFAS 141(R) will have on our consolidated results of operations and
financial condition, which impact will be largely dependent on the size and nature of the business combinations completed after
the adoption of this statement.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, "Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements—an
amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51" ("SFAS 160"). SFAS 160 establishes accounting and reporting standards
for ownership interests in subsidiaries held by parties other than the parent, the amount of consolidated net income attributable
to the parent and to the noncontrolling interest, changes in a parent's ownership interest, and the valiation of retained
noncontrolling equity investments when a subsidiary is deconsolidated. SFAS 160 also establishes disclosure requirements
that clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of the parent and the interests of the noncontrolling owners.

SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008 and will be adopted by us in the first quarter of fiscal
2010. We are currently evaluating the potential impact, if any, of the adoption of SFAS 160 on our consolidated results of
operations and financial condition.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, "Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 133" ("SFAS 161"). SFAS 161 applies to all derivative instruments and related hedged items
accounted for under SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" ("SFAS 133"). SFAS 161
requires entities to provide greater transparency about how and why an entity uses derivative instruments, how derivative
instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under SFAS 133 and its related interpretations, and how derivative
instruments and related hedged items affect an entity's financial position, results of operations and cash flows. SFAS 161 is
effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008 and will be
adopted by us in the second quarter of fiscal 2009. We do not expect the adoption of SFAS 161 to have a material effect on our
consolidated results of operations and financial condition.

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 162, "The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles”
("SFAS 162"). SFAS 162 identifies the sources of accounting principles and the framework for selecting the principles used in
the preparation of financial statements of nongovernmental entities that are presented in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (the GAAP hierarchy). Statement 162 became effective November 15, 2008. We do not expect the
adoption of SFAS 162 to have a material effect on our consolidated results of operations and financial condition.

In May 2008, the FASB issued FSP Accounting Principles Board ("APB") 14-1 "Accounting for Convertible Debt
Instruments That May Be Settled in Cash upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash Settlement)" ("FSP APB 14-1"). FSP
APB 14-1 requires the issuer of certain convertible debt instruments that may be settled in cash (or other assets) on conversion
to separately account for the
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liability (debt) and equity (conversion option) components of the instrument in a manner that reflects the issuer's non-
convertible debt borrowing rate. FSP APB 14-1 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008 on a retroactive
basis and will be adopted by us in the first quarter of fiscal 2010. We are currently evaluating the potential impact of the
adoption of FSP APB 14-1 on our consolidated results of operations and financial condition.

In June 2008, the FASB issued FSP Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") 03-6-1, "Determining Whether Instruments
Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities.” FSP EITF 03-6-1 clarifies that share-based payment
awards that entitle their holders to receive nonforfeitable dividends or dividend equivalents before vesting should be
considered participating securities. We have some grants of restricted stock that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends
and will be considered participating securities upon adoption of FSP EITF 03-6-1. As participating securities, we will be required
to include these instruments in the calculation of earnings per share ("EPS"), and we will need to calculate EPS using the "two-
class method." The two-class method of computing EPS is an earnings allocation formula that determines EPS for each class of
common stock and participating security according to dividends declared (or accumulated) and participation rights in
undistributed eamings. FSP EITF 03-6-1 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008 on a retrospective basis
and will be adopted by us in the first quarter of fiscal 2010. We are currently evaluating the potential impact, if any, the
adoption of FSP EITF 03-6-1 could have on our calculation of EPS.

In November 2008, the FA SB ratified EITF Issue No. 08-7, " Accounting for Defensive Intangible Assets," ("EITF 08-7").
EITF 08-7 applies to defensive intangible assets, which are acquired intangible assets that the acquirer does not intend to
actively use but intends to hold to prevent its competitors from obtaining access to them. As these assets are separately
identifiable, EITF 08-7 requires an acquiring entity to account for defensive intangible assets as a separate unit of accounting.
Defensive intangible assets must be recognized at fair value in accordance with SFAS 141(R) and SFAS 157. EITF 08-7 is
effective for defensive intangible assets acquired in fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008 and will be adopted by
us in the first quarter of fiscal 2010. We are currently evaluating the potential impact, if any, of the adoption of EITF 08-7 on our
consolidated results of operations and financial condition.

During fiscal 2008, we adopted FIN 48. See Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, which is
incorporated herein by reference, for the effect of applying FIN 48.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion compares the historical results of operations on a GAAP basis for the fiscal years ended
October 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006. As discussed above, we have included the results of the business operations acquired from
EDS in our consolidated results of operations beginning on August 26, 2008, the closing date of the EDS acquisition, and we
have included those business operations as a separate business unit within HPS for financial reporting purposes.
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Results of operations in dollars and as a percentage of net revenue were as follows for the following fiscal years ended

October 31:

Net revenue
Cost of sales(!

Gross profit

Research and development

Selling, general and administrative

Amortization of purchased intangible assets
In-process research and development charges
Restructuring charges

Acquisition-related charges

Pension curtailments and pension settlements, net

Eamings from operations
Interest and other, net

Eamings before taxes
Provision for taxes

Net earnings

2008 2007? 2006
In millions

$118,364  100.0% $104,286  100.0% $91,658  100.0%
89,921 76.0% 78,887 75.6% 69,427 75.7%
28,443 24.0% 25,399 24.4% 22231 24.3%
3,543 3.0% 3,611 3.5% 3,591 3.9%
13,104 11.1% 12,226 11.7% 11,266 12.3%
967 0.9% 783 0.7% 604 0.7%

45 — 190 0.2% 52 —
270 0.2% 387 0.4% 158 0.2%

41 — —_— — — —

— — G17)  05% — —
10,473 8.8% 8,719 84% 6,560 7.2%
—_ — 458 0.4% 631 0.6%
10,473 88% 9,177 88% 17,191 7.8%
2,144 1.8% 1,913 1.8% 993 1.0%
$ 8329 7.0% $ 7,264 7.0% $ 6,198 6.8%

(1 Cost of products, cost of services and financing interest.

2 Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts in order to conform to the current year presentation.

Net Revenue

The components of weighted-average net revenue growth as compared to prior-year periods were as follows for the

following fiscal years ended October 31:

Personal Systems Group

HP Services

Imaging and Printing Group
Enterprise Storage and Servers
HP Software

HP Financial Services
Corporate Investments/Other

Total HP

2008 2007
Percentage
points

5.6 7.9
5.6 1.1
0.9 1.8
0.7 1.5
0.5 1.2
04 0.3
02 —
135 138

|

In fiscal 2008, HP net revenue increased approximately 13% from the prior-year period (8% on a constant currency basis).
The favorable currency impact for fiscal 2008 was due primarily to the
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movement of the dollar against the euro. U.S. net revenue was $36.9 billion for fiscal 2008, an increase of 6% from the prior year,
while international net revenue increased 17% to $81.4 billion.

PSG net revenue increased in fiscal 2008 from fiscal 2007 as a result of a unit volume increase of 22%. The unit volume
increase was the result of strong growth in notebooks with continued strength in emerging markets. The positive revenue
impact from this unit volume increase was moderated by declines in average selling prices ("ASPs") in commercial and
consumer clients of 7% and 4%, respectively.

HPS net revenue increased in fiscal 2008 over the prior year due primarily to the acquisition of EDS on August 26, 2008.
HPS net revenue, excluding EDS, also increased in fiscal 2008 from fiscal 2007 as a result of revenue growth in technology
services primarily from IT solution support services, existing account growth in outsourcing services and base business
growth in our consulting and integration business unit.

IPG net revenue increased in fiscal 2008 from fiscal 2007 due to the growth in supplies net revenue as a result ofhigher unit
volumes with strong performance from color-related products. For fiscal 2008, commercial and consumer hardware net revenues
declined due primarily to competitive pricing pressures and a slowing econony.

ESS net revenue increased in fiscal 2008 over the prior-year period due primarily to strong performance in storage, which
was due in part to growth within our EVA and MSA product lines, and revenue growth in industry standard servers from
increased unit volumes and blade revenues. Fiscal 2008 revenues in business critical systems were flat compared to the prior-
year period.

HP Software net revenue growth in fiscal 2008 from fiscal 2007 was attributable to strong growth in our business
technology optimization ("BTO") business unit resulting fromrevenue increases in support, growth in license revenue, partially
as aresult of our acquisition of Opsware Inc. ("Opsware") in September 2007, and, to a lesser extent, increased services
contract sales.

HPFS net revenue increased in fiscal 2008 from the prior year due primarily to an increase in the mix of operating leases as a
portion of our asset portfolio and growth in average portfolio assets.

In fiscal 2007, HP net revenue increased approximately 14% from the prior-year period (10% on a constant currency basis).
The favorable currency impact for fiscal 2007 was due primarily to the movement of the dollar against the euro. U.S. net revenue
was $34.8 billion for fiscal 2007, an increase of 8% from the prior year, while international net revenue increased 17% to
$69.5 billion.

PSGhad double-digit net revenue growth in fiscal 2007 across all regions as a result of overall unit volume increases of
28%. The unit volume increases resulted from strong growth in notebooks with significant improvements in emerging markets.
The impact of these increases was partially offset by declines in ASPs in commercial and consumer clients of 5% and 1%,
respectively.

HPS net revenue during fiscal 2007 increased due primarily to favorable currency impacts, revenue increases in
outsourcing services driven by existing accounts growth and new business, and revenue increases in consulting and

integration associated with acquisitions made in fiscal 2007.

IPG net revenue growth in fiscal 2007 was due mainly to increased unit volumes of printer supplies resulting from the
continued expansion of printer hardware placements and the strong performance of supplies for color-related products.
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ESS net revenue growth during fiscal 2007 was the result primarily of strong blade revenue and unit growth in our industry
standard servers business, increased option attach rates in our ProLiant server line, continued strong performance in mid-range
EVA products, growth in commercial storage area networks and revenue increases from our Integrity servers. The ESS growth
was partially moderated by the revenue declines in our tape business, high-end arrays and our PA-RISC and Alpha server
product lines during fiscal 2007.

The net revenue growth in HP Software during fiscal 2007 was due primarily to growth in our BTO business as a result of
the acquisition of Mercury Interactive Corporation ("Mercury") and increases in revenue from license and support contracts.

The HPFS net revenue increase during fiscal 2007 was due primarily to operating lease growth and higher end-of-lease
activity.

Gross Margin

The weighted-average components of the change in gross margin as compared to prior-year periods were as follows for the
following fiscal years ended October 31:

2008 2007
Percentage
points

HP Software 0.1 0.6
Enterprise Storage and Servers 0.1) (©.D
Personal Systems Group 0.1) (02
Imaging and Printing Group 0.1) (0.2)
HP Services 0.2) 0.1
HP Financial Services — (0.1
Corporate Investments/Other — —
Total HP (04 01

Total company gross margin decreased slightly in fiscal 2008 from fiscal 2007. On a segment basis, an increase in HP
Software gross margin and a small increase in ESS gross margin were offset by small gross margin declines in HPS and HPFS
and flat gross margin growth across our remaining segments.

For fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007, the improvement in HP Software gross margin was primarily the result of cost
savings in the BTO business unit.

The slight improvement in ESS gross margin in fiscal 2008 from the prior year was primarily a result of improved cost
management and attach rates in industry standard servers.

In fiscal 2008, PSG gross margin remained flat due primarily to declining ASPs offset by an increase in the attach rate of
higher-margin options.

IPG gross margin remained flat in fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007 with improved supplies margins resulting from mix
shifts being offset by unfavorable hardware margins.

HPS gross margin declined in fiscal 2008 from the prior year due primarily to the acquisition of EDS in the fourth quarter.
Without the impact of the EDS acquisition, HPS gross margin would have increased for the fiscal year.
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HPFS gross margin declined slightly in fiscal 2008 due primarily to higher bad debt expenses, the effect of which was
partially offset by increased margins on end-of-lease activity.

Total company gross margin increased slightly in fiscal 2007 from fiscal 2006.

The improvement in HP Software gross margin in fiscal 2007 was due primarily to a favorable change in revenue mixdriven
by the inclusion of revenue from Mercury licenses and support, which typically have a higher gross margin than the other
offerings within the segment.

During fiscal 2007, ESS contributed unfavorably to our total company's weighted-average change in gross margin while the
ESS gross margin remained stable. This stability was due primarily to improved cost management, which was offset by an
ongoing mix shift to lower-margin Integrity products within business critical systems and a continued mix shift towards
industry standard servers.

During fiscal 2007, PSG contributed unfavorably to our total company's weighted-average change in gross margin as a
result of higher growth than the other segments. However, PSG gross margin increased primarily as a result of component cost
declines and improvements in supply chain costs per unit, which were partially offset by ASP declines.

During fiscal 2007, IPG gross margin decreased due primarily to unfavorable hardware margins, increased costs associated
with new product introductions and a change in product mix.

HPS gross margin increased during fiscal 2007 from fiscal 2006 due primarily to continued focus on cost structure
improvements from delivery efficiencies and cost controls. This gross margin increase was partially offset by the impact from
the continued competitive pricing environment.

HPFS gross margin decline during fiscal 2007 was caused primarily by increased bad debt expenses and lower bad debt
recoveries, as well as lower margins on leases and used equipment sales.

Operating Expenses
Research and Development

Total research and development ("R&D") decreased in fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007, due primarily to effective
cost controls, the effect of which was partially offset by the unfavorable currency impacts related to the movement of the dollar
against the euro. Fach of our major segments experienced a year-over-year decrease in R&D expense as a percentage of net
revenue i fiscal 2008.

Total R&D expense increased in fiscal 2007 due primarily to additional R&D expense as a result of the Mercury acquisition
in the first quarter of fiscal 2007. As a percentage of net revenue, each of our major segments experienced a year-over-year
decrease in R&D expense in fiscal 2007.

Selling, General and Administrative

Total selling, general and administrative ("SG&A") expense increased in fiscal 2008 due primarily to higher field selling
costs as a result of our investments in sales resources, unfavorable currency impacts related to the movement of the dollar
against the euro, and additional expenses related to the EDS acquisition. Each of our major segments experienced a year-over-
year decrease in SG&A expense as a percentage of net revenue during fiscal 2008.

Total SG&A expense increased during fiscal 2007 due primarily to additional expense as a result of the acquisition of
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HPS, PSGand IPG segments experienced a year-over-year decrease in SG&A expense as a percentage of net revenue during
fiscal 2007, while HP Software experienced a year-over-year increase in SG&A expense.

Amortization of Purchased Intangible Assets

The increase in amortization expense during fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007 was due primarily to amortization
expenses related to the EDS acquisition as well as other acquisitions made in fiscal 2008.

The increase in amortization expense in fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006 was due primarily to amortization expense
related to the acquisition of Mercury in the first quarter of fiscal 2007. This increase was partially offset by a decrease in
amortization expense related to certain intangible assets associated with prior acquisitions, including the Compaq Computer
Corporation ("Compaq") acquisition, that had reached the end of their amortization period.

For more information on our amortization of purchased intangibles assets, see Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in Item 8, which is incorporated herein by reference.

In-Process Research and Development Charges

We record in-process research and development ("IPR&D") charges in connection with acquisitions accounted for as
business combinations as more fully described in Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8. In fiscal 2008, 2007
and 2006 we recorded IPR&D charges of $45 million, $190 million and $52 million, respectively, related to acquisitions. The
decrease in [PR&D in fiscal 2008 was due primarily to higher IPR&D expenses in the prior year as a result of our acquisition of
Mercury in the first quarter of fiscal 2007.

Restructuring Charges

Restructuring charges for fiscal 2008 were $270 million, which included $246 million of charges due primarily to severance
and facility costs related to the EDS acquisition and a net charge of $24 million relating to adjustments for existing restructuring
programs.

Restructuring charges for fiscal 2007 were $387 million, which included $354 million of expenses related to severance and
other benefit costs associated with those employees who elected to participate in the early retirement program implemented in
fiscal 2007 and a net charge of $33 million relating to adjustments to our previous restructuring programs.

Restructuring charges in fiscal year 2006 were $158 million. This included a net charge of $233 million related to true-ups of
severance and other related restructuring charges for all restructuring plans, a $6 million termination benefits expense and a
$3 million settlement and curtailment loss from our non-U.S. pension plans related to the fiscal 2005 restructuring plan approved
by our Board of Directors in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005. These charges were partially offset by a $46 million settlement
gain fromthe U.S. pension plans, a $24 million curtailment gain from the U.S. retiree medical program and a $14 million
adjustment to reduce our non-cash stock-based compensation expense, all related to our fiscal 2005 restructuring plan.

For more information on our restructuring charges, see Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, which is
incorporated herein by reference.
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Workforce Rebalancing
As part of our ongoing business operations, we incurred workforce rebalancing charges for severance and related costs
within certain business segments in fiscal 2008. Workforce rebalancing activities are considered part of normal operations as we
continue to optimize our cost structure. Workforce rebalancing costs are included in our business segment results, and we
expect to incur additional workforce rebalancing costs in the future.

Acquisition-related Charges

In fiscal 2008, we recorded acquisition-related charges of $41 million for consultant integration costs and retention bonuses
associated with our acquisition of EDS.

Pension Curtailments and Pension Settlements, Net

In fiscal 2007, we recognized a net gain on pension curtailments and settlements of $517 million, relating primarily to a
$542 million curtailment gain associated with a modification to our U.S. defined benefit pension plan and post-retirement benefit
plan. This curtailment gain was offset partially by net settlement losses related to our other pension plan design changes.

For more information on our retirement and post-retirement benefit plans, see Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in Item 8, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Interest and Other, Net

Interest and other, net decreased by $458 million in fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007. The decrease resulted primarily
from currency losses on balance sheet remeasurement items and lower interest income as a result of lower interest rates, the
effect of which was partially offset by lower interest expense. Additionally, the prior-year period benefited from higher gains
fromthe sale of real estate.

Interest and other, net decreased by $173 million in fiscal 2007 from fiscal 2006. The decrease was due primarily to higher
interest expense resulting from higher average debt balances. Net gains on investment in fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 resulted
primarily from gains on the sale of equity investments, which were offset in part by impairment charges on our investment
portfolio.

Provision for Taxes
Our effective taxrates were 20.5%, 20.8% and 13.8% in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The decrease in the overall taxrate in fiscal 2008 from fiscal 2007 was related in part to lower tax rates in other jurisdictions.
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The increase in the overall taxrate in fiscal 2007 from fiscal 2006 was related in part to favorable income taxadjustments of
$599 million recorded in fiscal 2006, which included net favorable tax adjustments of $565 million to income taxaccruals as a
result of the settlement of the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") examinations of our U.S. income taxreturns for fiscal years 1993
to 1998. The reductions to the net income taxaccruals for these years related primarily to the resolution of issues with respect
to Puerto Rico manufacturing tax incentives and export tax incentives, and other issues involving our non-U.S. operations.

For a full reconciliation of our effective tax rate to the U.S. federal statutory rate of 35% and further explanation of our
provision for taxes, see Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Segment Information

A description of the products and services, as well as financial data, for each segment can be found in Note 18 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, which is incorporated herein by reference. We have realigned segment financial
data for the fiscal years ended October 31, 2007 and 2006 to reflect changes in HP's organizational structure that occurred at the
beginning of the first quarter of fiscal 2008. We describe these changes more fully in Note 18. We have presented the business
segments in this Annual Report on Form 10-K based on the distinct nature of various businesses such as customer base,
homogenity of products and technology. The discussions below include the results of each of our segments.

Technology Solutions Group

ESS, HPS and HP Software are reported collectively as a broader Technology Solutions Group. We describe the results of
the business segments of TSGin more detail below.

Enterprise Storage and Servers

For the fiscal years ended

October 31
2008 2007 2006
In millions
Net revenue $19400 $18,639 $17211
Eamings from operations $ 2577 $ 2,148 $ 1,557
Eamnings from operations as a % of net revenue 13.3% 11.5% 9.0%

The components of weighted-average net revenue growth as compared to prior-year periods by business unit were as
follows for the following fiscal years ended October 31:

2008 2007
Percentage
points
Storage 2.7 0.8
Industry standard servers 1.5 8.1
Business critical systems 0.1) (0.6)
Total ESS 4.1 83

ESS net revenue increased 4.1% (decreased 0.5% when adjusted for currency) in fiscal 2008 from fiscal 2007. Storage net
revenue increased 13% in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007, with strong
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performance in mid-range EVA, entry MSA, tape media and storage software. Industry standard servers net revenue grew 2%
in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 as a result of growth in blade revenue and unit volumes. Revenue growth in the industry
standard servers business was partially offset by the decline in average unit prices driven by market movement to low-end
product lines and component cost declines. Business critical systems net revenue growth was flat in fiscal 2008 compared to
fiscal 2007. Integrity servers net revenue grew 22% in fiscal 2008 and represents 79% of the business critical systems revenue
mix, up from 64% in fiscal 2007. The increase was offset by revenue declines in the PA-RISC product line and the planned
phase-out of our Alpha Server product line. The contribution of Integrity server revenue to the business critical systems
revenue mixis currently within the range expected in future periods. Integrity servers revenue in fiscal 2008 also included
revenue from Montvale-based Integrity servers.

In fiscal 2008, ESS eamnings from operations as a percentage of net revenue increased by 1.8 percentage points compared
to fiscal 2007, due primarily to a decrease in operating expenses as a percentage of net revenue. Gross margin increased slightly
in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 due primarily to cost management and improved attach rates in industry standard servers,
the effect of which was mostly offset by competitive pricing in storage and industry standard servers and a mix shift to entry
level integrity servers. The decrease in operating expense as a percentage of net revenue in fiscal 2008 was due primarily to
continued cost structure improvements.

ESS net revenue increased 8.3% (4.8% when adjusted for currency) in fiscal 2007 from fiscal 2006. Industry standard
servers revenue grew 14% in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 as a result of strong growth in blade revenue and units, as well
as increased option attach rates in the ProLiant server line. Storage net revenue increased 4% in fiscal 2007 compared to
fiscal 2006, with the increase driven primarily by mid-range EVA products and commercial products within the storage area
networks offerings, as well as improved revenue growth in storage software. This increase was partially moderated by the
revenue declines in our tape business and high-end arrays. Business critical systems net revenue decreased 3% in fiscal 2007
compared to fiscal 2006. The decrease was due primarily to revenue declines in the PA-RISC product line and the planned
phase out of our Alpha server product line. The declines were partially offset by strong net revenue growth in our Integrity
servers, which represented 64% ofthe business critical systems revenue mix in fiscal 2007, up from 37% in fiscal 2006. We
expect revenue mix from Integrity servers to continue to grow as customers migrate from PA-RISC and Alpha products.

In fiscal 2007, ESS earnings from operations as a percentage of net revenue increased by 2.5 percentage points compared
to fiscal 2006, due primarily to a decrease in operating expenses as a percentage of net revenue. Gross margin remained stable in
fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 due primarily to improved cost management. The improved cost management was offset by
an ongoing mixshift to lower-margin integrity products within business critical systems and a continued mix shift towards
industry standard servers. The decrease in operating expense as a percentage of net revenue in fiscal 2007 was due primarily to
cost structure improvements.
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HP Services

For the fiscal years ended October 31

2008 2007 2006
In millions
Net revenue $22,397 $16,570  $15,578
Earnings from operations $ 2,491 $ 1,787 $ 1,498
Eamings from operations as a % of net revenue 11.1% 10.8% 9.6%

The components of weighted-average net revenue growth as compared to prior-year periods by business unit were as
follows for the following fiscal years ended October 31:

2008 2007
Percentage
points
eps(H 233 N/A
Technology services 53 1.9
Outsourcing services 4.6 28
Consulting and integration 2.0 1.7
Total HPS 352 6.4

M Represents the business operations acquired through our acquisition of EDS.

HPS net revenue increased 35.2% over the prior year (29.1% when adjusted for currency), primarily due to the acquisition
of EDS on August 26, 2008. The consolidated statements of earnings include the results of EDS since the date of acquisition.
EDS net revenue includes revenue from infrastructure outsourcing services, applications services and business process
outsourcing services, which accounted for approximately 56%, 30% and 14% of revenues, respectively. HPS net revenue,
excluding EDS, increased 11.9% over the prior year (5.8% when adjusted for currency). Net revenue in technology services
increased 10% in fiscal 2008 from the prior year due primarily to growth in IT solution support services, extended warranty
revenue and favorable currency impacts, the impact of which was partially offset by competitive pricing pressures. Net revenue
in outsourcing services increased 16% in fiscal 2008 due primarily to existing account growth, favorable currency impacts and
new business, which were partially offset by installed base revenue erosion and pricing pressures. Net revenue in consulting
and integration increased 11% in fiscal 2008 from the prior year due mainly to favorable currency impacts, base business growth
and additional revenue fromrecent acquisitions.

HPS eamnings from operations as a percentage of net revenue in fiscal 2008 increased 0.3 percentage points. The operating
margin increase was the result of a decrease in operating expenses as a percentage of net revenue, which was partially offset by
a decrease in gross margin. In fiscal 2008, continued efficiency improvements in our operating expense structure contributed to
the decline in operating expenses as a percentage of net revenue compared to the prior year. Technology services operating
margin in fiscal 2008 continued to benefit from improved delivery efficiencies and cost controls, the impact of which was
partially offset by the ongoing portfolio mix shift from higher-margin proprietary support to lower-margin areas such as
IT solution services. Outsourcing services operating margin increased in fiscal 2008 due primarily to increased volume, cost
controls and favorable currency impacts, the effect of which was partially offset by installed base contract erosion and pricing
pressures. Consulting and integration operating margin increased in fiscal 2008 due mainly to favorable currency impacts and
business growth.
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HPS net revenue increased 6.4% in fiscal 2007 from fiscal 2006 (2.6% when adjusted for currency). In fiscal 2007, the
favorable currency impact was due primarily to the movement of the dollar against the euro. Net revenue in technology services
increased 4% in fiscal 2007 from the prior year due primarily to favorable currency impacts, growth in the IT solution support
services and extended warranty revenue, the impact of which was partially offset by competitive pricing pressures and revenue
erosion from installed base contracts. Net revenue in outsourcing services increased 10% in fiscal 2007 from the prior year. The
increase was driven mainly by favorable currency impacts, existing account growth and new business, which were partially
offset by installed base revenue erosion and pricing pressures. Net revenue in consulting and integration increased 9% in
fiscal 2007 from the prior year due mainly to acquisitions made in fiscal 2007 and favorable currency impacts.

HPS earnings from operations as a percentage of net revenue in fiscal 2007 increased by 1.2 percentage points. The
operating margin increase was the result of an increase in gross margin and a decrease in operating expenses as a percentage of
net revenue. The gross margin increase in fiscal 2007 was due primarily to the continued focus on cost structure improvements
generated by delivery efficiencies and cost controls, the impact of which was partially offset by the impact from the continued
competitive pricing environment. In fiscal 2007, continued efficiency improvements in our operating expense structure
contributed to the decline in operating expenses as a percentage of net revenue compared to the prior year. Technology
services operating margin in fiscal 2007 continued to benefit from improved delivery efficiencies and cost controls, the impact
of which was offset in part by the impact of the ongoing portfolio mix shift from higher margin proprietary support to lower
margin areas such as IT solution services. Qutsourcing services operating margin increased in fiscal 2007 due primarily to
improved delivery efficiencies and reduced operating expenses partially offset by contractual pricing pressure. Consulting and
integration operating margin decreased in fiscal 2007 due mainly to increased customer project losses and acquisition related
costs, the impact of which was partially offset by more efficient utilization of our consultants and operating expense
improvement.

HP Software
For the fiscal years ended October 31
2008 2007 2006
In millions
Net revenue $3,029 $2,531 $1,437
Eamings (loss) from operations $ 461 $ 221 $ an
Eamings (loss) from operations as a % of net revenue 15.2% 8.7% (1.2)%
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The components of weighted-average net revenue growth as compared to the prior-year periods by business unit were as
follows for the following fiscal years ended October 31:

2008 2007
Percentage
points
Business technology optimizationt!) 195 776
Other software(!) 0.2 (1.5)
Total HP Software 197 761

(1) Effective in fiscal 2008 the OpenView business unit was renamed "Business technology optimization” ("BTO") and the
OpenCall and Other business unit was renamed "Other software." The renamed "Other software” business unit includes
primarily OpenCall and business information optimization products.

HP Software net revenue increased 19.7% (14.4% when adjusted for currency) in fiscal 2008 from fiscal 2007. Net revenue
from BTO increased 25% in fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007. BTO net revenue growth in fiscal 2008 was driven by
increases in support, higher license revenue due in part to the Opsware acquisition, and increases in services contracts. Net
revenue from Other software increased by 1% in fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007. The growth in Other software net
revenue in fiscal 2008 was attributable primarily to the growth in the information management business due in part to our
acquisition of Tower Software in May 2008, when growth was partially offset by a decline in OpenCall net revenue resulting
from a competitive environment following industry consolidation and the transfer of some hardware revenues to ESS due to a
platform shift.

HP Software earnings from operations as a percentage of net revenue increased by 6.5 percentage points in fiscal 2008 as
compared to fiscal 2007. The operating margin increase in fiscal 2008 was the result of a combination of an increase in gross
margin and a decrease in operating expenses as a percentage of net revenue. The increase in gross margin in fiscal 2008 was
due primarily to cost savings in the BTO business, cost structure improvements as a result of increased scale in the information
management business and, to a lesser extent, a favorable change in the revenue mixdriven by higher revenues fromthe BTO
business, which typically has higher gross margins than the remainder of the segment. The decrease in operating expenses as a
percentage of net revenue in fiscal 2008 was due primarily to continued cost controls, the effect of which was partially offset by
increased field selling costs driven by sales force investments.

HP Software net revenue increased 76.1% (72.8% when adjusted for currency) in fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006. The
favorable currency impact was due primarily to the movement ofthe dollar against the euro. Excluding the results of Mercury,
HP Software's revenue grew 9.6% in fiscal 2007. Net revenue associated with the acquisition of Mercury was included in the
results of BTO, which increased 125% in fiscal 2007 and 18% in the same respective period without Mercury. BTO net revenue
growth also was the result of increases in revenue from license and support contracts. Net revenue for Other software
decreased 4% in fiscal 2007. The decrease in Other software net revenue was due primarily to a platform shift that resulted in a
transfer of the hardware revenue to ESS.

The operating margin improvement of 9.9 percentage points in fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006 was the result
primarily of an increase in gross margin and to a lesser degree a decrease in operating expense as a percentage of net revenue.
In fiscal 2007, the improvement in gross margin was a result of a favorable change in revenue mixdriven by the inclusion of
revenue from Mercury licenses
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and support, which typically have a higher gross margin than the other offerings in the segment, and to a lesser degree by more
effective management of the support costs for BTO and Other software. Operating expense as a percentage of net revenue in
fiscal 2007 decreased due primarily to cost controls and synergy savings from the Mercury acquisition.

Personal Systems Group

For the fiscal years ended

October 31
2008 2007 2006
In millions
Net revenue $42,295 $36,409 $ 29,166
Earnings from operations $2375 $ 1939 § 1,152
Eamnings from operations as a % of net revenue 5.6% 5.3% 3.9%

The components of weighted-average net revenue growth as compared to prior-year periods by business unit were as
follows for the following fiscal years ended October 31:

2008 2007
Percentage
points

Notebook PCs 13.8 19.3
Desktop PCs 2.0 43
Workstations 0.5 1.2
Handhelds 05 (0.4
Other 04 04
Total PSG T162 2438

PSG net revenue increased 16.2% (10.8% when adjusted for currency) in fiscal 2008 from fiscal 2007. Unit volumes
increased by 22% in fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007. The unit volume increase was the result of strong growth in
notebooks, with continued strength in emerging markets. In fiscal 2008, net revenue for notebook PCs increased 28% while net
revenue for desktop PCs increased 5% from the prior-year period. In fiscal 2008, net revenue for consumer clients increased
19%, while net revenue for commercial clients increased 15% from the prior-year period. The net revenue increase in Other PSG
in fiscal 2008 was related primarily to increased sales of third-party branded options and extended warranties. The revenue
increase was partially offset by a decline in handhelds revenue driven by product transition within converged devices. In fiscal
2008, the positive revenue impact from the PSG unit volume increase compared to fiscal 2007 was also moderated by a 7%
decline in commercial client ASPs and a 4% decline in consumer client ASPs. ASPs declined fromthe prior year as a result of
price erosion related to component cost reductions and a competitive pricing environment, the effect of which was partially
offset by an increased notebook mixand improved attach rates for monitors and other options.

PSG earnings from operations as a percentage of net revenue increased by 0.3 percentage points in fiscal 2008 from fiscal
2007 as a result of a decrease in operating expenses as a percentage of net revenue combined with a flat gross margin. Gross
margin performance was a result of declining ASPs offset by an increase in the attach rate of higher-margin options. The
operating expense decline as a percentage of net revenue in fiscal 2008 was the result primarily of the increased net revenue and
continued efforts to improve our cost structure through efficiency measures.
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PSGnet revenue increased 24.8% (20.6% when adjusted for currency) in fiscal 2007 from fiscal 2006. Unit volumes
increased by 28% in fiscal 2007, driving double-digit net revenue growth across all regions. The unit volume increase was the
result of strong growth in notebooks, with significant improvements in emerging markets. In fiscal 2007, net revenue for
notebook PCs increased 47% while net revenue for desktop PCs increased 9% from the prior-year period. In fiscal 2007, net
revenue for consumer clients increased 39%, while net revenue for commercial clients increased 16% from the prior-year period.
The net revenue increase in Other PSG in fiscal 2007 was related primarily to improvements in extended warranty sales. The
revenue increase was partially offset by decreases in handhelds revenue due to declines in the PDA product market, which
were partially offset by our new converged device and travel companion products. In fiscal 2007, the positive revenue impact
from the PSG unit volume increase compared to fiscal 2006 was also moderated by a 5% decline in commercial client ASPs and a
1% decline in consumer client ASPs. The decline in ASPs fromthe prior year was a result of price erosion related to component
cost reductions, the impact of which was partially offset by increased notebook mix and monitor attach rates.

PSG eamings from operations as a percentage of net revenue increased by 1.4 percentage points in fiscal 2007 from fiscal
2006 as a result of decreases in operating expenses as a percentage of net revenue coupled with an increase in gross margin.
The increased gross margin was primarily a result of component cost declines and improvements in supply chain costs per unit,
the impact of which was partially offset by ASP declines. The operating expense decline as a percentage of net revenue in fiscal
2007 was the result primarily ofthe increased net revenue and continued efforts to improve our cost structure through
efficiency measures.

Imaging and Printing Group

For the fiscal years ended

October 31
2008 2007 2006
In millions
Net revenue $29,385 $28465 $ 26,786
Eamings from operations $4590 §$ 4315 § 3978
Eamings from operations as a % of net revenue 15.6% 15.2% 14.9%

The components of weighted-average net revenue growth as compared to prior-year periods by business unit were as
follows for the following fiscal years ended October 31:

2008 2007
Percentage
points
Supplies 52 5.7
Commercial hardware 02) 05
Consumer hardware (1.8) 0.1
Total IPG 3.2 6.3

IPG net revenue increased 3.2% (decreased 1.1% when adjusted for currency) in fiscal 2008 from fiscal 2007. The growth in
printer supplies net revenue in fiscal 2008 from fiscal 2007 reflected higher unit volumes of supplies as a result of the strong
performance of color-related products. The decrease in commercial hardware net revenue in fiscal 2008 from fiscal 2007 was due
mainly to competitive pricing pressures, the effect of which was partially offset by unit volume growth in multifunction printers,
color laser printers and large format printing products and revenue fromrecent acquisitions.
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The decrease in consumer hardware net revenue in fiscal 2008 from fiscal 2007 was due primarily to discontinued sales of
cameras, competitive pricing pressures and lower unit volumes of consumer hardware as a result of slower growth in the overall
consumer printer market. Both consumer and commercial hardware were impacted by the continued shift in demand to lower-
priced products and a slowing economy, which caused average revenue per unit in each category to decline.

IPGeamings from operations as a percentage of net revenue increased by 0.4 percentage points in fiscal 2008 fromthe
prior fiscal year. The operating margin improvement in fiscal 2008 was due to lower operating expenses as a percentage of net
revenue. In fiscal 2008, the gross margin remained flat driven by improved margins for supplies as a result of product mix, the
effect of which was offset by unfavorable hardware margins. The decrease in operating expenses as a percentage of net
revenue in fiscal 2008 was due primarily to higher revenue and continued cost controls, the effect of which was partially offset
by increased investments in our enterprise printing sales force.

IPGnet revenue increased 6.3% (4.3% when adjusted for currency) in fiscal 2007 from fiscal 2006. The favorable currency
impact was due primarily to the movement of the dollar against the euro in fiscal 2007. The growth in printer supplies net
revenue in fiscal 2007 from fiscal 2006 reflected higher unit volumes of supplies as a result of the continued expansion of printer
hardware placements and the strong performance of supplies for color-related products. The growth in commercial hardware net
revenue in fiscal 2007 was attributable mainly to unit volume growth in multifunction printers and revenue from our digital press
and large format printing products. The slight increase in consumer hardware net revenue in fiscal 2007 was attributable to
increased unit volumes, improved average revenue per unit performance and a mixshift from single function products to All-in-
Ones, the impact of which was partially offset by the continued shift in demand to lower priced products and strategic pricing
decisions.

IPG eamnings from operations as a percentage of net revenue increased by 0.3 percentage points in fiscal 2007 from fiscal
2006, driven by a decrease in operating expenses as a percentage of net revenue that was partially offset by a decrease in gross
margin. Gross margin decreased due primarily to unfavorable hardware margins, increased costs associated with new product
introductions and a change in product mix. Operating expenses as a percentage of net revenue decreased due primarily to
higher prior-year research and development expenses associated with product introduction costs, coupled with higher revenue
and more effective spending controls.

HP Financial Services
For the fiscal years ended
October 31
2008 2007 2006

In millions
Net revenue $2,698 $2,336 $ 2,078
Eamings from operations $ 192 $ 155 $ 147
Eamings from operations as a % of net revenue 7.1% 6.6% 7.1%

HPFS net revenue increased by 15.5% in fiscal 2008 from fiscal 2007. The net revenue increase was due primarily to a shift
towards operating leases from financing leases in the overall portfolio asset mix, higher average portfolio assets during the
year, higher end-of-lease activity and a favorable currency impact.
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HPFS eamings from operations as a percentage of net revenue increased by 0.5 percentage points in fiscal 2008 from fiscal
2007 due primarily to a decrease in operating expenses as a percentage of net revenue and increased margin on end-of lease
activity, the effect of which was offset by higher bad debt expenses and lower portfolio margins due to higher operating leases
in the portfolio asset mix. The operating expense decrease as a percentage of revenue is driven by a higher rate of increase in
revenues relative to operating expenses due to higher operating lease mix of the portfolio and continued cost controls.

HPFS net revenue increased by 12.4% in fiscal 2007 from fiscal 2006. The net revenue increase was due primarily to
operating lease growth and higher end-of-lease activity. The financing lease growth and increased used equipment sales, to a
lesser extent, also contributed to the revenue growth.

HPFS eamnings from operations as a percentage of net revenue decreased by 0.5 percentage point in fiscal 2007 from fiscal
2006 due primarily to a decrease in gross margin, which was partially offset by a decrease in operating expense as a percentage
of net revenue. The gross margin decrease was driven primarily by increased bad debt expenses and lower bad debt recoveries,
as well as lower margins on leases and used equipment sales. The decline in operating expenses as a percentage of net revenue
was due to continued cost controls.

Financing Originations

For the fiscal years ended October 31

2008 2007 2006
In millions
Total financing originations $4,872 $4,441 $ 3,994

New financing originations, which represent the amounts of financing provided to customers for equipment and related
software and services, and include intercompany activity, increased 9.7% in fiscal 2008 from fiscal 2007 and 11.2% in fiscal 2007
from fiscal 2006. The increases reflect higher financing associated with HP product sales resulting from improved integration
and engagement with HP's sales efforts and a favorable currency impact.

Portfolio Assets and Ratios

HPFS maintains a strategy to generate a competitive retum on equity by effectively leveraging its portfolio against the
risks associated with interest rates and credit. The HPFS business model is asset-intensive and uses certain internal metrics to
measure its performance against other financial services companies, including a segment balance sheet that is derived from our
internal management reporting system. The accounting policies used to derive these amounts is substantially the same as
those used by the consolidated company. However, certain intercompany loans and accounts that are reflected in the segment
balances are eliminated in our Consolidated Financial Statements.
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The portfolio assets and ratios derived fromthe segment balance sheet for HPFS were as follows for the following fiscal
years ended October 31:

2008 2007
In millions
Portfolio assets(!) $8,297 $8,415
Allowance for doubtful accounts C 90 84
Operating lease equipment reserve 60 49
Total reserves T 150 133
Net portfolio assets W m
Reserve coverage ﬁ% =1.6%
Debt to equity ratio(?) 6.5x 6.0x

(1) Portfolio assets include gross financing receivables of approximately $5.1 billion at October 31, 2008 and $5.4 billion at
October 31, 2007 and net equipment under operating leases of $1.8 billion at October 31, 2008 and at October 31, 2007, as
disclosed in Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, which is incorporated herein by reference.
Portfolio assets also include capitalized profit on intercompany equipment transactions of approximately $700 million at
October 31, 2008 and $500 million at October 31, 2007, and intercompany leases of approximately $800 million at
October 31, 2008 and $700 million at October 31, 2007, both of which are eliminated in consolidation.

(2) HPFS debt consists of intercompany equity that is treated as debt for segment reporting purposes, intercompany debt
and debt issued directly by HPFS.

Net portfolio assets at October 31, 2008 decreased 2% from October 31, 2007. The decrease resulted from unfavorable
currency impact partially offset by financing originations in fiscal 2008. The overall percentage of portfolio assets reserved
increased due primarily to higher specific customer reserves. HPFS funds its operations mainly through a combination of
intercompany debt and equity. In addition to the balances reflected above, HP assumed net portfolio assets of $140 million
through the acquisition of EDS.

Rollforward of Reserves:
Additions Deductions,
October 31, to net of Oct 31,
2007 allowance recoveries 2008
In millions
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 84 % 49 $ @43 §$ 9%
Operating lease equipment reserve 49 36 25) 60
Total reserve $§ 133 § 8 $ (68 $150
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Corporate Investments
For the fiscal years ended
October 31
2008 2007 2006
In millions
Net revenue $ 965 $ 762 $ 566
Eamings (loss) from operations $ 49 $ (57 $ @as1)
Eamings (loss) from operations as a % of net revenue 51% (71.5% (26.1)%

The majority of the net revenue in Corporate Investments relates to network infrastructure products sold under the brand
"ProCurve Networking." In fiscal 2008, revenue from network infrastructure products increased 26% compared to the same
period in fiscal 2007 as the result of continued increased sales of enterprise class gigabit and 10 gigabit Ethernet switch
products. Fiscal 2008 network infrastructure revenue includes a small amount of revenue from Colubris Networks, Inc., a
company that HP acquired on October 1, 2008.

Corporate Investments reported eamings from operations in fiscal 2008 compared to losses in fiscal 2007 due primarily to
increased earnings from operations generated by network infrastructure products and lower expenses related to HP Labs.

In fiscal 2007, the majority of the net revenue in Corporate Investments related to network infrastructure products, which
grew 33% from fiscal 2006 as new product introductions continued to drive increased sales of enterprise class gigabit Ethernet
switch products.

Corporate Investments loss from operations in fiscal 2007 was due primarily to expenses associated with corporate
development, global alliances and HP Labs that are carried in the segment. The year-over-year decrease in operating losses was
driven primarily by higher earnings from operations generated by network infrastructure products.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our cash balances are held in numerous locations throughout the world, including substantial amounts held outside ofthe
United States. Most of the amounts held outside of the United States could be repatriated to the United States but, under
current law, would be subject to United States federal income taxes, less applicable foreign tax credits. Repatriation of some
foreign balances is restricted by local laws. We have provided for the United States federal tax liability on these amounts for
financial statement purposes, except for foreign earnings that are considered indefinitely reinvested outside of the United
States. Repatriation could result in additional United States federal income tax payments in future years. Where local
restrictions prevent an efficient intercompany transfer of funds, our intent is that cash balances would remain outside of the
United States and we would meet United States liquidity needs through ongoing cash flows, external borrowings, or both. We
utilize a variety of tax planning and financing strategies in an effort to ensure that our worldwide cash is available in the
locations in which it is needed.

The information discussed below is presented based on our historical results, which include the results of EDS for the
period following the August 26, 2008 closing date of the acquisition.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION (Sources and Uses of Cash)

Our total cash and cash equivalents declined approximately 10% to $10.2 billion at October 31, 2008 from $11.3 billion at
October 31, 2007 due primarily to increased investment spending on acquisitions and increased borrowings, which were
partially offset by positive operating cash flows. Our cash position remains strong, and we believe our cash balances are
sufficient to cover cash outlays expected in fiscal 2009 associated with additional stock repurchases, acquisitions, company
bonus payments, and other operating cash requirements.

For the fiscal years ended October 31

2008 2007 2006
In millions
Net cash provided by operating activities $14591 $9615  $11,353
Net cash used in investing activities (13,711 (9,123) 2,787)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,020) (5,599) (6,077)

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents $ (1,140) $(5,107) $ 2,489

Key Performance Metrics

October 31
2008 2007 2006
Days of sales outstanding in accounts receivable 45 43 40
Days of supply in inventory 27 34 38
Days of purchases outstanding in accounts payable 49) (B0 (59
Cash conversion cycle 23 27 19

Days of sales outstanding in accounts receivable ("DSO") measures the average number of days our receivables are
outstanding. DSO is calculated by dividing accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts, by a 90-day average
net revenue.

Days of supply in inventory ("DOS") measures the average number of days from procurement to sale of our product. DOS
is calculated by dividing inventory by a 90-day average cost of goods sold.

Days of purchases outstanding in accounts payable ("DPO") measures the average number of days our accounts payable
balances are outstanding. DPO is calculated by dividing accounts payable by a 90-day average cost of goods sold.

Our working capital requirements depend upon our effective management of the cash conversion cycle, which represents
effectively the number of days that elapse fromthe day we pay for the purchase of raw materials to the collection of cash from
our customers. The cash conversion cycle is the sum of DSO and DOS less DPO.

The increase in DSO was due primarily to a higher accounts receivable balance during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008
compared to the same period in fiscal 2007 and the effect of the EDS acquisition. The decrease in DOS was due primarily to
more efficient inventory management, higher cost of goods sold during the fourth quarter of 2008 as a result of increased
revenues and the effect of the EDS acquisition. The slight decrease in DPO was due primarily to purchasing linearity and
improved
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accounts payable management. These changes contributed to the decrease in our current year cash conversion cycle compared
to the prior year.

2008 Comparedto 2007
Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities increased by approximately $5.0 billion during fiscal 2008 from fiscal 2007. The
increase was due primarily to higher net eamnings in fiscal 2008, a decrease in accounts and financing receivables, and increased
accounts payable.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities increased by approximately $4.6 billion in fiscal 2008 from fiscal 2007, due primarily to
higher cash payments made in connection with acquisitions.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities decreased by approximately $3.6 billion during fiscal 2008 from fiscal 2007. The
decrease was due primarily to higher net issuance of commercial paper and debt.

Common Stock Repurchases

We repurchase shares of our common stock under an ongoing program to manage the dilution created by shares issued
under employee benefit plans as well as to repurchase shares opportunistically. This program authorizes repurchases in the
open market or in private transactions. In fiscal 2008, we completed share repurchases of approximately 230 million shares.
Repurchases of approximately 216 million shares were settled for $9.6 billion, which included approximately 1 million shares
repurchased in transactions that were executed in fiscal 2007 but settled in fiscal 2008. At the end of fiscal 2008, we had
approximately 14 million shares which would be settled in the next fiscal year. In fiscal 2007, we completed share repurchases of
approximately 209 million shares. Repurchases of approximately 210 million shares were settled for $9.1 billion in fiscal 2007,
including approximately 1 million shares repurchased in transactions that were executed in fiscal 2006 but settled in fiscal 2007.

We intend to continue to repurchase shares as a means to manage dilution from the issuance of shares under employee
benefit plans and to purchase shares opportunistically. On September 19, 2008, our Board of Directors authorized an additional
$8.0 billion for future share repurchases. As of October 31, 2008, we had remaining authorization of approximately $9.1 billion for
future share repurchases. For more information on our share repurchases, see Item 5 and Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in Item 8, which are incorporated herein by reference.

2007 Compared to 2006
Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities decreased by $1.7 billion during fiscal 2007 from fiscal 2006. The decrease was
due primarily to an increase in accounts receivable, a decrease in accounts payable and higher payments for bonuses eamed in

fiscal 2006 and paid in the first quarter of fiscal 2007. The decease in our cash flow from operations was partially offset by
higher earnings in fiscal 2007.
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Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities increased by $6.3 billion in fiscal 2007 from fiscal 2006, due primarily to higher cash
payments made in connection with acquisitions.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities decreased by $0.5 billion during fiscal 2007 from fiscal 2006. The decrease was due
primarily to higher net issuance of commercial paper and debt, the impact of which was partially offset by increased
repurchases of our common stock.

Common Stock Repurchases

In fiscal 2007, we completed share repurchases of approximately 209 million shares. Repurchases of approximately
210 million shares were settled for $9.1 billion, which included approximately 1 million shares repurchased in transactions that
were executed in fiscal 2006 but settled in fiscal 2007. In fiscal 2006, we completed share repurchases of approximately
188 million shares. Repurchases of approximately 190 million shares were settled for $6.1 billion in fiscal 2006, including 2 million
shares repurchased in transactions that were executed in fiscal 2005 but settled in fiscal 2006.

In addition to the above transactions, we entered into an Accelerated Share Repurchase program (the "ASR Program")
with a third-party investment bank during the second quarter of fiscal 2007. Pursuant to the terms of the ASR Program, we
purchased 40 million shares of our common stock from a third-party bank for $1.8 billion (the "Purchase Price”) on March 30,
2007 (the "Purchase Date"). We decreased our shares outstanding and reduced the outstanding shares used to calculate the
weighted-average common shares outstanding for both basic and diluted EPS on the Purchase Date. The shares delivered to us
included shares that the investment bank borrowed from third parties. The investment bank purchased an equivalent number of
shares in the open market to cover its position with respect to the borrowed shares during a contractually specified averaging
period that began on the Purchase Date and ended on June 6, 2007. At the end of the averaging period, the investment bank's
total purchase cost based on the volume weighted-average purchase price of our shares during the averaging period was
approximately $90 million less than the Purchase Price. Accordingly, we had the option to receive either additional shares of our
common stock or a cash payment in the amount of the difference fromthe investment bank. In June 2007, we received
approximately 2 million additional shares purchased by the investment bank in the open market with a value approximately
equal to that amount. We reduced our shares outstanding upon receipt of those shares.

Also, we entered into a prepaid variable share purchase program ("PVSPP") with a third-party investment bank during the
first quarter of 2006 and prepaid $1.7 billion in exchange for the right to receive a variable number of shares of our common
stock weekly over a one-year period beginning in the second quarter of fiscal 2006 and ending during the second quarter of
fiscal 2007. We completed all repurchases under the PVSPP on March 9, 2007. As of that date, we had cumulatively received a
total of 53 million shares. We retired all shares repurchased and no longer deemthose shares outstanding.

On March 15, 2007, our Board of Directors authorized an additional $8.0 billion for future share repurchases. As of
October 31, 2007, we had remaining authorization of approximately $2.7 billion for future share repurchases. On November 19,
2007, our Board of Directors authorized an additional $8.0 billion for future share repurchases.
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LIQUIDITY

As previously discussed, we use cash generated by operations as our primary source of liquidity; we believe that
internally generated cash flows are generally sufficient to support business operations, capital expenditures and the payment of
stockholder dividends, in addition to a level of discretionary investments and share repurchases. We are able to supplement
this near-term liquidity, if necessary, with broad access to capital markets and credit line facilities made available by various
foreign and domestic financial institutions.

We maintain debt levels that we establish through consideration of a number of factors, including cash flow expectations,
cash requirements for operations, investment plans (including acquisitions), share repurchase activities, and our overall cost of
capital. Outstanding debt increased to $17.9 billion as of October 31, 2008 as compared to $8.2 billion at October 31, 2007,
bearing weighted-average interest rates of 3.9% and 5.2%, respectively. Short-term borrowings increased to $10.2 billion at
October 31, 2008 from $3.2 billion at October 31, 2007. The increase in short-term borrowings was due primarily to the net
issuance of approximately $5.0 billion of our commercial paper, including $9.9 billion of commercial paper issued to fund the
acquisition of EDS, and the reclassification from long-term to short-term debt, including $1.0 billion in global notes that will
mature in June 2009, $750 million in global notes that will mature in September 2009 and $700 million in senior notes that will
mature in October 2009. During fiscal 2008, we issued $40.0 billion and repaid $34.9 billion of commercial paper. Long-term debt
increased to $7.7 billion at October 31, 2008 from $5.0 billion at October 31, 2007. The increase in long-term debt was due
primarily to the issuance of an aggregate of $3.0 billion in global notes in March 2008 and the assumption of $2.6 billion of debt
in connection with the EDS acquisition, the effect of which was offsct by the repayment of $500 million in global notes at
maturity in March 2008, the repayment of $50 million of Series A Medium-Term Notes at maturity in December 2007, the
redemption of approximately $377 million in zero-coupon subordinated convertible notes in March 2008 and the
reclassifications fromlong-termto short-term debt. As of October 31, 2008, we had $6.1 million in total borrowings collateralized
by certain financing receivable assets.

As of October 31, 2008, a significant portion of our outstanding debt is related to HPFS. We issue debt in order to finance
HPFS and as needed for other purposes, including acquisitions. HPFS has a business model that is asset-intensive in nature
and therefore we fund HPFS more by debt than we fund our other business segments. At October 31, 2008, HPFS had
approximately $8.1 billion in net portfolio assets, which included short- and long-term financing receivables and operating lease
assets.

See Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, which is incorporated herein by reference, for additional information
about our borrowings.
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At October 31, 2008, we had the following resources available to obtain short-term or long-term financings if we need
additional liquidity:

Original At October 31, 2008

amount

available Used Available
In millions

2002 Shelf Registration Statement(!)
Debt, U.S. global securities and up to $1,500 of Series B Medium-Term Notes $ 3000 $2000 $ 1,000

Uncommitted lines of credit 2,600 1,400(2) 1,200
Commercial paper programs
Us. 16,000 6,960 9,040
Euro. 500 186 314

$ 22,100 $10,546 $11,554

(1) We are unable to issue any additional securities under the 2002 Shelf Registration Statement as of December 1, 2008.

2) Approximately $863 million ofthis amount was recorded as debt as of October 31, 2008; the remaining amount was used
to satisfy business operational requirements.

In addition to the financing resources listed above, we had the additional borrowing resources described below.

In May 2006, we filed a shelf registration statement (the "2006 Shelf Registration Statement”) with the SEC to enable us to
offer and sell, from time to time, in one or more offerings, an unlimited amount of debt securities, common stock, preferred stock,
depositary shares and warrants.

We have a $2.9 billion U.S. credit facility expiring in May 2012. In February and July 2008, we entered into additional 364~
day credit facilities of $3.0 billion and $8.0 billion, respectively. The credit facilities are senior unsecured committed borrowing
arrangements that we put in place primarily to support our U.S. commercial paper program. Under the terms of the July 2008
credit facility, the amount of credit available declines in an amount equal to the proceeds of any future issuance of long-term
debt by us. On December 5, 2008, we issued $2.0 billion of global notes under the 2006 Shelf Registration Statement, which
resulted in a reduction in the amount of credit available under the July 2008 credit facility to $6.0 billion. Our ability to have a
U.S. commercial paper outstanding balance that exceeds the $11.9 billion supported by our credit facilities is subject to a
number of factors, including liquidity conditions and business performance.

In October 2008, we registered for the Commercial Paper Funding Facility (CPFF) provided by the Federal Reserve Bank of
New York. The facility enables us to issue three-month unsecured commercial paper through a special purpose vehicle of the
Federal Reserve at a rate established by the CPFF program, which is currently equal to a spread over the three-month overnight
index swap rate. The maximmm amount of commercial paper that we may issue at any time through this programis $10.4 billion
less the total principal amount of all other outstanding commercial paper that we have issued. We will be unable to issue
commercial paper under the program after April 30, 2009. As of October 31, 2008, we had not issued any commercial paper under
the CPFF program.
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We have revolving trade receivables-based facilities permitting us to sell certain trade receivables to third parties on a non-
recourse basis. The aggregate maximum capacity under these programs was approximately $584 million as of October 31, 2008.
We sold approximately $2.7 billion of trade receivables during fiscal 2008. As of October 31, 2008, we had approximately
$142 million available under these programs.

Our credit risk is evaluated by three independent rating agencies based upon publicly available information as well as
information obtained in our ongoing discussions with them. Standard & Poor's Ratings Services, Moody's Investors Service
and Fitch Ratings currently rate our senior unsecured long-term debt A, A2 and A+ and our short-term debt A-1, Prime-1 and
F1, respectively. We do not have any rating downgrade triggers that would accelerate the maturity of a material amount of our
debt. However, a downgrade in our credit rating would increase the cost of borrowings under our credit facilities. Also, a
downgrade in our credit rating could limit our ability to issue commercial paper under our current programs. If this occurs, we
would seek alternative sources of funding, including drawdowns under our credit facility or the issuance of notes under our
existing shelf registration statements.

Contractual Obligations

The impact that we expect our contractual obligations as of October 31, 2008 to have on our liquidity and cash flow in
future periods is as follows:

Payments Due by Period

Less than 1- 3- More than
Total 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years 5 Years
In millions
Long-term debt, including capital lease obligations(l) §10271  $2,68 §1,113 $4765 § 1,711
Operating lease obligations 3,754 1,017 1,357 656 724
Purchase obligations(z) 3,303 2,596 572 110 25
Total $17,328 $6,295 $3,042 $5531 § 2,460
M Amounts represent the expected cash payments of our long-term debt and do not include any fair value adjustments or

discounts. Included in our long-term debt are approximately $372 million of capital lease obligations that are secured by
certain equipment.

2 Purchase obligations include agreements to purchase goods or services that are enforceable and legally binding on us
and that specify all significant terms, including fixed or minimum quantities to be purchased; fixed, minimum or variable
price provisions; and the approximate timing of the transaction. Purchase obligations exclude agreements that are
cancelable without penalty. These purchase obligations are related principally to inventory and other items.

In addition to the above, at October 31, 2008, we had approximately $1.7 billion of recorded FIN 48 liabilities and related
interest and penalties. Of this liability amount, approximately $340 million is expected to be paid within one year. For the
remaining amount, we are unable to make a reasonable estimate as to when cash settlement with tax authorities might occur due
to the uncertainties related to these tax matters. The $1.7 billion of FIN 48 liabilities and related interest and penalties will be
partially offset by $330 million of deferred taxassets and interest receivable.
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HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations (Continued)

Funding Commitments

During fiscal 2008, we made approximately $170 million of contributions to non-U.S. pension plans, paid $6 million to cover
benefit payments to U.S. non-qualified plan participants, and paid $50 million to cover benefit claims under post-retirement
benefit plans. In addition, we used $25 million of cash to fund the distribution and subsequent transfer of accrued pension
benefits fromthe U.S. Excess Benefit Plan to the U.S. Executive Deferred Compensation Plan for the terminated vested plan
participants. In fiscal 2009, we expect to contribute approximately $360 million to our pension plans and approximately
$35 million to cover benefit payments to U.S. non-qualified plan participants. We also expect to pay approximately $70 million to
cover benefit claims for our post-retirement benefit plans in fiscal 2009. Our funding policy is to contribute cash to our pension
plans so that we meet at least the minimum contribution requirements, as established by local govermnment, funding and taxing
authorities. We expect to use contributions made to the post-retirement benefit plans primarily for the payment of retiree health
claims incurred during the fiscal year.

We will make a significant cash payment associated with our fiscal 2008 bonus programs. We have implemented bonus
programs that are designed to reward our employees upon achievement of annual performance objectives. We calculate
bonuses based on a formula, with performance relative to targets, year over year improvements and market conditions that are
set at the beginning of each fiscal year. Our Board of Directors approves the final bonus payments. We accrued and expensed
this bonus, as it was earned, throughout fiscal 2008.

In connection with the acquisition of EDS, we implemented a restructuring programto streamline our services business and
to better align the structure and efficiency of that business with the operating model that we have successfully implemented in
recent years. The restructuring program will be implemented over the next four years and will include changes to our workforce
as well as cost savings from corporate overhead functions, such as real estate, IT and procurement. As part of the restructuring
program, we expect to eliminate approximately 24,700 positions, with nearly half of the eliminations occurring in the United
States. As a result of our approved restructuring plans, we expect future cash expenditures of approximately $2.1 billion. We
expect to make cash payments of approximately $1.3 billion in fiscal 2009 and the majority of the remaining amount through
2012.

Subsequent Acquisitions

For subsequent acquisitions, see Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, which is incorporated herein
by reference.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As part of our ongoing business, we do not participate in transactions that generate material relationships with
unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred to as structured finance or special purpose

entities ("SPEs"), which would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or other
contractually narrow or limited purposes. As of October 31, 2008, we are not involved in any material unconsolidated SPEs.

Guarantees and Indemnifications
In the ordinary course of business, we may provide certain clients, principally governmental entities, with subsidiary
performance guarantees and/or financial performance guarantees, which may be backed by standby letters of credit or surety

bonds. In general, we would be liable for the amounts of
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HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations (Continued)

these guarantees in the event our or our subsidiaries’ nonperformance permits termination ofthe related contract by our client,
the likelihood of which we believe is remote. We believe we are in compliance with our performance obligations under all
service contracts for which there is a performance guarantee.

As aresult of the acquisition of EDS, we acquired certain service contracts supported by client financing or securitization
arrangements. Under specific circumstances involving non performance resulting in service contract termination or failure to
comply with terms under the financing arangement we would be required to acquire certain assets. We consider the possibility
of our failure to comply to be remote and the asset amounts involved not material.

In the ordinary course of business, we enter into contractual arrangements under which we may agree to indemmify the
third-party to such arrangement from any losses incurred relating to the services they perform on behalf of us or for losses
arising from certain events as defined within the particular contract, which may include, for example, litigation or claims relating
to past performance. Such indemnification obligations may not be subject to maximum loss clauses. Historically, payments we
have made related to these indemnifications have been immaterial.

73

sec.gov/Archives/.../a2189375210-k.htm

88/203



9/23/2010 sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/47217/00...
Table of Contents

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

In the normal course of business, we are exposed to foreign currency exchange rate, interest rate and equity price risks that
could impact our financial position and results of operations. Our risk management strategy with respect to these three market
risks may include the use of derivative financial instruments. We use derivative contracts only to manage existing underlying
exposures of HP. Accordingly, we do not use derivative contracts for speculative purposes. Our risks, risk management
strategy and a sensitivity analysis estimating the effects of changes in fair values for each of these exposures are outlined
below.

Actual gains and losses in the future may differ materially from the sensitivity analyses based on changes in the timing and
amount of interest rate, foreign currency exchange rate and equity price movements and our actual exposures and hedges.

Foreign currency exchange rate risk

We are exposed to foreign currency exchange rate risk inherent in our sales commitments, anticipated sales, anticipated
purchases and assets, liabilities and debt denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. We transact business in
approximately 40 currencies worldwide, of which the most significant to our operations for fiscal 2008 were the euro, the
Japanese yen and the British pound. For most currencies, we are a net receiver of the foreign currency and therefore benefit
from a weaker U.S. dollar and are adversely affected by a stronger U.S. dollar relative to the foreign currency. Even where we are
a net receiver, a weaker U.S. dollar may adversely affect certain expense figures taken alone. We use a combination of forward
contracts and options designated as cash flow hedges to protect against the foreign currency exchange rate risks inherent in
our forecasted net revenue and, to a lesser extent, cost of sales and inter-company lease loan denominated in currencies other
than the U.S. dollar. In addition, when debt is denominated in a foreign currency, we may use swaps to exchange the foreign
currency principal and interest obligations for U.S. dollar-denominated amounts to manage the exposure to changes in foreign
currency exchange rates. We also use other derivatives not designated as hedging instruments under SFAS No. 133,
"Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” consisting primarily of forward contracts to hedge foreign
currency balance sheet exposures. We recognize the gains and losses on foreign currency forward contracts in the same period
as the remeasurement losses and gains of the related foreign currency-denominated exposures. Alternatively, we may choose
not to hedge the foreign currency risk associated with our foreign currency exposures, primarily if such exposure acts as a
natural foreign currency hedge for other offsetting amounts denominated in the same currency or the currency is difficult or too
expensive to hedge.

We have performed sensitivity analyses as of October 31, 2008 and 2007, using a modeling technique that measures the
change in the fair values arising from a hypothetical 10% adverse movement in the levels of foreign currency exchange rates
relative to the U.S. dollar, with all other variables held constant. The analyses cover all of our foreign currency contracts offset
by the underlying exposures. The foreign currency exchange rates we used were based on market rates in effect at October 31,
2008 and 2007. The sensitivity analyses indicated that a hypothetical 10% adverse movement in foreign currency exchange
rates would result in a foreign exchange loss of $141 million and $104 million at October 31, 2008 and October 31, 2007,
respectively.

Interest rate risk

We also are exposed to interest rate risk related to our debt and investment portfolios and financing receivables. We issue
long-term debt in either U.S. dollars or foreign currencies based on market conditions at the time of financing. We then typically
use interest rate and/or currency swaps to modify the market risk exposures in connection with the debt to achieve primarily
U.S. dollar LIBOR-based floating interest expense. The swap transactions generally involve the exchange of fixed for
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floating interest payments. However, we may choose not to swap fixed for floating interest payments or may terminate a
previously executed swap if we believe a larger proportion of fixed-rate debt would be beneficial. In order to hedge the fair value
of certain fixed-rate investments, we may enter into interest rate swaps that convert fixed interest returns into variable interest
returns. We may use cash flow hedges to hedge the variability of LIBOR-based interest income received on certain variable-rate
investments. We may also enter into interest rate swaps that convert variable rate interest retumns into fixed-rate interest
returns.

We have performed sensitivity analyses as of October 31, 2008 and 2007, using a modeling technique that measures the
change in the fair values arising from a hypothetical 10% adverse movement in the levels of interest rates across the entire yield
curve, with all other variables held constant. The analyses cover our debt, investment instruments, financing receivables and
interest rate swaps. The analyses use actual maturities for the debt, mvestments and interest rate swaps and approximate
maturities for financing receivables. The discount rates we used were based on the market interest rates in effect at October 31,
2008 and 2007. The sensitivity analyses indicated that a hypothetical 10% adverse movement in interest rates would result in a
loss in the fair values of our debt and investment instruments and financing receivables, net of interest rate swap positions, of
$9 million at October 31, 2008 and $17 million at October 31, 2007.

Equity price risk

We are also exposed to equity price risk inherent in our portfolio of publicly-traded equity securities, which had an
estimated fair value of $5 million at October 31, 2008 and $9 million at October 31, 2007. We monitor our equity investments for
impairment on a periodic basis. In the event that the carrying value of the equity investment exceeds its fair value, and we
determine the decline in value to be other than temporary, we reduce the carrying value to its current fair value. Generally, we
do not attempt to reduce or eliminate our market exposure on these equity securities. However, we may use derivative
transactions to hedge certain positions from time to time. We do not purchase our equity securities with the intent to use them
for speculative purposes. A hypothetical 30% adverse change in the stock prices of our publicly-traded equity securities would
result in a loss in the fair values of our marketable equity securities of $2 million at October 31, 2008 and $3 million at October 31,
2007. The aggregate cost of privately-held companies, marketable trading securities and other investments was $425 million at
October 31, 2008 and $533 million at October 31, 2007.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Hewlett-Packard Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Hewlett-Packard Company and subsidiaries as of
October 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, stockholders' equity and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended October 31, 2008. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the
Index at Item 15(a)(2). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of Hewlett-Packard Company and subsidiaries at October 31, 2008 and 2007, and the consolidated results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended October 31, 2008, in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth
therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the effectiveness of Hewlett-Packard Company's internal control over financial reporting as of October 31, 2008, based
on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission and our report dated December 15, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in fiscal year 2008, Hewlett-Packard Company changed its
method of accounting for income taxes in accordance with the guidance provided in Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Interpretation No. 48, " Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" and,
in fiscal year 2007 Hewlett-Packard Company changed its method of accounting for defined benefit postretirement plans in
accordance with the guidance provided in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158, "Employers' Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans—An Amendment of FASB No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R)."

/s/ ERNST & YOUNGILLP

San Jose, California
December 15, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Hewlett-Packard Company

We have audited Hewlett-Packard Company's internal control over financial reporting as of October 31, 2008, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations ofthe
Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Hewlett-Packard Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's intemal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding
of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions ofthe assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition ofthe company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because ofits inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

As indicated in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, management's
assessment of and conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did not include the internal
controls of Electronic Data Systems Corporation, which is included in the 2008 consolidated financial statements of Hewlett-
Packard Company. For the fiscal year ended October 31, 2008, Electronic Data Systems Corporation constituted 3 percent of
Hewlett-Packard Company's total net revenue, and the fair value assigned to tangible assets for purposes of applying the
purchase method of accounting as ofthe acquisition date accounted for approximately 11 percent of Hewlett-Packard
Company's total assets as of October 31, 2008. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting of Hewlett-Packard
Company also did not include evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of Electronic Data Systems
Corporation.

In our opinion, Hewlett-Packard Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of October 31, 2008 based on the COSO criteria.
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We also have audited, in accordance with the standards ofthe Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Hewlett-Packard Company and subsidiaries as of October 31, 2008
and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of eamings, stockholders' equity and cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended October 31, 2008 and our report dated December 15, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNGLLP

San Jose, California
December 15, 2008
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Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

HP's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for HP.
HP's intemal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. HP's intemnal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of HP; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of HP are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of HP; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of HP's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of'its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

HP's management assessed the effectiveness of HP's intemal control over financial reporting as of October 31, 2008,
utilizing the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal
Control-Integrated Framework. As discussed in Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, HP completed its acquisition
of Electronic Data Systems Corporation ("EDS") in August 2008. HP has excluded EDS from its assessment of the effectiveness
of its intemal control over financial reporting as of October 31, 2008. Revenue fromthe business operations acquired from EDS
represented approximately 3 percent of HP's total net revenue for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2008, and the fair value
assigned to tangible assets for purposes of applying the purchase method of accounting as of the date of the acquisition
accounted for approximately 11 percent of HP's total assets as of October 31, 2008. Based on the assessment by HP's
management, we determined that HP's internal control over financial reporting was effective as of October 31, 2008. The
effectiveness of HP's internal control over financial reporting as of October 31, 2008 has been audited by Emst & Young LLP,

HP's independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which appears on page 78 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

/s/ MARK V. HURD /s/ CATHERINE A. LESJAK
Mark V. Hurd Catherine A. Lesjak
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
December 15, 2008 December 15, 2008
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HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Farnings

Net revenue:
Products
Services
Financing income
Total net revenue
Costs and expenses:
Cost of products
Cost of services
Financing interest
Research and development
Selling, general and administrative
Amortization of purchased intangible assets
In-process research and development charges
Restructuring charges
Acquisition-related charges
Pension curtailments and pension settlements, net
Total operating expenses
Eamings from operations
Interest and other, net

Eamings before taxes
Provision for taxes

Net eamings
Net earnings per share:

Basic

Diluted

Weighted-average shares used to compute net eamnings

per share:
Basic

Diluted

For the fiscal years ended October 31

2008

2007

2006

In millions, except per share amounts

91,697 § 84229 § 73557
26,297 19,699 17,773
370 358 328
118,364 104,286 91,658
69,342 63,435 55,48
20,250 15,163 13,930
329 289 249
3,543 3,611 3,591
13,104 12,226 11,266
967 783 604
45 190 52
270 387 158

41 — —

— (517 —
107,891 95,567 85,098
10,473 8,719 6,560
— 458 631
10,473 9,177 7,191
2,144 1,913 993
8329 $§ 7264 $ 6,198
335 § 276§ 223
325§ 268 § 218
2,483 2,630 2,782
2,567 2,716 2,852

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

81

sec.gov/Archives/.../a2189375z10-k.htm

97/203



9/23/2010

sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/47217/00...

Table of Contents
HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBS IDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
October 31
2008 2007
In millions, except
par value
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,153 $ 11,293
Short-term investments 93 152
Accounts receivable 16,928 13,420
Financing receivables 2,314 2,507
Inventory 7,879 8,033
Other current assets 14,361 11,997
Total current assets 51,728 47,402
Property, plant and equipment 10,838 7,798
Long-term financing receivables and other assets 10,468 7,647
Goodwill 32,335 21,773
Purchased intangible assets 7,962 4,079
Total assets $ 113,331 $ 88,699
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Notes payable and short-term borrowings $ 10,176 $ 3,186
Accounts payable 14,138 11,787
Employee compensation and benefits 4,159 3,465
Taxes on eamings 869 1,891
Deferred revenue 6,287 5,025
Accrued restructuring 1,099 123
Other accrued liabilities 16,211 13,783
Total current liabilities 52,939 39,260
Long-term debt 7,676 4,997
Other liabilities 13,774 5,916
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value (300 shares authorized; none
issued) — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value (9,600 shares authorized; 2,415 and
2,580 shares issued and outstanding, respectively) 24 26
Additional paid-in capital 14,012 16,381
Retained eamnings 24,971 21,560
Accurmulated other comprehensive (loss) income (65) 559
Total stockholders' equity 38,942 38,526
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 113,331 $ 88,699

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net eamnings
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Stock-based compensation expense
Provision for doubtfiil accounts — accounts and
financing receivables

Provision for inventory
Restructuring charges
Pension curtailments and pension settlements, net
In-process research and development charges
Acquisition-related charges
Deferred taxes on eamings
Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation
Losses (gains) on investments
Other, net
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts and financing receivables
Inventory
Accounts payable
Taxes on earnings
Restructuring

Other assets and liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment in property, plant and equipment
Proceeds fromsale of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of available-for-sale securities and other
investments
Maturities and sales of available-for-sale securities and
other investments
Payments made in connection with business acquisitions,
net
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance (repayment) of commercial paper and notes
payable, net

Issuance of debt
Payment of debt

sec.gov/Archives/.../a2189375z10-k.htm

For the fiscal years ended October 31

2008 2007 2006
In millions
8,329 7264 § 6,198
3,356 2,705 2,353
606 629 536
275 47 4
214 362 267
270 387 158
— 517 —
45 190 52
41 — —
1,035 415 693
(293) (481) (251)
11 (14) (25)
(83) (86) 18
(261) (2,808) (882)
89 (633) (1,109)
1,630 (346) 1,879
(43) 502 (513)
(165) (606) (810)
(465) 2,605 2,785
14,591 9,615 11,353
(2,990) (3,040) (2,536)
425 568 556
(178) (283) (46)
280 425 94
(11,248) (6,793) (855)
(13,711) (9,123) (2,787)
5,015 1,863 (55)
3,121 4,106 1,121
(1,843) (3,419) (1,259)
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Issuance of common stock under employee stock plans 1,810 3,103 2,538
Repurchase of common stock (9,620) (10,887) (6,057)
Prepayment of common stock repurchase — — (1,722)
Excess taxbenefit from stock-based compensation 293 481 251
Dividends (796) (846) (894)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,020) (5,599) (6,077)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,140) (5,107) 2,489
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 11,293 16,400 13,911
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 10,153 § 11,293  § 16,400
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity

Common Stock Accumulated
Number Additional Prepaid Other
of Par Paid-in stock Retained Comprehensive
Shares Value Capital repurchase Earnings (L.oss) income  Total

In millions, ex cept number of shares in thousands

Balance October 31, 2005 2,837,196 § 28 % 20,490 $ — $16,679 $ (21)$ 37,176
Net camings 6,198 6,198
Net unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities 6) (6) |
Minimum pension liability 9) 9)
Cumulative translation adjustment 54 54 ]
|
Comprehensive income 6,237 |
Issuance of common stock in connection with employee stock plans and |
other 117,720 1 2,487 2,488
Prepaid stock repurchase (1,722) (1,722)
Repurchases of common stock (222,882) 2) (5,903) 1,126 (1,254) (6,033)
Tax benefit fom employee stock plans 356 356
Dividends (894) (894)
Stock-based compensation expense under SFAS 123R 536 536
Balance October 31, 2006 2,732,034 § 27 $ 17966 $  (59) $20,729 $ 18 §$38,144
Net camings 7,264 7,264
Net unrealized loss on available-fr-sale sccuritics (12) (12)
Net unrcalized loss on cash flow hedges (18) (18)
Minimum pension liability 3) 3
Cumulative translation adjustment 106 106
Comprehensive income 7.337
Issuance of common stock in connection with employee stock plans and
other 116,661 1 3,134 3,135
Repurchases of common stock (268,981) 2) (5,878) 596 (5,587) (10,871)
Tax benefit ffom employee stock plans 530 530
Dividends (846) (846)
Stock-based compensation expense under SFAS 123R 629 629
Adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income upon adoption of
SFAS 158 468 468
Balance October 31, 2007 2,579,714 § 26 $ 16,381 § — $21560 $ 559 $ 38,526
Net camings 8,329 8,329
Net unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities (16) (16)
Net unrealized gain on cash fow hedges 866 866
Unrealized components of defined benefit pension plans (538) (538)
Cumulative translation adjustment (936)  (936)
Comprehensive income 7,705
Issuance of common stock in connection with employee stock plans and
other 65,235 2,034 2,034
Repurchases of common stock (229,646) (2) (5,325) (4,809) (10,136)
Tax benefit fom employee stock plans 316 316
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Dividends (796) (796)

Stock-based compensation expense under SFAS 123R 606 606

Adjustment to accumulated retained eamings upon adoption of FIN 48 687 687
Balance October 31, 2008 2,415,303 § 24 $ 14012 § — $24971 % (65) $ 38,942

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Hewlett-Packard Company, its wholly-owned subsidiaries
and its controlled majority-owned subsidiaries (collectively, "HP"). HP accounts for equity investments in companies over
which HP has the ability to exercise significant influence, but does not hold a controlling interest, under the equity method, and
HP records its proportionate share of income or losses in interest and other, net in the Consolidated Statements of Eammings. HP
has eliminated all significant intercompany accounts and transactions.

Business Combinations

HP records all acquisitions using the purchase method ofaccounting and, accordingly, included the results of operations
in HP's consolidated results as of the date of each acquisition. HP allocates the purchase price of its acquisitions to the tangible
assets acquired, liabilities assumed and intangible assets acquired, including in-process research & development ("IPR&D")
charges, based on their estimated fair values. The excess purchase price over those fair values is recorded as goodwill. See
Note 6 for further discussion of HP acquisition activities.

Reclassifications and Segment Reorganization

HP has made certain organizational realignments in order to optimize its operating structure. Reclassifications of prior year
financial information have been made to conformto the current year presentation. None of the changes impacts HP's previously
reported consolidated net revenue, eamings from operations, net earnings or net eamings per share.

HP has revised the presentation of its Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the fiscal years ended October 31, 2007 and
2006 to provide improved visibility and comparability with the current year presentation. This change does not affect
previously reported results of operations for any period presented.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in HP's Consolidated Financial Statements
and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ materially from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Net revenue is derived primarily fromthe sale of products and services. The following revenue recognition policies define
the manner in which HP accounts for sales transactions.

HP recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of a sales arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or services are
rendered, the sales price or fee is fixed or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured. Additionally when HP
recognizes revenue on sales to channel partners, including resellers, distributors or value-added solution providers, we do so
when the channel partners have economic substance apart from HP and we have completed our obligations related to the sale.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

When a sales arrangement contains multiple elements, such as hardware and software products, licenses and/or services,
HP allocates revenue to each element based on its relative fair value, or for software, based on vendor specific objective
evidence ("VSOE") of fair value. In the absence of fair value for a delivered element, HP first allocates revenue to the fair value
of the undelivered elements and the residual revenue to the delivered elements. Where the fair value for an undelivered element
cannot be determined, HP defers revenue for the delivered elements until the undelivered elements are delivered or the fair
value is determinable for the remaining undelivered elements. If the revenue for a delivered item is not recognized because it is
not separable from the undelivered item, then HP also defers the cost of the delivered item. HP limits the amount of revenue
recognition for delivered elements to the amount that is not contingent on the future delivery of products or services or subject
to customer-specified return or refund privileges.

In instances when revenue is derived from sales of third-party vendor services, revenue is recorded at gross when the
company is a principal to the transaction and net of costs when the company is acting as an agent between the customer and
the vendor. Several factors are considered to determine whether the company is an agent or principal, most notably whether the
company is the primary obligator to the customer, has established its own pricing, and has inventory and credit risks.

The company reports revenue net of any required taxes collected from customers and remitted to government authorities,
with the collected taxes recorded as current liabilities until remitted to the relevant government authority.

Products
Hardware

Under HP's standard terms and conditions of sale, HP transfers title and risk of loss to the customer at the time product is
delivered to the customer and revenue is recognized accordingly, unless customer acceptance is uncertain or significant
obligations remain. HP reduces revenue for estimated customer retums, price protection, rebates and other programs offered
under sales agreements established by HP with its distributors and resellers. HP records revenue fromthe sale of equipment
under sales-type leases as product revenue at the inception ofthe lease. HP accrues the estimated cost of post-sale
obligations, including basic product warranties, based on historical experience at the time HP recognizes revenue.

Software

In accordance with the specific guidance of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statement of Position
No. 97-2, "Software Revenue Recognition," as amended, where applicable, the company recognizes revenue from perpetual
software licenses at the inception of the license term assuming all revenue recognition criteria have been met. Term-based
software license revenue is recognized on a subscription basis over the term of the license entitlement. HP uses the residual
method to allocate revenue to software licenses at the inception of the license term when VSOE of fair value for all undelivered
elements exists, such as post-contract support, and all other revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied. Revenue
generated from maintenance and unspecified upgrades or updates on a when-and-if-available basis is recognized over the
period such items are delivered.
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Services

HP recognizes revenue from fixed-price support or maintenance contracts, including extended warranty contracts and
software post-contract customer support agreements, ratably over the contract period and recognizes the costs associated with
these contracts as incurred. For time and material contracts, HP recognizes revenue and costs as services are rendered. HP
recognizes revenue from fixed-price consulting arrangements over the contract period on a proportional performance basis, as
determined by the relationship of actual labor costs incurred to date to the estimated total contract labor costs, with estimates
regularly revised during the life of the contract. HP recognizes revenue on certain design and build (design, development
and/or construction of software and/or systems) projects using the percentage-of-completion method. HP uses the cost to cost
method of measurement towards completion as determined by the percentage of cost incurred to date to the total estimated
costs of the project. HP uses the completed contract method if reasonable and reliable cost estimates for a project cannot be
made.

For outsourcing services revenue is generally recognized when the service is provided and the amount eamed is not
contingent upon any future event. If the service is provided evenly during the contract term but service billings are uneven,
revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the contract term. HP recognizes revenue from operating leases on a
straight-line basis as service revenue over the rental period.

HP recognizes costs associated with outsourcing contracts as incurred, unless such costs relate to the transition phase of
the outsourcing contract, in which case HP defers and subsequently amortizes these set-up costs over the contractual services
period. Deferred contract costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining original term unless billing patterns
indicate a more accelerated method is appropriate. Based on actual and projected contract financial performance indicators, the
recoverability of deferred contract costs associated with a particular contract is analyzed on a periodic basis using the
undiscounted estimated cash flows of the whole contract over its remaining contract term. If such undiscounted cash flows are
insufficient to recover the long-lived assets and deferred contract costs, the deferred contract costs are written down based on
a discounted cash flow model. If a cash flow deficiency remains after reducing the balance of the deferred contract costs to
zero, any remaining long-lived assets related to that contract are evaluated for impairment.

HP recognizes losses on consulting and outsourcing arrangements in the period that the contractual loss becomes
probable and estimable. HP records amounts invoiced to customers in excess of revenue recognized as deferred revenue until
the revenue recognition criteria are met. HP records revenue that is eamed and recognized in excess of amounts invoiced on
fixed-price contracts as trade receivables.

Financing Income

Sales-type and direct-financing leases produce financing income, which HP recognizes at consistent rates of return over
the lease term.

Shipping and Handling
HP includes costs related to shipping and handling in cost of sales for all periods presented.
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Advertising

HP expenses advertising costs as incurred or when the advertising is first run. Such costs totaled approximately $1.0 billion
in fiscal 2008, $1.1 billion in fiscal 2007 and $1.1 billion in fiscal 2006.

Taxes on Earnings

HP recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected taxconsequences of temporary differences between the
taxbases of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts using enacted taxrates in effect for the year the differences are
expected to reverse. HP records a valuation allowance to reduce the deferred taxassets to the amount that is more likely than
not to be realized.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

HP classifies investments as cash equivalents if the original maturity of an investment is three months or less. Cash and
cash equivalents consists primarily of highly liquid investments in time deposits held in major banks and commercial paper. As
of October 31, 2008 and 2007, the carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the short period of
time to maturity. Interest income was approximately $401 million in fiscal 2008, $598 million in fiscal 2007 and $623 million in
fiscal 2006.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

HP establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts to ensure trade and financing receivables are not overstated due to
uncollectability. HP maintains bad debt reserves based on a variety of factors, including the length of time receivables are past
due, trends in overall weighted-average risk rating of the total portfolio, macroeconomic conditions, significant one-time events,
historical experience and the use of third-party credit risk models that generate quantitative measures of default probabilities
based on market factors and the financial condition of customers. HP records a specific reserve for individual accounts when
HP becomes aware of a customer's likely inability to meet its financial obligations, such as in the case of bankruptcy filings or
deterioration in the customer's operating results or financial position. If circumstances related to customers change, HP would
further adjust estimates of the recoverability of receivables.

Inventory

HP values inventory at the lower of cost or market, with cost computed on a first-in, first-out basis. Adjustments to reduce
the cost of inventory to its net realizable value are made, if required, for estimated excess, obsolescence or impaired balances.

Property, Plant and Equipment
HP states property, plant and equipment at cost less accumulated depreciation. HP capitalizes additions and improvements.
HP expenses maintenance and repairs as incurred. HP provides depreciation using straight-line or accelerated methods over the

estimated useful lives of the assets. Estimated useful lives are S to 40 years for buildings and improvements and 3 to 15 years
for machinery and equipment. HP depreciates leasehold improvements over the life of the lease or the
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asset, whichever is shorter. HP depreciates equipment held for lease over the initial term of the lease to the equipment's
estimated residual value.

HP capitalizes certain internal and external costs incurred to acquire or create internal use software, principally related to
software coding, designing system interfaces and installation and testing of the software. HP amortizes capitalized costs using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the software, generally fromthree to five years.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Purchased Intangible Assets

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets" ("SFAS 142"),
prohibits the amortization of goodwill and purchased intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. HP reviews goodwill and
purchased intangible assets with indefinite lives for impairment annually at the beginning of its fourth fiscal quarter and
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable in accordance
with SFAS 142. For goodwill, HP performs a two-step impairment test. In the first step, HP compares the fair value of each
reporting unit to its carrying value. Our reporting units are consistent with the reportable segments identified in Note 18. HP
determines the fair value of its reporting units based on a weighting of income and market approaches. Under the income
approach, HP calculates the fair value of a reporting unit based on the present value of estimated future cash flows. Under the
market approach, HP estimates the fair value based on market multiples of revenue or eamings for comparable companies. Ifthe
fair value of the reporting unit exceeds the carrying value of the net assets assigned to that unit, goodwill is not impaired and
no further testing is performed. If the carrying value of the net assets assigned to the reporting unit exceeds the fair value of the
reporting unit, then HP must performthe second step of the impairment test in order to determine the implied fair value of the
reporting unit's goodwill. If the carrying value of a reporting unit's goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, HP records an
impairment loss equal to the difference.

SFAS 142 also requires that the fair value of the indefinite-lived purchased intangible assets be estimated and compared to
the carrying value. HP estimates the fair value of these intangible assets using an income approach. HP recognizes an
impairment loss when the estimated fair value of the indefinite-lived purchased intangible assets is less than the carrying value.

Long-Lived Assets Including Finite-Lived Purchased Intangible Assets

HP amortizes purchased intangible assets with finite lives using the straight-line method over the estimated economic lives
ofthe assets, ranging from one to ten years.

HP evaluates long-lived assets, such as property, plant and equipment and purchased intangible assets with finite lives,
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable in
accordance with SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets." HP assesses the fair value
ofthe assets based on the undiscounted future cash flow the assets are expected to generate and recognizes an impairment
loss when estimated undiscounted future cash flow expected to result fromthe use of the asset plus net proceeds expected
from disposition of the asset, if any, are less than the carrying value of the asset. When HP identifies an impairment, HP
reduces the carrying amount of the asset to its estimated fair value based on a discounted cash flow approach or, when
available and appropriate, to comparable market values.
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Derivative Financial Instruments

HP uses derivative financial instruments, primarily forwards, swaps, and options, to hedge certain foreign currency and
interest rate exposures. HP also may use other derivative instruments not designated as hedges such as forwards used to
hedge foreign currency balance sheet exposures. HP does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.
See Note 9 for a full description of HP's derivative financial instrument activities and related accounting policies, which is
incorporated herein by reference.

Investments

HP's investments consist principally of time deposits, commercial paper, corporate debt, other debt securities, and equity
securities of publicly-traded and privately-held companies. HP classifies investments with maturities of less than one year as
short-term investments.

HP classifies its investments in debt securities and its equity investments in public companies as available-for-sale
securities and carries them at fair value. HP determines fair values for investments in public companies using quoted market
prices. HP records the unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities, net of taxes, in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss).

HP carries equity investments in privately-held companies at the lower of cost or fair value. HP may estimate fair values for
investments in privately-held companies based upon one or more of the following: pricing models using historical and
forecasted financial information and current market rates; liquidation values; the values of recent rounds of financing; and
quoted market prices of comparable public companies.

Losses on Investments

HP monitors its investment portfolio for impairment on a periodic basis. In the event that the carrying value of an
investment exceeds its fair value and the decline in value is determined to be other than temporary, HP records an impairment
charge and establishes a new cost basis for the investment at its current fair value. In order to determine whether a decline in
value is other than temporary, HP evaluates, among other factors: the duration and extent to which the fair value has been less
than the carrying value; the financial condition of and business outlook for the company or financial institution, including key
operational and cash flow metrics, current market conditions and future trends in the issuer's industry; the company's relative
competitive position within the industry; and HP's intent and ability to retain the investment for a period of time sufficient to
allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.

HP determined the declines in value of certain investments to be other than temporary. Accordingly, HP recorded
impairments of approximately $27 million in fiscal 2008, $28 million in fiscal 2007 and $8 million in fiscal 2006. HP includes these
impairments in gains (losses) on investments in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings. Depending on market conditions, HP
may record additional impairments on its investment portfolio in the future.

%
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Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject HP to significant concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and
cash equivalents, mvestments, accounts receivable fromtrade customers and from contract manufacturers, financing
receivables and derivatives.

HP maintains cash and cash equivalents, short and long-term investments, derivatives and certain other financial
instruments with various financial institutions. These financial institutions are located in many different geographical regions
and HP's policy is designed to limit exposure with any one institution. As part of its cash and risk management processes, HP
performs periodic evaluations of the relative credit standing ofthe financial institutions. HP has not sustained material credit
losses from instruments held at financial institutions. HP utilizes forward contracts and other derivative contracts to protect
against the effects of foreign cumrency fluctuations. Such contracts involve the risk of non-performance by the counterparty,
which could result in a material loss.

HP sells a significant portion of its products through third-party distributors and resellers and, as a result, maintains
individually significant receivable balances with these parties. If the financial condition or operations of these distributors and
resellers deteriorate substantially, HP's operating results could be adversely affected. The ten largest distributor and reseller
receivable balances collectively, which were concentrated primarily in North America and Europe, represented approximately
18% of gross accounts receivable at October 31, 2008 and 23% at October 31, 2007. No single customer accounts for more than
10% of accounts receivable. Credit risk with respect to other accounts receivable and financing receivables is generally
diversified due to the large number of entities comprising HP's customer base and their dispersion across many different
industries and geographical regions. HP performs ongoing credit evaluations of the financial condition of its third-party
distributors, resellers and other customers and requires collateral, such as letters of credit and bank guarantees, in certain
circumstances. To ensure a receivable balance is not overstated due to uncollectibility, an allowance for doubtful accounts is
maintained as required under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The past due or delinquency status of a receivable
is based on the contractual payment terms of the receivable. The need to write off a receivable balance depends on the age, size
and a determination of collectability of the receivable. HP generally has experienced longer accounts receivable collection
cycles in its emerging markets, in particular Asia Pacific and Latin America, compared to its United States and European
markets. In the event that accounts receivable collection cycles in emerging markets significantly deteriorate or one or more of
HP's larger resellers or enterprise customers fail, HP's operating results could be adversely affected.

Other Concentration
HP obtains a significant number of components fromsingle source suppliers due to technology, availability, price, quality
or other considerations. The loss of a single source supplier, the deterioration of its relationship with a single source supplier,
or any unilateral modification to the contractual terms under which HP is supplied components by a single source supplier
could adversely affect HP's revenue and gross margins.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation expense for all share-based payment awards granted after November 1, 2005 is determined
based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of
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SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004) "Share-Based Payment” ("SFAS 123R"). HP recognizes these compensation costs net of an
estimated forfeiture rate, and recognizes compensation cost for only those shares expected to vest on a straight-line basis over
the requisite service period of the award, which is generally the option vesting term of four years. HP estimated the forfeiture
rate based on its historical experience for fiscal grant years where the majority of the vesting terms have been satisfied.

HP adopted the alternative transition method provided in the Financial Accounting Standards Board Staff Position
No. FAS 123(R)-3, "Transition Election Related to Accounting for Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards" ("FSP 123R-3")
for calculating the taxeffects of stock-based compensation pursuant to SFAS 123R. The altemative transition method includes
simplified methods to establish the beginning balance of the additional paid-in capital pool ("APIC pool") related to the tax
effects of employee stock-based compensation, and to determine the subsequent impact on the APIC pool and Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows ofthe tax effects of employee stock-based compensation awards that are outstanding upon adoption
of SFAS 123R. See Note 2 for a further discussion on stock-based compensation.

Foreign Currency Transactions

HP uses the U.S. dollar predominately as its functional currency. Assets and liabilities denominated in non-U.S. dollars are
remeasured into U.S. dollars at current exchange rates for monetary assets and liabilities, and historical exchange rates for
nonmonetary assets and liabilities. Net revenue, cost of sales and expenses are remeasured at average exchange rates in effect
during each period, except for those net revenue, cost of sales and expenses related to the previously noted balance sheet
amounts, which HP remeasures at historical exchange rates. HP includes gains or losses from foreign currency remeasurement
in net eamings. Certain foreign subsidiaries designate the local currency as their functional currency, and HP records the
translation of their assets and liabilities into U.S. dollars at the balance sheet dates as translation adjustments and includes
them as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

Retirement and Post-Retirement Plans

HP has various defined benefit, other contributory and nencontributory retirement and post-retirement plans. In addition,
HP has assumed additional retirement and post-retirement plans in connection with its acquisition of Electronic Data Systems
Corporation ("EDS") in August 2008. HP generally amortizes unrecognized actuarial gains and losses on a straight-line basis
over the remaining estimated service life of participants. The measurement date for all HP plans is September 30 for fiscal 2008
and fiscal 2007. The measurement date for all EDS plans for fiscal 2008 is October 31. See Note 15 for a full description ofthese
plans and the accounting and funding policies, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Recent Pronouncements
As previously reported in HP's 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K, HP recognized the funded status of its benefit plans at
October 31, 2007 in accordance with the recognition provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS")
No. 158, "Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans—An Amendment of Financial
Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R)" ("SFAS 158"). In addition to the recognition
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provisions, SFAS 158 also requires companies to measure the funded status of the plan as of the date of their fiscal year end,
effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2008. HP will adopt the measurement provisions of SFAS 158 effective
October 31, 2009 for the HP pension and post retirement plans. HP does not expect the adoption of the measurement provisions
of SFAS 158 will have a material impact on its consolidated results of operations and financial condition.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements" ("SFAS 157"). SFAS 157 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective
for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and is required to be adopted by HP in the
first quarter of fiscal 2009. In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position ("FSP") No. FAS 157-1, "Application of
FASB Statement No. 157 to FASB Statement No. 13 and Other Accounting Pronouncements That Address Fair Value
Measurements for Purposes of Lease Classification or Measurement under Statement 13" and also issued FSP No. 157-2,
"Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157," which collectively remove certain leasing transactions from the scope of
SFAS 157 and partially delay the effective date of SFAS 157 for one year for certain nonfinancial assets and liabilities. In
October 2008, the FASB also issued FSP SFAS 157-3, "Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset When the Market for
That Asset Is Not Active," which clarifies the application of SFAS No. 157 in an inactive market and illustrates how an entity
would determine fair value when the market for a financial asset is not active. Although the Company will continue to evaluate
the application of SFAS 157, HP does not currently believe adoption of SFAS 157 will have a material impact on its consolidated
results of operations and financial condition.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities—
Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115" ("SFAS 159"). SFAS 159 allows companies to elect to measure eligible
financial instruments and certain other items at fair value that are not required to be measured at fair value. SFAS 159 requires
that unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected be reported in earnings at each
reporting date. SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and is required to be adopted by HP in
the first quarter of fiscal 2009. HP does not currently believe adoption will have a material impact on its consolidated results of
operations and financial condition since we do not expect to apply the fair value option to any existing eligible assets or
liabilities.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), "Business Combinations” ("SFAS 141(R)"). SFAS 141(R)
establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable
assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree and the goodwill acquired in connection
with business combinations. SFAS 141(R) also establishes disclosure requirements to enable the evaluation of the nature and
financial effects ofthe business combination. SFAS 141(R) is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008
and will be adopted by HP in the first quarter of fiscal 2010. HP continues to evaluate the impact the adoption of SFAS 141(R)
will have on its consolidated results of operations and financial condition, which impact will be largely dependent on the size
and nature ofthe business combinations completed after the adoption of this statement.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, "Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements—an
amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51" ("SFAS 160"). SFAS 160 establishes accounting and reporting standards

for ownership interests in subsidiaries held by
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parties other than the parent, the amount of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the noncontrolling
interest, changes in a parent's ownership interest, and the valuation of retained noncontrolling equity investments when a
subsidiary is deconsolidated. SFAS 160 also establishes disclosure requirements that clearly identify and distinguish between
the interests of the parent and the interests of the noncontrolling owners. SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15,2008 and will be adopted by HP in the first quarter of fiscal 2010. HP is currently evaluating the potential impact, if
any, of the adoption of SFAS 160 on its consolidated results of operations and financial condition.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, "Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 133" ("SFAS 161"). SFAS 161 applies to all derivative instruments and related hedged items
accounted for under SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" ("SFAS 133"). SFAS 161
requires entities to provide greater transparency about how and why an entity uses derivative instruments, how derivative
instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under SFAS 133 and its related interpretations, and how derivative
instruments and related hedged items affect an entity's financial position, results of operations and cash flows. SFAS 161 is
effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008 and will be
adopted by HP in the second quarter of fiscal 2009. HP does not expect the adoption of SFAS 161 to have a material effect on
its consolidated results of operations and financial condition.

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 162, "The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles”
("SFAS 162"). SFAS 162 identifies the sources of accounting principles and the framework for selecting the principles used in
the preparation of financial statements of nongovernmental entities that are presented in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (the GA AP hierarchy). Statement 162 became effective November 15, 2008. HP does not expect the
adoption of SFAS 162 to have a material effect on its consolidated results of operations and financial condition.

In May 2008, the FASB issued FSP Accounting Principles Board ("APB") 14-1 "Accounting for Convertible Debt
Instruments That May Be Settled in Cash upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash Settlement)" ("FSP APB 14-1"). FSP
APB 14-1 requires the issuer of certain convertible debt instruments that may be settled in cash (or other assets) on conversion
to separately account for the liability (debt) and equity (conversion option) components of the instrument in a manner that
reflects the issuer's non-convertible debt borrowing rate. FSP APB 14-1 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2008 on a retroactive basis and will be adopted by HP in the first quarter of fiscal 2010. HP is currently evaluating the potential
impact of the adoption of FSP APB 14-1 on its consolidated results of operations and financial condition.

In June 2008, the FASB issued FSP Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") 03-6-1, "Determining Whether Instruments
Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities." FSP EITF 03-6-1 clarifies that share-based payment
awards that entitle their holders to receive nonforfeitable dividends or dividend equivalents before vesting should be
considered participating securities. HP has some grants of restricted stock that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends and
will be considered participating securities upon adoption of FSP EITF 03-6-1. As participating securities, HP will be required to
include these instruments in the calculation of eamings per share (EPS), and it will need to calculate EPS using the "two-class
method." The two-class method of computing EPS is an eamings allocation formula that determines EPS for each class of
common stock
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

and participating security according to dividends declared (or accumulated) and participation rights in undistributed earmnings.
FSP EITF 03-6-1 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008 on a retrospective basis and will be adopted by
HP in the first quarter of fiscal 2010. HP is currently evaluating the potential impact, if any, the adoption of FSP EITF 03-6-1
could have on its calculation of EPS.

In November 2008, the FASB ratified EITF Issue No. 08-7, "Accounting for Defensive Intangible Assets," ("EITF 08-7").
EITF 08-7 applies to defensive intangible assets, which are acquired intangible assets that the acquirer does not intend to
actively use but intends to hold to prevent its competitors from obtaining access to them. As these assets are separately
identifiable, EITF 08-7 requires an acquiring entity to account for defensive intangible assets as a separate unit of accounting.
Defensive intangible assets must be recognized at fair value in accordance with SFAS 141(R) and SFAS 157. EITF 08-7 is
effective for defensive intangible assets acquired in fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008 and will be adopted by
HP in the first quarter of fiscal 2010. HP is currently evaluating the potential impact, if any, of the adoption of EITF 08-7 on its
consolidated results of operations and financial condition.

During fiscal 2008, HP adopted the following accounting standard:

FASB Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109"
("FIN 48"). See Note 13 for the effect of applying FIN 48 on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Note 2: Stock-Based Compensation

At October 31, 2008, HP has the stock-based employee compensation plans described below. The total compensation
expense before taxes related to these plans was $606 million, $629 million and $536 million for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

HP sponsors the Hewlett-Packard Company 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, also known as the Share Ownership Plan
(the "ESPP"), pursuant to which eligible employees may contribute up to 10% of base compensation, subject to certain income
limits, to purchase shares of HP's common stock. Employees purchase stock pursuant to the ESPP semi-annually at a price
equal to 85% of'the fair market value on the purchase date. HP recognizes expense based on a 15% discount on a fair market
value.
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The ESPP activity as of October 31 during each fiscal year was as follows:

2008 2007 2006
In millions, except weighted-average purchase price
Compensation expense, net of taxes $ 58 8§ 56 $ 53
Shares purchased 9.68 8.74 11.08
Weighted-average purchase price $ 36 § 39 $ 30

2008 2007 2006

In thousands

Employees eligible to participate 164 161 147
Employees who participated 50 51 53

Incentive Compensation Plans

HP stock option plans include principal plans adopted in 2004, 2000, 1995 and 1990 ("principal option plans"), as well as
various stock option plans assumed through acquisitions under which stock options are outstanding. Employees meeting
certain employment qualifications were eligible to receive stock options in fiscal 2008. There were approximately 109,000
employees holding options under one or more of the option plans as of October 31, 2008. Options granted under the principal
option plans are generally non-qualified stock options, but the principal option plans permit some options granted to qualify as
"incentive stock options" under the U.S. Internal Revenue Code. The exercise price of a stock option is equal to the fair market
value of HP's common stock on the option grant date (as determined by the reported sale prices of HP's common stock when
the market closes on that date). The contractual term of options granted since fiscal 2003 was generally eight years, while the
contractual term of options granted prior to fiscal 2003 was generally ten years. Under the principal option plans, HP may
choose, in certain cases, to establish a discounted exercise price at no less than 75% of fair market value on the grant date. HP
has not granted any discounted options since fiscal 2003.

Under the principal option plans, HP granted certain employees cash, restricted stock awards, or both. Restricted stock
awards are nonvested stock awards that may include grants of restricted stock or grants of restricted stock units. Cash and
restricted stock awards are independent of option grants and are generally subject to forfeiture if employment terminates prior
to the release of the restrictions. Such awards generally vest one to three years from the date of grant. During that period,
ownership of the shares cannot be transferred. Restricted stock has the same cash dividend and voting rights as other common
stock and is considered to be currently issued and outstanding. Restricted stock units have dividend equivalent rights equal to
the cash dividend paid on restricted stock. Restricted stock units do not have the voting rights of common stock, and the
shares underlying the restricted stock units are not considered issued and outstanding. HP expenses the fair market value of
restricted stock awards as determined on the date of grant, ratably over the period during which the restrictions lapse.

In fiscal 2008, HP implemented a program that provides for the issuance of performance-based restricted units ("PRUs")
representing hypothetical shares of HP common stock that may be issued under the Hewlett-Packard Company 2004 Stock
Incentive Plan. PRU awards may be granted to eligible employees, including HP's principal executive officer, principal financial
officer and other
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Note 2: Stock-Based Compensation (Continued)

executive officers. Each PRU award reflects a target number of shares that may be issued to the award recipient. The actual
number of shares the recipient receives is determined at the end of a three-year performance period based on results achieved
versus company performance goals. Those goals are based on HP's annual cash flow from operations as a percentage of
revenue and average total shareholder retum ("TSR") relative to the S&P 500 over the performance period. Depending on HP's
results during the three-year performance period, the actual number of shares that a grant recipient receives at the end ofthe
period may range from 0% to 200% of'the targeted shares granted, based on the calculations described below.

Cash flow performance goals are established at the beginning of each year. At the end of each year, a portion ofthe target
number of shares may be credited in the award recipient's name depending on the achievement ofthe cash flow performance
goal for that year. The number of shares credited varies between 0% if performance is below minimum level and 150% if
performance is at or above maximum level. For performance between the minimum level and the maximum level, a proportionate
percentage between 30% and 150% is applied based on relative performance between minimum and maximum.

Following the expiration of the three-year performance period, the number of shares credited to the award recipient during
the performance period is adjusted by a TSR modifier. The TSR modifier, which is determined at the beginning of each
performance period, varies between 0%, if the minimum level is not met, resulting in no payout under the PRU award, and 133%,
if performance is at or above the maximum level. For performance between the minimum level and the maximum level, a
proportionate TSR modifier between 66% and 133% is applied based on relative performance between minimum and maximum.
The number of shares, if any, received by the PRU award recipient equals the number of shares credited to the award recipient
during the performance period multiplied by the TSR modifier.

Recipients of PRU awards generally must remain employed by HP on a continuous basis through the end ofthe applicable
three-year performance period in order to receive any portion of the shares subject to that award. Target shares subject to PRU
awards do not have dividend equivalent rights and do not have the voting rights of common stock until eamed and issued
following the end ofthe applicable performance period.

Stock Options

HP utilized the Black-Scholes option pricing model to value the stock options granted under its principal option plans. HP
examined its historical pattern of option exercises in an effort to determine if there were any discernable activity patterns based
on certain employee populations. From this analysis, HP identified three employee populations on which to apply the Black-
Scholes model. The table below presents the weighted-average expected life in months of the combined three identified
employee populations. The expected life computation is based on historical exercise patterns and post-vesting termination
behavior within each of the three populations identified. The risk-free interest rate for periods within the contractual life of the
award is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant.
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The fair value of share-based payment awards was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the
following assumptions and weighted-average fair values:

Weighted-average fair value of grants

Risk-free interest rate

Dividend yield
Expected volatility

Expected life in months

Stock Options(l)
2008 2007 2006
$1526 $13.01 $9.38
3.09% 4.68% 4.35%
0.7% 0.8% 1.0%
34% 28% 29%
60 59 57

(M The fair value calculation was based on stock options granted during the period.

Option activity under the principal option plans as of October 31 during each fiscal year was as follows:

Outstanding at beginning of year

Granted and assumed through acquisitions
Exercised

Forgited/cancelled/expired

Outstanding at end ofyear
Vested and expected to vest at end of year
Exercisable at end of year

2008 2007
Weighted- Weighted-
Weighted-  Average Weighted- Average
Average Remaining Aggregate Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Intrinsic Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Term Value Shares Price Term Value
In In In In
thousands In years  millions thousands In years  millions
367,339 § 33 445740 $ 31
10,849 % 49 45562 $ 40
(54,949) § 26 (106,302) $ 26
(15,511)  § 45 (17,661) $ 43
307,728 % 4 34 8§ 2,752 367,339 $ 33 42§ 7375
304,198 § 34 33 § 2,731 361,496 § 33 42 $ 7,256
252,049 § 34 28 $§ 2423 265366 $ 33 34 $ 5298

In fiscal 2008, approximately 8 million stock options with a weighted-average exercise price of $50 were assumed through

the acquisition of EDS.

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total pretax intrinsic value (the difference between HP's
closing stock price on the last trading day of fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007 and the exercise price, multiplied by the number of in-
the-money options) that would have been received by the option holders had all option holders exercised their options on
October 31, 2008 and 2007. This amount changes based on the fair market value of HP's stock. Total intrinsic value of options
exercised in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $1.1 billion, $2.0 billion and $1.2 billion, respectively. Total fair value of options
vested and expensed in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $264 million, $297 million and $265 million, respectively, net of taxes.
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Note 2: Stock-Based Compensation (Continued)

Informatijon about options outstanding was as follows at October 31, 2008:

Options Qutstanding

Options Exercisable

Weighted-
Average
Remaining  Weighted- Weighted-
Contractual Average Average
Shares Life in Exercise Shares Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Years Price Exercisable Price
Shares in thousands
$0-$9.99 390 4.7 $ 6 286 § 6
$10-$19.99 31,622 2.8 $ 16 31406 § 16
$20-$29.99 104,638 36 § 23 92235 § 23
$30-$39.99 74,165 37 § 33 54056 § 34
$40-$49.99 64,633 3.8 $ 45 42,538 $§ 45
$50-$59.99 17,570 19 $ 57 16,848 § 57
$60 and over 14,710 1.0 § 73 14680 §$§ 73
307,728 34§ 34 § 34

252,049

As of October 31, 2008, $425 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to stock options is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average of 1.6 years. As of October 31, 2007, $771 million of total unrecognized compensation cost
related to stock options was expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.1 years.

Restricted Stock Awards

Nonvested restricted stock awards as of October 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

Nonvested at October 31, 2006
Granted

Vested

Forfeited

Nonvested at October 31, 2007

Granted and assumed through acquisitions
Vested
Forfeited

Nonvested at October 31, 2008

99

Weighted-

Average Grant

Shares Date Fair Value
thoulsnands
6,365 $ 24
1,620 $ 44
(1,284) $ 25
(1,003) $ 24
5,698 $ 29
12,712 $ 45
(4,010) $ 32
(1,470) $ 28
12,930 $ 44
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The details of restricted stock awards granted and assumed through acquisitions were as follows:

2008 2007 2006
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average
Grant Grant Grant
Date Fair Date Fair Date Fair
Shares Value Shares Value Shares Value
In In In
thousands thousands thousands
Granted and assumed through acquisitions:
Restricted stock 1,393 § 46 1,469 § 43 1492 § 32
Restricted stock units 11,319 § 45 151 § 45 33 % 30

12,712 § 45 1,620 $ 44 1,525 § 32

In fiscal 2008, approximately 11 million restricted stock units with a weighted-average grant date fair value of $45 were
assumed through the acquisition of EDS.

The details of non-vested restricted stock awards at fiscal year end were as follows:

2007
2008 Shares 2006
In thousands

Nonvested at October 31:
Restricted stock 2,835 4,763 5,492
Restricted stock units 10,095 935 873

12,930 5,698 6,365

As of October 31, 2008, there was $263 million of unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to nonvested
restricted stock awards. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.2 years. As of October 31,
2007, there was $83 million of unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to nonvested restricted stock awards.
That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.0 years.

Performance-based Restricted Units

HP estimated the fair value of a target PRU share using the Monte Carlo sinulation model, as the TSR modifier contains a
market condition. The estimated fair value of each target share for the current year was $40.21. The estimated fair value of a
target share for the second and third years of the three-year performance period will be determined when the cash flow
performance goal is set for each of the next two annual performance periods and the expense will be amortized over the
remainder of the three-year performance period. The estimated expense, net of forfeitures, is based on the Monte Carlo fair
value and is updated for the achievement of the cash flow performance goal for that year at the end of each reporting period.
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The following assumptions were used to determine the fair valie of the PRU awards for the first year:

2008
Expected volatility(]) 26%
Risk-free interest rate 3.13%
Dividend yield 0.7%
Expected life in months 33

(1) HP uses historic volatility for PRU awards as implied volatility cannot be used when simulating multivariate prices for
companies in the S&P 500.

Nonvested performance-based restricted units as of October 31, 2008 were as follows:

Shares
In

thousands
Nonvested at October 31, 2007 —
Granted 8,783
Change in shares due to performance and market conditions 2,492
Vested —
Forfeited (310)
Nonvested at October 31, 2008 10,965

As of October 31, 2008, $108 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to performance-based restricted units
for the first year is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.0 years.

Stock-based Compensation Expense and the Related Income Tax Benefits

HP allocated stock-based compensation expense as follows for each of the fiscal years:

2008 2007 2006

In milliens
Cost of sales $152 $161 $144
Research and development 72 74 70
Selling, general and administrative 382 394 322
Stock-based compensation expense before income taxes 606 629 536
Income taxbenefit (178) (182) (160)

Total stock-based compensation expense after income taxes(!) $428 $447 §376

M Includes $105 million, $84 million and $58 million of stock-based compensation expense, net of taxes, relating to stock
awards assumed through acquisitions and restricted stock awards granted in fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively.
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Cash received from option exercises and purchases under the ESPP in fiscal 2008 was $1.8 billion. The actual tax benefit
realized for the tax deduction from option exercises ofthe share-based payment awards in fiscal 2008 totaled $412 million. Cash
received from option exercises and purchases under the ESPP in fiscal 2007 was $3.1 billion. The actual tax benefit realized for
the tax deduction from option exercises of the share-based payment awards in fiscal 2007 totaled $675 million.

Shares Reserved

Shares available for future grant under the ESPP and stock-based compensation plans were 190,802,000 at October 31, 2008,
including 73,147,000 shares under the assumed Compaq and EDS plans; 181,704,000 at October 31, 2007, including 45,312,000
shares under the assumed Compagq plans; and 217,556,000 at October 31, 2006, including 39,151,000 shares under the assumed
Compagq plans.

HP had 498,574,000 shares of common stock reserved at October 31, 2008, 549,045,000 shares of common stock reserved at
October 31, 2007, and 664,267,000 shares of common stock reserved at October 31, 2006 for future issuance under all stock-
related benefit plans. Additionally, HP had 21,494,000 shares of common stock reserved at each of October 31, 2007 and
October 31, 2006 for future issuances related to conversion of its zero-coupon subordinated notes, which were redeemed in
March 2008.

Note 3: Net Earnings Per Share
HP calculates basic eamings per share ("EPS") using net earnings and the weighted-average number of shares outstanding
during the reporting period. Diluted EPS includes the effect from potential issuance of common stock, such as stock issuable

pursuant to the exercise of stock options.

102

sec.gov/Aré:hives/ .../a2189375z10-k.htm 121/203



9/23/2010 sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/47217/00...
Table of Contents

HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Note 3: Net Earnings Per Share (Continued)

The reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted EPS calculations was as follows for the
following fiscal years ended October 31:

2008 2007 2006 ‘
In millions, except per share |
amounts
Numerator:
Net earnings $ 8,329 $ 7,264 $ 6,198
Adjustment for interest expense on zero-coupon
subordinated convertible notes, net of taxes 3 7 7
Net eamings, adjusted $ 8,332 $ 7271 $ 6,205
Denominator:
Weighted-average shares used to compute basic EPS 2,483 2,630 2,782
Effect of dilutive securities:
Dilution from employee stock plans 81 78 62
Zero-coupon subordinated convertible notes 3 8 8
Dilutive potential common shares 84 86 70
Weighted-average shares used to compute diluted EPS 2,567 2,716 2,852
Net eamnings per share:
Basic $ 3.35 $ 2.76 $ 2.23 |
Diluted $ 3.25 $ 2.68 $ 2.18

HP excludes options with exercise prices that are greater than the average market price fromthe calculation of diluted EPS
because their effect would be anti-dilutive. In fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, HP excluded 54 million shares, 60 million shares and
130 million shares, respectively, fromits diluted EPS calculation. Also, in accordance with SFAS 123R, HP excluded fromthe
calculation of diluted EPS options to purchase an additional 28 million shares, 33 million shares and 48 million shares in fiscal
2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, whose combined exercise price, unamortized fair value and excess tax benefits were greater in
each of those periods than the average market price for HP's common stock because their effect would be anti-dilutive. As
disclosed in Note 2, during the fiscal year ended October 31, 2008, HP granted PRU awards representing approximately 9 million
shares at target. HP includes PRU awards in the dilutive potential common shares when they become contingently issuable per
SFAS No. 128, "Earings per Share," and excludes the awards when they are not contingently issuable. The PRU awards
granted during the fiscal year ended October 31, 2008 have been included in the dilutive potential common shares above as the
performance conditions ofthose awards have been satisfied for fiscal 2008.

In October and November 1997, HP issued U.S. dollar zero-coupon subordinated convertible notes due 2017 (the
"LYONs"), the outstanding principal amount of which was redeemed in March 2008. The LYONs were convertible at the option
of the holders at any time prior to maturity, unless previously redeemed or otherwise purchased. For purposes of calculating
diluted earnings per share above, the interest expense (net of tax) associated with the LYONs was added back to net eamnings,
and the shares issuable upon conversion of the LYONs were included in the weighted-average shares used to compute diluted
eamings per share for periods that the LYONs were outstanding.
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Note 4: Balance Sheet Details
Balance sheet details were as follows for the following fiscal years ended October 31:

Accounts and Financing Receivables

Accounts receivable
Allowance for doubtful accounts

Financing receivables
Allowance for doubtful accounts

2008 2007
In millions

$17,481  $13,646
(553)  (226)
$16,928 $13,420
$ 2,404 $ 2,547
(90) (40)
$ 2314 $ 2507

The increase in the allowance for doubtful accounts for accounts receivable from $226 million as of October 31, 2007 to
$553 million as of October 31, 2008 is due primarily to additional allowances acquired in connection with the EDS acquisition
and further allowances taken against EDS's accounts receivable after the acquisition, combined with an increase in allowances

taken for HP's customer specific risks due in part to the slowing of the economy.

HP has revolving trade receivables-based facilities permitting it to sell certain trade receivables to third parties on a non-
recourse basis. The aggregate maximum capacity under these programs was approximately $584 million as of October 31, 2008.

HP sold approximately $2.7 billion of trade receivables during fiscal 2008. As of October 31, 2008, HP had approximately

$142 million available under these programs.

Inventory

Finished goods
Purchased parts and fabricated assemblies

Other Current Assets

Deferred tax assets — short-term

Value added taxes receivable from the government
Supplier and other receivables

Prepaid and other current assets

104

2008 2007
In millions
$5,219 $5,404
2,660 2,629
$7,879 $8,033
2008 2007
In millions
$ 3,920 $ 4,609
3,115 2,979
3,082 2,676
4244 1,733
$14,361 $11,997
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Land
Buildings and leasehold improvements
Machinery and equipment

Accumulated depreciation

2008 2007
1o millions
$§ 526 § 464
7,238 6,044
1,121 9,903
18,885 16,411
(8,047) (8,613)

$10,838 § 7,798

Depreciation expense was approximately $2.4 billion in fiscal 2008, $1.9 billion in fiscal 2007 and $1.7 billion in fiscal 2006.

Long-Term Financing Receivables and Other Assets

Financing receivables
Deferred taxassets—long-term
Other

Other Accrued Liabilities

Other accrued taxes

Warranty

Sales and marketing programs
Other

Other Liabilities

Pension, post-retirement, and post-employment liabilities
Deferred tax liability—Ilong-term

Long-term deferred revenue

Other long-term liabilities

105

2008 2007
In millions
$2,722 $2,778

792 961
6,954 3,908
$10,468 $7,647
2008 2007
In millions
$ 3258 §$ 2,965
1,973 1,762
2,958 2,930
802 6,126
$16211 $13,783
2008 2007
In millions
$ 3,692 $1,495
3,162 397
3,152 2,459
3,768 1,565
$13,774 $5916
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Long-term deferred revenue represents service and product deferred revenue to be recognized after one year fromthe
balance sheet date. Deferred revenue represents amounts received or billed in advance for fixed-price support or maintenance
contracts, software customer support contracts, outsourcing services start-up or transition work, consulting and integration
projects, product sales and leasing income. The fixed-price support or maintenance contracts include stand-alone product
support packages, routine maintenance service contracts, upgrades or extensions to standard product warranty, as well as high
availability services for complex, global, networked, multi- vendor environments. HP defers these service amounts at the time
HP bills the customer, and HP then recognizes the amounts ratably over the contract life or as HP renders the services. HP also
defers and subsequently amortizes certain set-up costs related to activities that enable the performance of the customer
contract. Deferred contract costs, including set-up and other unbilled costs, are amortized on a straight-line basis over the
remaining original contract term unless billing patterns indicate a more accelerated method is appropriate.

Note 5: Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Supplemental cash flow information was as follows for the following fiscal years ended October 31:

2008 2007 2006

In millions
Cash paid for income taxes, net $1,136 $956 $637
Cash paid for interest $ 426 $489 $299

Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Issuance of common stock and stock awards assumed in business acquisitions $ 316 $41 § 13
Purchase of assets under financing arrangement $ — $57 $—
Purchase of assets under capital leases $ 30 $— $19

Note 6: Acquisitions

HP has recorded all acquisitions using the purchase method of accounting and, accordingly, has included the results of
operations of acquired businesses in HP's consolidated results as of the date of each acquisition. HP allocates the purchase
price of its acquisitions to the tangible assets, liabilities and intangible assets acquired, including IPR&D charges, based on
their estimated fair values. The excess purchase price over those fair values is recorded as goodwill. The fair value assigned to
assets acquired is based on valuations using management's estimates and assumptions.

Acquisitions in fiscal 2008
Acquisition of Electronic Data Systems Corporation
On August 26, 2008, HP completed its acquisition of EDS, a leading global technology services company, delivering a
broad portfolio of information technology, applications and business process outsourcing services to clients in the
manufacturing, financial services, healthcare, communications, energy, transportation, and consumer and retail industries and
to govemments around the world. The acquisition of EDS will strengthen HP's service offerings for information technology

outsourcing, including data center services, workplace services, networking services and managed security; business
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Note 6: Acquisitions (Continued)

process outsourcing, including health claims, fmancial processing, CRM and HR outsourcing; and applications, including
development, modemization and management.

The total preliminary estimated purchase price for EDS was approximately $13.0 billion and was comprised of:

Acquisition of approximately 507 million shares of outstanding common stock of EDS at $25 per share in cash
Estimated fair value of outstanding stock options and restricted stock units assumed

Estimated direct transaction costs

Total preliminary estimated purchase price

In
millions

$12,670
328
34

$13,032

In connection with the acquisition, HP assumed options to purchase approximately 8 million shares of HP's common stock
at a weighted-average exercise price of approximately $50 per share. HP also assumed approximately 11 million restricted stock
units with a weighted-average grant date fair value of $45. See Note 2 for a further discussion on stock compensation in relation

to EDS.

Direct transaction costs include investment banking, legal and accounting fees and other extemal costs directly related to

the acquisition.

The purchase price allocations as of the date ofthe acquisition in the table below reflect various preliminary estimates and
analyses, including preliminary work performed by third-party valuation specialists, and are subject to change during the
purchase price allocation period (generally one year from the acquisition date) as valuations are finalized.

Cash and short-term investments
Accounts receivable

Property, plant and equipment
Other tangible assets

Notes payable and debt

Pension liability (Note 15)
Restructuring liability (Note 8)
Net deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities assumed

Total net tangible liabilities

Amortizable intangible assets:
Customer contracts and related relationships

Developed technology and trade name

Goodwill
IPR&D

Total preliminary estimated purchase price

107

In
millions

$ 3,034
2,549
3,203
3,126
(3,298)
2.243)
(1,515
(1,427)
(5,370)

$(1,941)

3,199
1,349

10,395
30

$13,032
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Note 6: Acquisitions (Continued)
Of the total purchase price, a preliminary estimate of approximately $4.5 billion has been allocated to amortizable intangible |

assets acquired and a preliminary estimate of approximately $1.9 billion has been allocated to net tangible liabilities assumed in

connection with the acquisition. Goodwill, which represents the excess of the purchase price over the net tangible and

intangible assets acquired, is not deductible for tax purposes. The amortizable intangible assets are being amortized on a

straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

In Weighted-
millions average useful life
Customer contracts and related relationships $ 3,199 8.0 years
Developed technology and trade name 1,349 4.6 years
Total amortizable intangible assets $ 4,548

Customer contracts and related relationship assets represent existing contracts that relate primarily to underlying customer
relationships. The preliminary estimated fair value of the customer contracts and related relationships represents the sumofthe
present value of the expected cash flows attributable to those customer relationships. The cash flows were determined from the
revenue and profit forecasts associated with existing contracts and renewals, as well as add-ons and growth opportunities that
are expected to be generated from these customer relationships.

The developed technology and trade name assets include patents, business processes and tools, proprietary business
methods and the EDS family brand. EDS's technology can be leveraged to assist and improve existing services.

IPR&D charges relate to amounts assigned to tangible and intangible assets to be used in research and development
projects that have no alternative future use and therefore are charged to expense at the acquisition date. Accordingly, the
portion of the purchase price allocated to in-process research and development was charged to expense in HP's fiscal quarter
ended October 31, 2008.

HP has evaluated and continues to evaluate certain pre-acquisition contingencies relating to EDS that existed as of the
acquisition date. Additional information, which existed as of the acquisition date but was at that time unknown to HP, may
become known to HP during the remainder of the purchase price allocation period, and may result in goodwill adjustments. If
these pre-acquisition contingencies become probable in nature and estimable after the end of the purchase price allocation
period, amounts would be recorded for such matters in HP's results of operations.

Pro forma results for EDS acquisition

The following unaudited pro forma financial information presents the combined results of operations of HP and EDS as if
the acquisition had occurred as of the beginning of each of the periods presented. The pro forma financial information is
presented for informational purposes and is not indicative ofthe results of operations that would have been achieved if the
acquisition and related borrowings had taken place at the beginning of each of the periods presented. The unaudited pro forma
financial information for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2008 combines the historical results of HP for the year ended
October 31, 2008, which includes post-acquisition results of EDS for the period from August 26, 2008 to October 31, 2008, with
the historical results for pre-acquisition EDS for
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the period November 1, 2007 to August 25, 2008. Due to different fiscal period ends, the unaudited pro forma financial
information for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2007 combines the historical results of HP for the fiscal year ended October 31,
2007 with the historical results of EDS for the twelve months ended September 30, 2007. The unaudited pro forma results for all
periods presented include amortization charges for acquired intangible assets, eliminations of intercompany transactions,
restructuring charges, IPR&D charges, adjustments for incremental stock-based compensation expense related to the unearned
portion of EDS stock options and restricted stock units assumed, adjustments for depreciation expense for property, plant and
equipment, adjustments to interest expense and related taxeffects. The unaundited pro forma results were as follows for the
fiscal years ended October 31, 2008 and 2007:

In millions, except per share data 2008 2007

Revenue $136,022 $126,178
Net income S 788 § 7,090
Basic net income per share § 315 § 270
Diluted net income per share $§ 305 § 260

Other acquisitions in fiscal 2008

HP also completed eight other acquisitions and a minority interest purchase during fiscal 2008. Total consideration for the
acquisitions and the minority interest purchase was approximately $1.6 billion, which includes direct transaction costs, the
estimated fair value of stock options assumed and certain liabilities recorded in connection with these transactions. HP
recorded approximately $1.0 billion of goodwill, approximately $600 million of purchased intangibles and approximately
$15 million of IPR&D related to these transactions.

The largest of these transactions was the acquisition of Exstream Software, LLC, which has been integrated into HP's
Imaging and Printing Group. The total purchase price paid was approximately $720 million, which included direct transaction
costs as well as certain debt that was repaid at the acquisition date. In connection with this acquisition, HP recorded
approximately $434 million of goodwill, $235 million of purchased intangibles and expensed $11 million for IPR&D. HP is
amortizing the purchased intangibles on a straight-line basis over a weighted-average estimated life of 6.8 years.

Subsequent Acquisitions

On November 13, 2008, HP completed its acquisition of Lefthand Networks, Inc., a leading provider of storage virtualization
and solutions for approximately $347 million. Lefthand Networks is being integrated into HP's Enterprise Storage and Servers
segment within the Technology Solutions Group.

Acquisitions in fiscal 2007
Mercury Acquisition

On November 2, 2006, HP completed its tender offer for Mercury Interactive Corporation ("Mercury"), a leading IT

management software and services company, and acquired approximately 96% of Mercury common shares for cash

consideration of $52 per share. On November 6, 2006, HP
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acquired the remaining outstanding common shares, and Mercury became a wholly owned subsidiary of HP. This acquisition

combined Mercury's application management, application delivery and IT governance capabilities with HP's broad portfolio of
management solutions.

The aggregate purchase price of approximately $4.9 billion consisted of cash paid for outstanding stock, the fair value of
stock options assumed and direct transaction costs.

Based on valuations prepared using estimates and assumptions provided by management, the purchase price allocation as
of the date of acquisition has been allocated as follows:

In
millions

Cash and short-term investments $ 830
Other tangible assets 541
Notes payable (303)
Other liabilities assumed. (954)

Total net assets 114
Amortizable intangible assets 1,079
Goodwill 3,480
IPR&D 181
Total purchase price. $ 4,854

HP has included Mercury within the HP Software segment. The amortizable intangible assets are being amortized on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Weighted-
In average

millions useful life
Technology $ 592 42years
Customer relationships 243 7.0 years
Maintenance contracts 239 6.8 years
Trademarks 5 6.0years
Total amortizable intangible assets $ 1,079 SA4years

Opsware Acquisition

On September 17, 2007, HP completed its tender offer for Opsware Inc. ("Opsware"), a leader in data center automation, and
acquired more than 90% of Opsware's common shares for cash consideration of $14.25 per share. On September 21, 2007, HP
acquired all remaining outstanding Opsware shares. Opsware has been integrated into the HP Software segment.

The aggregate purchase price of approximately $1.7 billion consisted of cash paid for outstanding stock, the fair value of
stock options assumed and direct transaction costs. In connection with this acquisition, HP recorded approximately $1.3 billion
of goodwill and $249 million of amortizable intangible assets. HP is amortizing the purchased intangibles on a straight-line basis
over a weighted-average estimated life of 5.0 years. HP did not record any IPR&D in connection with the Opsware acquisition.
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Other acquisitions in fiscal 2007
HP also completed eight other acquisitions during fiscal 2007. Total consideration for these acquisitions was approximately
$1.0 billion, which included direct transaction costs, the estimated fair value of earned unvested stock options and certain
liabilities recorded in connection with these acquisitions. The largest of these transactions was the acquisition of
Neoware, Inc., which has been integrated into HP's Personal Systems Group.
HP recorded approximately $700 million of goodwill and $182 million of purchased intangibles in connection with these
other acquisitions. HP also recorded approximately $9 million of IPR&D related to these acquisitions in fiscal 2007.

Note 7: Goodwill and Purchased Intangible Assets

Goodwill

Goodwill allocated to HP's business segments as of October 31, 2008 and 2007 and changes in the carrying amount of
goodwill during the fiscal year ended October 31, 2008 are as follows:

Enterprise Imaging
Storage Personal  and HP
HP and HP Systems Printing Financial Corporate
Services Servers Software Group Group Services Investments Total
In millions
Balance at October 31, 2007 $ 6221 $ 5076 $5921 $2,523 $1,887 § 145 — $21,773
Goodwill acquired during the
period 10,072 — 51 3 582 — § 44 $10,752

Goodwill adjustments 9 (33 190 (33) (6 ) —  (190)
Balance at October 31, 2008 $16284 § 4,745 $6,162 $2493 $2463 § 144 § 44 $32,335

During the year, HP recorded approximately $10.4 billion of goodwill for EDS at the date of the acquisition and
approximately $1.0 billion of goodwill related to other acquisitions. HP also recorded a reduction of approximately $600 million
to goodwill as a result of currency translation for the period August 26, 2008 through October 31,2008 in respect of EDS's
foreign subsidiaries whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar.

The goodwill adjustments relate primarily to the reversal of income taxreserves for HP's acquisitions associated with their
pre-acquisition tax years. These reserves have been reclassified as a reduction of goodwill. In addition, the goodwill
adjustments for fiscal 2008 include the transfer of goodwill associated with certain acquisitions from Enterprise Storage and
Servers to HP Software in line with the organizational reclassifications to our software business.

Based on the results of'its annual impairment tests, HP determined that no impairment of goodwill existed as of August 1,
2008 or August 1, 2007. However, future goodwill impairment tests could result in a charge to eamings. HP will continue to
evaluate goodwill on an annual basis as ofthe beginning of its fourth fiscal quarter and whenever events and changes in
circumstances indicate that there may be a potential impairment.
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Purchased Intangible Assets

HP's purchased intangible assets associated with completed acquisitions for each of the following fiscal years ended
October 31 are composed of:

2008 2007
Accumulated Accumulated
Gross Amortization Net Gross Amortization Net
In millions

Customer contracts, customer lists and distribution

agreements $ 6,530 $ (2,176) $4,354 $3,239 $ (1,679) $1,560
Developed and core technology and patents 4,189 2,147y 2,042 2,768 (1,694 1,074
Product trademarks 253 (109) 144 115 (92) 23
Total amortizable purchased intangible assets 10,972 4432) 6,540 6,122 (3,465) 2,657
Compagq trade name 1,422 — 1422 1422 — 1422
Total purchased ntangible assets $12394 $ (4432) $7962 $7544 § (3,465) $4,079

During the year, HP recorded approximately $4.5 billion of purchased intangibles related to the EDS acquisition.

Amortization expense related to finite-lived purchased intangible assets was approximately $967 million in fiscal 2008,
$783 million in fiscal 2007 and $604 million in fiscal 2006.

Based on the results of its annual impairment tests, HP determined that no impairment of the Compagq trade name existed as
of August 1, 2008 or August 1, 2007. However, future impairment tests could result in a charge to earnings. HP will continue to
evaluate the purchased intangible asset with an indefinite life on an annual basis as of the beginning ofits fourth fiscal quarter
and whenever events and changes in circumstances indicate that there may be a potential impairment.

The finite-lived purchased intangible assets consist of customer contracts, customer lists and distribution agreements,
which have weighted-average useful lives of 8 years, and developed and core technology, patents and product trademarks,
which have weighted-average useful lives of 5.3 years.
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Estimated future amortization expense related to finite-lived purchased intangible assets at October 31, 2008 was as follows:

Fiscal year: In millions
2009 $ 1,495
2010 1,326
2011 1,027
2012 833
2013 692
Thereafter 1,167
Total $ 6,540

Note 8: Restructuring Charges
Fiscal 2008 Restructuring Plan

In connection with the acquisition of EDS on August 26, 2008, HP's management approved and initiated a restructuring
plan to streamline the combined company's services business and to better align the structure and efficiency ofthat business
with HP's operating model. The restructuring plan is expected to be implemented over the next four years and will include
changes to the combined company's workforce as well as changes to corporate overhead functions, such as real estate, IT and
procurement. As part of the restructuring plan, HP expects to eliminate approximately 24,700 positions.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, HP recorded a liability of approximately $1.8 billion related to the restructuring plan.
Approximately $1.5 billion of the liability was associated with pre-acquisition EDS and was recorded to goodwill, and the
remaining approximately $0.3 billion was associated with HP and was recorded as a restructuring charge. The liability consisted
mainly of severance costs, costs to vacate duplicate facilities and costs associated with early termination of certain contractual
obligations. As of October 31, 2008, approximately 2,300 positions had been eliminated.

HP expects the restructuring costs to be paid out through 2012 with the majority paid out by the end of fiscal 2009. In
future quarters, HP expects to record an additional charge of approximately $280 million related to severance costs for
approximately 2,700 employees and the cost to vacate duplicate facilities.

Allrestructuring costs associated with pre-acquisition EDS are reflected in the purchase price of EDS in accordance with
EITF 95-3, "Recognition of Liabilities in Connection with a Purchase Business Combination." These costs are subject to change
based on the actual costs incurred. Changes to these estimates could increase or decrease the amount of the purchase price
allocated to goodwill.

Prior Fiscal Year Plans

Restructuring plans initiated in fiscal years 2007, 2005, 2003, 2002 and 2001 are substantially complete, although HP records
minor revisions to previous estimates as necessary. During fiscal 2008, HP recorded a net charge of $24 million due primarily to
adjustments for severance and facilities costs associated with these prior-year plans. As of October 31, 2008, there was a
remaining balance of
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approximately $77 million of accrued restructuring expenses associated with these plans. HP expects to pay the majority of
these costs through 2018.

Workforce Rebalancing
As part of HP's ongoing business operations, HP incurred workforce rebalancing charges for severance and related costs
within certain business segments during fiscal 2008. Workforce rebalancing activities are considered part of normal operations

as HP continues to optimize its cost structure. W orkforce rebalancing costs are included in HP's business segment results, and
HP expects to incur additional workforce rebalancing costs in the future.

Summary of Restructuring Plans

The activity in the accrued restructuring balances related to all of the plans described above was as follows for fiscal 2008:

As of October 31, 2008

Fiscal Non-cash Total costs Total

Balance, year 2008 settlements Balance, and ex pected

October 31, charges Goodwill Cash and other October 31, adjustments costs and
2007 (reversals) adjustments payments adjustments 2008 to date adjustments

In millions
Fiscal 2008 HP/EDS Plan:

Severance $ — $ 245 $ 1,290 $ (64) $ 27) $ 1444 $ 1535 § L7
Infrastructure — 1 252 (5) — 248 253 294
Total severance and other restructuring activities $ — $ 246 $ 1542 § (69 $ 27 $ 1,692 $ 1,78 $§ 2,066
Prior fiscal year plans 173 24 (13) (96) (11 77 6,348 6,348
Total restructuring plans $ 173 § 270 $ 1,529 $ (165) $ (38) $ 1,769 $ 8136 § 8414

At October 31, 2008 and October 31, 2007, HP included the long-term portion of the restructuring liability of $670 million
and $50 million, respectively, in Other liabilities, and the short-term portion in Other accrued liabilities in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Note 9: Financial Instruments
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities

Investments in available-for-sale debt and equity securities at fair value were as follows for the following fiscal years ended
October 31:

2008 2007
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Unrealizd Unrealizd Estimated Unrealizd Unrealizd Estimated
Cost Gains Loss Fair Value Cost Gain Loss Fair Value
In millions
Available-for-Sale
Securities
Debt securities:
Time deposits $ 1038 — 8% — 8§ 1038 141 8§ — $ — § 141
Commercial paper 83 — (20) 63 104 — — 104
Corporate debt — — — — 11 — — 11
Other debt securities 21 1 — 22 27 — (@) 25
Total debt securities 207 1 (20) 188 283 — ) 281
Equity securities in public
companies 3 2 — 5 3 6 — S

$ 2108 38 (2008 1938 286 S 68 (2§ 29

Time deposits consist of certificate of deposits with maturity dates greater than three months. Commercial paper
investments include asset-backed commercial paper. Corporate debt consists primarily of loans to the other companies that are
guaranteed by standby letters of credit issued by third-party banks. Other debt securities consist primarily of fixed-interest
securities invested for early retirement purposes and also fixed income fund. Equity securities in public companies are primarily
common stock.

HP estimated the fair values based on quoted market prices or pricing models using current market rates. These estimated
fair values may not be representative of actual values that could have been realized as of year-end or that will be realized in the
future.

The gross unrealized loss as of October 31, 2008 was due primarily to declines in certain asset-backed securities associated
with the commercial paper. HP intends to hold the commercial paper and believes the asset-backed securities will recover over
time. In fiscal 2008 and 2007, HP recognized gross realized losses of $16 million and $15 million, respectively, associated with
commercial paper.
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Contractual maturities of available-for-sale debt securities were as follows at October 31, 2008:

Available-for-Sale

Securities
Estimated
Fair
Cost Value
" In millions
Due in less than one year $93 $§ 9B
Due in 1-5 years 31 32
Due in more than five years 83 63
$207 $ 188

Proceeds from sales or maturities of available-for-sale and other securities were $280 million in fiscal 2008, $425 million in
fiscal 2007 and $94 million in fiscal 2006. The gross realized gains totaled $19 million in fiscal 2008 and $42 million in fiscal 2007.
The gross realized gains and losses totaled $35 million and $2 million, respectively, in fiscal 2006. The specific identification
method is used to account for gains and losses on available-for-sale securities.

A summary of the carrying values and balance sheet classification of all investments in debt and equity securities was as
follows for the following fiscal years ended October 31:

2008 2007
In millions

Available-for-sale debt securities $93 §$152
Short-term investments 93 152
Available-for-sale debt securities 95 129
Available-for-sale equity securities 5 9
Equity securities in privately-held companies 145 115
Marketable trading securities and other investments 280 418
Inctuded in long-term financing receivables and other assets 525 671
Total investments $618 $823

Equity securities in privately-held companies include cost basis and equity method investments. Marketable trading
securities and other investments consist primarily of marketable trading securities held to generate returns that HP expects to
offset changes in certain liabilities related to deferred compensation arrangements. HP includes gains or losses from changes in
fair value of these securities, offset by losses or gains on the related liabilities, in interest and other, net, in HP's Consolidated
Statements of Earnings. The gains or losses associated with these securities are not material for both fiscal years 2008 and 2007.

Derivative Financial Instruments
HP is a global company that is exposed to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations and interest rate changes in the
normal course of its business. As part of its risk management strategy, HP uses derivative instruments, primarily forward
contracts, swaps and options, to hedge certain foreign currency and interest rate exposures. HP's objective is to offset gains

and losses resulting fromthese
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exposures with losses and gains on the derivative contracts used to hedge them, thereby reducing volatility of eamings or
protecting fair values of assets and liabilities. HP does not use derivative contracts for speculative purposes. HP applies hedge
accounting based upon the criteria established by SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities" ("SFAS 133"), whereby HP designates its derivatives as fair value hedges, cash flow hedges or hedges of the
foreign currency exposure of a net investment in a foreign operation ("net investment hedges"). HP recognizes all derivatives in
the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value and reports themin other current assets, long-term financing receivables and
other assets, other accrued liabilities, or other liabilities. HP classifies cash flows fromthe derivative programs as cash flows
from operating activities in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

As aresult of the use of derivative instruments, HP is exposed to the risk that counterparties to derivative contracts will fail
to meet their contractual obligations. To mitigate the counterparty credit risk, HP has a policy of only entering into contracts
with carefully selected major financial institutions based upon their credit ratings and other factors, and maintains strict dollar
and term limits that correspond to each institution's credit rating. HP's established policies and procedures for mitigating credit
risk on principal transactions and short term cash include reviewing and establishing limits for credit exposure and continually
assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties. Master agreements with counterparties include master netting arrangements
as further mitigation of credit exposure to counterparties. These arrangements permit HP to net amounts due fromHP to a
counterparty with amounts due to HP from a counterparty reducing the maximum loss from credit risk in the event of
counterparty default.

Fair Value Hedges

HP may enter into fair value hedges to reduce the exposure of its debt portfolio to both interest rate risk and foreign
currency exchange rate risk. HP issues long-term debt in either U.S. dollars or foreign currencies based on market conditions at
the time of financing. HP may then use interest rate or cross currency swaps to modify the market risk exposures in connection
with the debt to achieve primarily U.S. dollar LIBOR-based floating interest expense and to manage exposure to changes in
foreign currency exchange rates. The swap transactions generally involve the exchange of fixed for floating interest payments,
and, when the underlying debt is denominated in a foreign currency, exchange of the foreign currency principal and interest
obligations for U.S. dollar-denominated amounts. Alternatively, HP may choose not to swap fixed for floating interest payments
or may terminate a previously executed swap if it believes a larger proportion of fixed-rate debt would be beneficial. HP may
choose not to hedge the foreign currency risk associated with its foreign currency denominated debt if this debt acts as a
natural hedge for foreign currency assets denominated in the same currency. When investing in fixed rate instruments, HP may
enter into interest rate swaps that convert the fixed interest returns into variable interest retums and would classify these
swaps as fair value hedges. For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges, HP recognizes the
gain or loss on the derivative instrument, as well as the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item in interest and other, net, in
the Consolidated Statements of Eamnings in the current period. When HP terminates an interest rate swap before maturity, the
resulting gain or loss fromthe termination is amortized over the remaining life of the underlying hedged item.
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Cash Flow Hedges

HP may use cash flow hedges to hedge the variability of LIBOR-based interest income HP receives on certain variable-rate
investments. HP may enter into interest rate swaps that convert variable rate interest retumns into fixed-rate interest returns. For
interest rate swaps that HP designates and that qualify as cash flow hedges, HP records changes in the fair values in
accumulated other comprehensive income as a separate component of stockholders’ equity and subsequently reclassifies such
changes into earnings in the period during which the hedged transaction is recognized in eamings.

HP uses a combination of forward contracts and options designated as cash flow hedges to protect against the foreign
currency exchange rate risks inherent in its forecasted net revenue and, to a lesser extent, cost of sales and intercompany lease
loan denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. HP's foreign currency cash flow hedges mature generally within six
months. However, certain leasing revenue-related forward contracts and intercompany lease loan forward contracts extend for
the duration of the lease term, which can be up to five years. For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as cash
flow hedges, HP initially records the effective portions of the gain or loss on the derivative instrument in accumulated other
comprehensive loss as a separate component of stockholders' equity and subsequently reclassifies these amounts into
eamings in the period during which the hedged transaction is recognized in earnings. HP reports the effective portion of cash
flow hedges in the same financial statement line item as the changes in value of the hedged item. As of October 31, 2008,
amounts related to derivatives qualifying as cash flow hedges amounted to an accumulated other comprehensive gain of
$840 million, net of taxes and an accumulated other comprehensive loss of $38 million, net oftaxes. HP expects to reclassify net
accumulated other comprehensive gain of $807 million to earnings in the next 12 months along with the eamings effects of the
related forecasted transactions. In addition, during fiscal 2008 and 2007 HP did not discontinue any cash flow hedges for which
it was probable that a forecasted transaction would not occur.

Net Investment Hedges

HP uses forward contracts designated as net investment hedges to hedge net investments in certain foreign subsidiaries
whose functional currency is the local currency. For derivative instruments that are designated as net investment hedges, HP
records the effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative instrument together with changes in the hedged items in
cunulative translation adjustment as a separate component of stockholders’ equity. Cumulative translation adjustment
increased as result of an unrecognized net gain on net investment hedges of $218 million and decreased as result of an
unrecognized net loss on net investment hedges of $109 million for the fiscal years ended October 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively.

Other Derivatives

Other derivatives not designated as hedging instruments under SFAS 133 consist primarily of forward contracts HP uses
to hedge foreign currency balance sheet exposures. For derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments under
SFAS 133, HP recognizes changes in the fair values in earnings in the period of change. HP recognizes the gains or losses on
foreign currency forward contracts used to hedge balance sheet exposures in interest and other, net in the same period as the
remeasurement gam and loss ofthe related foreign currency denominated assets and labilities. Interest and other, net, ncluded
net foreign currency exchange losses of approximately $166 million in
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fiscal 2008, gains of approximately $86 million in fiscal 2007, and gains of approximately $54 million in fiscal 2006.
Hedge Effectiveness

For interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges, HP measures effectiveness by offsetting the change in fair value of
the hedged debt and investments with the change in fair value of the derivative. For interest rate swaps designated as cash
flow hedges, HP measures effectiveness by offsetting the change in the variable portion of the interest rate swaps with the
changes in expected interest income received due to the fluctuations in the LIBOR-based interest rate. For foreign currency
options and forward contracts designated as cash flow or net investment hedges, HP measures effectiveness by comparing the
cumulative change in the hedge contract with the cumulative change in the hedged item, both of which are based on forward
rates. HP recognizes any ineffective portion of the hedge, as well as amounts not included in the assessment of effectiveness,
in the Consolidated Statements of Eamings. As of October 31,2008, the portion of hedging instruments’ gains or losses
excluded fromthe assessment of effectiveness was not material for fair value or net investment hedges. Hedge ineffectiveness
for fair value, cash flow and net investment hedges was not material in the fiscal years ended October 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006.

HP estimates the fair values of derivatives based on quoted market prices or pricing models using current market rates and
records all derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value. The gross notional and fair market value of derivative financial
instruments and the respective SFAS 133 classification on the Consolidated Balance Sheets were as follows for the following
fiscal years ended October 31:

2008
Long-term
Financing
Receivables
Other and Other
Gross Current Other Accrued Other
Notional Assets Assets Liabilities  Liabilities Total
In millions
Fair value hedges $485 ¢ — § 117 § ® $ — § 109
Cash flow hedges 14,061 1,300 77 42) — 1,335
Net investment hedges 1,152 91 56 ?3) ?3) 141
Other derivatives 22,013 417 134 (135) (26) 390
Total $42,051 $1808 §$ 384 $ (188) $ (290 $1,975
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2007
Long-term
Financing
Receivables
Other and Other
Gross Current Other Accrued Other
Notional Assets Assets Liabilities  Liabilities  Total
In millions
Fair value hedges $ 2450 $ — $ 21§ — § — §$ 21
Cash flow hedges 9,657 73 — (183) —  (110)
Net investment hedges 1,002 5 — (78) @7 (100)
Other derivatives 17,854 86 7 (377 (87 (37)
Total $3093 $164 $ 28 $ (638) $ (114) $(560)

Fair Value of Other Financial Instruments

For certain of HP's financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, accounts
receivable, financing receivables, notes payable and short-term borrowings, accounts payable and other accrued liabilities, the
carrying amounts approximate fair value due to their short maturities. The estimated fair value of HP's short- and long-term debt
was approximately $17.7 billion at October 31, 2008, compared to a carrying value of $17.9 billion at that date. The estimated fair
value of the debt is based primarily on quoted market prices, as well as borrowing rates currently available to HP for bank loans
with similar terms and maturities.

Note 10: Financing Receivables and Operating Leases

Financing receivables represent sales-type and direct-financing leases resulting from the marketing of HP's and third-party
products. These receivables typically have terms fromtwo to five years and are usually collateralized by a security interest in
the underlying assets. Financing receivables also include billed receivables from operating leases. The components of net
financing receivables, which are included in financing receivables and long-term financing receivables and other assets, were as
follows for the following fiscal years ended October 31:

2008 2007
In millions
Minimum lease payments receivable $5,338 $5,568
Allowance for doubtful accounts (90) (84)
Unguaranteed residual value 254 291
Unearned income (466) (490)
Financing receivables, net 5,036 5,285
Less current portion 2,314)  (2,507)
Amounts due after one year, net $2,722 $2,778
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As of October 31, 2008, scheduled maturities of HP's minimum lease payments receivable were as follows for the following
fiscal years ended October 31:

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter Total
In millions

Scheduled maturities of minimum lease payments receivable $2,535 $ 1,450 $788 $340 $159 $§ 66 $ 5,338

Equipment leased to customers under operating leases was $2.3 billion at October 31, 2008 and $2.4 billion at October 31,
2007 and is included in machinery and equipment. Accumulated depreciation on equipment under lease was $0.5 billion at
October 31, 2008 and $0.6 billion at October 31, 2007. As of October 31, 2008, minimum future rentals on non-cancelable
operating leases related to leased equipment were as follows for the following fiscal years ended October 31:

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter Total
In millions

Minimum future rentals on non-cancelable operating leases $887 $ 564 $250 $57 $22 § 12 § 1,792

Note 11: Guarantees
Guarantees and Indemnifications

In the ordinary course of business, HP may provide certain clients, principally governmental entities, with subsidiary
performance guarantees and/or financial performance guarantees, which may be backed by standby letters of credit or surety
bonds. In general, HP would be liable for the amounts of these guarantees in the event HP or HP's subsidiaries' nonperformance
permits termination of the related contract by the client, the likelihood of which HP believes is remote. HP believes that the
company is in compliance with the performance obligations under all material service contracts for which there is a performance
guarantee.

As aresult of the acquisition of EDS, HP acquired certain service contracts supported by client financing or securitization
arrangements. Under specific circumstances involving non performance resulting in service contract termination or failure to
comply with terms under the financing arrangement, HP would be required to acquire certain assets. HP considers the
possibility of its failure to comply to be remote and the asset amounts involved to be immaterial.

In the ordinary course of business, HP enters into contractual arrangements under which HP may agree to indemnify the
third party to such arrangement from any losses incurred relating to the services they perform on behalf of HP or for losses
arising from certain events as defined within the particular contract, which may include, for example, litigation or claims relating
to past performance. Such indemnification obligations may not be subject to maximum loss clauses. Historically, payments
made related to these indenmmnifications have been immaterial.

Warranty

HP provides for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time it recognizes revenue. HP engages in extensive
product quality programs and processes, including actively monitoring and
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evaluating the quality of its component suppliers; however, product warranty terms offered to customers, ongoing product
failure rates, material usage and service delivery costs incurred in correcting a product failure, as well as specific product class
failures outside of HP's baseline experience, affect the estimated warranty obligation. If actual product failure rates, repair rates
or any other post sales support costs differ from these estimates, revisions to the estimated warranty liability would be

required.

The changes in HP's aggregate product warranty liabilities were as follows for the following fiscal years ended October 31:

2008 2007
In millions
Product warranty liability at beginning of year $2,376 $2,248
Accruals for warranties issued 3,351 2,712
Adjustments related to pre-existing warranties (including changes in estimates) (107) (108)
Settlements made (in cash or in kind) (3,006) (2,476)
Product warranty liability at end of year $2,614 $2376

Note 12: Borrowings
Notes Payable and Short-Term Borrowings

Notes payable and short-term borrowings, including the current portion of long-term debt, were as follows for the
following fiscal years ended October 31:

2008 2007
Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average
Amount Interest Amount Interest
Qutstanding Rate Qutstanding Rate
In millions
Current portion of long-term debt $ 2,674 43% $ 675 4.0%
Commercial paper 7,146 2.7% 2,065 5.0%
Notes payable to banks, lines of credit and other 356 5.3% 446 52%
$ 10,176 $ 3,186

Notes payable to banks, lines of credit and other includes deposits associated with HP's banking-related activities of
approximately $262 million and $391 million at October 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt was as follows for the following fiscal years ended October 31:

2008 2007
In millions
U.S. Dollar Global Notes
2002 Shelf Registration Statement:
$500 issued at discount to par at 99.505% in June 2002 at 6.5%, due July 2012 $ 499 § 499
$500 issued at discount to par at 99.342% in March 2003 at 3.625%, matured and paid March 2008 — 500
2006 Shelf Registration Statement:
$600 issued at par in February 2007 at three-month USD LIBOR plus 0.11%, due March 2012 600 600
$900 issued at discount to par of 99.938% in February 2007 at 5.25%, due March 2012 900 900
$500 issued at discount to par of 99.694% in February 2007 at 5.4%, due March 2017 499 499
$1,000 issued at par in June 2007 at three-month USD LIBOR plus 0.01%, due June 2009 1,000 1,000
$1,000 issued at par in June 2007 at three-month USD LIBOR plus 0.06%, due June 2010 1,000 1,000
$750 issued at par in March 2008 at three-month USD LIBOR plus 0.40%, due September 2009 750 —
$1,500 issued at discount to par of 99.921% in March 2008 at 4.5%, due March 2013 1,499 —_
$750 issued at discount to par 0£99.932% in March 2008 at 5.5%, due March 2018 750 —
7497 4,998
EDS Senior Notes T
$700 issued October 1999 at 7.125%, due October 2009 712 —
$1,100 issued June 2003 at 6.0%, due August 2013 1,150 —
$300 issued October 1999 at 7.45%, due October 2029 316 —
2,178  —
Series A Medium-Term Notes T
$50 issued December 2002 at 4.25%, matured and paid December 2007 — 50
— =5
Other -
$505, U.S. dollar zero-coupon subordinated convertible notes, due 2017 ("LYONs"), issued in October and
November 1997 at an imputed rate of 3.13%, and redeemed March 2008 — 371
Other, including capital lease obligations, at 3.75%-8.63%, due 2007-2029 597 263
597 634
Fair value adjustment related to SFAS No. 133 78 (10)
Less current portion (2,674)  (675)
$7,676 $4,997
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HP may redeem some or all of the Global Notes as set forth in the above table at any time at the redemption prices
described in the prospectus supplements relating thereto. The Global Notes are senior unsecured debt.

HP registered the sale of up to $3.0 billion of debt or global securities, common stock, preferred stock, depositary shares
and warrants under a shelf registration statement in March 2002 (the "2002 Shelf Registration Statement"). HP was unable to
issue any additional securities under the 2002 Shelf Registration Statement as of December 1, 2008.

In May 2006, HP filed a shelfregistration statement (the "2006 Shelf Registration Statement") with the SEC to enable HP to
offer and sell, from time to time, in one or more offerings, an unlimited amount of debt securities, common stock, preferred stock,
depositary shares and warrants. As of October 31, 2008, HP had $7.0 billion of global notes issued under the 2006 Shelf
Registration Statement. On December 5, 2008, HP issued an additional $2.0 billion of global notes under the 2006 Shelf
Registration Statement. The global notes issued in December 2008 are due March 2014 with a fixed interest rate of 6.125% per
annum and were issued at discounts to par at 99.561%. HP used the net proceeds fromthese offerings for general corporate
purposes and the repayment of short-term commercial paper.

In August 2008, in connection with HP's acquisition of EDS, all of the outstanding debt of EDS was consolidated into HP's
financial statements. The face value of the EDS debt consisted of $700 million of 7.125% Senior Notes due October 2009;
$1.1 billion 0f 6.0% unsecured Senior Notes due August 2013; $1.0 billion of Zero-Coupon Convertible Senior Notes due
October 2021 with a carrying valie of $1 million as of October 31, 2008; $690 million of 3.875% unsecured Convertible Senior
Notes due July 2023 with a carrying value of $4 million as of October 31, 2008; and $300 million of 7.45% Senior Notes due
October 2029 (collectively, the "EDS Debt Securities"), and capital lease obligations of approximately $419 million. On
September 5, 2008, HP entered into a supplemental indenture pursuant to which HP agreed to guarantee the EDS Debt
Securities. The debt had an aggregate fair value of approximately $3.3 billion on the acquisition date. In October 2008, HP
redeemed the majority ofthe $690 million of 3.875% unsecured Convertible Senior Notes for approximately $685 million. At
October 31, 2008, the outstanding amount of the EDS Debt Securities was $2.6 billion.

In March 2008, HP redeemed all of the outstanding LYONs for approximately $377 million. The LYONs were convertible at
the option of the holders at any time or prior to maturity, unless previously redeemed or otherwise purchased.

In May 2008, the Board of Directors approved increasing the capacity of HP's U.S. commercial paper program by
$10.0 billion to $16.0 billion. HP's subsidiaries are authorized to issue up to an additional $1.0 billion of commercial paper, of
which $500 million of capacity is currently available to be used by Hewlett-Packard International Bank PLC, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of HP, for its Euro Commercial Paper/Certificate of Deposit Programme. In August 2008, HP issued approximately
$9.9 billion of commercial paper to fund the acquisition of EDS.

In October 2008, HP registered for the Commercial Paper Funding Facility (CPFF) provided by the Federal Reserve Bank of
New York. The facility enables HP to issue three-month unsecured commercial paper through a special purpose vehicle of the
Federal Reserve at a rate established by the CPFF program, which is currently equalto a spread over the three-month ovemight
index swap rate.
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The maximum amount of commercial paper that HP may issue at any time through this programis $10.4 billion less the total
principal amount of all other outstanding commercial paper that HP has issued. HP will be unable to issue commercial paper
under the program after A pril 30, 2009. As of October 31, 2008, HP had not issued any commercial paper under the CPFF
program.

HP has a $2.9 billion five-year credit facility, expiring in May 2012. In February and July 2008, HP entered into additional
364-day credit facilities of $3.0 billion and $8.0 billion, respectively. Commitment fees, interest rates and other terms of
borrowing under the credit facilities vary based on HP's external credit ratings. The credit facilities are senior unsecured
committed borrowing arrangements primarily to support the issuance of U.S. commercial paper. No amounts are outstanding
under the credit facilities. Under the terms of the July 2008 $8.0 billion 364-day credit facility, the amount of credit available
declines in an amount equal to the proceeds of any future issuance of long-term debt by HP. On December 5, 2008, HP issued
$2.0 billion of global notes under the 2006 Shelf Registration Statement, which resulted in a reduction in the amount of credit
available under the July 2008 credit facility to $6.0 billion.

HP also maintains uncommitted lines of credit from a number of financial institutions that are available through various
foreign subsidiaries. The amount available for use as of October 31, 2008 was approximately $1.2 billion. Included in Other,
including capital lease obligations, are borrowings that are collateralized by certain financing receivable assets. As of
October 31, 2008, the carrying value of the assets approximated the carrying value of the borrowings of $6.1 million.

At October 31, 2008, HP had up to approximately $11.6 billion of available borrowing resources, including $1.0 billion under
the 2002 Shelf Registration Statement and approximately $10.6 billion under other programs. HP also may issue an unlimited
amount of additional debt securities, common stock, preferred stock, depositary shares and warrants under the 2006 Shelf
Registration Statement. HP was unable to issue any additional securities under the 2002 Shelf Registration Statement as of
December 1, 2008.

Aggregate future maturities of long-term debt at face value (excluding the fair value adjustment related to SFAS 133 of
$78 million and premium on debt issuance of $1 million) were as follows at October 31, 2008:

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter Total
In millions

Aggregate future maturities of debt outstanding including
capital lease obligations $2,682 $1,068 $45 $2,061 $2,7704 $ 1,711 $10,271

Interest expense on borrowings was approximately $467 million in fiscal 2008, $531 million in fiscal 2007, and $336 million in
fiscal 2006.
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The domestic and foreign components of eamings were as follows for the following fiscal years ended October 31:

2008 2007 2006
In millions
u.s. $ 2232 $3,577 $1,645
Non-U.S. $ 8241 85600 5,546

$10,473 $9,177 $7,191

The provision for (benefit from) taxes on earnings was as follows for the following fiscal years ended October 31:

2008 20071 2006V

In millions

U.S. federal taxes:

Current $ 405 § 639 $(183)

Deferred 686 229 264
Non-U.S. taxes:

Current 922 1,281 755

Deferred 8 (125 173
State taxes:

Current 44 67 9

Deferred 172 (178) 25)

$2,144  $1913 $993

(1) HP has revised the presentation for the fiscal years ended October 31, 2007 and 2006 regarding the tax benefit of stock
option plans. The largest impacts of the revisions were an increase in the current U.S. federal tax provision of
$428 million and a decrease in the deferred U.S. federal tax provision of $428 million in fiscal 2007 and a decrease in the
current U.S. federal benefit from tax of $260 million and a decrease in the deferred U.S. federal tax provision of
$260 million in fiscal 2006. This change does not affect previously reported results of operations or financial position for
any periods presented, or previously reported totals for the provision for (benefit from) taxes on earnings.
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The significant components of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities were as follows for the following fiscal years
ended October 31:

2008 2007
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Tax Tax Tax Tax
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
In millions

Loss carryforwards $1753 § — $15713 § —
Credit carryforwards 1,549 — 1,999 —
Unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries — 5,683 — 4,018
Inventory valuation 169 6 173 11
Intercompany transactions — profit in inventory 553 — 506 —
Intercompany transactions — excluding inventory 324 — 1,850 —
Fixed assets 152 8 295 7
Warranty 793 — 709 —
Employee and retiree benefits 1,955 123 1,014 543
Accounts receivable allowance 299 3 190 2
Capitalized research and development 1,192 — 1,538 —
Purchased intangible assets 30 1,961 48 627
Restructuring 596 — 75 —
Equity investments 70 —_ 6] —
Deferred revenue 918 — 748 —
Other 768 83 1,134 112
Gross deferred taxassets and liabilities 11,121 7,867 11,913 5,320
Valuation allowance (1,801) — (1,543) —
Total deferred tax assets and liabilities $9320 $7.87 $10370 $ 5,320

The breakdown between current and long-term deferred taxassets and deferred tax liabilities was as follows for the
following fiscal years ended October 31:

2008 2007
In millions
Current deferred tax assets $3,920 $4,609
Current deferred tax Liabilities o7 (123)
Long-term deferred taxassets 792 961
Long-term deferred tax liabilities 3,162y (397
Total deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities $ 1,453 $5,050

As of October 31, 2008, HP had recorded a deferred tax asset of $1.8 billion related to loss carryforwards, of which
$1.2 billion relates to foreign net operating losses. HP has provided a valuation allowance of $1.0 billion on deferred taxassets
for foreign net operating loss carryforwards that HP does not expect to realize. The remaining $540 million deferred taxasset
consists of $365 million of federal and $175 million of state deferred taxassets relating to federal and state net operating losses,
respectively, including net operating losses from acquired companies. HP has provided $312 million in
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valuation allowance for deferred tax assets related to such net operating losses, which begin to expire in fiscal 2010.

As of October 31, 2008, HP had recorded deferred taxassets for various tax credit carryforwards of $1.5 billion including
$958 million of foreign tax credit carryforwards subject to a $47 million valiation allowance, which will begin to expire in fiscal
2015. HP had altemative minimum tax credit carry forwards of $81 million, which do not expire, and research and development
credit carryforwards of $136 million, which will begin to expire in fiscal 2019. HP also had tax credit carryforwards of $374 million
in various states and foreign countries, for which HP has provided a valuation allowance of $233 million to reduce the related
deferred tax asset. These credits begin to expire in fiscal 2009.

Gross deferred taxassets at October 31, 2008 and 2007 were reduced by valuation allowances of $1.8 billion and $1.5 billion,
respectively. The valuation allowance increased by $258 million in 2008. The valiation allowance increases consisted of
$449 million recorded for deferred tax assets acquired in current year acquisitions, $126 million recorded for deferred taxassets
related to certain federal and state net operating loss carryovers and tax credits, and $47 million related to deferred tax assets for
foreign tax credit carryovers. These increases were partially offset by a $203 million net reduction in the valuation allowances
due to FIN48 adoption adjustments to deferred tax assets related to foreign net operating loss carryovers, and $161 million in
the valuation allowances for deferred tax assets related to foreign tax credits and net operating losses carryovers. Of the
$1.8 billion in valuation allowances at October 31, 2008, $565 million was related to deferred tax assets for acquired companies
that existed at the time of acquisition. Prior to the effective date of SFAS 141(R), to the extent that HP determines that the
realization ofthese deferred taxassets is more likely than not, the reversal of the valuation allowance would be recorded as a
reduction of goodwill instead of the provision for income taxes.

Excess tax benefits resulting fromthe exercise of employee stock options and other employee stock programs, are recorded
as an increase in stockholders' equity and were approximately $316 million in fiscal 2008, $530 million in fiscal 2007 and
$356 million in fiscal 2006.

The differences between the U.S. federal statutory income taxrate and HP's effective taxrate were as follows for the
following fiscal years ended October 31:

2008 2007 2006

U.S. federal statutory income taxrate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 1.3 0.5 0.1)
Lower rates in other jurisdictions, net (16.9) (132) (11.9)
Research and development credit ©04) (06 (02)
Valuation allowance — a7 (1.0
U.S. federal tax audit settlement — -— (7.9
Accrued taxes due to post-acquisition integration 2.0 — —
Other, net 0.5) 0.8 0.1)

20.5% 20.8% 13.8%

In fiscal 2008, HP recorded $251 million of net income tax expense related to items unique to the year. The recorded
amounts consisted of a tax charge of $205 million associated with post-acquisition EDS integration, $44 million for the
adjustment to estimated fiscal 2007 tax accruals upon filing the 2007 U.S. federal income taxreturn, and net tax charges of
$2 million attributable to other items.
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In October 2008, the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act 0f 2008 was signed into law, which included a retroactive two
year extension of the research and development tax credit from January 1, 2008 through December 31, 2009. The retroactive
income tax benefit of $45 million was recorded in HP's financial statements in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008.

In fiscal 2007, HP recorded $80 million of net income tax benefit related to items unique to the year. The recorded amounts
consisted of income tax benefits for valuation allowance reversals of $154 million attributable to deferred tax assets for state tax
credits and $60 million attributable to deferred taxassets for foreign net operating losses, offset by a $96 million net increase to
various taxreserves, a net tax charge of $18 million for the adjustment to estimated fiscal 2006 tax accruals upon filing the 2006
U.S. federal and state income taxreturns, and a net tax charge of $20 million for other items.

In fiscal 2006, HP recorded $599 million of net income tax benefit related to items unique to the year. The recorded amounts
included net favorable taxadjustments of $565 million to income taxaccruals as a result of the settlement of the Internal
Revenue Service ("IRS") examinations of HP's U.S. income taxreturns for fiscal years 1993 to 1998. The reductions to the net
income taxaccruals for these years related primarily to the resolution of issues with respect to Puerto Rico manufacturing tax
incentives and export tax incentives, and other issues involving our non-U.S. operations.

As aresult of certain employment actions and capital investments HP has undertaken, income from manufacturing
activities in certain countries is subject to reduced taxrates, and in some cases is wholly exempt from taxes through 2022. The
gross income tax benefits attributable to the tax status ofthese subsidiaries were estimated to be $900 miltion ($0.35 per diluted
share) in fiscal year 2008, $1.2 billion ($0.43 per diluted share) in fiscal year 2007, and $876 million ($0.31 per diluted share) in
fiscal year 2006. The gross income tax benefits were offset partially by accruals of U.S. income taxes on undistributed earnings,
among other factors.

On November 1, 2007, HP adopted FIN 48, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes by prescribing the
recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet before being recognized in the financial statements and also provides
guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. As a
result of the adoption of FIN 48, HP reduced the liability for net unrecognized tax benefits by $718 million. HP accounted for this
as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle that was recorded as an increase to retained eamings of $687 million
and a decrease to goodwill of $31 million. The total amount of gross unrecognized taxbenefits as of the date of adoption was
$2.3 billion, of which $650 million would affect the effective taxrate if realized. HP historically classified unrecognized tax
benefits in current income taxes payable. In implementing FIN 48, HP has reclassified $1.3 billion from current income taxes
payable to long-term income taxes payable. In addition, HP reclassified its income taxreceivable to long-term income tax
receivable.

As ofthe date of adoption of FIN 48, the IRS was in the process of concluding its examination of HP's income taxreturns
for years 2002 and 2003. This examination concluided during the first fiscal quarter of 2008. The IRS began an audit of HP's 2004
and 2005 income tax returns in 2007. In addition, HP is subject to numerous ongoing audits by state and foreign tax authorities.
"HP believes that adequate reserves have been provided for all open tax years.
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The total amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits was $2.3 billion as of October 31, 2008, of which up to $680 million

would affect HP's effective taxrate if realized. A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits
is as follows:

Balance at November 1, 2007 $2,271
Increases:
For current year's tax positions 101
For prior years' tax positions 739
Decreases:
For prior years' tax positions (751)
Statute of limitations expiration (16)
Settlements with taxing authorities (11)
Balance at October 31, 2008 m

HP recognizes interest expense and penalties accrued on unrecognized tax benefits within income tax expense. This policy
did not change as a result of adoption of FIN 48. In addition, upon adoption of FIN 48, HP began recognizing interest income
from favorable settlements and income taxreceivables within income taxexpense. As of the date of adoption of FIN 48, HP had
accrued a net $28 million payable for interest and penalties. As of October 31, 2008, HP had accrued a net $20 million receivable
for interest and penalties. During fiscal 2008, HP recognized net interest income on tax overpayments and deficiencies, net of
tax, of $34 million.

HP engages in continuous discussion and negotiation with taxing authorities regarding tax matters in the various
jurisdictions. HP does not expect complete resolution of any IRS audit cycle within the next 12 months. However, it is
reasonably possible that certain foreign and state taxissues may be concluded in the next 12 months, including issues
involving transfer pricing and other matters. Accordingly, HP believes it is reasonably possible that its existing unrecognized
tax benefits may be reduced by an amount up to $340 million within the next twelve months. With respect to major foreign and
state tax jurisdictions, HP is no longer subject to taxauthority examinations for years prior to 1999.

HP is subject to income tax in the United States and oversixty foreign countries and is subject to routine corporate income
taxaudits in many of these jurisdictions. As described below, HP has received fromthe IRS Notices of Deficiency for its fiscal
1999, 2000 and 2003 tax years and Revenue Agent's Reports ("RAR's") for its fiscal 2001 and 2002 tax years.

On January 30, 2008, HP received a Notice of Deficiency from the IRS for its fiscal 2003 tax year. The Notice of Deficiency
asserted that HP owes additional tax of $21 million. At the same time, HP received a RAR from the IRS for its fiscal 2002 tax year
that proposed no change in HP's tax liability for that year. In addition to the proposed deficiency for fiscal 2003, the IRS's
adjustments for both years, if sustained, would reduce taxrefund claims HP has filed for net operating loss carrybacks to earlier
fiscal years and reduce the tax benefits of tax credit carryforwards to subsequent years, by approximately $249 million. This
amount reflects certain transfer pricing adjustments that were settled during fiscal 2008. HP plans to contest certain remaining
adjustments proposed in the Notice of Deficiency and the RAR. Towards this end, HP filed a petition with the United States
Tax Court on April 29, 2008. HP believes that it has provided adequate reserves for any tax deficiencies or reductions in refund
claims that could result fromthe IRS actions.
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On June 28, 2007, HP received a Notice of Deficiency fromthe IRS for its fiscal 1999 and 2000 taxyears. The Notice of
Deficiency asserted that HP owes additional tax of $13 million for these two years. At the same time, HP received a RAR from
IRS for its fiscal 2001 taxyear that proposed no change in HP's tax liability for that year. In addition to the proposed deficiencies
for fiscal 1999 and 2000, the IRS's adjustments, if sustained, would reduce tax refund claims HP has filed for foreign tax credit
and net operating loss carrybacks to earlier fiscal years and reduce the tax benefits of carryforwards to subsequent years, by
approximately $80 million. HP plans to contest certain of the adjustments proposed in the Notice of Deficiency and the RAR.
Towards this end, HP filed a Petition with the United States Tax Court on September 25, 2007. HP believes that it has provided
adequate reserves for any tax deficiencies or reductions in refund claims that could result from the IRS actions.

Taxyears of EDS through 2002 have been audited by the IRS, and all proposed adjustments have been resolved. As of
October 31, 2008, the IRS was in the process of concluding the examination for calendar years 2003 and 2004. On December 5,
2008, EDS received a RAR for exam years 2003 and 2004, proposing a taxdeficiency of $82 million. This deficiency includes a
$12 million effect on carmrybacks to 2000 and 2001. HP expects to appeal certain issues and believes adequate reserves have
been provided as of October 31, 2008 for these years.

HP has not provided for U.S. federal income and foreign withholding taxes on $12.9 billion of undistributed eamings from
non-U.S. operations as of October 31, 2008 because HP intends to reinvest such eamings indefinitely outside of the United
States. If HP were to distribute these earnings, foreign tax credits may become available under cutrent law to reduce the
resulting U.S. income tax liability. Determination ofthe amount of unrecognized deferred tax liability related to these earnings is
not practicable. HP will remit non-indefinitely reinvested eamnings of its non-US subsidiaries for which deferred U.S. federal and
withholding taxes have been provided where excess cash has accumulated and it determines that it is advantageous for
business operations, tax or cash reasons.

Note 14: Stockholders' Equity
Dividends

The stockholders of HP common stock are entitled to receive dividends when and as declared by HP's Board of Directors.
Dividends are paid quarterly. Dividends were $0.32 per common share in each of fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006.

Stock Repurchase Program

HP's share repurchase program authorizes both open market and private repurchase transactions. In fiscal 2008, HP
completed share repurchases of approximately 230 million shares. Repurchases of approximately 216 million shares were settled
for $9.6 billion, which included approximately 1 million shares repurchased in transactions that were executed in fiscal 2007 but
settled in fiscal 2008. At the end of fiscal 2008, HP had approximately 14 million shares which will be settled in the next fiscal
year. In fiscal 2007, HP completed share repurchases of approximately 209 million shares. Repurchases of approximately
210 million shares were settled for $9.1 billion, which included approximately 1 million shares repurchased in transactions that
were executed in fiscal 2006 but settled in fiscal 2007. In fiscal 2006, HP completed share repurchases of approximately
188 million shares, of which approximately 190 million shares were settled for $6.1 billion, which included approximately 2 million
shares repurchased in transactions that were executed in fiscal 2005 but settled in fiscal 2006. The foregoing

131

sec.gov/Archives/.../a2189375z10-k.htm 152/203



9/23/2010 sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/47217/00...
Table of Contents

HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Note 14: Stockholders' Equity (Continued)
shares repurchased and settled in fiscal 2008, fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 were all open market repurchase transactions.

In addition to the above transactions, HP entered into an Accelerated Share Repurchase (the "ASR Program") with a third-
party investment bank during the second quarter of fiscal 2007, Pursuant to the terms of the ASR Program, HP purchased
40 million shares of its common stock from the investment bank for $1.8 billion (the "Purchase Price") on March 30, 2007 (the
"Purchase Date"). HP decreased its shares outstanding and reduced the outstanding shares used to calculate the weighted-
average common shares outstanding for both basic and diluted EPS on the Purchase Date. The shares delivered to HP included
shares that the investment bank borrowed from third parties. The investment bank purchased an equivalent number of shares in
the open market to cover its position with respect to the borrowed shares during a contractually specified averaging period that
began on the Purchase Date and ended on June 6, 2007. At the end of the averaging period, the investment bank's total
purchase cost based on the volume weighted-average purchase price of HP shares during the averaging period was
approximately $90 million less than the Purchase Price. Accordingly, HP had the option to either receive additional shares of
HP's common stock or a cash payment in the amount of the difference from the investment bank. In June 2007, HP received
approximately 2 million additional shares purchased by the investment bank in the open market with a value approximately
equal to that amount. HP reduced its shares outstanding upon receipt of those shares.

Also, HP entered into a prepaid variable share purchase program ("PVSPP") with a third-party investment bank during the
first quarter of 2006 and prepaid approximately $1.7 billion in exchange for the right to receive a variable number of shares of its
common stock weekly over a one-year period beginning in the second quarter of fiscal 2006 and ending during the second
quarter of fiscal 2007. Under the PVSPP, the prices at which HP purchased the shares were subject to a minimum and maximum
price that was determined in advance of any repurchases being completed under the program, thereby effectively hedging HP's
repurchase price. The minimum and maximum number of shares HP could receive under the program was 52 million shares and
70 million shares, respectively. The exact number of shares to be repurchased was based upon the volume weighted-average
market price of HP's shares during each weekly settlement period, subject to the minimum and maximum price as well as
regulatory limitations on the number of shares HP was permitted to repurchase. HP decreased its shares outstanding each
settlement period as shares were physically received. HP completed all repurchases under the PVSPP on March 9, 2007. As of
that date, HP had cumulatively received a total of 53 million shares. HP retired all shares repurchased and no longer deems
those shares outstanding.

HP's Board of Directors authorized an additional $16.0 billion, $8.0 billion and $10.0 billion for future share repurchases in
fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. As of October 31, 2008, HP had remaining authorization of $9.1 billion for future share
repurchases, including $1.1 billion remaining under the $8.0 billion repurchase authorization approved by HP's Board of
Directors on November 19, 2007 and the $8.0 billion under the additional repurchase authorization approved by the Board on
September 19, 2008.
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Comprehensive Income

The changes in the components of other comprehensive income, net oftaxes, were as follows for the following fiscal years
ended October 31:

2008 2007 2006

In millions
Net earnings $8329 $7,264 $6,198
Increase/(decrease) in unrealized gain/loss on available-for-sale securities:
(Decrease)/increase in net unrealized gain/loss, net of tax benefit of $7 in 2008, net of taxof $2 in
2007 and of $3 in 2006 (17) 2 7
Net unrealized gain/loss reclassified into earnings, with no taxeffect in 2008, net of taxbenefit of
$7 in 2007 and $9 in 2006 1 (14 (13)

(16) (12 (6)

Increase/(decrease) in unrealized gain/loss on cash flow hedges:
Increase/(decrease) in net unrealized gain/loss, net of tax of $468 in 2008, net of taxbenefit of $37

in 2007 and $24 in 2006 808 63) (41)
Net unrealized gain/loss reclassified into eamings, net of taxof $34 in 2008, $26 in 2007 and $24 in
2006 58 45 4]
866 (18)  —
(Decrease)/increase in cumulative translation adjustment, net of tax benefit of $476 in 2008, net of tax
of $37 in 2007 and $40 in 2006 (936) 106 54
(Decrease)/increase in unrealized components of defined benefit pension plans, net oftaxbenefit of
$42 in 2008, $1 in 2007 and tax of $1 in 2006 (538) 3 ©)
Comprehensive income $7,705 $7,337 $6,237

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income, net of taxes, were as follows for the following fiscal years
ended October 31:

2008 2007 2006

In millions
Net unrealized (loss)/gain on available-for-sale securities $ (12) $ 4 §$ 16
Net unrealized gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges 802 64 (46)
Cumulative translation adjustment (763) 173 67
Unrealized components of defined benefit pension plans (92) 446 19)
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss)income $ (65 $559 § 18

Note 15: Retirement and Pos t-Retirement Benefit Plans
Acquisition of EDS
On August 26, 2008, EDS became a wholly owned subsidiary of HP. EDS sponsors qualified and non-qualified defined
benefit pension plans covering substantially all of its employees. The majority of the EDS defined benefit pension plans are

noncontributory. In most plans, employees become fully vested upon attaining two to five years of service, and benefits are
based on many factors, which differ
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by country, but the most significant is years of service and eamings. The projected unit credit cost method is used for actuarial
purposes. Plan assets and plan obligations associated with the EDS defined benefit pension plans are included as of the
acquisition date and through October 31, 2008. On a global basis, EDS plan assets totaled $7.8 billion and plan obligations
totaled $10.1 billion as of August 26, 2008. The U.S. portion of global assets and obligations totaled $4.1 billion and $5.0 billion
respectively. Following the acquisition of EDS, HP announced that it was modifying the EDS U.S. qualified and non-qualified
plans for employees accruing benefits under the programs. Effective January 1, 2009, EDS employees in the U.S. will cease
accruing pension benefits. The final pension benefit amount will be calculated based on pay and service through December 31,
2008.

Defined Benefit Plans

HP sponsors a number of defined benefit pension plans worldwide, of which the most significant are in the United States.
The HP Retirement Plan (the "Retirement Plan") is a defined benefit pension plan for U.S. employees hired on or before
December 31, 2002. Benefits under the Retirement Plan generally are based on pay and years of service, except for eligible pre-
acquisition Compaq employees, who do not receive credit for years of service prior to January 1, 2003. Effective December 31,
2005, participants whose combination of age plus years of service was less than 62 ceased accruing benefits under the
Retirement Plan. For U.S employees hired or rehired on or after January 1, 2003, HP sponsors the Hewlett-Packard Company
Cash Account Pension Plan (the "Cash Account Pension Plan"), under which benefits accrue pursuant to a cash accumulation
account formula based upon a percentage of pay plus interest. Effective December 31, 2005, the Cash Account Pension Plan

was closed to new participants, and participants whose combination of age plus years of service was less than 62 ceased
accruing benefits.

Effective November 30, 2005, HP merged the Cash Account Pension Plan into the Retirement Plan; the merged plan is
treated as one plan for certain legal and financial purposes, including funding requirements. The merger has no impact on the
separate benefit structures of the plans.

On February 20, 2007, HP announced it was modifying its U.S. defined benefit pension plans for the remaining number of
U.S. employees still accruing benefits under the program. Effective January 1, 2008, these employees ceased accruing pension
benefits, and HP calculated the final pension benefit amount on pay and service through December 31, 2007.

HP reduces the benefit payable to a U.S. employee under the Retirement Plan for service before 1993, if any, by any
amounts due to the employee under HP's frozen defined contribution Deferred Profit-Sharing Plan (the "DPSP"). HP closed the
DPSP to new participants in 1993. The DPSP plan obligations are equalto the plan assets and are recognized as an offset to the
Retirement Plan when HP calculates its defined benefit pension cost and obligations. The fair value of plan assets and
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projected benefit obligations for the U.S. defined benefit plans combined with the DPSP as of the September 30 measurement
date is as follows for the following fiscal years ended October 31:

2008 2007

Projected Projected

Benefit Benefit
Plan Assets Obligation  Plan Assets  Obligation

In millions

U.S. defined benefit plans $ 7,313 $7654 $ 4258 $ 3,982
DPSP 910 910 1,029 1,029
Total $ 8223 $ 8564 § 5287 $ 5,011

(1) 2008 plan assets and projected benefit obligation include the EDS U.S. pension plans.
Post-Retirement Benefit Plans

Through fiscal 2005, substantially all of HP's U.S. employees at December 31, 2002 could become eligible for partially
subsidized retiree medical benefits and retiree life insurance benefits under the Pre-2003 HP Retiree Medical Program (the "Pre-
2003 Program”) and certain other retiree medical programs. Plan participants in the Pre-2003 Program make contributions based
on their choice of medical option and length of service. U.S. employees hired or rehired on or after January 1, 2003 may be
eligible to participate in a post-retirement medical plan, the HP Retiree Medical Program but must bear the full cost of their
participation. Effective January 1, 2006, employees whose combination of age and years of service was less than 62 no longer
were eligible for the subsidized Pre-2003 Program, but instead were eligible for the HP Retiree Medical Program. Employees no
longer eligible for the Pre-2003 Program, as well as employees hired on or after January 1, 2003, are eligible for certain credits
under the HP Retirement Medical Savings Account Plan ("RMSA Plan") upon attaining age 45. Upon retirement, former
employees may use credits under the RMSA Plan for the reimbursement of certain eligible medical expenses, including
premiums required for participation in the HP Retiree Medical Program. In February 2007, HP further limited future eligibility for
the Pre-2003 HP Retiree Medical Programto those employees who were within five years of satisfying the program's retirement
criteria on June 30, 2007. Employees not meeting the modified program criteria may become eligible for participation in the HP
Retiree Medical Program. In November 2008, HP announced that it was changing the limits on future cost-sharing for the Pre-
2003 Program whereby all future cost increases will be paid by participating retirees starting in 2011.

Defined Contribution Plans

HP offers various defined contribution plans for U.S. and non-U.S. employees. Total defined contribution expense was
$548 million in fiscal 2008, $481 million in fiscal 2007 and $430 million in fiscal 2006. U.S. employees are automatically enrolled in
the Hewlett-Packard Company 401(k) Plan (the "HP 401(k) Plan") when they meet eligibility requirements, unless they decline
participation. Similar to HP, EDS offered participation in defined contribution plans for U.S. and non-U.S. employees. Since the
acquisition date of August 26, 2008, global defined contribution expense for EDS plans totaled $21 million.
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During fiscal 2008, HP matched employee contributions to the HP 401(k) Plan with cash contributions up to a maximum of
6% of eligible compensation for U.S. employees hired prior to August 1, 2008. For U.S. employees hired on or after August 1,
2008 HP will match employee contributions up to a maximum of 4% of eligible compensation.

The employer match for the EDS plan is 25% ofthe employee contribution based on a maximum contribution of 6% of'the
employee's salary. Effective January 1, 2009, U.S. employees participating in the EDS 401(k) plan will be eligible for a 4% HP
matching contribution on eligible compensation. Similar to the HP 401(k) plan, contributions are invested at the direction of the
employee in various funds, although the EDS 401(k) plan does not offer an HP stock fund. Since the acquisition date, employer
matching contributions for EDS employees have totaled $6 million.

Effective January 31, 2004, HP designated the HP Stock Fund, an investment option under the HP 401(k) Plan, as an
Employee Stock Ownership Plan and, as a result, participants in the HP Stock Fund may receive dividends in cash or may
reinvest such dividends into the HP Stock Fund. HP paid approximately $9 million, $9 million and $10 million in dividends for the
HP common shares held by the HP Stock Fund in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. HP records the dividends as a
reduction of retained earnings in the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity. The HP Stock Fund held approximately
27 million shares of HP common stock at October 31, 2008.

Pension and Post-Retirement Benefit Expense

HP's net pension and post-retirement benefit cost (gain) recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Eamings was as
follows for the following fiscal years ended October 31:

U.S. Defined Non-U.S. Defined Post-Retirement

Benefit Plans Benefit Plans Benefit Plans
2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

In millions
Service cost $ 63 $130 $177 $281 $261 $299 $29 $31 $32
Interest cost 296 260 276 475 366 325 78 77 84
Expected return on plan assets (318) (355) (361) (713) (579) (495) (40) (38) (34)
Amortization and deferrals:

Actuarial (gain) loss (36) (13) (14) 1 8 136 19 26 39
Prior service cost (benefit) — - 1 ® (M (3 (55 54y (55
Net periodic benefit cost 5 2 79 36 128 262 31 42 66
Curtailment (gain) loss — (4 —  — (13 1 — (26) (24)
Settlement (gain) loss €)) 8 (46) ) 4 2 — — —
Special termination benefits — 307 — 4 4 2 — 60 —
Net benefit cost (gain) $ 4 80204)$ 33 § 38 $123 $277 $31 §76 $42

II
Il
|

In fiscal 2008, HP recognized settlement gains of $1 million for the U.S. Excess Benefit Plan and $2 million for the Canadian
defined benefit plan. Special termination benefit expense of $4 million was incurred associated with the early retirement of
employees in the U.K.
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The weighted-average assumptions used to calculate net benefit cost were as follows for the following fiscal years ended
October 31:

U.S. Defined Non-U.S. Defined Post-Retirement
Benefit Plans Benefit Plans Benefit Plans
2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
Discount rate 6.4% 5.9% 5.9% 5.2% 4.4% 4.2% 6.2% 5.8% 5.8%
Average increase in compensation levels  3.7% 4.0% 4.0% 3.3% 3.3% 3.7% — — —
Expected long-term return on assets 6.7% 8.3% 8.3% 6.8% 6.7% 6.7% 8.7% 8.3% 8.3%

The 2008 weighted-average rates outlined in the table above reflect the inclusion of EDS plans since the acquisition date.

The medical cost and related assumptions used to calculate the net post-retirement benefit cost for the following fiscal
years ended October 31 were as follows:

2008 2007 2006

Current medical cost trend rate 75% 85% 9.5%
Ultimate medical cost trend rate 55% 55% 5.5%
Year the medical cost rate reaches ultimate trend rate 2010 2010 2010

A 1.0 percentage point increase in the medical cost trend rate would have increased the fiscal 2008 service and interest
components of the post-retirement benefit costs by $1.7 million, while a 1.0 percentage point decrease would have resulted in a
decrease of $2.0 million in the same period.
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Funded Status

The funded status ofthe defined benefit and post-retirement benefit plans was as follows for the following fiscal years
ended October 31:

U.S. Defined Non-U.S. Defined Post-Retirement
Benefit Plans Benefit Plans Benefit Plans
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
In millions
Change in fair value of plan assets:
Fair value — beginning of year $4258 $4325 $ 9,816 $8367 $ 489 §$ 448
Addition of plan — EDS 4,090 — 3,749 — — —
Acquisition/addition/deletion of plans — — 19 — — —
Actual return on plan assets (782) 667  (2,673) 669 (56) 68
Employer contributions 25 124 145 145 52 56
Participants’ contributions — — 84 88 48 42
Benefits paid 274  (299) (302) (235 (13 (125
Settlements @ (559 (15) (62) — —
Currency impact — —  (1,316) 844 — —
Fair value — end ofyear 7313 4,258 9,507 9,816 402 489

Change in benefit obligation:
Projected benefit obligation — beginning of year $3,982 $4,688 § 8426 $8,089 $1323 §1,367

Addition of plan — EDS 4,977 — 5,105 — — —

Acquisition/addition/deletion of plans — — 34 — — 8

Service cost 63 130 282 261 30 31

Interest cost 296 260 475 366 78 77

Participants' contributions — — 84 88 48 42

Actuarial (gain) loss (1,386) 136 (2,197) (811) (243) (74)

Benefits paid (274)  (299) 302) (235 (131 (125

Plan amendments — — — — — ©n

Curtailment — (681) — (39) — 21

Settlement @) (559) (15) (62) —_ —

Special termination benefits — 307 4 4 — 60

Currency impact — —  (1,428) 765 ® 7
Projected benefit obligation — end of year 7,654 3982 10468 8426 1,096 1,323
Plan assets (less) greater than benefit obligation (341 276 961) 1,390 694 (834 |
Contributions after measurement date 6 — 38 13 4 6 ‘
Net amount recognized $ (335) $ 276 § (923) $1,403 $ (690) $ (828) ‘
Accumulated bencfit obligation $7,652 $3,963 § 9,726 $7,677
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The net amounts recognized for HP's defined benefit and post-retirement benefit plans in HP's Consolidated Balance
Sheets as of October 31, 2008 and October 31, 2007 were as follows:

U.S. Defined Non-U.S. Defined Post-Retirement
Benefit Plans Benefit Plans Benefit Plans
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
In millions
Non-current assets $ 8I1 $407 $§ 748 $1,751 § — § —
Current liability (37 (15) 48 (18) (70) (70)
Non-current liability (1,109) (116) (1,623) (330) (620) (758)
Net amount recognized $ (335) $276 § (923) $1,403 $(690) $(828)

The following table summarizes the pretax net experience (gain) loss and prior service cost (benefit) recognized in
accumulated other comprehensive income for the company's defined benefit and post-retirement benefit plans as of October 31,

2008.
U.S.
Defined Non-U.S. Post-
Benefit Defined Retirement
Plans Benefit Plans Benefit Plans
In millions
Net experience (gain) loss § (699 $ LI90 $ 45
Prior service benefit ¢)) (83) (400)
Total recognized in accumulated other comprehensive (income) loss $ (700) $ 1,107 $ (355)

The following table summarizes the experience (gain) loss and prior service cost (benefit) that will be amortized from
accumulated other comprehensive income and recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost (credit) during the next

fiscal year.
U.S.
Defined Non-U.S. Post-
Benefit Defined Retirement
Plans Benefit Plans  Benefit Plans
In millions
Net experience (gain) loss $ 53) $ 78 $ 5
Prior service benefit —_— (8) (55)
Total recognized in accumulated other comprehensive (income) loss b 53) $ 70 3 (50)
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The weighted-average assumptions used to calculate the benefit obligation disclosed as of the 2008 and 2007 fiscal close
were as follows:

Non-U.S.
U.S. Defined Defined Post-Retirement
Benefit Plans Benefit Plans Benefit Plans
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Discount rate 80% 62% 60% 5.1% 7.8% 6.2%
Average increase in compensation levels 20% 4.0% 26% 34% — —

Current medical cost trend rate — —_— — — 9.5% 7.5%
Ultimate medical cost trend rate — —_ — — 5.5% 5.5%
Year the rate reaches ultimate trend rate — — —_ - 2013 2010

A 1.0 percentage point increase in the medical cost trend rate would have increased the total post-retirement benefit

obligation reported at October 31, 2008 by $22 million, while a 1.0 percentage point decrease would have resulted in a decrease
of $26 million.

Defined benefit plans with projected benefit obligations exceeding the fair value of plan assets were as follows:

Non-U.S.
U.S. Defined Defined
Benefit Plans Benefit Plans
2008 2007 2008 2007
In millions
Aggregate fair value of plan assets $3,178 $§ — $4,076 $422
Aggregate projected benefit obligation $4,330 $131 $5,782 $776

Defined benefit plans with accumulated benefit obligations exceeding the fair value of plan assets were as follows:

Non-U.S.
U.S. Defined Defined
Benefit Plans Benefit Plans
2008 2007 2008 2007
In millions
Aggregate fair value of plan assets $3,178 $ — $3,710 $116
Aggregate accumulated benefit obligation $4,328 $124 $4962 $360

Implementation of SFAS 158

SFAS 158 requires that the funded status of defined benefit postretirement plans be recognized on the company's balance

sheet and changes in the funded status be reflected in comprehensive income, effective for fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2006, which HP adopted effective October 31, 2007.
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The following table summarizes the financial impact stemming from the initial adoption of SFAS 158 on October 31, 2007:

Before After
application application
of of
SFAS 158 Adjustments  SFAS 158
In millions
Other long-termassets (including pension assets) $ 3431 § 477 $§ 3908
Deferred taxassets, long-term $ 1,040 § (79 $ 96l
Total assets $ 88,301 $§ 398 $ 88,699
Pension, post-retirement, and post-employment liabilities $ 1,739 § (244) §$ 1495
Deferred tax liabilities, long-term $ 23 ¢ 1714 § 397
Total liabilities $50243 § (70) $ 50,173
Accumulated other comprehensive income $ 91 $§ 468 $§ 559
Total stockholders' equity $ 38058 $ 468 § 38526

Plan Asset Allocations

The weighted-average target and asset allocations across the HP and EDS plans at the respective measurement dates were

as follows:
U. S. Defined Non-U.8. Defined Post-Retirement
Benefit Plans Benefit Plans Benefit Plans
2008 Plan Assets 2008 Plan Assets 2008 Plan Assets
Target Target Target
Asset Category Allocation 2008 2007 Allocation 2008 2007 Alloeation 2008 2007
Public equity securities 27.1% 62.5% 59.5% 62.1% 49.5% 64.3%
Private equity securities 14.6% 5.8% — — 229% 11.5%
Real estate and other 0.5% 0.6% 6.2% 6.5% 2.1% 0.9%

Equity-related

investments
Public debt securities
Cash

43% 422% 68.9% 70% 65.7% 68.6% 5% 74.5% 76.7%

56% 56.7% 28.0% 30% 334% 30.9% 24%
1% 11% 3.1% — 09% 0.5% 1%

23.6%
1.9%

20.5%
2.8%

Total

100% 100.0% 100.0% 100% 100.0% 100.0% 100% 100.0% 100.0%

Investment Policy

HP's investment strategy for worldwide plan assets is to seek a competitive rate of retum relative to an appropriate level of

risk. The majority of the plans' investment managers employ active investment management strategies with the goal of

outperforming the broad markets in which they invest. Risk management practices include diversification across asset classes
and investment styles and periodic rebalancing toward asset allocation targets. A number of the plans' investment managers

are authorized to utilize derivatives for investment purposes, and HP occasionally utilizes derivatives to effect asset allocation
changes or to hedge certain investment exposures.

The target asset allocation selected for each plan reflects a risk/return profile HP feels is appropriate relative to each plan's
liability structure and return goals. HP regularly conducts periodic asset-liability studies for U.S. plan assets in order to model

various potential asset allocations in
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comparison to each plan's forecasted liabilities and liquidity needs. HP invests a portion of the U.S. defined benefit plan assets
and post-retirement benefit plan assets in private market securities such as venture capital funds, private debt and private
equity to provide diversification and higher expected retums.

Outside the United States, investment objectives are similarly aligned to generate returns that will enable the plan to meet
its future obligations. In some countries local regulations require adjustments in asset allocation, typically leading to a higher
percentage in fixed income than would otherwise be deployed. HP's corporate office acts in a governance role in periodically
reviewing investment strategy and providing a recommended list of investment managers for each country plan.

Basis for Expected Long-Term Rate of Return on Plan Assets

The expected long-termrate of return on assets for each U.S. plan reflects the expected returns for each major asset class in
which the plan invests, the weight of each asset class in the target mix, the correlations among asset classes and their expected
volatilities. Expected asset class retumns reflect the current yield on U.S. government bonds and risk premiums for each asset
class. Because HP's investment policy is to employ primarily active investment managers who seek to outperform the broader
market, the asset class expected retums are adjusted to reflect the expected additional returns net of fees.

In the beginning of fiscal 2008, HP implemented a liability-driven investment strategy for the U.S. defined benefit pension
plan, which was frozen effective December 31, 2007. As part of the strategy, HP has transitioned its equity allocation to
predominantly fixed income assets. The expected return on the plan assets, used in calculating the net benefit cost, is 6.1% for
fiscal 2009. The assets for the EDS U.S. defined benefit plan are primarily invested in equity related investments. The expected
return on the plan assets, used in calculating the net benefit cost for the EDS defined benefit plan, is 9.3% for fiscal 2009.

The approach used to arrive at the expected rate of retum on assets for the non-U.S. plans reflects the asset allocation
policy of each plan to the expected country real returns for equity and fixed income investments. On an annual basis, HP
gathers empirical data from the local country subsidiaries to determine expected long-term rates of return for equity and fixed
income securities. HP then weights these expected real rates of retum based on country specific allocation mixes adjusted for
nflation.

Future Contributions and Funding Policy

In fiscal 2009, HP expects to contribute approximately $360 million to its pension plans including EDS, and approximately
$35 million to cover benefit payments to U.S. non-qualified plan participants. HP expects to pay approximately $70 million to
cover benefit claims for HP's post-retirement benefit plans. HP's funding policy is to contribute cash to its pension plans so that
it meets at least the minimum contribution requirements, as established by local government, funding and taxing authorities.
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Estimated Future Benefits Payable

HP estimates that the future benefits payable for the retirement and post-retirement plans in place were as follows at
October 31, 2008:

Non-U.S.

U.S. Defined Defined Post-Retirement
Benefit Plans Benefit Plans Benefit Plans"
In millions

Fiscal year ending October 31
2009 $ 502 $ 337 $ 117
2010 $ 461 $ 321 $ 100
2011 $ 500 $ 353 $ 102
2012 $ 560 $ 385 $ 104
2013 $ 480 $ 420 $ 104
Next five fiscal years to October 31,2018 $ 2,963 $ 6,298 $ 557

(1) The estimated future benefits payable for the post-retirement plans are reflected net of the expected Medicare Part D
subsidy.

Note 16: Commitments

HP leases certain real and personal property under non-cancelable operating leases. Certain leases require HP to pay
property taxes, insurance and routine maintenance and include renewal options and escalation clauses. Rent expense was
approximately $935 million in fiscal 2008, $767 million in fiscal 2007 and $744 million in fiscal 2006. The increase in fiscal 2008 rent
expense was primarily a result of the acquisition of EDS. Sublease rental income was approximately $37 million in fiscal 2008,
$44 million in fiscal 2007 and $47 million in fiscal 2006.

Future annual minimum lease payments and sublease rental income commitments at October 31, 2008 were as follows:

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013  Thereafter Total

In millions
Minimum lease payments $1,017 $807 $550 $391 $265 § 724 83,754
Less: Sublease rental income 46) (3% @n @2 A7 34) (189

$ 971 $768 $523 $369 $248 $ 690 $3,569

At October 31, 2008, HP had unconditional purchase obligations of approximately $3.3 billion. These unconditional
purchase obligations include agreements to purchase goods or services that are enforceable and legally binding on HP and that
specify all significant terms, including fixed or minimum quantities to be purchased, fixed, minimum or variable price provisions
and the approximate timing of the transaction. Unconditional purchase obligations exclude agreements that are cancelable
without penalty. These unconditional purchase obligations are related principally to inventory and other items. Future
unconditional purchase obligations at October 31, 2008 were as follows:

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013  Thereafter
In millions

Unconditional purchase obligations $2,596 $365 $207 $103 $7 $ 25
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Note 17: Litigation and Contingencies

HP is involved in lawsuits, claims, investigations and proceedings, including those identified below, consisting of
intellectual property, commercial, securities, employment, employee benefits and environmental matters that arise in the
ordinary course of business. In accordance with SFAS No. 5, "Accounting for Contingencies", HP records a provision fora
liability when management believes that it is both probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated. HP believes it has adequate provisions for any such matters. HP reviews these provisions at least
quarterly and adjusts these provisions to reflect the impact of negotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of legal counsel, and
other information and events pertaining to a particular case. Based on its experience, HP believes that any damage amounts
claimed in the specific matters discussed below are not a meaningful indicator of HP's potential liability. Litigation is inherently
unpredictable. However, HP believes that it has valid defenses with respect to legal matters pending against it. Nevertheless, it
is possible that cash flows or results of operations could be materially affected in any particular period by the unfavorable
resolution of one or more of these contingencies or because of the diversion of management's attention and the creation of
significant expenses.

Litigation, Proceedings and Investigations

Copyright levies. As described below, proceedings are ongoing against HP in certain European Union ("EU") member
countries, including litigation in Germany, seeking to impose levies upon equipment (such as multifunction devices ("MFDs"),
personal computers ("PCs") and printers) and alleging that these devices enable producing private copies of copyrighted
materials. The total levies due, if imposed, would be based upon the number of products sold and the per-product amounts of
the levies, which vary. Some EU member countries that do not yet have levies on digital devices are expected to implement
similar legislation to enable themto extend existing levy schemes, while some other EU member countries are expected to limit
the scope of levy schemes and applicability in the digital hardware environment. HP, other companies and various mdustry
associations are opposing the extension of levies to the digital environment and advocating compensation to rights holders
through digital rights management systems.

Verwertungs Gesellschaft Wort ("VG Wort"), a collection agency representing certain copyright holders, nstituted non-
binding arbitration proceedings against HP in June 2001 in Germany before the arbitration board of the Patent and Trademark
Office. The proceedings relate to whether and to what extent copyright levies for photocopiers should be imposed in
accordance with copyright laws implemented in Germany on MFDs that allegedly enable the production of copies by private
persons. Following unsuccessful arbitration, VG Wort filed a lawsuit against HP in May 2004 in the Stuttgart Civil Court in
Stuttgart, Germany seeking levies on certain MFDs sold from 1997 to 2001. On December 22, 2004, the court held that HP is
liable for payments regarding MFDs sold in Germany, and ordered HP to pay VG Wort an amount equal to 5% of the
outstanding levies claimed, plus interest, on MFDs sold in Germany up to December 2001. VG Wort appealed this decision. On
July 6,2005, the Stuttgart Court of Appeals ordered HP to pay VG Wort levies based on the published tariffs for photocopiers
in Germany (which range from EUR 38.35 to EUR 613.56 per unit), plus interest, on MFDs sold in Germany up to December 2001.
HP appealed the Stuttgart Court of Appeals' decision to the Bundesgerichtshof (the German Federal Supreme Court). On
January 30, 2008, the German Federal Supreme Court held that the MFDs covered by this lawsuit were photocopiers within the
meaning of the German copyright law that was in effect until December 31, 2007, and, therefore, are
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subject to the levies on photocopiers established by that law. HP has filed a claim with the German Federal Constitutional Court
challenging that ruling.

On September 26, 2005, VG Wort filed an additional lawsuit against HP in the Stuttgart Civil Court in Stuttgart, Germany
seeking levies on MFDs sold in Germany between 1997 and 2001, as well as for MFDs sold from 2002 onwards. On July 26,
2007, the court issued a decision following the ruling of the Stuttgart Court of Appeals with respect to the initial VG Wort
lawsuit as described above. HP has appealed the decision. HP has submitted comments on the German Federal Supreme Court
judgment in the initial VG Wort lawsuit seeking levies on MFDs described above as required by the court.

In July 2004, VG Wort filed a separate lawsuit against HP in the Stuttgart Civil Court seeking levies on printers. On
December 22, 2004, the court held that HP is liable for payments regarding all printers using ASCII code sold in Germany but did
not determine the amount payable per unit. HP appealed this decision in January 2005 to the Higher Regional Court of Baden
Wuerttemberg. On May 11, 2005, the Higher Regional Court issued a decision confirming that levies are due. On June 6, 2005,
HP filed an appeal to the German Federal Supreme Court in Karlsruhe. On December 6, 2007, the German Federal Supreme Court
issued a judgment that printers are not subject to levies under the existing law. The court issued a written decision on
January 25, 2008, and VG Wort subsequently filed an application with the German Federal Supreme Court under Section 321a of
the German Code of Civil Procedure contending that the court did not consider their arguments. On May 9, 2008, the German
Federal Supreme Court denied VG Wort's application. In addition, VG Wort has filed a claim with the German Federal
Constitutional Court challenging the ruling that printers are not subject to levies. HP has submitted unsolicited arguments to
the latter court, and VG Wort has been directed to provide comments with respect to those arguments.

In September 2003, VG Wort filed a Jawsuit against Fujitsu Siemens Computer GmbH ("FSC") in Munich State Court
seeking levies on PCs. This is an industry test case in Germany, and HP has agreed not to object to the delay if VG Wort sues
HP for such levies on PCs following a final decision against FSC. On December 23, 2004, the Munich State Court held that PCs
are subject to a levy and that FSC must pay 12 euros plus compound interest for each PC sold in Germany since March 2001.
FSC appealed this decision in January 2005 to the Higher Regional Court of Bavaria. On December 15, 2005, the Higher Regional
Court affirmed the Munich State Court decision. FSC filed an appeal with the German Federal Supreme Court in February 2006.
On October 2, 2008, the German Federal Supreme Court issued a judgment that PCs were not photocopiers within the meaning
of the German copyright law that was in effect until December 31, 2007 and, therefore, not subject to the levies on photocopiers
established by that law. VG Wort has filed a claim with the German Federal Constitutional Court challenging that ruling.

On December 29, 2005, ZPU, a joint association of various German collection societies, instituted non-binding arbitration
proceedings against HP before the arbitration board of the Patent and Trademark Office demanding reporting of every PC sold
by HP in Germany from January 2002 through December 2005 and seeking a levy of 18.42 euros plus tax for each PC sold during
that period. HP filed a notice of defense in connection with these proceedings in February 2006, and an arbitration hearing was
held in December 2006. On August 3, 2007, the arbitration board issued a ruling proposing a levy of 15 euros plus tax for each
PC sold during that period. HP has rejected the ruling of the arbitration board, and the arbitration proceedings have concluded.
ZPU has filed a claim with the
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appeals court in Munich to which HP has responded. A hearing date has been set by the court for February 18, 2010.

Based on industry opposition to the extension of levies to digital products, HP's assessments of the merits of various
proceedings and HP's estimates of the units impacted and levies, HP has accrued amounts that it believes are adequate to
address the matters described above. However, the ultimate resolution of these matters and the associated financial impact on
HP, including the number of units impacted, the amount of levies imposed and the ability of HP to recover such amounts
through increased prices, remains uncertain.

Sky Subscribers Services Limited and British Sky Broadcasting Limited v. EDS and EDS Limited (UK) is a lawsuit filed
on August 17,2004 by Sky Subscribers Services Limited and British Sky Broadcasting Limited against Electronic Data Systems
Corporation ("EDS"), a company that HP acquired in August 2008, and EDS Limited (UK) ("EDS UK"), one of EDS's
subsidiaries, alleging deceit, negligent misrepresentation, negligent misstatement and breach of contract. The claims arose out
of a customer relationship management project that was awarded to EDS in 2000, the principal objective of which was to
develop a customer call center in Scotland. EDS's main role in the project was as systems integrator. On November 12, 2004,
EDS and EDS UK filed their defense and counterclaim denying the claims and seeking damages for monies owed under the
contract. The trial of this action commenced on October 15, 2007, and final arguments concluded on July 30, 2008. At trial, the
plaintiffs claimed damages in excess of £700 million, and EDS and EDS UK counterclaimed for damages of approximately
£5 million. A decision fromthe court is expected in early 2009.

Skold, et al. v. Intel Corporation and Hewlett-Packard Company is a lawsuit in which HP was joined on June 14,2004
that is pending in state court in Santa Clara County, California. The lawsuit alleges that HP (along with Intel) misled the public
by suppressing and concealing the alleged material fact that systems that use the Intel Pentium 4 processor are less powerful
and slower than systems using the Intel Pentium Il processor and processors made by a competitor of Intel. The plaintiffs seek
unspecified damages, restitution, attorneys' fees and costs, and certification of a nationwide class. A hearing on plaintiffs’
renewed motion for class certification was held on October 22, 2008, and the trial court again denied the plaintiffs’ motion for
class certification without prejudice to plaintiffs filing yet another motion to certify a different class.

Inkjet Printer Litigation. As described below, HP is involved in several lawsuits claiming breach of express and implied
warranty, unjust enrichment, deceptive advertising and unfair business practices where the plaintiffs have alleged, among other
things, that HP employed a "smart chip” in certain inkjet printing products in order to register ink depletion prematurely and to
render the cartridge unusable through a built-in expiration date that is hidden, not documented in marketing materials to
consumers, or both. The plaintiffs have also contended that consumers received false ink depletion warnings and that the smart
chip limits the ability of consumers to use the cartridge to its full capacity or to choose competitive products.

y A consolidated lawsuit captioned In re HP Inkjet Printer Litigation is pending in the United States District
Court for the Northern District of California where the plaintiffs are seeking class certification, restitution,
damages (including enhanced damages), injunctive relief, interest, costs, and attorneys' fees. On January 4, 2008,
the court heard plaintiffs' motions for class certification and to add a class representative and HP's motion for
summary judgment. On July 25, 2008, the
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court denied all three motions. Plaintiffs have indicated an intention to seek certification of a class of California
consumers only.

. A lawsuit captioned Blennis v. HP was filed on January 17,2007 in the United States District Court for the
Norther District of California where the plaintiffs are secking class certification, restitution, damages (including
enhanced damages), injunctive relief, interest, costs, and attorneys' fees.

Four class actions against HP and its subsidiary, Hewlett-Packard (Canada) Co., are pending in Canada, one
commenced in British Columbia in February 2006, two commenced in Quebec in April 2006 and May 2006,
respectively, and one commenced in Ontario in June 2006, where the plaintiffs are seeking class certification,
restitution, declaratory relief, injunctive relief and unspecified statutory, compensatory and punitive damages.

LaserJet Printer Litigation. As described below, HP is involved in two lawsuits relating to technology allegedly
employed in its LaserJet printer products.

Schorsch v. HP is a consumer class action filed against HP on October 28, 2003 in Illinois state court alleging
that HP has included an electrically erasable programmable read only memory (EEPROM) chip in certain of its
LaserJet printers that prematurely advises the user that the drum kit needs replacing in violation of Illinois state
law. The plaintiffs subsequently filed an amended complaint seeking to expand the class from purchasers of
drum kits to purchasers of all HP printer consumables that contain EEPROM chips. The most current amended
complaint seeks certification of an Illinois-only class and seeks unspecified damages, attomneys' fees and costs.

Baggett v. HP is a consumer class action filed against HP on June 6, 2007 in the United States District Court for
the Central District of California alleging that HP employs a technology in its LaserJet color printers whereby the
printing process shuts down prematurely, thus preventing customers from using the toner that is allegedly left
in the cartridge. The plaintiffs also allege that HP fails to disclose to consumers that they will be unable to utilize
the toner remaining in the cartridge after the printer shuts down. The complaint seeks certification of a
nationwide class of purchasers of all HP LaserJet color printers and seeks unspecified damages, restitution,
disgorgement, injunctive relief, attorneys' fees and costs.

Richv. HP is a consumer class action filed against HP on May 22, 2006 in the United States District Court for the Northern
District of California. The suit alleges that HP designed its color inkjet printers to unnecessarily use color ink in addition to
black ink when printing black and white images and text. The plaintiffs seek injunctive and monetary relief on behalf of a
nationwide class.

On December 27, 2001, Cornell University and the Cornell Research Foundation, Inc. filed a complaint, amended on
September 6, 2002, against HP in United States District Court for the Northern District of New York alleging that HP's PA-RISC
8000 family of microprocessors, and servers and workstations incorporating those processors, infringe a patent assigned to
Comell Research Foundation, Inc. that describes a way of executing microprocessor instructions. The complaint sought
declaratory and injunctive relief and unspecified damages. The patent at issue in this litigation, United States Patent
No. 4,807,115, expired on February 21, 2006. Therefore, the plaintiffs are no longer entitled to seek injunctive relief against HP.
This matter was tried between May 19 and May 30, 2008,
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and, on May 30, 2008, a jury returned a verdict in favor of the plaintiffs in the amount of $184 million. The court has not yet
entered a final judgment, and it will not do so until after it rules on HP's equitable defenses and HP's post-trial motions to vacate
the judgment and/or to reduce the amount of damages awarded by the jury. Depending on the outcome of HP's defenses and
post-trial motions, HP may file an appeal with the Federal Circuit Court of Appeals.

CSIRO Patent Litigation. Microsofi Corporation, Hewlett-Packard Company, et al. v. Commonwealth Scientific and
Industrial Research Organisation of Australia is an action filed by HP and two other plaintiffs on May 9, 2005, in the District
Court for the Northem District of California seeking a declaratory judgment against Commonwealth Scientific and Industrial
Research Organisation of Australia ("CSIRO") that HP's products employing the IEEE 802.11a and 802.11g wireless protocol
standards do not infringe CSIRO's United States Patent No. 5,487,069 relating to wireless transmission of data at frequencies in
excess of 10GHz On September 22, 2005, CSIRO filed an answer and counterclaims alleging that all HP products which employ
those wireless protocol standards infringe the CSIRO patent and seeking damages, including enhanced damages and attorneys'
fees and costs, and an injunction against sales of infringing products. On December 12, 2006, CSIRO successfully moved to
have the case transferred to the District Court of the Eastern District of Texas. That court has previously granted CSIRO's
motions for summary judgment on the issues of validity and patent infringement and a permanent injunction in favor of CSIRO
in a patent infringement action brought by CSIRO against Buffalo Technology (USA), Inc., a third party vendor of wireless
networking products based on the same patent. This judgment was subsequently affirmed by the U.S. Court of Appeals for the
Federal Circuit on all grounds except for one theory challenging the validity of the patent. On June 15, 2007, CSIRO filed an
amended answer and counterclaims adding the allegation that all HP products which employ the draft [EEE 802.11n wireless
protocol infringe the CSIRO patent. Trial is scheduled for April 2009.

The United States of America, ex rel. Norman Rille and Neal Roberts v. Hewlett-Packard Company, et al. In 2004, two
private individuals filed a civil "gui tam" complaint under the False Claims Act in the United States District Court for the
Eastem District of Arkansas containing generalized allegations that HP and several other companies participated in an
industry-wide practice of using partnership and alliance programs to make improper payments and cause the submission of
false claims in connection with contracts to provide products and services to the federal government. On April 12, 2007, the
U.S. Department of Justice intervened in the gui tam action and filed a complaint against HP (and several other companies in
separate actions) on behalf of the United States containing allegations that HP violated the False Claims Act and the Anti-
Kickback Act of 1986 by providing millions of dollars in kickbacks to its alliance partners, including "influencer fees” and "new
business opportunity rebates.” The U.S. complaint further alleges that HP violated the False Claims Act and the Anti-Kickback
Act, breached its federal government contracts, induced the federal government to make payments to HP that HP was not
entitled to receive under those contracts, and was unjustly enriched by expressly or impliedly making false statements, records
or certifications to the federal government that it complied with and would continue to comply with the Anti-Kickback Act and
by submitting claims to the government that allegedly were inflated because they included the amounts ofthe influencer fees
and new business opportunity rebates. The U.S. complaint seeks treble damages plus civil penalties in connection with the
alleged violations of the False Claims Act, double damages plus civil penalties in connection with the alleged violations ofthe
Anti-Kickback Act and disgorgement of profits eamed in connection with the breach of contract and unjust enrichment claims.
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Leak Investigation Proceedings. As described below, HP is or has been the subject of various governmental inquiries

concerning the processes employed in an investigation into leaks of HP confidential information to members of the media that
concluded in May 2006:

In August 2006, HP was informally contacted by the Attomey General of the State of California requesting
information concerning the processes employed in the leak investigation. On December 7, 2006, HP announced
that it entered into an agreement with the California Attomey General to resolve civil claims arising from the leak
investigation, including a claim made by the California Attorney General in a Santa Clara County Superior Court
action filed on December 7, 2006, that HP committed unfair business practices under California law in connection
with the leak investigation. As a result of this agreement, which includes an injunction, the California Attomey
General will not pursue civil claims against HP or its current and former directors, officers and employees. Under
the terms of the agreement, HP paid a total of $14.5 million and agreed to implement and maintain for five years a
series of measures designed to ensure that HP's corporate investigations are conducted in accordance with
California law and the company's high ethical standards. Of the $14.5 million, $13.5 million has been used to
create a Privacy and Piracy Fund to assist California prosecutors in investigating and prosecuting consumer
privacy and information piracy violations, $650,000 was used to pay statutory damages and $350,000 reimbursed
the California Attorney General's office for its investigation costs. There was no finding of liability against HP as
part of the settlement.

Beginning in September 2006, HP received requests from the Committee on Energy and Commerce of the U.S.
House of Representatives (the "Committee") for records and information concemning the leak investigation,
securities transactions by HP officers and directors, including an August 25, 2006, securities transaction by
Mark Hurd, HP's Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and related matters. HP has responded to those requests.
In addition, Mr. Hurd voluntarily gave testimony to the Committee regarding the leak investigation on
September 28, 2006.

. In September 2006, HP was informally contacted by the U.S. Attomney for the Northern District of California
requesting similar information concerning the processes employed in the leak investigation. HP has responded
to that request.

Beginning in September 2006, HP has received requests from the Division of Enforcement of the Securities and
Exchange Commission for records and information and interviews with current and former HP directors and
officers relating to the leak investigation, the resignation of Thomas J. Perkins from HP's Board of Directors, HP's
May 22, 2006 and September 6, 2006 filings with the SEC on Form 8-K, stock repurchases by HP and securities
transactions by its officers and directors that occurred between May 1 and October 1, 2006, and HP's policies,
practices and approval of securities transactions. In May 2007, HP consented to the entry of an order by the
SEC ordering HP to cease and desist from committing or causing violations of the public reporting requirements
ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. HP has been advised by the staff of the Division of
Enforcement that the staff has completed its investigation and does not intend to recommend that any other SEC
enforcement action be brought in connection with these matters.
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* In September 2006, HP received a request fromthe U.S. Federal Communications Commission for records and
information relating to the processes employed in the leak investigation. HP has responded to that request.

In addition, four stockholder derivative lawsuits have been filed in California purportedly on behalf of HP stockholders
seeking to recover damages for alleged breach of fiduciary duty and to require HP to improve its corporate governance and
internal control procedures as a result of the activities of the leak investigation: Staehr v. Dunn, et al. was filed in Santa Clara
County Superior Court on September 18, 2006; Worsham v. Dunn, et al. was filed in Santa Clara County Superior Court on
September 14, 2006; Tansey v. Dunn, et al. was filed in Santa Clara County Superior Court on September 20, 2006; and Hall v.
Dunn, et al. was filed in Santa Clara County Superior Court on September 25, 2006. On October 19, 2006, the Santa Clara County
Superior Court consolidated the four California cases under the caption In re Hewlett-Packard Company Derivative
Litigation. The consolidated complaint filed on November 19, 2006, also seeks to recover damages in connection with sales of
HP stock alleged to have been made by certain current and former HP officers and directors while in possession of material non-
public information. Two additional stockholder derivative lawsuits, Pifko v. Babbio, et al., filed on September 19, 2006, and
Gross v. Babbio, et al., filed on November 21, 2006, were filed in Chancery Court, County of New Castle, Delaware; both seek to
recover damages for alleged breaches of fiduciary duty and to obtain an order instructing the defendants to refrain from further
breaches of fiduciary duty and to implement corrective measures that will prevent future occurrences of the alleged breaches of
fiduciary duty. On January 24, 2007, the Delaware court consolidated the two cases under the caption In re Hewlett-Packard
Company Derivative Litigation and subsequently stayed the proceedings, as the parties had reached a tentative settlement.
The HP Board of Directors appointed a Special Litigation Committee consisting of independent Board members authorized to
investigate, review and evaluate the facts and circumstances asserted in these derivative matters and to determine how HP
should proceed in these matters. On December 14, 2007, HP and the plaintiffs in the California and Delaware derivative actions
entered into an agreement to settle those lawsuits. Under the terms of the settlement, HP agreed to continue certain corporate
govemance changes until December 31, 2012 and to pay the plaintiffs’ attomeys' fees. The California court granted final
approval to the settlement on March 11, 2008 and subsequently granted plaintiffs’ counsel's fee application and dismissed the
action. On June 12, 2008, the Delaware court granted final approval to the settlement and the plaintiffs’ application for attomeys'
fees and also dismissed the action. Because neither the dismissal of the California nor the Delaware derivative action was
thereafter appealed, both cases are now concluded.

Environmental

HP is subject to various federal, state, local and foreign laws and regulations concerning environmental protection,
including laws addressing the discharge of pollutants into the air and water, the management and disposal of hazardous
substances and wastes, the cleanup of contaminated sites, the content of its products and the recycling, treatment and
disposal of its products including batteries. In particular, HP faces increasing complexity in its product design and procurement
operations as it adjusts to new and future requirements relating to the chemical and materials composition of its products, their
safe use, the energy consumption associated with those products and product take-back legislation. HP could incur substantial
costs, its products could be restricted from entering certain jurisdictions, and it could face other sanctions, if it were to violate
or become liable under
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Note 17: Litigation and Contingencies (Continued)

environmental laws or if its products become non-compliant with environmental laws. HP's potential exposure includes fines
and civil or criminal sanctions, third-party property damage or personal injury claims and clean up costs. The amount and
timing of costs under environmental laws are difficult to predict.

HP is party to, or otherwise involved in, proceedings brought by U.S. or state environmental agencies under the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act ("CERCLA"), known as "Superfund,” or state laws
similar to CERCIL.A. HP is also conducting environmental investigations or remediations at several current or former operating
sites pursuant to administrative orders or consent agreements with state environmental agencies.

HP is also subject to legislation in an increasing number of jurisdictions that makes producers of electrical goods, including
computers and printers, financially responsible for specified collection, recycling, treatment and disposal of past and future
covered products (sometimes referred to as "product take-back legislation"). For example, the European Union ("EU") adopted
the Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment Directive in January 2003. That directive makes producers of electrical goods,
including computers and printers, financially responsible for specified collection, recycling, treatment and disposal of past and
future covered products. The EU member states were obliged to make producers participating in the market financially
responsible for implementing these responsibilities.

Note 18: Segment Information
Description of Segments

HP is a leading global provider of products, technologies, software, solutions and services to individual consumers, small
and medium sized businesses ("SMBs"), and large enterprises including the public and education sectors. HP's offerings span
personal computing and other access devices; imaging and printing-related products and services; enterprise information
technology ("IT") infrastructure, including enterprise storage and server technology; software that optimizes business
technology investments; financial services including leasing; and multi-vendor customer services, including technology
support and maintenance, consulting and integration, information technology and business process outsourcing services and
application services.

HP and its operations are organized into seven business segments for financial reporting purposes: Enterprise Storage and
Servers ("ESS"), HP Services ("HPS"), HP Software, the Personal Systems Group ("PSG"), the Imaging and Printing Group
("IPG"), HP Financial Services ("HPFS"), and Corporate Investments. The business operation that we acquired through our
acquisition of EDS is a business unit within HPS for financial reporting purposes. HP's organizational structure is based on a
number of factors that management uses to evaluate, view and run its business operations, which include, but are not limited
to, customer base, homogeneity of products and technology. The business segments disclosed in the accompanying
Consolidated Financial Statements are based on this organizational structure and information reviewed by HP's management to
evaluate the business segment results. ESS, HPS and HP Software are reported collectively as a broader Technology Solutions
Group ("TSG"). In order to provide a supplementary view of HP's business, aggregated financial data for TSGis presented
herein.

151

sec.gov/Archives/.../a2189375z10-k.htm 176/203



9/23/2010 sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/47217/00...
Table of Contents

HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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HP has reclassified segment operating results for fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 to conform to certain fiscal 2008 organizational
realignments. None of the changes impacts HP's previously reported consolidated net revenue, eamings from operations, net
earnings ornet eamings per share. Future changes to this organizational structure may result in changes to the business
segments disclosed. A description of the types of products and services provided by each business segment follows.

Technology Solutions Group.

Each ofthe business segments within TSGis described in detail below.

Enterprise Storage and Servers provides storage and server products. The various server offerings range from
entry-level servers to high-end scalable servers, including Superdome servers. Industry standard servers

include primarily entry-level and mid-range ProLiant servers, which run primarily Windows®(1), Linuxand
Novell operating systems and leverage Intel Corporation ("Intel") and Advanced Micro Devices ("AMD")
processors. The business spans a range of product lines, including pedestal-tower servers, density-optimized

rack servers and HP's BladeSystem family of server blades. Business critical systems include Itanium®?)-based
Integrity servers running on HP-UX, Windows®, Linux, OpenVMS and NonStop operating systems, including
the high-end Superdome servers and fault-tolerant Integrity NonStop servers. Business critical systems also
include the Reduced Instruction Set Computing ("RISC")-based servers with the HP 9000 line running on the

HP-UX operating system, HP AlphaServers running on both Tru64 UNIX®®) and OpenVMS, and MIPs-based
NonStop servers. HP's Storage W orks offerings include entry-level, mid-range and high-end arrays, storage area
networks ("SANs"), network attached storage ("NAS"), storage management software, and virtualization
technologies, as well as tape drives, tape libraries and optical archival storage.

(1) Windows® is a registered trademark of Microsoft Corporation.
(2)  Itanium® is a registered trademark of Intel Corporation.
(3)  UNIX® is aregistered trademark of The Open Group.

. HP Services provides a portfolio of multi-vendor IT services including technology services, consulting and
integration and outsourcing services. HPS also offers a variety of services tailored to particular industries such
as communications, media and entertainment, manufacturing and distribution, financial services, health and life
sciences and the public sector, including government services. HPS collaborates with the Enterprise Storage and
Servers and HP Software, as well as with third-party system integrators and software and networking companies
to bring solutions to HP customers. HPS also works with HP's Imaging and Printing Group and Personal Systems
Group to provide managed print services, end user workplace services, and mobile workforce productivity
solutions to enterprise customers. Technology Services provides a range of services, including standalone
product support and high availability services for complex, global, networked and mmlti-vendor environments.
Technology Services also manages the delivery of product warranty support through its own service
organization, as well as through authorized partners. Consulting and Integration provides services to architect,
design and implement technology and industry-specific solutions for customers. Consulting and Integration
also provides cross-industry solutions in the areas of architecture and govemance, infrastructure, applications
and packaged applications, security, IT service management, information management and enterprise Microsoft
solutions. Outsourcing Services offers a variety of IT
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 18: Segment Information (Continued)

management and outsourcing services that support customers' infrastructure, applications, business processes,
end user workplace, print environment and business continuity and recovery requirements. EDS was added as a
business unit within HP Services for financial reporting purposes in the fourth quarter of 2008. EDS provides
information technology, applications and business process outsourcing services to customers.

HP Software provides enterprise IT management software solutions, including support, that allow customers to
manage and automate their IT infrastructure, operations, applications, IT services and business processes under
the HP Business Technology Optimization ("BTO") brand. The portfolio of BTO solutions also includes tools to
automate data center operations and IT processes. HP Software also provides OpenCall solutions, a suite of
comprehensive, carrier-grade software platforms for service providers products that enable them to develop and
deploy next-generation voice, data and converged network services. HP Software further provides information
management and business intelligence solutions, which include enterprise data warehousing, information
business continuity, data availability, compliance and e-discovery products that enable our customers to extract
more value from their structured and unstructured data and information.

HP's other business segments are described below.

Personal Systems Group provides commercial PCs, consumer PCs, workstations, handheld computing devices,
calculators and other related accessories, software and services for the commercial and consumer markets.
Commercial PCs are optimized for commercial uses, including enterprise and SMB customers, and for
connectivity and manageability in networked environments. Commercial PCs include the HP Compagq business
desktops, notebooks and Tablet PCs, the HP EliteBook line of Mobile Workstations and professional
notebooks, as well as the HP Mini-Note PC, HP Blade PCs, Retail POS systems, and the HP Compaq and
Neoware Thin Clients. Consumer PCs are targeted at the home user and include the HP Pavilion and Compaq
Presario series of multi-media consumer desktops and notebooks, as well as the HP Pavilion Elite desktops, HP
HDX Premium notebooks, Touchsmart PCs and Voodoo Gaming PCs. Workstations are individual computing
products designed for users demanding enhanced performance, such as computer animation, engineering
design and other programs requiring high-resolution graphics. Workstations run on Windows® and Linux-
based operating systems. PSGprovides a series of HP iPAQ Pocket PC handheld computing devices that run on
Windows® Mobile software. These products range from basic PDAs to advanced devices with voice and data
capability. Digital entertainment products include Media Smart home servers, HD DVD and RW drives and DVD
writers.

Imaging and Printing Group provides consumer and commercial printer hardware, printing supplies, printing
media and scanning devices. IPGis also focused on imaging solutions in the commercial markets, from managed
print services solutions to addressing new growth opportunities in commercial printing and capturing high-
value pages in areas such as industrial applications, outdoor signage, and the graphic arts business. Inkjet and
Web Solutions delivers HP's consumer and SMB inkjet solutions (hardware, ink, media) and develops HP's retail
and web businesses. It includes single function and all-in-one inkjet printers targeted toward consumers and
SMBs as well as retail publishing sohitions, Snapfish, and Logoworks. LaserJet and Enterprise Solutions
delivers products and services to the enterprise segment. It includes
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LaserJet printers and supplies, Edgeline, scanners, enterprise software solutions such as Exstream Software and
Web Jetadmin, managed print services products and solutions, and Halo telepresence. Graphics solutions
include large format printing (Designjet, Scitex, ColorSpan and NUR), large format supplies, WebPress supplies,
Indigo printing, specialty printing systems, inkjet high-speed production solutions and light production
solutions. Printer supplies include LaserJet toner and inkjet printer cartridges and other printing-related media
such as HP-branded Vivera and ColorSphere ink and HP Premium and Premium Plus photo papers.

HP Financial Services supports and enhances HP's global product and services solutions, providing a broad
range of value-added financial life-cycle management services. HPFS enables HP's worldwide customers to
acquire complete IT solutions, including hardware, software and services. HPFS offers leasing, financing, utility
programs, and asset recovery services, as well as financial asset management services, for large global and
enterprise customers. HPFS also provides an array of specialized financial services to SMBs and educational
and governmental entities. HPFS offers innovative, customized and flexible alternatives to balance unique
customer cash flow, technology obsolescence and capacity needs.

Corporate Investments includes HP Labs and certain business incubation projects. Revenue in this segment is
attributable to the sale of certain network infrastructure products, including Ethernet switch products that
enhance computing and enterprise solutions under the brand "ProCurve Networking," as well as the licensing of
specific HP technology to third parties.

Segment Data

HP derives the results ofthe business segments directly fromits internal management reporting system. The accounting
policies HP uses to derive business segment results are substantially the same as those the consolidated company uses.
Management measures the performance of each business segment based on several metrics, including earnings from
operations. Management uses these results, in part, to evaluate the performance of, and to assign resources to, each ofthe
business segments. HP does not allocate to its business segments certain operating expenses, which it manages separately at
the corporate level. These unallocated costs include primarily amortization of purchased intangible assets, stock-based
compensation expense related to HP-granted employee stock options, PRU's and the employee stock purchase plan, certain
acquisition-related charges and charges for purchased IPR&D, as well as certain corporate governance costs.

HP does not allocate to its business segments restructuring charges and any associated adjustments related to
restructuring actions.
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Selected operating results information for each business segment was as follows for the following fiscal years ended
October 31:

Earnings (Loss) from

Total Net Revenue Operations
2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
In millions
Enterprise Storage and Servers $ 19400 $ 18,639 $17,211 § 2,577 § 2,148 § 1,557
HP Services 22,397 16,570 15,578 2,491 1,787 1,498
HP Software 3,029 2,531 1,437 461 221 17
Technology Solutions Group 44,826 37,740 34,226 5,529 4,156 3,038
Personal Systems Group 42295 36,409 29,166 2,375 1,939 1,152
Imaging and Printing Group 29,385 28,465 26,786 4,590 4315 3,978
HP Financial Services 2,698 2,336 2,078 192 155 147
Corporate Investments 965 762 566 49 67 (A51)
Segment total $120,169 $105,712 $92,822 § 12,735 $ 10,508 $ 8,164

The reconciliation of segment operating results information to HP consolidated totals was as follows for the following
fiscal years ended October 31:

2008 2007 2006
In millions

Net revenue:
Segment total $120,169 $105,712 $92,822
Elimination of intersegment net revenue and other (1,805) (1,426) (1,164)
Total HP consolidated net revenue $118,364 $104286 $91,658
Earnings before taxes:
Total segment earnings from operations $ 12735 $ 10,508 $ 8,164
Corporate and unallocated costs and eliminations (460) (439) (331)
Unallocated costs related to certain stock-based compensation expense 479) (507) (459)
Amortization of purchased intangible assets 967) (783) (604)
In-process research and development charges 45) (190) (52)
Acquisition-related charges C3)) — —
Restructuring charges (270) (387) (158)
Pension curtailments and settlements, net — 517 —_
Interest and other, net — 458 631
Total HP consolidated earnings before taxes $ 10473 $§ 9,177 $ 7,191

HP allocates its assets to its business segments based on the primary segments benefiting from the assets. Corporate and
unallocated assets are composed primarily of cash and cash equivalents. As described above, fiscal 2008 segment asset
information is stated based on the fiscal 2008 organizational
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structure. Total assets by segment as well as for TSG and the reconciliation of segment assets to HP consolidated total assets
were as follows at October 31:

2008 2007 2006
In millions

Enterprise Storage and Servers $ 11,566 $13,518 $13,647
HP Services 42,533 17,232 15,712
HP Software 8,908 8,366 1,909

Technology Solutions Group $ 63,008 §39,116 $31,268
Personal Systems Group 16,451 14,153 12,237
Imaging and Printing Group 14203 14573 13,889
HP Financial Services 9,174 9,001 7,927
Corporate Investments 366 297 305
Corporate and unallocated assets 10,130 11,559 16,355
Total HP consolidated assets $ 113,331 $88,699 $81,981

Major Customers
No single customer represented 10% or more of HP's total net revenue in any fiscal year presented.
Geographic Information

Net revenue, classified by the major geographic areas in which HP operates, was as follows for the following fiscal years
ended October 31:

2008 2007 2006
In millions
Net revenue:
Us. $ 36,932 $ 34814 $32,244
Non-U.S. 81,432 69,472 59414
Total HP consolidated net revenue $118,364 $104,286 $91,658

Net revenue by geographic area is based upon the sales location that predominately represents the customer location.
Other than the United States, no single country represented more than 10% of HP's total consolidated net revenue in any
period presented. HP reports revenue net of sales taxes, use taxes and value-added taxes directly imposed by governmental
authorities on HP's revenue producing transactions with its customers.

At October 31, 2008, Belgium and the United States had 10% or more of HP's total consolidated net assets. At October 31,
2007, no single country other than the United States had 10% or more of HP's total consolidated net assets. At October 31,
2006, Belgium and the Netherlands each represented 10% or more of HP's total consolidated net assets in addition to the United
States.

No single country other than the United States had more than 10% of HP's total consolidated net property, plant and
equipment in any period presented. HP's long-lived assets other than goodwill and
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purchased intangible assets, which HP does not allocate to specific geographic locations as it is impracticable for HP to do so,
are composed principally of net property, plant and equipment.

Net property, plant and equipment, classified by major geographic areas in which HP operates, was as follows for the
following fiscal years ended October 31:

2008 2007 2006
In millions
Net property, plant and equipment:
u.s. $ 6223 $4321 $3,710
Non-U.S. 4,615 3,477 3,153

Total HP consolidated net property, plant and equipment $10,838 $7,798 $6,863
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Net revenue by segment and business unit

The following table provides net revenue by segment and business unit for the following fiscal years ended October 31:

2008 2007 2006
In millions
Net revenue(!):
Industry standard servers $ 11,657 $ 11,380 § 9,982
Business critical systems 3,538 3,553 3,654
Storage 4,205 3,706 3,575
Enterprise Storage and Servers 19,400 18,639 17,211
Technology services 9,413 8,539 8,246
Outsourcing services 5,597 4,839 4,399
Consulting and integration 3,531 3,192 2,933
EDS(2) 3,856 — —_
HP Services 22,397 16,570 15,578
Business technology optimization(® 2,497 2,004 889
Other sofware3 532 527 548
HP Software 3,029 2,531 1,437
Technology Solutions Group 44,826 37,740 34,226
Notebooks 22,657 17,650 12,005
Desktops 16,626 15,889 14,641
Workstations 1,902 1,721 1,368
Handhelds 360 531 650
Other 750 618 502
Personal Systems Group 42,295 36,409 29,166
Commercial hardware 6,799 6,863 6,717
Consumer hardware 3,998 4,496 4,485
Supplies 18,587 17,106 15,584
Other 1 — —
Imaging and Printing Group 29,385 28,465 26,786
HP Financial Services 2,698 2,336 2,078
Corporate Investments 965 762 566
Total segments 120,169 105,712 92,822
Eliminations of inter-segment net revenue and other (1,805) (1,426) (1,164)
Total HP consolidated net revenue $118,364 $104,286 $91,658
] Certain fiscal 2008 organizational realignments have been reflected retroactively to provide improved visibility and comparability. The reclassifications resulted

in the trans€r of revenue among ESS, HPS and HP Software within TSG. In addition, revenue was transfired among the business units within IPG and
among the business units within PSG, but there was no change to the previously reported revenue fr either segment as a whole. There was no impact on the
previously reported revenues of HPFS and Corporate Investments or on the previously reported consolidated financial results for the company as a whole.
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(2) Reflects the revenue of EDS fflom August 26, 2008 through October 31, 2008.

3 The OpenView business unit was renamed "Business Technology Optimization” and the OpenCall and other business unit was renamed "Other Software”
cfRctive in fiscal 2008. The renamed "Other Software” business unit includes primarily OpenCall and information management and business intelligence
solutions.
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2008

Net revenue

Cost of sales?

Research and development

Selling, general and administrative
Amortization of purchased intangible assets
In-process research and development charges
Restructuring charges

Acquisition-related charges

Total costs and expenses

Eamings ffom operations

Interest and other, net

Eamings before taxes

Provision for taxes

Net eamings

Net eamings per share: ()

Basic

Diluted
Cash dividends paid per share

Range of per share closing stock prices on the New York Stock

Exchange

Low
High
2007
Net revenue
Cost of salest!)
Research and development
Selling, general and administrative
Amortization of purchased intangible assets
In-process research and development charges
Restructuring charges
Pension curtailments and pension settlements, net
Total costs and expenses
Eamings fom operations
Interest and other, net
Eamings before taxes
Provision for taxes
Net eamnings
Net eamings per share:(2)

Basic

Diluted
Cash dividends paid per share

Range of per share closing stock prices on the New York Stock

Exchange:

Low

High

(m

(2)

Cost of products, cost of services and financing interest.

Quarterly Summary
(Unaudited)
Three-month periods ended

Janvary 31  April 30 July 31 October 31

In millions, except per share amounts
$ 28467 $ 28262 $ 28,032 § 33,603
21,499 21,261 21,253 25,908
898 908 895 842
3,241 3,275 3,137 3,451
206 211 213 337
— 13 — 32
10 4 5 251
— — — 41
25,854 25,672 25,503 30,862
2,613 2,590 2,529 2,741
72 3 23 98)
2,685 2,593 2,552 2,643
552 536 525 531
$ 2,133 § 2,057 $§ 2027 $ 2112
$ 08 § 083 $ 082 $ 0.87
$ 08 $ 08 $ 080 $ 0.84
§ o008 $ 008 $ 0.08 § 0.08
$ 3999 $ 40.16 $ 4083 § 3003
$ 5348 $ 4969 $ 4997 § 4920
$ 25082 $ 25534 § 25377 $ 28,293
19,136 19,283 19,164 21,304
877 903 917 914
2,908 3,044 3,002 3,272
201 212 183 187
167 19 —_ 4
41) 453 %) (20)
9 (508) — —
23,239 23,406 23,261 25,661
1,843 2,128 2,116 2,632
121 100 170 67
1,964 2,228 2,286 2,699
417 453 508 535
$ 1,547 $ 1,775 § 1,778 § 2,164
$ 057 $% 067 § 068 $§ 0.84
$ 05 § 065 $ 066 $ 0.81
$ 008 $ 0.08 $ 0.08 § 0.08
$ 3822 $§ 3867 $ 4283 § 46.01
$ 4353 $§ 4313 $ 4854 § 5287

EPS r each quarter is computed using the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during that quarter, while EPS for the fiscal year is computed using
the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the year. Thus, the sum ofthe EPS fr each ofthe Hur quarters may not equal the EPS fr the fiscal

year.
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ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures.

None.

ITEM9A. Controls and Procedures.
Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal
financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of'the design and operation of our disclosure controls and
procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as ofthe end of
the period covered by this report (the "Evaluation Date"). Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal
financial officer conclided as of the Evaluation Date that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective such that the
information relating to HP, including our consolidated subsidiaries, required to be disclosed in our Securities and Exchange
Commission ("SEC") reports (i) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules
and forms, and (ii) is accumulated and communicated to HP's management, including our principal executive officer and
principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal
financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of any changes in our intemal control over financial reporting (as such term s
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that occurred during our most recently completed fiscal
quarter. Based on that evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that there has not
been any change in our intemal control over financial reporting during that quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

See Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting in Item 8, which is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 9B. Other Information.
Not applicable.
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PART III
ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The names of the executive officers of HP and their ages, titles and biographies as of the date hereof are incorporated by
reference from Part I, Item 1, above.

The following information is included in HP's Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders and Proxy Statement to be filed
within 120 days after HP's fiscal year end of October 31, 2008 (the "Proxy Statement")and is incorporated herein by reference:

* Information regarding directors of HP who are standing for reelection and any persons nominated to become
directors of HP is set forth under "Election of Directors."”

. Information regarding HP's Audit Committee and designated "audit committee financial experts" is set forth
under "Corporate Govemance Principles and Board Matters—Board Structure and Committee Composition—
Audit Committee."

¢ Information on HP's code of business conduct and ethics for directors, officers and employees, also known as

the "Standards of Business Conduct," and on HP's Corporate Governance Guidelines is set forth under
"Corporate Governance Principles and Board Matters."

¢ Information regarding Section 16(a) beneficial ownership reporting compliance is set forth under "Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance.”

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation.

The following information is included in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference:

¢ Information regarding HP's compensation of its named executive officers is set forth under "Executive
Compensation.”

. Information regarding HP's compensation of'its directors is set forth under "Director Compensation and Stock
Ownership Guidelines."

. The report of HP's HR and Compensation Committee is set forth under "HR and Compensation Committee

Report on Executive Compensation.”

ITEM 12. Security Owners hip of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

The following information is included in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference:

* Information regarding security ownership of certain beneficial owners, directors and executive officers is set
forth under "Common Stock Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management."

* Information regarding HP's equity compensation plans, including both stockholder approved plans and non-
stockholder approved plans, is set forth in the section entitled "Equity Compensation Plan Information."
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ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The following information is included in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference:

.

Information regarding transactions with related persons is set forth under "Related Person Transaction Policies
and Procedures."”

Information regarding director independence is set forth under "Corporate Govemance Principles and Board
Matters—Director Independence."”

ITEM 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

Information regarding principal auditor fees and services is set forth under "Principal Accountant Fees and Services" in
the Proxy Statement, which information is incorporated herein by reference.

162

sec.gov/Archives/.../a2189375z10-k.htm 190/203




9/23/2010 sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/47217/00...
Table of Contents

PART IV

ITEM 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:

L. All Financial Statements:

The following financial statements are filed as part of this report under Item 8—"Financial Statements and Supplementary

Data.”

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Consolidated Statements of Eamnings

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Quarterly Summary

2. Financial Statement Schedules:

77
80
81
82
83
84
85

159

Schedule I—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the three fiscal years ended October 31, 2008.

All other schedules are omitted as the required information is inapplicable or the information is presented in the

Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto in Item 8 above.

3. Exhibits:

A list of exhibits filed or furnished with this report on Form 10-K (or incorporated by reference to exhibits previously
filed or fumished by HP) is provided in the Exhibit Index on page 167 of this report. HP will furnish copies of exhibits for
a reasonable fee (covering the expense of furnishing copies) upon request. Stockholders may request exhibits copies by

contacting:

Hewlett-Packard Company

Attn: Investor Relations

3000 Hanover Street

Palo Alto, CA 94304

(866) GET-HPQI1 or (866) 438-4771
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Schedule I
HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
For the fiscal years ended
Qctober 31
2008 2007 2006
In millions
Allowance for doubtful accounts — accounts receivable:
Balance, beginning of period $ 26 § 20 $ 227
Amount acquired through acquisition 245 3 4
Addition of bad debt provision 226 32 37
Deductions, net of recoveries (144) 29 48)
Balance, end of period $ 553 § 226 § 220
Allowance for doubtful accounts — financing
receivables:
Balance, beginning of period $ &8 $ 8 § 111
Additions (reversal)to allowance 49 15 (33)
Deductions, net of recoveries 43) 1 2
Balance, end of period $§ 90 $ 84 §$§ 8
164
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: December 18, 2008 HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY

By: /s/ CATHERINE A. LESJAK

Catherine A. Lesjak
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints
Catherine A. Lesjak, Michael J. Holston and Paul T. Porrini, or any of them, his or her attorneys-in-fact, for such person in any
and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this report and to file the same, with exhibits thereto, and other documents in
connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifving and confirming all that either of said
attorneys-in-fact, or substitute or substitutes, may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title(s) Date
/s/ MARK V. HURD Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President December 18, 2008
{(Principal Executive Officer)
Mark V. Hurd
/s/ CATHERINE A. LESJAK Executive Vice President and Chief December 18, 2008
Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Catherine A. Lesjak

/s/ JAMES T. MURRIN Senior Vice President and Controller December 18, 2008
(Principal Accounting Officer)

James T. Murrin

/s/ LAWRENCET. BABBIO, JR.  Director December 18, 2008

Lawrence T. Babbio, Jr.

/s/ SART M. BALDAUF Director December 18, 2008

Sari M. Baldauf

/s/ RICHARD A. HACKBORN  Director December 18, 2008

Richard A. Hackbom
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/s/ JOHN H. HAMMERGREN Director December 18, 2008

John H. Hammergren
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Signature Title(s) Date

/s/ JOELZ. HYATT

Joel Z. Hyatt Director December 18, 2008

/s/ JOHN R. JOYCE

John R. Joyce Director December 18, 2008

/s/ ROBERT L. RYAN

Robert L. Ryan Director December 18, 2008

/s/ LUCILLE S. SALHANY

Lucille S. Salhany Director December 18, 2008

/s/ G. KENNEDY THOMPSON

G. Kennedy Thompson Director December 18, 2008
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HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit Incorporated by Reference
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Ex hibit(s) Filing Date
2(a) Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among Electronic Data Systems 8- 001- 2.1 May 13, 2008

Corporation, Hewlett-Packard Company and Hawk Merger Corporation. K/A 04423

2(b) Amendment No. 1 to Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among 8-K 001- 2.1 July 25,2008
Electronic Data Systems Corporation, Hewlett-Packard Company and 04423
Hawk Merger Corporation.
3(a) Registrant's Certificate of Incorporation. 10- 001- 3(a) June 12, 1998
Q 04423
3(b) Registrant's Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation. 10- 001- 3(b) March 16,
Q 04423 2001
3(c) Registrant's Amended and Restated By-Laws effective July 24, 2008. 8-K 001- 31 July 24,2008
04423
4(a) Form of Senior Indenture. S-3 333- 4.1 March 17,
30786 2000
4(b) Form of Registrant's Fixed Rate Note and Floating Rate Note and related 8-K 001- 4.1,42 May 24,2001
Officers' Certificate. 04423 and 44
4(c) Form of Registrant's 6.50% Global Note due July 1, 2012, and form of 8K 001- 42and June 27,2002
related Officers' Certificate. 04423 43
4(d) Form of Registrant's Fixed Rate Note and form of Floating Rate Note. 8-K 001- 4.1and December 11,

04423 42 2002

4(c) Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2000, between the Registrant and J.P, S-3 333- 4.9 June 7, 2006
Morgan Trust Company, National Association (formerly Chase Manhattan 134327
Bank), as Trustee.

4(f) Form of Registrant's Floating Rate Global Note due March 1, 2012, formof 8K 001- 4.1,42 February 28,
5.25% Global Note due March 1, 2012 and form of 5.40% Global Note due 04423 and4.3 2007
March 1, 2017.

4(g) Form of Registrant's Floating Rate Global Note due June 15, 2009 and 10- 001- 4D September 7,
Floating Rate Global Note due June 15, 2010. Q 04423 2007
4(h) Form of Registrant's Floating Rate Global Note due September 3, 2009, 8-K 001- 4.1,42 February 29,
4.50% Global Note due March 1, 2013 and 5.50% Global Note due March 1, 04423 and4.3 2008
2018.
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Exhibit Incorporated by Reference
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Ex hibit(s) Filing Date
4(i) Form of Registrant's 6.125% Global Note due March 1, 2014 and form of 8-K 001- 4.1and December 8,
related Officers’ Certificate. 04423 4.2 2008
4(j) Speciman certificate for the Registrant's common stock. 8- 001- 4.1 June 23, 2006
A/A 04423
10(a) Registrant's 2004 Stock Incentive Plan.* S-8 333- 4.1 April 7,2004
114253
10(b) Registrant's 2000 Stock Plan, amended and restated effective
September 17, 2008.1
10(c) Registrant's 1997 Director Stock Plan, amended and restated effective 8-K 001- 99.4  November 23,
November 1, 2005.* 04423 2005
10(d) Registrant's 1995 Incentive Stock Plan, amended and restated effective 10- 001- 10(d)  June 8, 2007
May 1, 2007.* Q 04423
10(e) Registrant's 1990 Incentive Stock Plan, amended and restated effective 10- 001- 10(e)  June 8, 2007
May 1, 2007.* Q 04423
10(f) Compaq Computer Corporation 2001 Stock Option Plan, amended and 10- 001- 10(f)  January 21,
restated effective November 21, 2002.* K 04423 2003
10(g) Compaq Computer Corporation 1998 Stock Option Plan, amended and 10- 001- 10(g) January 21,
restated effective November 21, 2002.* K 04423 2003
10¢th) Compaq Computer Corporation 1995 Equity Incentive Plan, amended and 10- 001- 10h)  January 21,
restated effective November 21, 2002.* K 04423 2003
10(i) Compaq Computer Corporation 1989 Equity Incentive Plan, amended and 10- 001- 100  January 21,
restated effective November 21, 2002.* K 04423 2003
10(j) Compaq Computer Corporation 1985 Nonqualified Stock Option Plan for S-3 333- 10.5  April 18,2002
Non-Employee Directors.* 86378
10(k) Amendment of Compaq Computer Corporation Non-Qualified Stock S-3 333- 10.11  April 18,2002
Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors, effective September 3, 2001.* 86378
10(l) Compaq Computer Corporation 1998 Former Nonemployee Replacement S-3 333- 10.9  April 18,2002
Option Plan.* 86378
10(m) Registrant’s Excess Benefit Retirement Plan, amended and restated as of 8-K 001- 102 September 21,
January 1, 2006.* 04423 2006
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Exhibit Incorporated by Reference
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit(s) Filing Date
10(n) Hewlett-Packard Company Cash Account Restoration Plan, amended and 8K 001- 99.3 November 23,
restated as of January 1, 2005.* 04423 2005
10(0) Registrant's 2005 Pay-for-Results Plan.* 8K 001- 99.5 November 23,
04423 2005
10(p) Registrant's 2005 Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and 8K 001- 10.1 September 21,
restated effective October 1, 2006.* 04423 2006
10(q) First Amendment to the Registrant's 2005 Executive Deferred 10-Q 001- 10(q)  June 8§, 2007
Compensation Plan, as amended and restated effective October 1, 2006.* 04423
10(r) Employment Agreement, dated March 29, 2005, between Registrant and 8-K 001- 9.1 March 30,
Mark V. Hurd.* 04423 2005
10(s) Employment Agreement, dated June 9, 2005, between Registrant and 10-Q 001- 10(x)  September 8,
R. Todd Bradley.* 04423 2005
10(t) Employment Agreement, dated July 11, 2005, between Registrant and 10-Q 001- 10(y)  September 8§,
Randall D. Mott.* 04423 2005
10(u) Registrant's Amended and Restated Severance Plan for Executive 8-K 001- 99.1 July 27, 2005
Officers.* 04423
10(v) Form letter to participants in the Registrant's Pay-for-Results Plan for 10-Q 001- 10(w)  March 10,
fiscal year 2006.* 04423 2006
10(w) Registrant's Executive Severance Agreement.* 10-Q 001-  10(u)(u) June 13,2002
04423
10(x) Registrant's Executive Officers Severance Agreement.* 10-Q 001-  10(v)(v) June 13,2002
04423
10(y) Form letter regarding severance offset for restricted stock and restricted 8-K 001- 10.2 March 22,
units.* 04423 2005
10(z) Form of Indemnity Agreement between Compaq Computer Corporation 10-Q 001- 10(x)(x) June 13,2002
and its executive officers.* 04423
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Exhibit Incorporated by Reference
Number Ex hibit Description Form File No. Ex hibit(s) Filing Date
10(a)(a) Form of Stock Option Agreement for Registrant's 2004 Stock Incentive 10-Q 001- 10(a)@) June 8§, 2007
Plan, Registrant's 2000 Stock Plan, as amended, 04423
Registrant’s 1995 Incentive Stock Plan, as amended, the Compaq
Computer Corporation 2001 Stock Option Plan, as
amended, the Compaq Computer Corporation 1998 Stock Option Plan, as
amended, the Compaq Computer
Corporation 1995 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended and the Compaq
Computer Corporation 1989 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended.*
10(b)(b) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Registrant's 2004 Stock Incentive  10-Q 001- 10(b)(b) June 8, 2007
Plan, 04423
Registrant's 2000 Stock Plan, as amended, and Registrant's 1995 Incentive
Stock Plan, as amended.*
10(c)(c) Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Registrant's 2004 Stock 10-Q 001-  10(c)c) June 8,2007
Incentive Plan.* 04423
10(d)(d) Form of Stock Option Agreement for Registrant's 1990 Incentive Stock 10-K 001- 10(e)  January 27,
Plan, as amended.* 04423 2000
10(e)e) Form of Common Stock Payment A greement and Option Agreement for 10-Q 001- 103)G) March 11,
Registrant's 1997 Director Stock Plan, as amended.* 04423 2005
10(f)(f) Form of Restricted Stock Grant Notice for the Compaq Computer 10-Q 001- 10(w)(w) June 13,
Comoration 1989 Equity Incentive Plan.* 04423 2002
10(g)(g) Forms of Stock Option Notice for the Compaq Computer Corporation Non- 10-K 001- 10(r)(r) January 14,
Qualified Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors, as amended.* 04423 2005
10(h)(h) Form of Long-Term Performance Cash Award Agreement for Registrant's  10-K 001-  10(t)}t) January 14,
2004 Stock Incentive Plan and Registrant's 2000 Stock Plan, as amended.* 04423 2005
10(i)(i) Amendment One to the Long-Term Performance Cash Award Agreement  10-Q 001- 10(q)(q) September 8,
for the 2004 Program.* 04423 2005
10(3)(§) Form of Long-Term Performance Cash Award Agreement for the 2005 10-Q 001-  10(r)(r) September 8,
Program.* 04423 2005
10(k)(k) Form of Long-Term Performance Cash Award Agreement.* 10-Q 001- 10(o)o) March 10,
04423 2006
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Exhibit Incorporated by Reference
Number Exhibit Description Form  File No. Ex hibit(s) Filing Date
10(1)(1) Second Amendment to the Registrant's 2005 Executive Deferred 10-K 001- 10(D{(1) December 18,
Compensation Plan, as amended and restated effective October 1, 2006.* 04423 2007
10(m)(m) Form of Stock Notification and Award Agreement for awards of 8-K 001- 10.1 January 24,
performance-based restricted units.* 04423 2008
10(n)(n) Form of Agreement Regarding Confidential Information and Proprietary 8-K 001- 10.2 January 24,
Developments (California).* 04423 2008
10(oXo0) Form of Agreement Regarding Confidential Information and Proprietary  10-Q 001-  10(o)(0) March 10,
Developments (Texas).* 04423 2008
10(pXp) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Registrant's 2004 Stock 10-Q 001- 10(p)(p) March 10,
Incentive Plan.* 04423 2008
10(qXq) Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Registrant's 2004 Stock 10-Q 001- 10(q)(q) March 10,
Incentive Plan.* 04423 2008
10(r)Xr) Form of Stock Option Agreement for Registrant's 2004 Stock Incentive 10-Q 001- 10(r)r) March 10,
Plan.* 04423 2008
10(s )(s) Form of Special Performance-Based Cash Incentive Notification Letter.* 8-K 001- 10.1 May 20, 2008
04423
10(t)t) Form of Option A greement for Registrant's 2000 Stock Plan.* 10-Q 001-  10(t)(t) June6,2008
04423
10(u)u) Form of Common Stock Payment Agreement for Registrant's 2000 Stock  10-Q 001- 10(u)(u) June 6,2008
Plan.* 04423

10(vXv) Third Amendment to the Registrant's 2005 Executive Deferred
Compensation Plan, as amended and restated effective August 1,
2008.* 1

10(w)(w) Form of Stock Notification and Award A greement for awards of
restricted stock units.*3

10(x)(X) Form of Stock Notification and Award Agreement for awards of
performance-based restricted units.*%

10(y Xy) Form of Stock Notification and Award Agreement for awards of non-
qualified stock options.*}

10(z)(z) Form of Stock Notification and Award Agreement for awards of
restricted stock.*§
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Exhibit Incorporated by Reference
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Ex hibit(s) Filing Date
11 None.

12 Statement of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.
13-14 None.

16 None.

18 None.

21 Subsidiaries of the registrant as of October 31, 2008.

22 None.

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.}

24 Power of Attomey (included on the signature page).

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and
Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.}

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and
Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.§

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.+

Filed herewith.

4

+ Fumnished herewith.

The registrant agrees to furnish to the Commission supplementally upon request a copy of (1) any instrument with respect
to long-term debt not filed herewith as to which the total amount of securities authorized thereunder does not exceed 10 percent

Indicates management contract or compensatory plan, contract or arrangement.

ofthe total assets of the registrant and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis and (2) any omitted schedules to any material

plan of acquisition, disposition or reorganization set forth above.
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IN THE UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE
BEFORE THE TRADEMARK TRIAL AND APPEAL BOARD

NARTRON CORPORATION
Petitioner,
V.

HEWLETT-PACKARD
DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, L.P.,

Respondent.

Cancellation No. 92050789

EXHIBIT 13



IN THE UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE
BEFORE THE TRADEMARK TRIAL AND APPEAL BOARD
In re Trademark Registration No. 3,600,880
Registered:  April 7, 2009

Trademark: TOUCHSMART

NARTRON CORPORATION,
Petitioner
v, : Cancellation No. 92050789

HEWLETT-PACKARD
DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, L.P,,

Respondent

RESPONDENT’S INITIAL DISCLOSURES
Pursuant to Section 2.120(a)(3) of Title 37 of the Code of Federal Regulations and
Rule 26(a)(1) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Respondent Hewlett-Packard

Development Company, L.P. (“Respondent”) hereby makes the following initial

disclosures. These initial disclosures are based on information now reasonably available,

prior to discovery and after making in good faith such inquiry and investigation as is
réasonable under the circumstances. Respondent will correct or supplement these
disclosures pursuant to Rule 26(e) should it subsequently become aware of additional

relevant information to be disclosed. Respondent makes these disclosures without

waiving any claim of privilege, work product protection, or other basis for nondisclosure,

and reserves the right to object to discovery into any listed subject matter.

RESPONDENT’S INITIAL DISCLOSURES




A. Individuals Likely To Have Discoverable Information.

Pursuant to Rule 26(a)(1)(A), Respondent hereby discloses the following potential
witnesses known to it at this time who are likely to have discoverable information
relevant to the claims and defenses in this case, unless solely for impeachment, along
with the possible sub.j ect matter of their testirﬁony. The employeés of Respondent

~ identified below may be contacted in this action only through Respondent’s counsel.

WITNESS IDENTIFICATION ADDRESS & TELEPHONE NO.

Jean'Newmann, Marcom Programs Mgr II | Hewlett-Packard Company
~ 11445 Compaq Center Dr. W.
Houston, TX 77070

' Respondent reserves the right to supplement or amend ;this witness disclosure
pursuant to Rule 26(e) if additional witnesses or subjects are identified and to call at trial
as its owﬁ witnesses any witnesses designated by any other party to this matter. To the
extent that any other party fails to call at trial any or all of its disclosed witnesses,
Respondent reserves the right to call them as witnesses and/or to introduce at trial

relevant portions of their deposition testimony.
B. Documents And Tangible Things.

Pursuant to Rule 26(a)(1)(B), Respondent identifies the following general
categories of “documents, electronically stored information, and tangible things” within

Respondent’s “possession, custody, or control” that Respondent may use to support its

RESPONDENT’S INITIAL DISCLOSURES
2-




cléims' and defenses. The potential location(s) of each category is indicated in
parentheses. Respondent preserves its objections to production of specific documents
and categories of documents until requested. In addition, a protective order sufficient to
protéct Respondent’s confidential information will need to be enter.ed prior to production
of any confidential documents. The categories include, but are not limited, to the

following:

1.  Documents evidencing Respondent’s trademark rights in the
TOUCHSMART trademark Hewlett-Packard, Houston, Texas and

Cupertino, California; and

2. Documents and things concerning Respondent’s use of the
TOUCHSMART trademark Hewlett—PackéId, Houston, Texas and

Cupertino, California.

At Petitioner’s request, Respondent will permit inspection and/or copying of these
documents, including relevant confidential documents after an appropriate protective
c‘>rder is entered in this action. Respondent reserves the right to amend or supplement this
document disclosure pursuant to Rule 26(e) if additional documents are identified as
pertinent to disputed facts. Respondent further reserves the right to supplement or
modify this disclosure to the extent that Petitioner may further particularize its claims or
contentions. Respondent is not providing documents or information not reasonably

available at this time.

RESPONDENT’S INITIAL DISCLOSURES
. 3.



C. Computation of Damages.
Respondent is not seeking damages at this time.
D. Insurance Agreements.

Respondent is not aware of any applicable insurance agreements.

DATED: September 9, 2009 Respectfully Sﬁbmitted

. A

JE;I;&/EW FAUéE/hE

D. DiGENNARO

HOWARD, RICE, NEMEROVSKI,
- CANADY, FALK & RABKIN

A Professional Corporation .

Three Embarcadero Center,

Seventh Floor

San Francisco, California 94111

Telephone: 415/434-1600

Facsimile: 415/217-5910

Attorneys for Respondent
HEWLETT-PACKARD
DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, L.P,,

RESPONDENT’S INITIAL DISCLOSURES
4.




PROOF OF SERVICE BY MAIL

The undersigned declares and says as follows: my business address is Three
Embarcadero Center, Seventh Floor, San Francisco, CA 94111-4024. I am
employed in the City and County of San Francisco; I am over the age of 18 years,
and I am not a party to this cause. ] am readily familiar with this business'
practices for collection and processing of correspondence for mailing with the

- United States Postal Services. On the same day that a sealed envelope is placed

for collection and mailing, it is deposited in the ordinary course of business with
the United States Postal Service with postage fully prepaid.

Date of Deposit: September 9, 2009

I served the within RESPONDENT’S INITIAL DISCLOSURES on Applicant/Registrant
and counsel for Applicant/Registrant at the following address: ~

Hope V. Shovein

Brooks Kushman P.C.

1000 Town Center, 22nd Floor
Southfield, MI 48075

by placing a true copy thereof, enclosed in a sealed envelope with postage thereon
fully prepaid, for deposit in the United States mail for collection and mailing on
this day following ordinary business practices of Howard, Rice, Nemerovski,
Canady, Falk & Rabkin.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the

foregoing is true and correct, and that this Declaration is executed in San
Francisco, California, this 9th day of September, 2009.

%M%%w
R

rg1e M. Price

RESPONDENT’S INITIAL DISCLOSURES
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IN THE UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE
BEFORE THE TRADEMARK TRIAL AND APPEAL BOARD
NARTRON CORPORATION
Petitioner,
\'2 Cancellation No. 92050789

HEWLETT-PACKARD
DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, L.P.,

Respondent.

EXHIBIT 14
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MARTIN R. GLICK (Cal. Bar No. 40187)

DIANA DIGENNARO (Cal. Bar No. 248471)

HOWARD RICE NEMEROVSKI CANADY FAIK &
RABKIN

A Professional Corporation

Three Embarcadero Center, 7th Floor

San Francisco, California ,941 114024

Telephone:  415/434-1600

Facsimile:  415/217-5910 .

Attormeys for Respondent
HEWLETT-PACKARD DEVELOPMENT
COMPANY, L.P.

IN TIIE UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE
TRADEMARK TRIAL AND APPEAL BOARD

NARTRON CORPORATION, - -~ .+ ] Cancellation No. 92050789

Petitioner, . . Registration No. 3,600,880

_ . V. Registration Date: April 7, 2009
HEWLETT-PACKARD DEVELOPMENT Mark: TOUCHSMAR':I‘ N
COMPANY, L.P., ’ Lo
’ RESPONDENT HEWLETT-PACKARD
Respondent. ' _ DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LP.’S
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Pursuant to C.F.R. Sections 2.116(a) and 2.120(a)(1) and Rule 33 of the Federal Rules of
Civil Procedure, Respondent Hewlett-Packard Development Company, L.P. (“Respondent” or
“HP”) hereby responds and objects to the First Set of Interrogatories to Respondent.

(“Interrogatories”) propounded by Petitioner Nartron Corporation (“Petitioner” or “Nartron”).

GENERAL OBJECTIONS _

1. .Respondent objects to the quuests to the extent they seek documents concerning
proprietary or confidential . information of .Respondent. Respondén? will produce documents
coritaiﬁing confidential or proprietary information only pursuant to a protective order entertéci in this
action. .

2. Reépondent objects to these Interrogatories to the extent they segk ixﬁdrmaﬁz;n, documents,
and/o; thingé other thg.n those in the actual possession, custody or control of Respondent. ‘

3. Respondent objects to these Interrogatories to the extent they call for information and/or
documments that are equally or reasonably available to Petitioner.

4. Respondent reserves all objections as to the coxﬁpetehcy, releyance or adm;ssibﬂity of any
information produced in response to these Interrogatories;

5. Respondent has not completed its investigation of the facts related to this case, has not

_completed discovery in this action, and has not completed its preparation for trial in this matter.

Therefore, these responses are giver without prejudice to Respondent’s right to produce evidence of

any fact or document subsequently discovered, or whose relevance becomes apparent, or to add,

modify or otherwise change or amend the responses herein.

' RESPONSES TO HVTERROGATdRIES
INTERROGATORY NO. 1:

Identify ;DY name, title, and‘ b.usine‘ss. add.res's,. persons knowledge?.ble of Respondent’s use of -
TOUCHSMART for each of the goods recited in U.S. Registration No. 3,600,880, as of the claimed
date of first use, i.e., Jaﬁua:ry.29, 2007. . ..

2. .
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RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 1:

Respondent' incorporates the General Objections as if fully set forth herein. Respondent also
objects to this Interrogatory on the grouod that it is not relevant to this'action.and not reasonably
calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evxdence Subject to and without waiving the
general and spec1ﬁc Ob_] ections set forth above Respondent responds as follows .

The followmg person is knowledgeable of Respondent S use’ of TOUCHSMART as of the
claimed date of first use, i.e., January 29, 2007. The employee of Respondent identified below may
be contacted through Respondént’s counsel at Howard Rice Nemerovski‘ Canady Falk & Rabkin, A
Professional Cozpo:gaﬁon, 3 Embarcadero Center, 7th Floor, San Francisco, California 94111, 415-
434-1600. - | |

Name and Title ) Business Address

Jean Neumann, Creative Operations Manager, .Hewlett-Packard Company
Personal Systems Group, WW Marketing 11445 Compaq Center Drive West

Houston, TX 77070-1433
MS 040201

INTERROGATORY NO. 2:
" State in factual detail the relations_hip(s) between and among: (1) Respondent Hewlett Packard
Development Company, L.P., (i1) HPQ Holdjngé, LLC, and (jii) Hewlett Packard Co., including:
"~ (a) business relationship(s), | .
(b) Licensor-licensee relationship(s) (if any),
(¢) parent-subsidiary mhﬁomﬁip(s) , and

(d) common management and control.

4 RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 2:

Respondent incorporates the General Ob_]eCtIOIlS as if fully set forth herein. Respondent also

Ob_] ects to this Interrogatory, including all of its subparts, on the grounds that it is not relevant to this

action and not reasonably calculated to lead to the chscovery of admissible evidence.

-3-
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INTERROGATORY NO. 3:

Identify by name, title, and business address, persons 'hlowledgeable' of the. plans of
Respondent for marketing the TOUCHSMART goo&é of U.S. Reg. No. 3,600,880.
RESPONSE TO INTERRO GATORY NO. 3:

Respondent incorporates the General Objections as if fully set forth herein. Respondent also -

_objects to this Interrogatory on the ground that it is not relevant to this action and not reasonably

calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. Subject to and without waiving the
general and specific objections set forth above, Respondent responds as follows:

‘The followmg person is knowledgeable of Respondent’s plans for marketing the goods

: 1dent1fied in U.S. Registration No. 3, 600 880. The employee of Respondent identified below may

be contacted through Respopdent’s counsel at Howard Rice Nemeroyskl Ca_nady Falk & Rabkm, A
Professioﬁa'l Corporaﬁdn, 3 Embarcadero Center, 7th Floor, San Francisco, ,Caiifomia 94111, 415-
434-1600. . ' '

Name and Title Bu‘sinéss Address

Hewlett-Packard Comp;my

11445 Compaq Center Drive West
Houston, TX 77070-1433

| MS 040201

Jean Neurnann, Creative Operations Manager,
Personal Systems Group, WW Marketing

INTERROGATORY NO. 4:
State Respon&ent;s position on diPont Factor No. 1, viz: -
The similarity or dissimilarity of the marks [SMART TOUCH and -

TOUCHSMART] in their entireties as fo appearance, sound,
connotation and commercial impression.

RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 4: ‘

. Respondent incorporates the General Objections as if fully set forth hereiq. Respondent
additionélly objects to this Interrogatory on the ground that it seéks information protectéd by the
af_tome:y—client communication or attorney work product privileges. Subject to and without waiving

the general and specific objections set forth above, Respondent responds as follows:

4.
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The SMART TOUCH Mark and the TOUCHSMART Mark are dissimilar in their appearance,
sound, connotation and commercial impression. -See Respondent Hewlett-Packard Development -
Company, L.P.’s Motion for Summz_iryijudgment.

INTERROGATORY NO. 5:

State Respondent’s position on duPont Factor No. 2, viz:

The similarity or dissimilarity in nature of the goods and goods as
. described in an application or reglstratxon or in connection with which
a prior mark is in use.

RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO-

Respondent incorporates the General Objections as if fully set forth herein. Resp;mdent
addmonally objects to this Interrogatory on the ground that it seeks information protected by the
attomey—chent communication or attomey work product pnvxleges Subject to and without wa.wmg
the general and specific objections set forth above, Respondent responds as follows:

The claimed goods in the respective applications and registrations of The SMART TOUCH |
and TOUCHSMART marks are dissimilar. See Respoudent Hewlett—Packard Development '
Company, LP.’s Motlon for Summary Judgment.
INTERROGATORY NO. 6: . .

State Rés;')ondent’s position on duPont Factor No. 3,‘ w.z

The similarity or dlssmﬂanty of established, hkely—to connnue trade
channels

- RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 6:

Respondent incorporates the General Objections as if fully set forth herein. Respondent

addiﬁonally objects to this Interrogatory on the ground that it seeks information protected by the

attorney-client communication or attorney work.product privileges. Subject to and without waiving
ti‘ie general and specific objections set forth above, Respondent responds as follows:

The trade. channels for “electronic proximity sensors and switching devices” are dissimilar to
the trade channels for “personal computers, cpmputqar hardware, comﬁu'ter monitors,."COmputer.
display screens.” Seé Respondent Hewlett-Packard Developn.lent Compan};, L.P.’s Motion for

Summary Judgment.

-5-
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. INTERROGATORY NO.-7:

" State Respondent’s position on duPont Factor No. 6, viz: '
The number and nature of similar marks in use on similar goods.
RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 7: - | , .
' Respondent incorporates the General Objections as if fully set forth herein. Respondent
additionally objects to this Interrogafory on the groonds that it seeks information protected by the

attorney-client communication or attorney work product privileges and calls for a legal conclusion.

.Subject to and without waiving the general and specific objections set forth above, Respondent

responds as follows:
There are a significant number of marks in use and/or registered in International Class 9 that

incorporate the elements “smmart,” “touch” or both. See, e.g., In re Finisar Corp., 78 U.S.P.Q2d

11618, 1621 & n.6 (T.T.AB. 2006) (noting 1,148 registered marks with the term “smart” in

International Class 9). Moreover there are also numerous marks identical to Respondent’s SMART

. TOUCH mark coemsmlg in Class 9 on the Principal Register. See e.g., SMART-TOUCH, Reg.

No. 2,780, 990 for “digital cameras and software for operahng d1g1tal cameras” in Class 9; SMART
TOUCH, Reg. No. 1,745,089 for “automatic welghmg eqmpment namely, retail progra.mmable
service copnter scales” in Class 9; SMART TOUCH, Allowed Appl. No. 77542839 for “cell phone
oovers and cell phone screen protectors” in Class 9. . | |

INTERROGATORY NO. 8: '

State Respondent’s position on duPont Factor No 11, viz:

The extent to which Respondent has aright to exclude others from use
of its mark on its goods.

RES_PONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 8:

Respondent incoxpora;ces the General Objections as if fully set forth herein. Respondent

“additionally objects to this - Interrogatory on the grounds that it calls for a‘iegal conclusion and secks

mformatlon protected by the attorney-client communication or aftorney work product privileges.
Subject to and Wlthout wmvmg the general and. specific obJectlons set forth above, Respondent -

responds as follows

-6-
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Respondent claims the complete bundle of trademark rights in connection with .the
TdUCHSMART ‘Mark. Such' rights include, but are not limited to, notice to the public of .
Respondent’s claim of ownership of the mark;, a legal presumpﬁon of ownership nationwide, the
excluswe right to use the mark on or in connectlon with the goods or -services set forth in the

registration, protection against the use of the mark or a similar mark on any product or service which

_would be reasonably believed to-come from the same source as Respondent’s products or services,

or to be affiliated with, connected with, or sponsored by Respondent, and protection against the

dilution of its mark.
INTERROGATORY NO.9:
" State the factual basis for Respondent’s First Afﬁnnatwe Defense “Petitioner’s action is |

barred by the doctrine of waiver or estoppel,” according to the proof elements for the “waiver” and

-“estoppel” defenses (in inter partes proceedinés before the Trademark Trial And Apﬁeal Board, not

trademark infringement actions).
RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 9:

Respondent incorporates the General Ob_]echons as if fully set forth herein., Subject to and
w1thout waiving the General Objections set forth above Respondent responds as follows:

‘At this time, Respondent mthdraws its First Afﬁrmahve Defense, but reserves the right to T
assert itif new information becomes available in the course of &isco?ery" or as a result of additional
investigation. . | | .
INTERROGATORY NO. 10:

In reference to the “Second Affirmative Defense” asserting: “Petitioner’s action is barred by
the doctrine of laches or acquiescence,” state according to the proof elements for the “laches” and
“acquiescence” defenses (in t'nter partes prooeedings before the Trademark Trial And Appeal Board,
not trademark infringement acﬁons) the facmal bases for these defenses.

RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO.10: '

Respondent incorporates the General Objections as if fully set forth herein. Subject to and

without waiving the General Objections set forth above, Respondent responds as follows:

At this 'tinne, Respondent withdraws its Second Affirmative Defense,' but reserves the right to

-

RESPONDENT’S RESPONSES PETITIONER’S FIRST SET OF INTERROGATORIES




" assert it if new information becomes available in the course of discovery or as a result of additional

investigation.
INTERROGATORY NO. 11:
In reference to the “Thixd Affirmative Defense” asserting: “Petitioner’s action is barred

because Petluoner acted with unclean hands,” state accordmg to the proof elements for the “unclean

hands” defense (in infer partes proceedmgs before the Trademark Trial And Appeal Board, not

trademark mﬁxngement actions) the factual bases for this defense.
RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 11: ' ;

Respondent incorporates the General Objections as if fully set forth herein. Subject to and
without waiving the General Objections set forth above, Resoondent responds as follows: -

At this time, Respondent withdraws its Third Afﬁrmaﬁve Defense, but reserves. the right to

~assert it if new information becomes available in the course of discovery or as a result of additional

investigation.
INTERROGATORY NO. 12:
Idenmfy the circumstances under which and the date on which Respondent became aware of

Peﬁtxoner s Mark.

- RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 12:

Respondent incorporates the General Objections as if fully set forth herein. Respondent also
objects to this In;cerrogatory on the ground that it is not relevant to this action and not reasonably
calculated to lead to the discovery of admissibie evidence. Respondent further objects to this
mtenoéatow on the ground that it seeks information protected by the attorney-client communication
or attorney work product privileges. .
INTERROGATORY NO. 13:

Idenhfy documents containing any advme of counsel upon whxch Respondent will rer to
show good-faith in its adoption and use of the “TOUCHSMART” mark ‘ .
RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 13: '

Respondent incorporates the General Ob_]echons as if fully set forth herein. Respondent also

objects to this Interrogatory on the ground that it is not relevant to this action and- not reasonably

-8-
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calculated to lead to the discovéry of admissible. cvideﬁ'ce. Respondent further objects to‘ this
Interrogatory on the ground thaft it seeks information brotected by the attorney-client communication
or attorney work product privileges.

INTERROGATORY NO. 14:

* Identify any advertising agency engaged by Respondent to advertise and prom;)te:-
Respondent’s goods under its “TOUCHSMART” mark, including'the'na:mes, titles, and business
addresses of the advertising agency employees having the most knowledge of such advertising and
promotion. | .
RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 14:

Respondent incorporates the General Objections as xf fully set forth herein. Respondent
additionally objects to this Interrogatory on the grounds that it is overly broad, not relevant to-this
action and not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence.
INTERROGATORY NO. 15: -

Identify each person who ,pérticipatéd in the preparation of Respondent’s reéppnses to the

-foregoing interrogatories or furnished: any information used in responding to each interrogatory,

- specifying the interrogatory response for which each such person participated in the preparation or

contributed information.
RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 15:

Respondent incorporates the General Objéctions as if fully set forth herein. Sﬁbjectk to and
without waiving thé General Objections set forth above, Requndent resporids as follows:

The following person participated in the prepafaﬁon of Respondent’s responsés to the
foregoing interrogatories or furnished informat:ion' used in responding to each interrogatory. The
employee of .Respondent identified below may be contacted throug'h. Respondent’s counsel at
Howard Rice Nemerovski Canady Falk& Rabkm, A Professional Corporaftion! 3 Embarcadero
Ceanter, 7th Floor, San Francisco, California 94111, 4154341600, |

Name and Title Busiress Address Interrogatory No.:

Jean Neumann, Creative ' Hewlett-Packard Company _ Nos. 1 and 3

I(\)/Ipa:ﬁ;i;s Manager, PSG 11445 Compaq Center Drive West

9. "
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Houston, TX 77070-1433 -
MS 040201

INTERROGATORY NO. 16: . ‘
Identify by name, business address and contact data, each of the “partners” referred to in the

| following quotation from the 2008 Form 10-K of Hewlett Packard Company:

Sales, Marketing and Distribution

Our customers are organized by consumer and commercial customer
groups, and distribution is organized by direct and channel. Within
the channel, we have various types of partuers that we utilize for
various customer groups. The partners include:

« retailers that sell our products to the public through their own

~ physical or Internet stores; resellers that sell our products and services,
frequently with their own value-products or services, 10 targete
customer groups; i

« distribution partners that supply our solutions to smaller resellers
. with which we do not have direct relationships; :

» independent distributors that sell our products into geographies or
customer segments in which we have little or no presence;

* original cguipment manufacturers (“OEMs”) that integrate our
products with their own hardware or software and sell the integrated -
products;

« independent software vendors (“ISVs”) that provide their clients
with specialized software products, frequently driving sales of
additional non-HP products and services, and often assist us in selling
our products and services to clients purchasing their products; and

» systems integrators that provide various levels and kinds of expertise
in designing and implementing custom IT solutions and often partner

with HPS [HP Services] to extend their expertise or influence the sale
of our products and services.

RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 16: ‘

Respondent incorpofe_xtes the General .Objections as if ﬁluy set forth herein. Respondent
additionally objects.to this Interrogatory on the 'gro;mds that it is overly br.oad,‘ unduly burdensome | .
and not Ie;ason‘ably calculated to lea.d to the discovery of ;'fxdm'issible evidence. Respondent further
oﬂje’cts to ﬁis Interrogatory 611 the ‘grmmds that it seeks confidential proprieéary information, trade

secrets, or legally protected information about Respondent.

-10-
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DATED: April 8,2010.

MARTIN R. GLICK
DIANA D. DIGENNARO
HOWARD RICE NEMEROVSKI CANADY
- FALK & RABKIN .
A Profesgipnal’ Corporauou

By:

DIANA D. DIGENNARC

Attomneys for Respondent HEWLETT-PACKARD
DEVELOPMENT.COMPANY, L.P.

VERIFICATION

1, Jean Neumann, am employed by the Hewlctt—l’éckard Cotnpany as Creative Operations
Mal}agcr, Personal Systems Group, Worldwide Marketing. [ am authorized to make this verification
on behalf of Hewletl-Packard Development Company, L.P. (“Respondent®) in connecﬁon.with the
United States Patent and Trademark Qancellaﬁon Proceeding No. 9205 0;789, Nartron Corporation

_v. Hewlett-Packard Development Company, L.P. | have reviewed Rcspnnéent’s Responses To

Petitioger’s First Set Of Rule 34 Requests To Respoudent and Respondent’s Response To
Petitioner’s Flrst Set Of Interrogatories To Respondent, and [ am familiar with the conucms thereof.
lam mformed and believe that the responses stated therein are true and correct.

1 dcclaxe under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States that the foregoing is
true and cofrect and"that this veriScation was hereby executed on this 8th day of April, 2010 at

AL

i é/“/' Jean’Neumana

Houston, Texas.

~11-
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IN THE UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE
BEFORE THE TRADEMARK TRIAL AND APPEAL BOARD
NARTRON CORPORATION

Petitioner,

V. Cancellation No. 92050789

HEWLETT-PACKARD
DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, L.P.,

Respondent.

EXHIBIT 15
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" COMPANY, L.P,,

MARTIN R. GLICK (Cal Bar No. 40187)

DIANA D. DIGENNARO (Cal. Bar No. 248471) :

HOWARD RICE NEMEROVSKI CANADY FALK &
RABKIN

A Professional Corporation

Three Embarcadero Center, 7th Floor

San Francisco, California 94111-4024

.. Telephone: 415/434-1600

Facsimile:  415/217-5910
Attomeys for Respondent

HEWLETT-PACKARD DEVELOPMENT
COMPANY, LP."

IN THE UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE
: TRADEMARK TRIAL AND APPEAL BOARD

NARTRON CORPORATION, " | Cancellation No. 92050789
Petitioner, - | Registration No, 3,600,880
V. : : . Registration Date: April 7,2009
HEWLETT-PACKARD DEVELOPMENT | Mark: TOUCHSMART |
RESPONDENT HEWLETT-PACKARD
‘Respondent. : | DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, L.P.’s
o RESPONSE TO PETITIONER’S FIRST SET

OF RULE 34 REQUESTS TO
RESPONDENT .

PROPOUNDING PARTY:  Petitioner Nertron Corporation
RESPONDING PARTY: Respondent Hewlett-Packard Development Company, L.P.-
SET NUMBER:- One

RESPONDENT’S RESPONSE TO PETITIONER’S FIRST SET OF RULE 34 REOUESTS
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Pursuant to C.F.R. Sections 2.116(a) and 2.120(2)(1) and Rule 34 of the Federal Rules of Civil

“Procedure Respondent Hewlett-Packard Developntent Company, L.P. (“Respondent” or “HP™)

hereby objects and responds to the First Set of Rule 34 Requests to _Res'pondent' (the “Request” or
the “Requests”) propounded by Petitioner Nartron Corporation (“Petitioner” or “Nartron”).
GENERAL OBJECTIONS AND RESERVATIONS

1. Respondent objects to the.Requests to the extent that they seek documents concermng
ptoprietary or confidential information of Respondent. Respondent will produce documents
contaiining} confidential or proptietary information only pursuant to a protective order entered in this-
action. o '

2. Respondent objects to the Requests to the extent that they seek information that is not in

Respondent’s possession, custody or control.

3, Respondent objects to the Requests to the extent thcy seek documents that are already in -

- the possession of Petitioner or documents that are equally available to Petltloner including but not

hm1ted to documents publicly available on Respondent’s web sites or the web s1tes of third partles

4. Respondent has not completed its mves’ugatmn of the facts related to this case, has not

' completed d1scovery in thls action, and has not completed its preparanon for trial in this matter.

Any responses or documents provxded in connection with the Requests are based on mformatxon
presently known to Respondent and are glven without prejuchce to Respondent’s rxght to produce
evidence of any subsequenﬂy discovered documents or facts. Without creatlng a duty or obligation
to do so, Respondent reserves the nght to make changes to these responses if it appears that
omissions and/or errors have oceurred, further or more accurate infotmation becomes evailable.
and/or addlttonal documents are “discoveréd. Further d1scovery, independent mvestxgatlon, legal
research and ana1y51s may lead to the addition of, or ohanges to, the responses herein set forth.-
RESPONDENTS TO DOCUMENT REQUESTS
DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 1:

Documenits substantiating Respondent’s use of TOUCHSMART for each of the éoods recited
in U.S. Registration No. 3,600,880, as of the claimed date of first use, 7.., January 29, 2007.

2-
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RESPONSE TO DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 1.

Respondent incorporates the General Objections as if fu'l,ly set forth nerein. Respondent also
objects to this Interrogatory on the ground mat.it is not relevant to this action and not reasonably
calculated. to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. Subject to and witnout'waiving the

general and spec1ﬁc objections set forth above Respondent refers ?etmoner to the specimen

- submitted in connection with U.S. Trademark Apphca‘non Serial No. 77/ 1 97,146, which is available

on the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office website.
DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 2
Documents rela‘ang to any 1nvest1gat10n of the availability. for use of the mark
TOUCHSMART for each of the goods recited in U.S. Regxstratlon No. 3 600 880, mcludmg.
searches search reports, and the like. 1
RESPONSE TO-DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 2: .
Respondent mcorporates the General ObjCC’tIOIlS as if fully set forth herem Respondent also

objects to this Interrogatory on the ground that it is not relevant to this action and not reasonably

caleulated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. Respondent further objects to this

Request on the grounds that it calls for the production of ‘documents protected by the ,attomey-che,nt

communication or aftorney work product privileges.

'DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 3:

Documents relating or referrmg to any plans for marketing TOUCHSMART for each of the
goods recited in U.S. Registration No. 3,600,880.

RESPONSE TO DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 3:

Respondent incorporates the General Objections as if fully set forth herein. Respondent’

additionally objects to this Request on -the gfounds that it is overly broad, unduly bnrdensome,

.ambiguous as to “plans,” not relevant to this action and not reasonably calculated to lead to the

discovery of admissil‘)'l'e. evidence. Respondent further objects to this Request to the extent it seeks

_ confidential proprietary information, trade secrets or legally protected information about

Respondent.

3
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DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 4:
Documents relatmg or referring to any survey, focus group, or similar form’ of market study |

conoermng potenual or actual use of TOUCHSMART by, Respondent

. RESPONSE TO DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 4:

Respondent mcorporates the General Objections as if fully set forth herein. Respondent also
objects to this Interrogatory on the ground that it is not relevant to this action and not reasonably
c.alculai.ted. to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence.

DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 5: | R

,Mark'eting and prdeﬁonal materials .(hard copy and electronic). showing actual use of
TOUCHSMART by Respondent. | A
RESPONSE TO DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 5:
' Respondent incorporates the General Objections as if. fully set forth herem Respondent
add1t10nally objects to this Request on the grounds that it is overly. broad, -unduly burdensome,

amb1guous as to “materials,” not relevant to this actmn and not reasonably calculated to lead to the .

. discovery of admissible evidence. Subject to the general and speclﬁc objections set forth above,

Respondent refers Petitioner to the -specimen submitted in cormection with U.S. Trademark

Application Serial No. 77/197,146, which is 'a\{ailable on the U:S. Patent and Trademark Office

_ website, and to Respondent’s website.

. DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 6:

Documents relevant fo duPom‘ Factor No, 1, viz:

The similarity or dissimilarity of the marks ‘in their entireties as to
appearance, sound, connotation and commercial 1mpressmn

RESPONSE TO DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 6: ‘

‘Respondent incorporates the General Objections as if fully set. forth herein. Respondeni
additionally objects to this Request on the ground that it calls for the production of documents
protected by the attomcy~chent communlcatlon or attorney work product pnwleges
DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 7:

Documents relevant to duPont Factor No..2, viz: -
. . .

© RESPONDENT’S RESPONSE TO PETITIONER’S FIRST SET OF RULE 34 REQUESTS




........

CANADY 1 4
FALK
& RABKIN

Aot Dot 15

16

17
18

19

20 |

21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

The 51m1lanty or d1ss:m11anty in nature of the goods and services as - -
described in an application or reglstratxon or in connection with which a
prior mark i$ in use.

RESPONSE TO DO.CUMENT REQUEST NO. 7: 4

. Respondent 'incorporates the General Objections as if fulily set forth herein. Respondent
addxtlonally objects to this Request on the ground that it calls for the productlon of documents
protected by the attorney-client commumcatlon or attorney work product privileges.
DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 8:

Documents relevant to duPont Factor No. 3, viz:

The " similarity or dissimilarity of established, likely-to-continue
trade channels. '

RESPONSE TO DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 8:

Respondent incorporates the General Objections as if fully set forth herem Respondent'

'.addltlonally obJects to this Request on the ground that it calls for the productlon of documents

protected by the: attomey—ohent commumcanon or attorney work product ptivileges.

"DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 9:

Documents relevant to duPont Factor No.'6, viz:

The number and nature of similar marks in use on similar goods

RESPONSE TO DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 9:

: R_espondent incorporates the General Objections as if fully .set forth heérein. Respondent
additionally objects to this Request on the grodnd that it calls for the produotion-' of documents
protected by the attorney.-client communication or attorney work product privileges.

DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 16: B

Documents relevant to duPont Factor No. 11, viz:

The extent to ‘which applicant has a nght 1o exclude others from use ‘
- of its mark on 1ts goods. .

RESPONSE 'IO-DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 10:

: Respondent incorporetes the General Objections asxf fully set forth- herein. ~Responden;c

5
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additionally objects to this Request on.the ground that it calls for the producﬁon of documents
profected by the a’ctorﬁey—'client comrpunication or attorney work product privileges.
DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 11: | ‘

 Documents substantiating Resp'ondent’s “Rirst Affirmative Defense” of waiver or est0ppe‘l.-
RESPONSE TO DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 11: | ‘

Respondent incorporates the General Objections as if fully set forth herein. Subject to and .

without waiving: the General Objections set forth above, Respondent responds as follows: see

Respoﬁse to Interrogatory No. 9 in Re'spondent.Hewl_eii—Packerd Development Com_pany, LP.’s

Responses to Petitioner’s First Set of Interrogatories.

DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 12:

Documents substantiating Respondent’s ‘“Second Affirmative Defense” of .laches or
acquiescence.
RESPONSE TO DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 12:

Respondent incorporates the General Objections as if fuﬁ_y set forth herein. S'ubje'et to and

‘without waiving the General Objections set forth above, Res'pondent responds as’ follows: see.

'Resﬁénseto'.lnterro.gatory No. 10 in Respondent Hewlett~Paekard Development Company, LP.’s |
Responses to Reﬁﬁoner‘s Fifst Set of Interrogatories. . ' |
DOCUMENT REQUEST NO: 13: |

Documents substantlatmg Respondent’ s “Third Afﬁrmatwe Defense” of unclean hands. ‘
RESPONSE TO DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 13: ‘ '

_ Respondent incorporates the General ObJectlons as 1f fully set forth herein. Subject to and "
without waiving the General Objecnons set forth above, Respondent responds as follows: see .
Response to Interrogatory No. 11 in Respondent Hewlett- Packard Development Company, L.P.’s
Responses to Petitioner’s First Set of Interrogatorles. ,-

DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 14: :

" Documents recording any advice of counsel upon Wthh Apphcant will rely to show good - |

faith in ij:s~adopt10n and use of the TOUCHSMART Mark..

-6~

RESPONDENT’S RESPONSE TO PETITIONER’S FIRST SET OF RULE 34 REQUI;;'STS




O
N o= O

* nowaro 13

: RICE

NEMERCVSKI

CANADY 1 4
YALK

&RABKIN.
A fraforonel Orpoverior
15

- 16

17

18
19

20|

21
22

23

24
25
26
27
28

O R oy U £ W DN

RESPONSE TO DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 14:

Respondent incorporates the General Objections as if fully set forth herein. Respondent also

) objects to this Iﬁtenogatory on the ground that it is not relevant to this action ‘and ‘not reasonably

~ calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible: evidence. Respondent further 6bjects to this

Request on the ground that it calls for the production of documents protected by the attorney-client

. communication or attorney work product privileges.

DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 15: |

Documents sufficient to identify by nam;e, business. address and contact data, each of the
“partheérs”’ .referred' to in the following quotation from the 2008 Form 10-K of Hewlett Packard
Company: | . ‘

_ Sales, Marketing and Distribution

QOur customers are organized by consumer and commercial customer

- groups, and distribution is organized by.direct and channel. Within the
channel, we have various types of partners that we utilize for various
customer groups. The partners include:

+ refailers that sell our products to the public through their own .
physical or Internet stores; resellers that sell our products and
services, frequently with their own valie-products or services,
to targeted customer groups; ' :

» _ distribution partners that supply our solutions to smaller -
resellers with which we do not have direct relationships;

« independent distributors that sell our products into geographies
or customer segments in which we have little or no presence;

o original equipment manufacturers (“OEMSs”) that integrate our
products with their own hardware or software -and .sell the
integrated products;

» ‘independent software vendors (“ISVs”) that provide their
clients with specialized software products,. frequently driving
sales of "additional non-HP products and services, and often
assist us in selling our products and services to clients

" purchasing their products; and

» systems. integrators that provide various levels and kinds of
.expertise in designing and implementing custom IT solutions . .
and -often partner with HPS [HP Services]-to extend their
expertise or influence the sale of our products and services. :

-

. RESPONDENT’S RESPONSE TO PETITIONER’S FIRST SET OF RULE 34 REQUESTS '
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'RESPONSE TO DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 15:

Respondent mcorporates the General Objections as if fully set forth herein. +Respondent

additionally objects to this Request on the grounds that it is overly broad unduly burdensome, and .
seeks documents that are not relevant to this action and not reasonably calculated to lead to the

discovery of admissible evidence on rsatters.reasonab'ly in dispute. Réspondent futther objects to

this Request on the ground that it seeks confidential propnetary mformatmn trade secrets or legally

protected information about: Respondent and/or other third part1es '

DOCUMENT REQUEST NO. 16:

All documents not otherwise listed in answet to the interrogatories and document requests,

_which were referred to or relied upon-to prepare the answers to the interrogatories and document

requests.
RESPONSE TO DOCUMENT REQUEST NO 16: .
Respondent’ mcorporates the -General Ob_]ectlons as if fully set forth: herem Respondent
additionally objects to this Request on the ground that it calls for the production of @euments.
protected by the attorney-client commt;nicatien or at‘torneyA work product privileges. Subjeet to and
without waiving the generlal and specific objections set forth above, Respetxdent will produce
responsxve non-pnvﬂeged documents in its possession,’ custody or control, other than coples of the
document requests and mtenrogatones Themselves the pleadings in t‘ms actxon and the summary

judgment papers and ruling on summary Judgment.

DATED: April 8, 2010.

MARTIN R. GLICK -

DIANA D. DIGENNARO

HOWARD RICE NEMEROVSK) CAN ADY
FALK & RABKIN

AProfes jonal Corporat n

DIANA D. DIGBNNARO

Attomeys for Respondent HEWLETT- PACKARD
DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, L.P.
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IN THE UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE
BEFORE THE TRADEMARK TRJAL AND APPEAL BOARD
NARTRON CORPORATION
Petitioner,
V. Cancellation No. 92050789

HEWLETT-PACKARD
DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, L.P.,

Respondent.

EXHIBIT 16




HOWAP\D ' Three Embarcadero Center

RICE | " San Franisen, CA 41114024
NEMEROVSKI ) Telephone 415.434.1600
CAN ADY : , - Facsimile 415.677.6262
www. howardrice.com
8 R /E%IL(KH\I Writer's Information:
' July 8, 2010 Diana D. DiGennaro
A Professional Corporation ~ Direct: 415.677.6365

ddigennaro@howardrice.com

VIA E-MAIL HSHOVEIN@BROOKSKUSHMAN.COM

Hope V. Shovein

Brooks Kushman PC

1000 Town Center, 22nd Floor
Southfield, MI 48075-1238

Re:  Nartron Corporation v. Hewlett Packard Development Company, L. P.
Cancellation No. 92050789

Dear Ms. Shovein;

I am writing in response to your letter of June 8 2010 and per our phone conversation of
July 7 2010

‘ Per your request we have identified below the Bates number range of the documents
produced by Respondent that we believe are responsive to each of Petitioner’s Rule 34 Requests

Petitioner’s Rule 34 Request No. | Responsive Documents Produced By Respondent
1 ' HP1-34, 132-171
3 . | HP35-51, 172-336
5 . HP27-51, 132-179
G |'HP1-34, 52-171, 337-355
7 HP1-336
8 HP1-336
9 ' HP337-355
10 HP1-355




Hopé V. Shovein
July 8, 2010
Page 2

Subject to and without waiving the general and specific -objections set forth in
Respondent’s April 8, 2010 Response To Petitioner’s First Set Of Rule 34 Requests and
Respondent’s April 8, 2010 Responses To Petitioner’s First Set Of Interrogatories, Respondent
confirms that that no third-party search reports exist.

Enclosed is a privilege log idéntifying' privileged documents that may be responsive to
Petitioner’s Rule 34 Request Nos. 2, 9 and 14 and Petitioner’s Interrogatory No. 13.

Sincerely, o
Diana DiGennaro

Enclosure
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IN THE UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE
BEFORE THE TRADEMARK TRIAL AND APPEAL BOARD
NARTRON CORPORATION
Petitioner,
V. Cancellation No. 92050789

HEWLETT-PACKARD
DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, L.P.,

Respondent.

EXHIBIT 17
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MARTIN R. GLICK (Cal. Bar No. 40187)

DIANA DIGENNARO (Cal. Bar No. 248471)

HOWARD RICE NEMEROVSKI CANADY FALK &
RABKIN

A Professional Corporation

Three Embarcadero Center, 7th Floor

San Francisco, California 94111-4024

Telephone:  415/434-1600

Facsimile: 415/217-5910

Attorneys for Respondent
HEWLETT-PACKARD DEVELOPMENT
COMPANY, L.P.

IN THE UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE
TRADEMARK TRIAL AND APPEAL BOARD

NARTRON CORPORATION, Cancellation No. 92050789

Petitioner, Registration No. 3,600,880
V. | Registration Date: April 7, 2009
HEWLETT-PACKARD DEVELOPMENT Mark: TOUCHSMART
COMPANY, LP.,,
RESPONDENT’S RESPONSE TO
Respondent. PETITIONER’S FIRST SET OF
. REQUESTS FOR ADMISSION

PROPOUNDING PARTY: Petitioner Nartron Corporation

RESPONDING PARTY: Respondent Hewlett-Packard Development Company, L.P.

SET NUMBER: One

1l

RESPONSE TO PETITIONER’S FIRST SET OF REQUESTS FOR ADMISSION
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Pursuant to C.F.R. Sections 2.116(a) and 2.120(a)(1) and Rule 36 of the Federal Rules of
Civil Procedure, Respondent Hewlett-Packard Developrﬁent Company, L.P. (“Respondent” or
“HP”) hereby responds and objects to the First Set Of Requests For Admission propounded by

Petitioner Nartron Corporation (“Petitioner” or “Nartron”).

RESPONSE TO REQUESTS FOR ADMISSION
REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 1:

Admit that all documents produced by Respondent in response to Petitioner’s First Set of
Rule 34 requests are authentic; are what they purport to be; and are admissible as evidence in this
proceeding.

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 1:

Respondent objects to this Request on the ground that whether the documents produced by
Respondent “are what they purport to be” is ambiguous. Subject to and without waiving this
objection, Respondent answers as follows: Admitted that the documents produced by Respondent
are aufhentic. The request to admit whether these documents are “what they purport to be” is
unclear and denied on that basis. To the extent Respondent produced documents that “purport to
be” advertisements, press releases, registrations and product launch and branding documents,
respectively, Respondent admits such documents are what they “purport to be.” Respondent
specifically denies that all of the documents produced by Respondent are admissible in this
proceeding. The admissibility of these documents depends upon the purpose for which they are
offered and therefore cannot be determined at this point. |
REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 2:

Admit that Respondent became aware of Petitioner’s SMART TOUCH trademark identified
in Registration No. 1,681,891 prior to filing Application No. 77/197/146 for TOUCHSMART,
which matured into Registration No. 3,600,880.

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 2:
Respondent objects to this Request on the ground that it calls for information protected by the

attorney-client communication or attorney work product privilege. Respondent further objects to

-

RESPONSE TO PETITIONER’S FIRST SET OF REQUESTS FOR ADMISSION
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this Request on the ground that it is not relevant to this action and not reasonably calculated to lead
to the discovery of admissible evidence. Subject to and without waiving these objections,
Respondent answers as follows: Denied. Respondent is not aware of any non-attorney or non-
paralegal knowledge by Respondent of Petitioner’s mark prior to the filing of Application
No. 77/197/146 for TOUCHSMART.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 3:

Admit that a trademark search was conducted by or on beﬁalf of Respondent for
TOUCHSMART prior to filing Application No. 77/197/146 for TOUCHSMART, which matured
into Registration No. 3,600,880.

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 3:

Respondent objects to this Request on the ground that it is not relevant to this action and not
reasonably calculated to lead 'to the discovery of admissible e-vidence. Respondent also objects to
this Request on the ground that it calls for information protected by the attorney-client
communication or attorney work product privilege. In addiﬁon, Respondent further objects on the
ground that the term “trademark search” is ambiguous. Sﬁbject to and without waiving these
objections, and to the extent “trademark search” is defined as a search performed by a third party,
Respondent answers as follows: Denied.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 4:
Admit that the image on the right below is representative of one .of Respondent’s

advertisements for its TOUCHSMART product(s).

3=

RESPONSE TO PETITIONER’S FIRST SET OF REQUESTS FOR ADMISSION
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RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 4:

Respondent objects to this Request on the ground that it is not relevant to this action and not
reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. Subject to and without
waiving these objections, Respondent answers as follows: Admitted 'only that the image on the right
is an advertisement for a TOUCHSMART product sold by Respondent. Respondent specifically
denies that the image on the right is ‘;representative” of Respondent’s advertisements for its
TOUCHSMART products. Respondent is prepared to meet and confer with Petitioner to reach a
stipulation rggarding the authenticity of advertisements, websites, registrations and the like to be
used by either party to obviate the time and expense of otherwise establishing that such documents
are authentic.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 5:

Admit that Respondent’s Mark, TOUCHSMART, is made up of the same two words as

Petitioner’s Mark, SMART TOUCH.
RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 5:
Respondent answers as follows: Denied. Respondent’s one-word mark is not “made up of”

the same words as Petitioner’s two-word mark

' REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 6:

Admit that Respondent has a presence in the automotive industry.

4

RESPONSE TO PETITIONER’S FIRST SET OF REQUESTS FOR ADMISSION
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RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 6:

Respondent objects to this Request on the ground that it is not relevant to this action and not
reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. Respondent further objects
on the ground that “presence” is ambiguous. Subject to and without waiving thése objections,
Respondent answers as follows: Denied that Respondent has a “presence” in the automotive
industry. HP sells products that may be used by companies in virtually every industry in the United
States that engage in the manufacturing or design of products or that have almost any kind of
automated support systems. | HP customizes its design and manufacturing and business management
products to be industry appropriate. HP does not make automobiles or automobile parts, nor does it
market its TOUCHSMART products specifically to the automobile industry; it would not be
regarded by those who do as having a “presence” of any kind in the automotive industry.
REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 7: _

Admit that the attached Exhibit 1 is a copy of Respondent’s brochure titled “Improving
automotive industry oufcomes.”

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 7:

Respondent objects to this Request on the ground that it is not relevant to this action and not
reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. - Subject to and without
waiving these objections, Respondent answers as follows: Denied. As noted above, however,
Respondent would be happy to engage in discussions aimed at establishing the authenticity of

exhibits either side may offer as evidence in this matter.

5.

RESPONSE TO PETITIONER’S FIRST SET OF REQUESTS FOR ADMISSION




© o N AW N -

Pk e
Yt O

12
HOWARD 13
RICE
EMEROVSK]
CANAlrJ)Z 14

& RABKIN

Py S r——

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

DATED: July 8, 2010.

MARTIN R. GLICK

DIANA D. DIGENNARO

HOWARD RICE NEMEROVSKI CANADY
FALK & RABKIN

A Professional Corporation

o i |

et

DIANA D. DIGENNARO

Attorneys for Respondent HEWLETT-PACKARD

DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, L.P.

-6

RESPONSE TO PETITIONER’S FIRST SET OF REQUESTS FOR ADMISSION
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PROO¥ OF SERVICE

I, Jenmifer Kerr Hoskins, declare:

I am a resident of the State of California and over the age of eighteen years and not a party to
the within-entitled action; my business address is Three Embarcadero Center, Seventh Floor, San

Francisco, California 94111°4024. On July 8, 2010, I served the following document(s) described
as:

RESPONDENT'S RESPONSE TO PETITIONER'S FIRST SET OF REQUESTS

FOR ADMISSION

by placing the document(s) listed above in a sealed envelope with postage thereon
D fully prepaid, in the United States mail at San Francisco, California addressed as set

forth below.

by transmitting via email the document(s) listed above to the email address(es) set
forth below on this date before 5:00 p.m.

by placing the document(s) listed above in a sealed Federal Express envelope and
affixing a pre-paid air bill, and causing the envelope to be delivered to a Federal
Express agent for delivery.

Hope V. Shovein

Brooks Kushman PC

1000 Town Center, 22nd Floor
Southfield, MI 48075-1238
hshovein@brookskushman.com

I am readily familiar with the firm's practice of collection and processing correspondence for
mailing. Under that practice it would be deposited with the U.S. Postal Service on that same day
with postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of business. Iam aware that on motion of
the party served, service is presumed invalid if postal cancellation date or postage meter date is more
than one day after date of deposit for mailing in affidavit.

I declare under penalty

of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is

true and correct. Executed at San Francisco, California on July 8, 2010.

@%ﬁ Fiofkins~
; ennirer Kerr r10sK1ns

-

PROOF OF SERVICE




